
 

 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 
Wednesday 1 August 2012 at 2.00 pm 
 
To be held at the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Dore Chair/Leader of the Council 
Councillor Harry Harpham Deputy Leader/Homes & Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Isobel Bowler Culture, Sport & Leisure 
Councillor Leigh Bramall Business, SKills & Development 
Councillor Jackie Drayton Children, Young People & Families 
Councillor Mazher Iqbal Communities & Inclusion 
Councillor Mary Lea Health, Care & Independent Living 
Councillor Bryan Lodge Finance & Resources 
Councillor Jack Scott Environment, Waste & Streetscene 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Cabinet discusses and takes decisions on the most significant issues facing the 
City Council.  These include issues about the direction of the Council, its policies and 
strategies, as well as city-wide decisions and those which affect more than one 
Council service.  Meetings are chaired by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie 
Dore.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552.  You 
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Cabinet 
meetings.  Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further 
information. 
 
Cabinet meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Cabinet may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting 
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the 
meeting room. 
 
Cabinet decisions are effective six working days after the meeting has taken place, 
unless called-in for scrutiny by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or referred to the 
City Council meeting, in which case the matter is normally resolved within the 
monthly cycle of meetings.  Further information on this or any of the agenda items 
can be obtained by speaking to John Challenger on 0114 273 4014. 
 
If you require any further information please contact committee@sheffield.gov.uk or 
call us on 0114 273 4014. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

CABINET AGENDA 
1 AUGUST 2012 

 
Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements 

 
2. Apologies for Absence 

 
3. Exclusion of Public and Press 
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 

and public. 
 

4. Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting. 
 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 Minutes of the meeting held on 11th July, 2012 

 
6. Public Questions and Petitions 
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public. 

 
7. Items Called-In for Scrutiny 
 The Chief Executive will inform the Cabinet of any items called in for 

scrutiny since the last meeting of the Cabinet. 
 

8. Retirement of Staff 
 A report of the Chief Executive 

 
9. Adult and Community Learning - Fees Policy 2012 -13 
 Report of the Executive Director, Children, Young People and Families. 

 
10. The Sheffield Investment Fund 
 Report of the Executive Director, Resources. 

 
11. Establishment of Healthwatch Sheffield - Contract Matters 
 Report of the Executive Director, Communities. 

 
12. Annual Equalities and Inclusion Report 2011 - 12 
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
13. Wybourn Sites Disposal 
 Report of the Executive Director, Place. 

 
14. Fox Hill Redevelopment 
 Report of the Executive Director, Place. 

 
15. Revenue Budget and Capital Programme Monitoring (Month 2) 



 

 

 Report of the Executive Director, Resources. 
 

16. Date of Next Meeting 
 The next meeting of Cabinet will be held on Wednesday, 22nd August, 

2012 at 2.00 p.m. 
 

  
 
 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
A new Standards regime was introduced on 1st July, 2012 by the Localism Act 2011.  
The new regime made changes to the way that your interests needed to be 
registered and declared.  Prejudicial and personal interests no longer exist and they 
have been replaced by Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs). 
 
The Act also required that provision is made for interests which are not Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and required the Council to introduce a new local Code of 
Conduct for Members.  Provision has been made in the new Code for dealing with 
“personal” interests. 
 
Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously, and has been published on the Council’s website as a downloadable 
document at -http://councillors.sheffield.gov.uk/councillors/register-of-councillors-
interests 
 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before 
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take. 
 
Further advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114 
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.gov.uk 
 



 

 

SH E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

CABINET 
 

Meeting held 11 July 2012 
  
  
PRESENT: Councillors Harry Harpham (Deputy Chair), Isobel Bowler, Jackie 

Drayton, Mazher Iqbal, Mary Lea, Bryan Lodge and Jack Scott 
 

$$$$$$.. 
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  
1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Julie Dore and Leigh 

Bramall. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  
 2.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
  
3. MINUTES  
  
3.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 20 June 2012 were approved 

as a correct record.  
  
4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  
  
4.1 Air Quality Action Plan 
  
4.1.1 Whilst recognising the effort that had gone into producing the Air Quality Action 

Plan, N Parry asked whether Cabinet were aware that a weakness within the 
Plan was a lack of quantification of the measures required to keep within the law 
in 2015.  

  
4.1.2 Councillor Jack Scott (Cabinet Member for Environment, Waste and 

Streetscene) responded that whilst the Plan was a necessary starting point, 
further work such as the incorporation of the findings of the Low Emissions 
Feasibility Study, would be carried out to ensure compliance with recent 
European Commission changes. 

  
4.2 Responses to Public Questions 
  
4.2.1 N Slack asked (i) should it take over a week for the Council to respond to 

questions asked; (ii) did this show a Council paying lip service to the idea of 
open government; and (iii) what steps would be taken to ensure this attitude to 
the public changed? 

  
4.2.2 Councillor Bryan Lodge (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) confirmed 

that a written response was currently being prepared but this would take time 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Meeting of the Cabinet 11.7.2012 Page 2 

 

  

given the amount of information requested.  It was noted that some information 
could not be supplied as it was commercially sensitive.  He added that it had 
been 4 working days since the receipt of Mr Slack’s questions and protocol for 
written responses was 10 working days.  

  
4.2.3 In relation to Mr Slack’s previous questions concerning Household Waste 

Recycling, Councillor Jack Scott (Cabinet Member for Environment, Recycling 
and Streetscene) confirmed that he had signed a written response for dispatch. 

  
4.3 Sheffield Somali Community Centre 
  
4.3.1 M Ismail stated that the Sheffield Somali Community Centre had been informed 

that they would no longer receive a funding grant and that a month’s notice 
would be given on the Centre’s premises.  He asked what evidence had been 
taken into consideration when making the decision, and questioned whether the 
decision had been taken in a fair and transparent manner with due consideration 
given to the impact on equality and the needs of the vulnerable.  

  
4.3.2 F Musa (for and on behalf of the Somali Women’s Group, Burngreave) asked 

why the Centre’s funding had been cut without consultation or consideration of 
the impact on isolated members of the Community.  She added that the Centre 
was used by the Somali Women’s Group to meet, socialise and raise awareness. 

  
4.3.3 Councillor Harry Harpham stated that he was aware that the Sheffield Somali 

Community Centre had requested a meeting with the Leader and he was 
confident that she would be happy to meet with representatives on her return.   

  
4.3.4 In response to the questions asked, Councillor Mazar Iqbal (Cabinet Member for 

Communities and Inclusion) outlined the communication process that had taken 
place, starting in November 2010 with a letter from the Deputy Chief Executive to 
the VCF organisations, which explained the changes to the grant aid budget and 
the consultation process.  In March 2011, the Voluntary Sector Liaison Team had 
written to invite organisations to make an application and a further letter was sent 
setting out the information organisations were required to supply.  Responses 
were not received from the Centre and a set of Accounts subsequently supplied 
were not signed.  A further letter was sent in October 2011 and final payments 
made in February 2012. 

  
 Councillor Iqbal stated that the decision had not been taken lightly and it was 

important that the process was fair, open and transparent, with over 50 
organisations being awarded grants He added that that one months notice had 
been paid as a gesture of goodwill and that a list of activities held at the Centre 
had been requested in order to assist in seeking alternative accommodation for 
them, but this had not been received to date.   

  
 Councillor Iqbal concluded that he too was confident that a meeting with the 

Leader would be arranged with the Leader in the near future. 
  
4.4 Council Contracts with Private Companies 
  

Page 2



Meeting of the Cabinet 11.7.2012 Page 3 

 

  

4.4.1 Mr Slack raised further questions in relation to private contracts for Public 
Services and asked (i) whether these companies had been approached about 
the levels of profit they enjoyed from the public purse; (ii) had the Council 
attempted to negotiate with them on this and if not, would they undertake to do 
so before more job and service cuts were forced upon the City; and (iii) the 
reality of spending on Sheffield postcode companies given that most were 
subsidiaries of major global players. 

  
4.4.2 Councillor Bryan Lodge (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 

responded that the Council operated a mix of service arrangements in line with 
Authorities across the Country.  The contracting of services had facilitated 
innovative changes and improvements and that reduction in spending and 
efficiencies should not impact on the quality of service provided as outlined 
within provider Service Level Agreements.   He cited examples of the Capita IT 
support contract which had been independently verified as providing the lowest 
spend for the level of service and improvements within the Benefits and 
Revenues service. 

  
 In relation to the Highways PFI contract, Councillor Lodge stated that the tenders 

had been assessed against the delivery specification and AMEY had been 
judged the most competent to deliver. 

  
5. ITEMS CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY/REFERRED TO CABINET/COUNCIL 

  
5.1 The Deputy Chief Executive reported that there had been no items of business 

called in for scrutiny arising from the meeting of the Cabinet held on 20 June 
2012.  

  
5.2 The Cabinet noted the information reported. 
  
6. RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
  
6.1 The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report on Council staff retirements.  
  
6.2 RESOLVED: That this Cabinet :-  
  
 (a) places on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the City 

Council by the following staff in the Portfolios below:- 
  
 Name Post Years’ Service 
    
 Children, Young People and Families 
    
 Anne-Marie 

Appleton 
Teacher, St Marie’s Catholic Primary 
School 

25 

    
 Ian Hayes Teacher, Stocksbridge High School 29 
    
 Lynne Ley Headteacher, Sharrow Primary School 30 
    

Page 3



Meeting of the Cabinet 11.7.2012 Page 4 

 

  

 Ann Lockwood Business Manager, Heritage Park 
Community School 

30 

    
 Susan Orr Teacher, Parson Cross CE Primary 

School 
25 

    
 Erica Taylor Teacher, Windmill Hill Primary School 38 
    
 Place 
    
 Pamela Bridges Personal Assistant, Development 

Services 
22 

    
 Theresa Elliott Customer Services Assistant,  

Street Force 
32 

    
 Vivienne Grehan Administrative Officer, Development 

Services 
25 

    
 (b) extends to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and 
  
 (c) directs that an appropriate extract of this resolution under the Common Seal 

of the Council be forwarded to them. 
  
7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
  
 It was noted that this would be Sonia Sharp’s (Executive Director, Children, 

Young People and Families) last Cabinet meeting.  Councillor Harry Harpham 
expressed his thanks on behalf of the Cabinet for her work and enthusiasm in 
the role and wished her luck and success in her new role in Australia. 

  
8. EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DECISION RECORD 
  
 The following decisions were taken by the Cabinet:-. 
  
8.1 AGENDA ITEM 9: BUS RAPID TRANSIT NORTHERN ROUTE (BRT NORTH) : 

APPROVAL FOR COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER PUBLICATION AND 
THE ACQUISITION OF LAND 

  
 The Executive Director, Place, submitted a report describing the proposed Bus 

Rapid Transit Northern Route (BRT North) which would provide new fast, 
efficient and sustainable public transport links between the centres of Rotherham 
and Sheffield, providing direct access to the Lower Don Valley which is the 
development spine of the Sheffield City Region .  In particular, it was explained 
that, in order to deliver the Bus Rapid Transport (BRT) Northern Route to the 
Programme agreed with Government, the required land to build the scheme 
must be acquired and all rights negotiated in the calendar years 2012/13 and 
that this would involve the acquisition and/or granting of rights over of a total of 
15 plots of land.  

Page 4



Meeting of the Cabinet 11.7.2012 Page 5 

 

  

  
 The intention was to acquire the land by negotiation. However, a Compulsory 

Purchase Order (CPO) scheme was being developed in parallel to give certainty 
of scheme delivery. The land required would be purchased at market value and 
its acquisition would represent an increase in the Council’s asset portfolio. 

  
8.1.2 RESOLVED: That :- 
   
 (a) authority be given for the City Council to make a Compulsory Purchase 

Order under the powers conferred by the Highways Act 1980 to acquire 
the land coloured pink on the Map displayed at the meeting of Cabinet on 
11th July 2012 and marked 'Map referred to in The City of Sheffield 
(Attercliffe Common, Carbrook St, Dunlop St, Weedon St, Meadowhall 
Way, Sheffield Rd) (Bus Rapid Transit Northern Route) (Classified Road 
A6178, C747) Compulsory Purchase Order 2012' 

   
 (b) the Director of Legal Services be authorized to (i) approve the making of 

the CPO and to take all necessary procedural steps prior to and after the 
making of the CPO, to enable the CPO to be submitted to the Secretary 
of State for Transport for confirmation including : - 
 

  (A)   finalising the draft statement of reasons; 
  (B) finalising the Schedule of Interests; 
  (C)   serving notices of the making of the CPO on all persons entitled to 

such notice and placing necessary press notices; 
   
  and (ii) submit the CPO to the Secretary of State for confirmation; 
   
 (c) the Director of Finance and the Director of Property and Facilities 

Management Services, be authorised in conjunction with the Director of 
Legal Services, to acquire and/or secure affected land and rights by 
agreement up to the value of £750,000 for individual interests in parallel 
with the Compulsory Purchase Order, so that the Council can practically 
implement the scheme; 

   
 (d) the Director of Legal Services be authorised to sign and serve any 

Notices and documents and, together with the Executive Director of 
Place, to take all other necessary action to give effect to the decisions 
now made; and 

   
 (e) as soon as the Order is confirmed by the Secretary of State for Transport 

to advertise the confirmation of the CPO and serve all necessary notices 
of confirmation and once the CPO becomes operative, the Director of 
Legal Services be authorised to serve Notices to Treat under Section 5 of 
the Compulsory Purchase Act1965, and where necessary, to serve 
Notices of Entry under Section 11 of the same Act in respect of the land 
included in the Order, or to execute general vesting declarations under 
the Compulsory Purchase (Vesting Declarations) Act 1981.   

   
8.1.3 Reasons for Recommendations 

Page 5



Meeting of the Cabinet 11.7.2012 Page 6 

 

  

  
 Acquisition of the land, and the making of powers to compulsorily purchase any 

plots that cannot be negotiated by agreement, are necessary to deliver the BRT 
North scheme which will contribute to the objectives of ‘Standing up for Sheffield’ 
and the Sheffield City Region Transport Strategy. 

  
8.1.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
 The Bus Rapid Transit North Scheme was itself developed as a bus-based 

alternative to the proposed Supertram extensions which were rejected by the 
Department for Transport for not representing a sufficiently high value for money. 

  
 In light of the Government’s 2011 spending review, the BRT North scheme was 

refined and value-engineered to represent the optimum design solution which 
maximises benefits whilst minimising capital expenditure. 

  
8.2 AGENDA ITEM 10: CAPITAL PROGRAMME APPROVALS 2012-2013 

(MONTH 1) 
  
 The Executive Director, Resources, submitted a report seeking approval for a 

number of variations and additions to the 2012/13 Capital Programme, as well as 
the approval of two procurement strategies for the delivery of projects in the 
Programme. 

  
8.2.1 RESOLVED: That Cabinet :-  
   
 (a) approves the proposed additions to the Capital Programme listed in 

Appendix 1, including the procurement strategies and delegates authority 
to the Director of Commercial Services or Delegated Officer, as 
appropriate,  to award the necessary contracts following stage approval 
by the Capital Programme Group 

   
 (b) approves the variations in Appendix 1; 
   
 (c ) notes the following variations to the Capital Programme:- 
   
  (i) two variations approved within the delegated limit of the Executive 

Management Team for a value of £38,000, namely, Housing 
Demolition Contract and Park Grange Drive Shops Demolition; and 

    
  (ii) no variations had been approved by Directors under their delegated 

authority; and 
   
 (d) notes one emergency approval with a value of £150,000, namely Rivelin 

Valley Playbuilder. . 
   
8.2.2 Reasons for Decision 
  
 The proposed changes to the Capital Programme will improve the transport, 

homes and leisure facilities used by the people of Sheffield. 

Page 6



Meeting of the Cabinet 11.7.2012 Page 7 

 

  

  
 To formally record changes to the Capital Programme in line with Financial 

Regulations and to reset the Capital Programme in line with latest information. 
  
8.2.3 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
 A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the process 

undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to Members. The 
recommendations made to Members represent what Officers believe to be the 
best options available to the Council, in line with Council priorities, given the 
constraints on funding and the use to which funding is put within the Revenue 
Budget and the Capital Programme. 

  
8.3 AGENDA ITEM 11: AIR QUALITY ACTION PLAN FOR SHEFFIELD 
  
8.3.1 The Executive Director, Place, submitted a report providing an update on the 

new Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield 2015 and seeking approval for its 
implementation. The Action Plan set out the causes and impacts of air pollution, 
and proposed seven commitments to reduce air pollution in Sheffield and 
achieve national air quality targets and European Union (EU) limit values by 
2015,  in furtherance of Sheffield’s aspiration to be a City where health 
inequalities are eliminated and air is healthy for all to breathe and to meet the 
Council’s commitment to help improve the health and wellbeing of the people of 
Sheffield, ensuring that it was  an environmentally-responsible City, a key 
component of which was protecting and improving air quality. 

  
8.3.2 The following minor amendments to the Plan were put forward:- 
  
 • Page 12, Action 6 – Substitute the word “Predictable” for the word “Notable” in 

the second line of the first paragraph. 
 • Page 28, Paragraph 6.29 - Substitute the word “Predictable” for the word 

“Notable” in the penultimate line of the paragraph. 
 • Page 28, Paragraph 6.30 - Substitute the words “may open up the possibility 

of making gas vehicles for deliveries a condition of planning permission in 
some instances” for the words “that we could condition in planning 
applications” 

  
8.3.3 RESOLVED: That Cabinet 
   
 (a) notes and agrees the 3 minor amendments to the new Air Quality Action 

Plan outlined (Page 12, Action 6, Page 28, Paragraph 6,29 and Page 28, 
Paragraph 6.3)  

   
 (b) approves the new Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield 2015 for 

implementation;    
   
 (c) allocates a Steering Group and Working Group “champion” to each 

Action contained in the Action Plan, supported by a member of the local 
community; 

   

Page 7



Meeting of the Cabinet 11.7.2012 Page 8 

 

  

 (d) delegates authority to the Executive Director, Place in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Environment, Waste and Streetscene, to take 
steps considered appropriate to implement the approved new Air Quality 
Action Plan for Sheffield subject to any necessary funding being identified 
and due regard being had to the legal implications set out in this report; 

   
 (e) recognises that the Council’s overall Air Quality Champion will be the 

Director of Public Health as part of his role on the City’s Health and 
Wellbeing Board; and   

   
 (f) agrees that a fully refreshed Air Quality Action Plan be submitted to 

Cabinet, following the completion of the Low Emission Zone feasibility 
study, due in the Autumn 2012.  

   
8.3.4 Reasons for Recommendations 
  
 Air pollution impacts negatively on Sheffield people’s health and economy as 

well as contributing to climate change.  Sheffield reflects the national picture, in 
that generally air quality is improving. However in many areas, near the 
motorway and within the busy urban centre, it has not improved, with some 
places seeing air quality worsening.  

  
 Reflecting national trends and many other major cities in the UK, Sheffield 

currently breaches UK and European Union thresholds for air quality. There is 
the potential for the UK government to be fined if the EU limits are exceeded 
past 2015, and the fines imposed could be significant, consequently this is a 
recognised risk for the Council. 

  
 The implementation of this revised Air Quality Action Plan seeks to reduce air 

pollution in Sheffield to achieve national air quality targets and EU limit values by 
2015.  This will provide a better quality of life for all, particularly those living 
alongside the city’s main transport corridors where exposure to elevated pollution 
levels is more likely.  

  
8.3.5 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
 To continue implementing the existing 2003 Air Quality Action Plan, after 

incorporating fine particles (PM10) that we have identified as being an additional 
pollutant to tackle. However, it was considered that this action would not have 
the required impact needed to meet national air quality targets, European Union 
(EU) limit values and protect health. 

  
 Doing nothing. However, this would mean that Sheffield would risk a possible 

fine, particularly if no additional efforts to tackle the problem were made, if the 
national air quality targets and EU limit values are exceeded by 2015. 

  
 Attempting to reduce emissions from traffic by using some form of demand 

management measure.  However, this may still not deliver the required air quality 
targets and EU limit values by 2015 and would also have a negative impact on 
Sheffield’s economy, working against the wider aims of the Corporate Plan. 

 

Page 8



 
 

 
Report of:   Deputy Chief Executive 
 

 
Date:    1st August 2012 
 

 
Subject:   Staff Retirements 
 

 
Author of Report:  John Challenger, Democratic Services 
 

 
Summary: To report the retirement of staff across the  
 Council’s various Portfolios 
 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
(a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the 

City Council by members of staff in the various Council Portfolios and 
referred to in the attached list; 

 
(b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and  
 
(c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with over 
twenty years service. 

 
 

 
Background Papers: None 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet Report 

Agenda Item 8

Page 9



2 

REPORT TITLE: RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
 
1. To report the retirement of the following staff from the Council’s Service and 

to convey the Council’s thanks for their work:- 

 Name Post 
Years’ 
Service 

    
 Children, Young People and Families  
    
 Pauline Holmes Teacher, Newfield School 31 
    
 Kelvin Leaver Teacher, Forge Valley Community 

School 
36 

    
 Barbara Round Teacher, Yewlands School 35 
    
 William Huw Thomas Headteacher, Emmaus Catholic and  

C of E Primary School 
25 

    
 Communities   
    
 Barbara Berwick Support Worker 23 
    
 Marion Burrows Application Development Manager 33 
    
 Keith Clark Approved Mental Health Practitioner 23 
    
 Julie Coupland Support Worker 20 
    
 Dawn Ellison Support Worker 24 
    
 Linda Harrison Assistant Operational Manager 29 
    
 Sharon Marsden Support Worker 23 
    
 Joan McGann Support Worker 24 
    
 June Mundun Support Worker 27 
    
 Sandra Pathan Support Worker 28 
    
 Marilyn Lesley Porter Support Worker 32 
    
 Joy Robertshaw Support Worker 23 
    
 Marie Smith Support Worker 29 
    
 Christine Walton Learning and Development Consultant 26 
    
 Jane Whittington Support Worker 27 

Page 10



3 

    
 Philip Wright Support Worker 21 
    
 Deputy Chief Executive’s  
    
 Julian Ward Lawyer 42 
    
 Place   
    
 Stephen Byers Environmental Policy Co-ordinator 34 
 
 
2. To recommend that Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to 

the City Council by the above – mentioned members of staff in the 
Portfolios stated :- 

  
 (b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and 
  
 (c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under  the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with 
over twenty years service. 

 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Children, Young People and Families 

Lifelong Learning, Skills and Communities 

Page 1 of 11 

   

 

 

Report of: Executive Director, Children, Young People and Families 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Date:    1 August 2012 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Subject: Adult and Community Learning - Fees Policy 2012- 13 

____________________ 

 

Author of Report:  Dee Desgranges 2296140 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Summary:  

1.        This report details the fees policy for adult and community learning, funded by the Skills 
Funding Agency (SFA) and organised by Lifelong Learning, Skills and Communities 
(LLSC).  

1.2 Revisions to the existing fees policy have been made in response to the requirement of 
the SFA. The SFA ‘co-funds’ courses and expects the remainder of course costs to be 
met by fees that are collected locally. 

1.3      The key revision is that, as from August 2013 Level 3 (equivalent to A level study over 
the age of 24 will be required to take out a loan to pay their fees. They will be required to 
repay the loan if their earnings reach a certain point in the future. Further information 
about this new scheme is awaited from the SFA. 

1.4 National fee remission rules particularly impact on those residents that the City Council 
wishes to encourage to take up our community learning opportunities, particularly 
learners of English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL). 

1.5 This report is a summary of the national guidance, it describes the strategic approach to 
fee charging that the City Council proposes to take and sets out the implications for adult 
learners in Sheffield. 

 

 

______________________________________________________________ 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet Report 

Agenda Item 9

Page 13



 

Reasons for Recommendations: 
The following recommendations will allow the city to secure its adult learning funding thereby 
providing access to learning for those residents most in need of improved skills levels and the 
qualifications needed for work and improved life chances.. 

 

Recommendations: 

Cabinet to note the contents of this report and  

• approve the fees policy set for LLSC for the academic year 2012/13 

 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Background Papers: 

 

 

Category of Report: OPEN 

 

 

* Delete as appropriate 

   

Page 14



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

 

1 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

YES/NO Cleared by: Tony Greenwood 

 

2 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

YES/NO Cleared by: Nadine Wynter 

 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

YES/NO Cleared by: Bashir Khan 

 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

 

YES/ 

 

Human rights Implications 

 

YES/ 

 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

 

YES/NO 

 

Economic impact 

 

YES 

 

Community safety implications 

 

YES/NO 

 

Human resources implications 

 

Page 15



NO 

 

Property implications 

 

NO 

 

Area(s) affected 

 

 

 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 

 

Cllr Jackie Drayton 

 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

 

Children, Young People and Family Support 

 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

YES 

 

Press release 

 

/NO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



Adult and Community Learning - Fees Policy 2012-13 

1.      Summary 

1.1     This report details the fees policy for adult and community learning, funded by the Skills 
Funding Agency (SFA) and organised by Lifelong Learning, Skills and Communities 
(LLSC).  

1.2 Revisions to the existing fees policy have been made in response to the requirement of 
the SFA. The SFA ‘co-funds’ courses and expects the remainder of course costs to be 
met by fees that are collected locally. 

1.3      The key revision is that, as from August 2013 Level 3 (equivalent to A level study over 
the age of 24 will be required to take out a loan to pay their fees. They will be required to 
repay the loan if their earnings reach a certain point in the future. Further information 
about this new scheme is awaited from the SFA. 

1.4 National fee remission rules particularly impact on those residents that the City Council 
wishes to encourage to take up our community learning opportunities, particularly 
learners of English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL). 

1.5 This report is a summary of the national guidance, it describes the strategic approach to 
fee charging that the City Council proposes to take and sets out the implications for adult 
learners in Sheffield. 

1.6 The proposed charging schedule for Sheffield City Council’s Adult and Community 
Learning provision is shown at Appendix A. 

 

2.      What Does This Mean for Sheffield People? 

2.1      Under the new guidance from the SFA, only the following learners over the age of 19 will   
be able to access courses free of charge: 

• those in receipt of Jobseekers’ Allowance (JSA) or Employment Support 
Allowance (ESA), those who are unemployed and in receipt of means tested 
benefits.  

• those pursuing adult literacy and numeracy courses (Basic Skills) 

• those who have not previously achieved a Level 2 qualification (equivalent to five 
or more GCSEs at A* - C) 

• those who have not previously achieved a  Level 3 qualification (equivalent to two 
or more ‘A’ Levels ). From August 2013 all learners over the age of 24 will be 
required to pay fees. 

2. 2    These rule changes will have a significant impact on the lives of those adults who are in 
work but in receipt of benefits.  

   

2.3 The implications of these rules and changes are: 

• there is less incentive than previously to deliver ESOL, providers will be more 

inclined to concentrate on offering courses for 16-19 year olds which remain free 

and where the market is more certain 

Page 17



• the restriction of concessionary fees to those on work-related benefits is likely to 

impact disproportionately on some disadvantaged groups who are most in need of 

support . The majority of those are women ESOL learners who are not claiming 

these benefits.  

• the Discretionary Learner Support Fund  is no longer available  to help the most 

vulnerable of learners with such things as examination fees, travel and hardship. 

2.4      In addition, the Discretionary Learner Support Fund that has allowed adult learners with  
the greatest financial need to receive a small bursary also ceased in 2011. 

 

3.      Outcomes 

3.1      The City Council is obliged by the SFA to charge fees for its adult learning provision. The 
City Council will endeavour to hold fees at a level that  allows those who are most in need 
to access adult learning. This relates to those prospective adult learners who will not be 
eligible for free provision under the SFA rules i.e. those adults who are in work, but who 
are disadvantaged, have low skills levels and are most in need of access to learning to 
improve their life chances and their prospects of employment.  

3.2  With regard to the particular challenges associated with the delivery of ESOL, LLSC is 
 leading the Sheffield ESOL Forum which is made up of the main providers of ESOL 
 learning in the city, including: 

• the Sheffield College 

• the Worker’s Education Association (WEA) 

• the  Sheffield Association for the Voluntary Teaching of English (SAVTE) 

• St Mary’s church 

3.3 The forum is working collectively to review the ESOL offer across Sheffield to ensure that 
limited resources are deployed to best effect and that the detrimental effects of the new   
SFA regulations are mitigated as far as is possible. The forum is currently : 

• planning a coherent offer with clear progression routes across providers to 
maximise coverage and avoid duplication  

• identifying gaps in provision 

• developing a common approach to referral and the assessment of need 

• increasing the city’s capacity to deliver ESOL through a volunteering structure 
where learning is free at the point of delivery. This will be achieved by supporting 
SAVTE and other community organisations to develop the new structure using 
pump priming from the Neighbourhood Learning in Deprived Communities fund.  

 

 4.      Background 

4.1     The funding for adult learning comes to Sheffield City Council is a grant from the SFA. It 
covers such things as First Steps informal learning, Family Learning, Basic Skills and 
ESOL, and courses leading to a first Level 2 or 3 qualification, and Level 3 qualifications. 

Page 18



4.2      The SFA requires the providers of adult learning to “increase contributions to the cost of 
learning from employers and individuals in line with their ability to pay and the benefits 
they receive”. The national fee assumption is that the public purse will continue to meet 
at least 50% of the tuition costs of adult learning with the remainder made up by the 
course fees paid by individual learners. The exception to this rule will be those categories 
of adult learners who will remain entitled to full fee remission.   

4.3      LLSC proposes only minor changes to the fees policy for the academic year 2012 /13 
following the major revisions made in the last academic year.  

4.4 Any fees that are collected by LLSC will contribute to the costs of either putting on more 
provision where it is most required, or contribute to a bursary fund for those who cannot 
afford the fees or who have other hardship issues.  

 

5.      Proposed Adult and Community Learning Fees Policy 2012/13 

5.1     The fees policy provides coherent, consistent and transparent guidelines that allow for the 
targeting of finite and diminishing resources at those likely to benefit most from the 
provision of adult learning, including those needing to access: 

• ESOL  

• Literacy and Numeracy  

• Family Learning 

• A first Level 2 or 3 qualification aimed at progress to employment. 

5.2     The fees policy complies with SFA guidelines but seeks to limit the cost of courses 
provided by LLSC to reduce the impact on those vulnerable and disadvantaged 
individuals who previously benefited from fee remission. 

 
5.3      LLSC, together with its partners, is establishing a picture of the hardship issues attributed 

to the introduction of fees for ESOL learning and is addressing these issues through the 
work of the ESOL Forum. The ESOL Forum is monitoring patterns of attendance and 
progression using data collected from providers.  

 
5.4 The data will provide the basis for a collective and strategic approach to how reduced 

resources can be best deployed to deliver ESOL most effectively across the city.  In 
support of this approach, Neighbourhood Learning in Deprived Communities funding is 
being used to resource community-based learning champion activity, some of which will 
be directed to guiding new ESOL learners to appropriate provision and guiding those 
learners for whom further accreditation is not appropriate to conversation classes. 
Voluntary ESOL provision has been mapped and potential sources of financial support 
defined to aid this process. There is a full prospectus of ESOL provision in the city, both 
funded and non voluntary that is published each term. 

 
5.5      Programmes have been redesigned to ensure as many people as possible are able to 

access ESOL. This would include those claiming Jobseekers Allowance who may be 
referred by Jobcentre Plus and will be entitled to fee remission.  

 
 

Page 19



 
 

6.       Financial Implications 

6.1      Targets are set for recruitment by the SFA against the funding that it provides to the local 
authority. This funding amounts to £2,135,687.  Setting fees at a reasonable level for 
learners should ensure that these targets can still be met. Fees collected are estimated 
to amount to approximately £60,000 in the academic year 2012/13.  

6.2      A small amount of hardship funding of £8,000 will be available from LLSC for those 
learners who are unable to afford learning. Some Community Assemblies have also 
expressed a wish to identify an amount of funding to cover hardship in particular 
individual cases. 

7.      Managing Risk and Governance 

           LLSC has extensive experience of managing complex SFA-funded projects to ensure 
compliance with external contract and audit requirements. The service has developed a 
close working relationship with the Finance External Funding Team to ensure risk and 
monitoring mechanisms are appropriate and to mitigate the risk of funding claw back.  

8.      Legal Implications 

The report proposes the revision of the fees policy for adult learning.   The Council has 
power pursuant to sections 15A and 15B of the Education Act 1996 to secure the 
provision of full-time or part-time education suitable to persons for those who are over 
compulsory school age who have not attained the age of 19 and those who have attained 
the age of 19.  This may include provision for persons from other areas.  The Council 
may do anything that it considers necessary or expedient for the purposes of, or in 
connection with, the provision of such further education. 

 

There are no further specific legal implications arising from this report. 

9.      Human Resources Implications 

          There are no immediate human resource implications arising from this report.  

10.    Community Safety Implications 

           There are no Community Safety implications arising from this report. 

11.    Environmental and Sustainability implications 

           There are no environmental and sustainability implications arising from this report 

12.    Consultations 

12.1    The issue of changes to fee remission rules and potential responses to these have been    
widely discussed at meetings with local learning partnerships and Community 
Assemblies between January 2011 and the present.  

12.2    The changes have been discussed and a coordinated response organised by providers 
 through the ESOL Forum.  

12.3  Feedback from all these sources has been fed through to national government as part of 
 the national consultation on the impact of fees for the most disadvantaged. 

13.    Economic Impact 

Page 20



           The engagement of adults into learning and the provision of pathways into further 
leaning, training and employment has a positive economic impact on the city’s economy 
and the life chances of its most vulnerable and disadvantaged residents. The City 
Council will, with the support of the ESOL Forum, monitor and report on the impact of fee 
and other changes.  

14.    Equality of Impact Implications 

           An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to the changes outlined 
in this report and this assessment is appended.  

15.    Alternative Options 

 The option of halting the delivery of those courses for which the charging of fees in now 
required was considered and rejected as it would not allow equal access to learning for 
those very vulnerable learners, particularly from the BME communities who need 
language support to help them to play a positive role in their community and to contribute 
to the local economy. 

16.    Reasons for Recommendations  

          The following recommendations will allow the city to secure its adult learning funding 
thereby providing access to learning for those residents most in need of improved skills 
levels and the qualifications needed for work and improved life chances.  

17.    Recommendations 

Cabinet to note the contents of this report and  

• approve the fees policy set for LLSC for the academic year 2012/13. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



 

Appendix A 

1. Fee remission criteria 

The following provision will be free to all: 

• Skills for Life – Literacy (English) 

• Skills for Life – Numeracy (Maths) 

• Family Literacy (English), Languages and Numeracy(Maths) 

• Wider Family Learning 

• A first, full Level 2 or  Level 3 qualification 

• A first, full Entry Level or Level 1 course as a step up to Level 2 (not including 
English, maths or ESOL programmes) 

 

• Jobseekers Allowance or Employment Support Allowance claimants will not pay 
fees for any courses.   

• Those adults who are unemployed but in receipt of other means tested benefits will 
not pay fees for any courses. 

• An administrative charge of £10 will apply to all learners within community learning 
where fees are remitted including English and maths. 

• Employers will be expected to make a contribution to the cost of an apprenticeship 
programme for employees who are 19 years old or more. Some of this contribution 
could be ‘in kind’, for example time allowed for the release of the learner for off the 
job training. A new grant of £1,500 is available to an employer who is taking an 
apprentice for the first time and who is an SME. 

• The full cost of provision will be charged for courses generally aimed at 
professionals wishing to retrain or develop their skills, or employers wishing to 
engage in development of their staff. 

• From August 2013, student loans will be introduced for learners aged 24 or above at 
Level 3 and above. The loans will be ring fenced within LLSC’s allocation. Further 
information is awaited from the SFA 

  

2.    Fee charges 

    ESOL courses in the community 

    Fees will be £1.00 per hour for learners who need to pay. The administrative charge will be 
£10 (average length of course is 30 hours). 

        ICT courses in the community  

  Fees will be £2.00 per hour for learners who need to pay. The administrative charge will be   
£10 (average length of course is 20 hours). 

    Craft and Leisure courses 

Page 22



Fees will be £2.00 per hour for learners who need to pay. The administrative charge will be 
£10 (average length of course is 20 hours) 

    First full Level 2 or Level 3 qualification 

        These courses will be free to those learners who meet the fee remission criteria. 

  First full Entry Level /Level1 as a step up to Level 2 (does not include Literacy, 
Numeracy or ESOL Programme) 

Learners will be asked to sign a disclaimer stating that if they do not attend an exam 
for which they have agreed to be entered they may be charged the entry fee. 

 

3. Evidence for fee remission: 

 Learners entitled to fee remission will need to have the following evidence: 

• Jobseekers Allowance: a letter confirming JSA status from Jobcentre 
Plus/Benefits Agency. The letter must not be more than three months old.  

• Employment Support Allowance (active benefit): a current ESA Award Notice. 

• Means tested benefits: a current letter confirming unemployed status together with 
a letter confirming the particular means tested benefit 

 

4. Bursaries 

• Funding for these courses maybe available through bursaries granted to 
community organisations.  

• Fees are payable either at the commencement of the course, or weekly 

• Further details and guidance to follow when grants have been awarded. 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



10
SHEFFIELD CITY 

COUNCIL
Cabinet Report 

Report of:   Executive Director, Resources
______________________________________________________________ 

Date:    1 August 2012 
______________________________________________________________ 

Subject:   Sheffield Investment Fund 
______________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report: Nalin Seneviratne – Director of Property & Facilities 
Management Services  0114 273 4120 

    Eugene Walker – Director of Finance 
    0114 273 5872 

______________________________________________________________

Summary:  

This report sets out proposals on how Sheffield City Council can lead in taking a 
strategic and innovative approach to the use of its property asset base to 
develop an Investment Fund, ‘The Sheffield Investment Fund’.

The ultimate objective and targeted output of this fund will be to assist in the 
regeneration and sustainable growth of the local economy with associated 
benefits to the workforce and people of Sheffield.

The City has the ability to realise cash from the large number of surplus property 
assets it currently owns, and for a period of time, put that cash to work, through 
an investment fund. The fund would work by making investments in projects that 
will unlock viable economic development schemes to assist business, job growth 
and regenerate the City. 

This fund would work alongside and be complimentary to the recently approved 
South Yorkshire Development Fund and Transport and Housing Fund. Unlike 
these funds, which are managed outside the City Council, the Sheffield 
Investment Fund would be integrated with the Council’s Capital Programme and 
be directly controlled by the City Council. 

Drivers

  To make better use of the Council’s assets, consistent with the corporate 
asset management plan. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 25



  Recognition that proactive steps need to be taken by the Council to 
promote economic advancement in the City. 

  To offer a solution to the current challenges in the development finance 
market in which conditions continue to worsen. 

  Viable projects in the City have stalled due to current difficulties in 
accessing private finance. 

  The need to be complementary to the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
and linked initiatives. 

  To demonstrate that Sheffield is open for business, and for the public 
sector to meet the private sector to achieve outcomes in the new 
economic climate. 

What is the proposed structure of the fund?

  A revolving fund that is governed by the Council with options to use Fund 
Management expertise where appropriate all as a function of the Council’s 
financial strategy. 

  Integrated with the Council’s financial strategy and Capital Programme. 

  Financing of the Fund is to be obtained from some of the Council’s 
low/zero yielding assets and matched with private sector funding, with the 
option of drawing in other public funding. 

  The fund invests in economic projects to the extent needed to secure the 
necessary project funding from the private sector. As the project is 
developed out, the finance provided by the Fund is repaid including an 
appropriate return. The Fund is therefore a sustainable revolving fund 
thereby protecting the capital element of the Fund. 

  The fund can be structured to work in partnership with other investment 
Funds at a City Region level, should the Council consider it strategically 
advantageous to do so in order to maximise benefit. 

What are the benefits?

  Better use of surplus and underperforming assets that currently generate 
little financial benefit to the Council and therefore with minimal impact on 
the net revenue of the Council. 

  An opportunity to directly influence economic activity in the City including 
the growth of Small and Medium Enterprises, social enterprise and inward 
investment.

  Raising the profile of the City and a clear demonstration to funders, 
developers and companies that the City is a proactive and positive place 
to do business. 

  A structure that is consistent with emerging Government policy and, if 
shown to be effective in spending public funds, resulting in a better 
chance of securing more central government allocations for Regional 
Growth Fund etc in the future. 

  The ability to provide synergy with and to add value or unlock other 
funding sources such as New Homes Bonus, Regional Growth Fund or 
JESSICA, (Joint European Support for Sustainable Investment in City 
Areas), linked to the South Yorkshire Development Fund already 
approved.

Page 26



  This approach provides a funding route for viable projects thereby 
improving the success rate of projects made viable through other sources 
(such as grant funding, gap funding etc). 

Which investments will the fund focus on?

The fund is expected to focus on six priority themes that are consistent with the 
Economic Strategies of both the City Council and the Local Enterprise 
Partnership and will invite projects which can support and drive growth in these 
areas:

  Advanced manufacturing & healthcare technologies 

  Housing 

  Retail and the experience economy 

  Creative and digital 

  Green and low carbon infrastructure 

  Quality office space in the city centre 

The fund could also support strategic land acquisition to assist in the above 
priorities (this may provide a first phase of project investment for the fund). 

Recommendations

To establish the Sheffield Investment Fund as outlined in the report and as a 
result agree to delegate authority to the Executive Director of Resources, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and the Director of Legal 
Services to: 

a) Establish the fund through the capital programme on the basis that the 
fund will not normally be for “gap” funding, but will be for investment 
purposes, generating a cash return on the investment with a payback of 
the capital at the end of the term of the investment. 

b) To establish an appropriate governance structure. 

c) To establish the Fund’s Investment Strategy, project selection process 
and linkage, where appropriate, to the Sheffield City Region Investment 
Fund.

d) To agree the procurement strategy and award if it is determined that the 
best way of delivering the output is by creating a special purpose vehicle 
or entering into a joint venture. 

e) To negotiate, agree and complete the legal agreements required to give 
effect to the above arrangements. 

f) To make any other decision required to enable the creation and operation 
of the Sheffield Investment Fund including the use of a Fund Manager, 
where deemed appropriate, as procured for the South Yorkshire Urban 
Development Fund. 

Page 27



______________________________________________________________ 

Background Papers: 

Category of Report: OPEN/CLOSED*

If Closed add – ‘Not for publication because it contains exempt information 
under Paragraph… of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended).’

* Delete as appropriate   

Page 28



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

Financial Implications 

YES/NO Cleared by: Eugene Walker 

Legal Implications 

YES/NO Cleared by: Gillian Duckworth 

Equality of Opportunity Implications

YES/NO Cleared by:  Julie Toner 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

NO

Human rights Implications

/NO:

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

NO

Economic impact 

/NO

Community safety implications 

/NO

Human resources implications 

/NO

Property implications 

/NO

Area(s) affected 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 

Cllr Bryan Lodge 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

Overview and Scrutiny Management 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

YES

Press release 

NO

Page 29



The Sheffield Investment Fund 

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 This report sets out proposals on how Sheffield City Council can lead in taking a 
strategic and innovative approach to the use of its property asset base to develop an 
Investment Fund, ‘The Sheffield Investment Fund’.

The ultimate objective and targeted output of this fund will be to assist in the 
regeneration and sustainable growth of the local economy with associated benefits to 
the workforce and people of Sheffield.

The City has the ability to realise cash from the large number of surplus property 
assets it currently owns, and for a period of time, put that cash to work, through an 
investment fund. The fund would work by making investments in projects that will 
unlock viable economic development schemes to assist business, job growth and 
regenerate the City. 

This fund would work alongside and be complimentary to the recently approved South 
Yorkshire Development Fund and Transport and Housing Fund. Unlike these funds, 
which are managed outside the City Council, the Sheffield Investment Fund would be 
integrated with the Council’s Capital Programme and be directly controlled by the City 
Council. 

1.2 Drivers

  To make better use of the Council’s assets, consistent with the corporate asset 
management plan. 

  Recognition that proactive steps need to be taken by the Council to promote 
economic advancement in the City. 

  To offer a solution to the current challenges in the development finance market 
in which conditions continue to worsen. 

  Viable projects in the City have stalled due to current difficulties in accessing 
private finance. 

  The need to be complementary to the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and 
linked initiatives. 

  To demonstrate that Sheffield is open for business, and for the public sector to 
meet the private sector to achieve outcomes in the new economic climate. 

1.3 What is the proposed structure of the fund?

  A revolving fund that is governed by the Council with options to use Fund 
Management expertise where appropriate all as a function of the Council’s 
financial strategy. 

Page 30



  Integrated with the Council’s financial strategy and Capital Programme. 

  Financing of the Fund is to be obtained from some of the Council’s low/zero 
yielding assets and matched with private sector funding, with the option of 
drawing in other public funding. 

  The fund invests in economic projects to the extent needed to secure the 
necessary project funding from the private sector. As the project is developed 
out, the finance provided by the Fund is repaid including an appropriate return. 
The Fund is therefore a sustainable revolving fund thereby protecting the 
capital element of the Fund. 

The fund can be structured to work in partnership with other investment Funds at a 
City Region level, should the Council consider it strategically advantageous to do so 
in order to maximise benefit. 

1.4 What are the benefits?

  Better use of surplus and underperforming assets that currently generate little 
financial benefit to the Council and therefore with minimal impact on the net 
revenue of the Council. 

  An opportunity to directly influence economic activity in the City including the 
growth of Small and Medium Enterprises, social enterprise and inward 
investment.

  Raising the profile of the City and a clear demonstration to funders, developers 
and companies that the City is a proactive and positive place to do business. 

  A structure that is consistent with emerging Government policy and, if shown to 
be effective in spending public funds, resulting in a better chance of securing 
more central government allocations for Regional Growth Fund etc in the 
future.

  The ability to provide synergy with and to add value or unlock other funding 
sources such as New Homes Bonus, Regional Growth Fund or JESSICA 
linked to the South Yorkshire Development Fund already approved. 

  This approach provides a funding route for viable projects thereby improving 
the success rate of projects made viable through other sources (such as grant 
funding, gap funding etc). 

1.5 Which investments will the fund focus on?

The fund is expected to focus on six priority themes that are consistent with the 
Economic Strategies of both the City Council and the Local Enterprise Partnership 
and will invite projects which can support and drive growth in these areas: 

  Advanced manufacturing & healthcare technologies 

  Housing 

Page 31



  Retail and the experience economy 

  Creative and digital 

  Green and low carbon infrastructure 

  Quality office space in the city centre 

The fund could also support strategic land acquisition to assist in the above priorities 
(this may provide a first phase of project investment for the fund). 

2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 

2.1 The proposals in this report would assist in the development and promotion of 
Sheffield’s economy with investment in projects that among other things lead to 
environmental improvements and growth in jobs, thereby assisting in the sustainable 
development of the economic, environmental and social well being of the City and its 
inhabitants.

2.2 The proposals also ensure that Sheffield people benefit from the improved use of the 
City’s property asset base to assist with their sustainable well being.

3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 

3.1 As for the South Yorkshire Development Fund, previously agreed by Cabinet, the 
proposals set out here will establish a recyclable investment fund within the City of 
Sheffield. This too will facilitate private and public sector investment in projects that 
will promote job creation and economic growth. This will directly support the Council’s 
strategic objective to create a Strong and Competitive Economy. 

3.2 Sustainable outcomes would be set through the Investment Strategy to guide 
investment decisions ensuring that such decisions meet the outcomes of the 
Corporate Plan. Whilst the fund needs to make a financial return on investments, its 
purpose is primarily to assist in driving the economic growth and prosperity of the City 
and to respond to the City Region’s needs rather than competing with the private 
sector. Therefore a series of quantifiable outputs that can be targeted in order to 
deliver this will be produced. These will then be used as an important part of the 
project selection mechanism, and will ensure that best value is delivered against 
measurable criteria. 

The actual target categories and numbers will need to be worked up during the fund 
development, and will require input from all Council and Partner working groups.  

Whilst there is likely to be an aspiration to aim for the highest possible number of 
outputs, it must be remembered that the fund must still be able to make a return to 
keep its integrity and to maintain the potential for a private sector investor to join at 
fund level, therefore an achievable set of outputs per £ invested would be agreed in 
an attempt to find this balance. 

The output targets will then feed into the project selection process and also the 

Page 32



pricing structure. 

Example outputs that may be considered are as follows 

  Number of jobs created 

  Area of brown field land remediated 

  Number of affordable houses produced 

  Number of private / private rented houses produced 

  Carbon reduction and amount of space created to environmentally sustainable 
standards.

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 Objective of the Sheffield Investment Fund

The objective of the fund is to use the City’s asset base more effectively to deliver 
sustainable economic growth and increased prosperity for Sheffield, engaging the 
private sector more widely. 

4.2 This paper follows work carried out by the Property Service of the Council reviewing 
how it could make best use of the surplus asset base for furthering the objectives of 
the Corporate Plan which considered taking a different approach to the funding of the 
capital programme and driving economic growth. 

In common with all public sector organisations Sheffield City Council faces severe 
financial constraints. However, the demand for public services and the need to act as 
catalysts for change and growth is undiminished. It is hence incumbent upon the 
Council to explore all opportunities to promote growth and prosperity for the City. 

Access to capital to drive regeneration and growth from traditional sources such as 
central government agencies is very much reduced. Similarly the nature and profile of 
opportunities which the private sector has the willingness and ability to fund has 
changed dramatically in recent years presenting further challenges to the promotion 
of economic activity. 

The Council does however, have a significant asset base which at present delivers 
modest benefit to the City’s service priorities and a very modest financial return. This 
report considers how these assets could be better utilised to address some of these 
problems. This report also seeks to provide an understanding of how a fund structure 
can work and to objectively appraise its ability to deliver investment in the City. This 
paper outlines the principles of operation and the potential sources of funding from 
both the public and private sector.

Page 33



4.3 Why An Investment Fund?

In recent history, assistance and resource (both intellectual and financial) has been 
provided by central government through entities such as the Regional Development 
Agencies and the Homes and Communities Agency to assist local authorities in 
delivering strategic frameworks. Such support is now significantly reduced and local 
authorities are required to source their own intellectual and economic resources and 
deliver projects using their own initiative. 

The principle is that the fund will be created with SCC funds through the management 
and divestment of assets and used as a vehicle both to lever private sector finance, 
either at a fund or project level, and to maximise the chances of attracting any 
available central government funding streams and to make best use of those fund 
streams through initiatives such as Growing Places Fund, Regional Growth Fund, 
New Homes Bonus and Business Rate Retention. 

It is essential that the fund encourages and can support a structured pipeline of 
projects to be delivered, creating a critical mass of appropriate projects, access to 
those projects and finance, which makes it of a size that becomes of interest to the 
wider market. This structured approach will allow a more efficient resourcing structure 
and ensure the city can access the best quality investment and delivery advice in a 
cost efficient manner. 

Over time, developers and project sponsors will consider the fund in the first instance 
when structuring projects, and therefore it is reasonable to expect the project pipeline 
to strengthen over time. 

4.4 Sheffield City Region Investment Fund

In summary, the Sheffield Investment Fund is designed to be complementary to an 
overarching fund for the City Region which will be implemented on a City Region 
basis through a partnership approach. This has been given a working title of the 
Sheffield City Region Investment Fund (SCRIF) and has already been agreed by 
Cabinet.  In reality this will be a collection of complementary funding streams, each of 
which will have its own objectives and emphases. The SCRIF is the framework 
through which each of these individual elements is brought together to align 
objectives and optimise outputs for the Sheffield City Region. 

The Sheffield Investment Fund whilst complementing and forming part of the SCRIF, 
will invest in the local priorities decided by Sheffield City Council, for the benefit of 
Sheffield and will invest on a commercial basis, seeking to protect the original capital 
invested and achieve a financial return along with other social and economic benefits. 
The Sheffield Investment Fund is not however, dependent upon the SCRIF being 
established to operate and can be formed and operate in advance of the SCRIF. 

4.5 The Challenging Market Context

The current market for development finance remains incredibly challenging. A review 
of the first quarter for 2012 below demonstrates that conditions continue to worsen. 

Page 34



Maximum loan to value ratios continue to fall, bank margins continue to rise and the 
number of institutions actively lending for development continues to fall. Where 
finance is available it will generally seek prime assets in prime locations with a very 
low risk profile. 

Other sources of funding are “filling the gap” created by reduced bank financing. All 
seek preferred positions and exit fees, issues that the Sheffield Investment Fund 
would also need to consider. 

4.6 Priorities for Investment

The following themes have been identified by officers as being the key priorities for 
economic growth in the city and hence priorities for investment from both the public 
and private sector. These are consistent with the Sheffield Economic Masterplan 
prepared by Creative Sheffield and consistent with many of the findings of the 
independent report by Centre for Cities “Advancing Ambitions: Creating a Sustainable 
Economic Future for Sheffield” published in October 2011. 

Key Investment Themes 

The proposed themes are as follows: 

  Advanced manufacturing & healthcare technologies 

  Housing 

  Retail & the experience economy 

  Creative and Digital Industries  

  Green and low carbon Infrastructure 

  Quality office space in the City Centre 

It will be a next step for a “pipeline” of projects to be developed and assessed for 
investment. An assessment has been made for the potential projects that currently 
exist that may be the subject of investment from this fund. At this stage such 
information is commercially sensitive as there is as yet no decision of the City Council 
either to approve the development of this fund or indeed to invest in particular 
projects. Nor has there been any agreement from potential investors or project 
sponsors. Therefore the assessment of such projects has been made available to 
members, for information, in a separate closed report. 

4.7 Fund Structure

Experience has shown that the projects that deliver the types of outputs that SCC will 
require from its investments often have historically allocated gap funding, or sunk gap 
funding and require further investment to deliver the next stage. This funding has 
typically come from ERDF programmes and the former Regional Development 

Page 35



Agencies.

The Sheffield Investment Fund is not primarily intended to provide gap funding. 
Therefore it is important to understand the basis on which it can invest, the other 
funding sources which may be available and how projects will flow towards the fund. 

The Sheffield Investment Fund (SIF) will take a commercial stance and will step in 
where projects are viable but are unable to secure bank finance because the project 
risk is different to that which is currently acceptable to the banks. Lending will be on 
commercial terms. The quid pro quo is that the projects will be asked to deliver 
specified outputs to align them to SCC’s economic strategy, thus balancing the risk: 
benefit ratio to SCC. The initial capital invested in the fund from asset sales will be 
largely protected and may be bolstered by investments that simply produce a strong 
financial return. 

It is expected that on many occasions the funds will work together with other funding 
sources such as ERDF, JESSICA, Growing Places etc. which will assist in bringing 
the projects to a viable position where the Sheffield Investment Fund may then invest. 

4.8 What does the Sheffield Investment Fund look like?

The SIF will be structured as a commercial fund. There is an option to use the 
services of an independent professional Fund Manager and this capacity has been 
built into the South Yorkshire Development Fund recently approved by Cabinet. 
However, particularly in the early stages the Council will simply use internal resource 
to ensure alignment with the Council’s financial strategy. This will require an 
Investment Strategy that will set out the objectives of the fund, determine the rate of 
return and risk profile that the fund targets, as well as the type of investment the fund 

Page 36



makes.

The SIF will be required to invest in line with State Aid regulations and therefore will 
be investing at a market rate (subject to obtaining any notification to the contrary). It 
will aim to deliver a commercial return to its investors. The fund is not primarily about 
gap funding, but assisting projects that may require a more considered financing 
solution than the market can offer on its own. 

SIF investments may be in the form of debt, equity or guarantee, and may take first or 
subordinated security (which will affect the rate of return). 

Projects for investment will be selected not only on the basis of a sound business 
case, but also for the regenerative, economic and wider social or environmental 
benefits that they will deliver for the city. 

The fund is expected to have an initial life of 10 years, with capital and potentially 
returns above a certain level being retained by the fund for reinvestment during this 
period (a rotating or ‘evergreen’ fund).

4.9 Interaction with City Region Funds

It is proposed that the Sheffield Investment Fund should co-exist with and be 
complementary to the emerging Sheffield City Region fund structure. The City Region 
fund will clearly focus on those projects which will support the economic advancement 
of the City Region as a whole rather than specifically focussing on Sheffield. The City 
Region fund will be governed at a City Region level. It is envisaged that the 
investments strategies of all funds should be complimentary but are likely to have 
differing emphases. However, notably some of these strategies will be co-terminus 
i.e. favouring a certain project in a certain location e.g. Sheffield and as such co-
investment remains a strong opportunity. 

The Sheffield Investment Fund will invest on a commercial basis, aiming for a 
cashable return whilst protecting the capital which has originated through the sale of 
City Council owned assets. The City Region fund is likely to provide a structure which 
is capitalised through alternative sources from Europe and Central Government. The 
nature of the investments it makes is likely to be of a different nature to the Sheffield 
Investment Fund although some may be mutually beneficial. City Region funds may 
also grant fund projects which, whilst important, do not generate a cashable return.

It is possible that the Sheffield Investment Fund could invest in LEP led projects 
across the City region, which may have multiple income streams, provided the 
projects fit the Sheffield Investment Fund’s investment strategy. It is similarly possible 
that the Sheffield Investment Fund will invest in projects which have been made 
viable with grant funding from other sources within the Sheffield City Region 
Investment fund (SCRIF). 

The proposed structure of the SCRIF enables an overview of the economic 
development priorities across the City Region, the various funding streams available 
to support these priorities, but importantly allows for local decision making for local 
authority controlled funding. 

Page 37



4.10 Benefits of the Sheffield Investment Fund

In occupying a position in the funding market that banks and the private sector have 
retracted from or reduced their capacity, the SIF has the potential to leverage a 
considerable amount of additional development money in the city.

Because projects will need to be viable, a return will be created from investment by 
the fund. In addition, projects will need to accord with the Investment Strategy, which 
will ensure that they deliver beneficial outputs to the city.  

These benefits are only maximised through a cohesive approach by SCC, resulting in 
a critical mass that then becomes attractive to institutional investors and has the 
capacity to attract and promote other sources of public funding. Whether they will 
wish to invest at project or fund level, access to the funds that they have available will 
open up as the funding approach matures.

4.11 Governance and Decision Making

Further work is required on this. The key requirement will be to ensure that this aligns 
with the Council’s capital programme and strategic priorities. The SIF is intended to 
be directly controlled by the Council, not be a separately managed external fund, 
although the nature of some investment appraisals may require the use of external 
fund manger advice. Further work on the arrangements will be agreed with the 
Cabinet member for Finance.

5.0 FINANCIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The source of Funds

The source of capital for the fund is a series of assets that are earmarked for 
disposal. The current disposal programme stretches over a number of years in order 
to allow the assets to be improved and prepared for divestment and to ensure best 
value is received. All of the cash from these assets will not therefore be available at 
day 1. A current estimate of this is as follows:- 

Projected Receipts 
Programme

    

£m 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Future Total

Unallocated Receipts 
b/forward 25.2 16.8 0.0 11.0 20.2 43.9  25.2
Anticipated Capital 
Receipts 15.7 11.6 13.5 16.6 23.7 54.6  135.7
Required for SCC 
Capital Programme -24.1 -28.4 -2.5 -7.4 0.0 0.0  -62.4
  
Available receipts to 
carry forward 16.8 0.0 11.0 20.2 43.9 98.5  98.5

  This indicates (the bottom row) that starting in 2013/14, but not before, some 
funding may become available to the Fund. 

Page 38



  Additional Council capital programme needs, not yet identified, will be 
required to be funded in the later years. 

  The receipts projections are subject to a considerable body of  pre-disposal 
work  being undertaken to prepare sites for market, and to the strength of the 
market itself. 

  The successful disposal of surplus assets is essential to the creation of an 
investment capacity. 

5.2 Example of funding for a sample project

A sample project could be a mixed use development in the city centre

  A viable project where the developer needs £2m funding to bridge a gap 

  The scheme is expected to be completed and sold to long term investors 
three years after its construction 

  The Council decides that it is supportive of the scheme and its tenor, and 
offers a loan of £2m at suitable interest rates for the three year period. 
The capital amount is repaid after 3 years. An element of upside may 
apply.

After 3 years the loan is repaid to the Council and is then available again for further 
investment. In this sense the scheme is a ‘revolving’ fund. 

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 In implementing these proposals reliance can be placed on the new ‘general power of 
competence’ (the ‘GPC’) conferred on the Council by Section 1 (1) of the Localism 
Act 2011. 

6.2 Section 1(1) came into force on 18th February 2012 and provides that, “A
local authority has power to do anything that individuals generally may 
do.” This is clearly a very broad power, which is subject to existing or 
future statutory limitations. Whilst no statutory limitations have at this point been 
identified, legal input will be required when the exact details of the working of the fund 
have been agreed, prior to its implementation

6.3 The procurement of any goods, works or services must be undertaken in 
accordance with all relevant provisions of the Council’s Constitution and 
Contract Standing Orders in addition to the European procurement rules and any 
investments must be made in accordance with State Aid regulations. 

6.4 The need for any special purpose vehicles (SPVs) or joint ventures is yet to be 
determined and expert legal advice will be sought to determine the best option for 
Sheffield where required. 

6.5 The governance arrangements and the Investment Board / Management Committee 
are yet to be finalised. The Council will need to satisfy itself that adequate 
arrangements are in place to protect its position taking appropriate legal advice at the 
time.

Page 39



7.0 RISKS

7.1

1. Risk - The fund acts against the objectives of the Council or control is lost 

Mitigation – The fund has to invest in accordance with Investment Strategy 
that the Council sets. Finance provided by the Council to the fund is against 
specific known projects and therefore directly linked to that project being 
approved by the Council. The Council can therefore reserve the right to sign 
investments off on a project by project basis 

2. Risk - Negative revenue impact on the Council 

Mitigation - The assets to be invested currently generate a negligible return. 
One of the fund’s aims will be for any interest on bridging finance provided by 
the Council to be repaid by profits that the fund makes. A facility for the whole 
fund is established at the outset but funds are only drawn into the fund as 
required. However, revenue provision will need to be made to cover timing 
differences between the drawdown of funds and receipt of investment returns 

3. Risk - This is new, has it been done before? 

Mitigation – The structure is similar to Evergreen established in the North 
West between 16 local authorities and is consistent with other structures being 
looked at by Local Authorities elsewhere and new guidance from HMT/HCA 

4. Risk - Time and cost of setting up 

Mitigation – The fund is set up with Council funding initially to take account of 
any immediate project opportunities, with private sector brought in to the fund 
over time. Professional costs are primarily linked to finance raised rather than 
consulting fees

5. Risk - Sufficient suitable projects fail to come forward for investment 

Mitigation – An initial due diligence exercise has been undertaken and 
established there are projects which such a fund could support. However, 
these are currently limited in number and it will be important to develop a 
strategy to promote the fund and develop and promote suitable projects 

6. Risk - Project partners fail to repay investments on time 

Mitigation – A professional fund manager could be appointed, if considered 
necessary, to undertake project underwriting and loan monitoring to mitigate 

Page 40



this risk. A Debt management service could also be provided to work out any 
bad loans in as efficient a manner as possible. Alternatively the private 
partner investing in the fund could bring the fund management capability. 

8.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

8.1 The alternative option would be not to create an investment fund to assist economic 
growth using our own asset base as a source of funds and to leave such matters to 
the market. 

8.2 The current economic conditions and restrictions on the availability of bank finance 
mean that projects that are otherwise viable are stalled due to that lack of funding and 
that is the state of the current market. 

8.3 We could restrict our activity of investment in such projects to the South Yorkshire 
Development Fund. However, the creation of a Sheffield Investment Fund would be 
complimentary to other funds created in the region, and would be focussed on 
Sheffield.

9.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

9.1 The underlying benefit of this proposal is that it utilises the Council’s asset base in a 
measured way to assist economic growth and progress in the City where, but for the 
appropriate funding being available, there are viable projects that can help to deliver 
jobs and other economic activity. 

9.2 It is proposed that through the Capital Programme Approval process, including 
subsequent Cabinet approvals, the Council establishes the Sheffield Investment Fund 
to help progress the priorities of the Corporate Plan. 

10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 That Cabinet agrees – 

To establish the Sheffield Investment Fund as outlined in the report and as a result 
agree to delegate authority to the Executive Director of Resources, in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for Finance and the Director of Legal Services to: 

a) Establish the fund through the capital programme on the basis that the fund 
will not normally be for “gap” funding, but will be for investment purposes, 
generating a cash return on the investment with a payback of the capital at the 
end of the term of the investment. 

b) To establish an appropriate governance structure. 

c) To establish the Fund’s Investment Strategy, project selection process and 
linkage, where appropriate, to the Sheffield City Region Investment Fund. 

Page 41



d) To agree the procurement strategy and award if it is determined that the best 
way of delivering the output is by creating a special purpose vehicle or entering 
into a joint venture. 

e) To negotiate, agree and complete the legal agreements required to give effect 
to the above arrangements. 

f) To make any other decision required to enable the creation and operation of 
the Sheffield Investment Fund including the use of a Fund Manager, where 
deemed appropriate, as procured for the South Yorkshire Urban Development 
Fund.

Page 42



Sheffield City Council 
Equality Impact Assessment 

Guidance for completing this form is available on the intranet
Help is also available by selecting the grey area and pressing the F1 key 

Name of policy/project/decision: Sheffield Investment Fund 

Status of policy/project/decision: New 

Name of person(s) writing EIA: Nalin Seneviratne 

Date: 12 July 2012    Service: Property Services 

Portfolio: Resources 

What are the brief aims of the policy/project/decision? To assist economic development 
of the City of Sheffield 

Are there any potential Council staffing implications, include workforce diversity? No 

Under the Public Sector Equality Duty, we have to pay due regard to: “Eliminate 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
relations.” More information is available on the council website

Areas of possible 
impact

Impact Impact 
level

Explanation and evidence
(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. 
This should be proportionate to the impact.)

Age Neutral Low 

Disability Neutral Low 

Pregnancy/maternity Neutral Low 

Race Neutral Low 

Religion/belief Neutral Low 

Sex Neutral Low 

Sexual orientation Neutral Low 

Transgender Neutral Low 

Carers Neutral Low 

Voluntary, 
community & faith 
sector

Neutral -Select-

Financial inclusion, 
poverty, social 
justice:

Positive Medium

Cohesion:  Neutral Low 

Other/additional: -Select- -Select-

Page 43



Version 2.0 (November 2011) 

Areas of possible 
impact

Impact Impact 
level

Explanation and evidence
(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. 
This should be proportionate to the impact.)

Overall summary of possible impact (to be used on EMT, cabinet reports etc): None 

If you have identified significant change, med or high negative outcomes or for example the 
impact is on specialist provision relating to the groups above, or there is cumulative impact 
you must complete the action plan. 

Review date:       Q Tier Ref    Reference number:       

Entered on Qtier: -Select-   Action plan needed: -Select- 

Approved (Lead Manager):         Date:       

Approved (EIA Lead person for Portfolio):        Date:       

Does the proposal/ decision impact on or relate to specialist provision: no 

Risk rating: None 

Action plan 

Area of impact Action and mitigation Lead, timescale and how it 
will be monitored/reviewed 

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

-Select-             

Approved (Lead Manager): Date:       

Approved (EIA Lead Officer for Portfolio):      Julie Toner Date: 17/07/2012
Page 44



11
DRAFT 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Cabinet Report 

Report of:  Richard Webb, Executive Director - Communities
______________________________________________________________

Date:   1 August 2012 
______________________________________________________________

Subject: Approval for the procurement strategy, specifications and contract
         award for Healthwatch Sheffield 

______________________________________________________________

Author of Report:  Kate Register,  
         Development Manager, Quality & Involvement
         Alex Davey, Project Officer, Commercial Services

______________________________________________________________

Summary:  

 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 stipulates that Healthwatch will be 
the new consumer champion for both health and social care. This will 
replace local LINKs. It will exist in two distinct forms – Local Healthwatch, 
at local level, and Healthwatch England, at national level.

  The proposals in the Health and Social Care Act give the Local Authority a 
duty to establish, in a locally determined way, organisation/organisations 
to deliver the existing functions of LINk plus some new responsibilities 
around information and advice for citizens and specialist independent 
advocacy for NHS complaints. 

  It is proposed that we competitively tender for Healthwatch Sheffield under 
two lots; the first lot will deliver the core Healthwatch requirements; the 
second lot will deliver the NHS complaints advocacy service.  This gives 
the best possibility of a strong, professional service that complements the 
overall Healthwatch vision.  The procurement exercise will make it explicit 
that potential bidders need to demonstrate how they will scale up/down 
their proposed service according to the resources to be made available by 
the Department of Health. 

  This report seeks approval for all aspects of the Procurement strategy, 
specifications and delegated decision making at contract award for 
Healthwatch Sheffield. 

1

Agenda Item 11

Page 45



 Further direction from the Department of Health is expected around the 
funding formula and the role of Healthwatch with respect to children’s 
social care issues 

___________________________________________________

Reasons for Recommendations:

  We have a duty to obtain ‘Best value’ in any service we deliver. 

  Stakeholders have indicated that Healthwatch needs to provide innovative 
ways to gather and include their views. Tendering will maximise 
opportunities for creativity and innovation in the delivery of Healthwatch. 

  Sheffield City Council Standing orders indicate the requirement to tender 
for services where the contract value exceeds £50k. 

  UK/European regulations require that the procurement process is open, 
fair, transparent and non-discriminatory and that supply contracts over 
£173k must be subject to competitive tender. 

Recommendations:
It is recommended that Cabinet: 

  approves the procurement strategy and draft specification for Healthwatch 
Sheffield and the advocacy service. 

  delegates to the Executive Director of Communities in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member with the Health, Care and Independent Living 
Portfolio and the Director of Commercial Services the decision to award 
the contracts and to determine the terms and conditions upon which the 
contracts will be awarded. 

  delegates to the Executive Director of Communities in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member with the Health, Care and Independent Living 
Portfolio the ability to take action which he feels is necessary to achieve 
the outcomes outlined in this report. 

______________________________________________________________

Background Papers: 

  Equality Impact Assessment 

  Healthwatch  Pathfinder for Sheffield report 

  Procurement Strategy Approval Form

2Page 46



Category of Report: OPEN

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

Financial Implications 

YES Cleared by:E Orme 

Legal Implications 

YES/Cleared by: David Hollis 

Equality of Opportunity Implications

YES Cleared by: B Coukham 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

YES/NO

Human rights Implications

YES/NO:

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

YES/NO

Economic impact 

YES/NO

Community safety implications 

YES/NO

Human resources implications 

YES/NO

Property implications 

YES/NO

Area(s) affected 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 

Councillor Mary Lea 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

YES/NO

3Page 47



Press release 

YES/NO

4Page 48



Approval for the Procurement Strategy of Healthwatch  Sheffield 

1.0 SUMMARY
1.1 As part of the Government Health reforms, a commitment has been 

made to strengthening the patient, service user and public voice in health 
and care services. (The Government white paper Equity and excellence: 
Liberating the NHS sets out that vision for the NHS; Vision for Adult 
Social Care, Working Together to Safeguard Children and Update of the 
Carers Strategy sets out the vision for  social care). 

1.2 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 makes provisions for new 
commissioning and funding arrangements in the UK including the 
establishment of local and national Healthwatch.  Healthwatch England 
will be established from 1st October 2012, and Healthwatch Sheffield will 
be established from 1st April 2013. 

1.3 The Health and Social Care Act gives the Local Authority a duty to 
establish, in a locally determined way an organisation/organisations to 
deliver the existing functions of LINk plus some additional responsibilities 
around information and advice for citizens and specialist independent 
advocacy for NHS complaints. 

1.4 The current arrangements for Local Involvement Networks (LINks) will 
cease on 31st March 2013. LINks were established in 2008 as an 
independent network representing the views of users of local health and 
social care services to commissioners. The LINk is made up of 
volunteers, led by its participants and managed by an elected Governing 
Board.  The LINk is supported by a host organisation, which in Sheffield 
is Voluntary Action Sheffield. 

1.5 Healthwatch Sheffield will continue to have the same powers and 
obligations as LINks, which are: 

  Voice and influence role; representing the views of local children, 
young people and adults with health and social care providers. 

  Quality monitoring role; including powers to conduct enter and 
view visits to places of service provision. 

The Act makes provision for Healthwatch to have some additional 
responsibilities which include: 

  The provision of an independent complaints advocacy service for 
individuals who require some support progressing a complaint 
about NHS services. 

  The ability to feed up to Healthwatch England local views on 
health and social care in order for  Healthwatch England to 
present a national viewpoint about issues. 

  A seat on the local Health and Wellbeing Board, in order to 
influence local decisions in regard to health and social care. 

5Page 49



 Provide an independent advice and information service, or 
signposting service on health and social care locally. 

 1.6 Healthwatch Sheffield will be set up as an independent entity that will 
decide its own priorities and work programme 

1.7 Additional funding for the new responsibilities will transfer across to Local 
Authorities for the financial year 2013/14. 

1.8 This report seeks approval to go out to competitive tender using the 
restricted procedure to let an overarching Healthwatch Sheffield element, 
alongside a separate specialist complaints advocacy element. In effect 
one tender to include two lots. This was determined to be the best 
strategy through an options appraisal (Appendix D) and means that any 
provider wishing to deliver both lots only has to complete one pre-
qualifying questionnaire.

1.9 The exact nature and amount of the funding allocation will not be known 
until December 2012.  Prospective providers will need to demonstrate 
flexible delivery plans, which can be scaled up or down, to respond to the 
actual level of funding received. 

1.10 This report seeks approval for the Procurement strategy, specifications 
and delegated decision making at contract award for Healthwatch 
Sheffield.

2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE? 
2.1 Sheffield City Council, together with Sheffield LINk and the Sheffield Host 

(Voluntary Action Sheffield) together applied to the Department of Health 
to become a Pathfinder.  The Sheffield Pathfinder proposal outlined the 
way we would work in Sheffield to develop a local vision and model for 
Sheffield based on the requirements of the Health and Social Care Act 
and on Sheffield stakeholder views. 

2.1 Sheffield City Council, together with Pathfinder colleagues adopted a co-
production approach to the development of the vision (see below)
specifications (see appendix A and B) and procurement process for 
Healthwatch Sheffield.  This was done via workshops and events held as 
part of the Pathfinder to enable key organisations, groups and citizens to 
shape proposals (see appendix C for details of how the engagement 
took place).  Views and conclusions expressed have been used to 
directly influence and produce the vision, specification and procurement 
process within legal parameters.  Conclusions reached early on have 
been tested with stakeholders to ensure all the plans accurately reflect 
local views. 

2.2 The vision that stakeholders have produced is set out below.  The yellow 
highlights indicate the ‘golden thread’ approach, whereby stakeholder 
views have directly contributed to the vision produced. 

Sheffield Vision for Healthwatch  

6Page 50



  Sheffield Healthwatch will be a strong local consumer voice that 
makes a difference to Health and Social Care provision on behalf 
of the children, young people and adults of Sheffield. 

  Sheffield Healthwatch will be a network of networks that builds 
on the work of LINk. 

  It will expand and utilise the existing expertise of third sector 
organisations and groups of children, young people and adults in 
Sheffield.

  It will provide a mechanism for diverse voices across Sheffield to 
be heard and ensure that where there are children, young people 
or adults who are seldom heard, Healthwatch will provide
innovative ways to gather and include their views. 

  It will be a respected and credible organisation that is unafraid to 
challenge service providers and commissioners. 

  It will bring together robust, evidence based local intelligence
that influences key decision making for Health and social care. 

  It will ensure that every individual who approaches Healthwatch 
for information and advice, receives timely and good quality 
information from Healthwatch or one of its signposting 
organisations.

  It will ensure complaints advocacy for NHS complaints is 
available for all Sheffield children, young people and adults who 
request that support. (From April 2013) 

 Sheffield Healthwatch will be known within the city with an 
excellent communications strategy.

2.3 The model of a network of networks is illustrated on the following page.  
This describes an agreed model where the whole network represents 
Healthwatch Sheffield and the hub contract carries out a co-ordination 
function for the whole. 

7Page 51



2.4 The proposal for Healthwatch  Sheffield is set out under four key 
objectives which Sheffield City Council have described in more detail in
service specifications (Appendix A and B):

  To establish an approach to public voice, information provision, 
support and advocacy in health and social care which is integrated 
and embedded in networks across the city of Sheffield. 

  All children, young people, adults and communities in Sheffield will 
have equal access to the support and information they need to 
make health and social care choices which meet their individual 
needs.

  Provision of a transparent, accountable and non-bureaucratic 
governance structure for Sheffield Healthwatch which places 
public voice at the heart of local health, social care and public 
health decision making and commissioning. 

  Establish a Healthwatch  that is an effective ‘critical friend’ of the 
Clinical Commissioning Group, Sheffield City Council, the new 
Health & Wellbeing Board and providers of local health, social 
care and public health services, using the existing powers of LINk 
and developing a strong relationship with Sheffield’s Health 
Scrutiny arrangements. 

The service specifications (Appendix A and B) have been designed to 
set out clear principles, standards and outcomes but to allow potential 
bidders for the contract flexibility and scope in designing the most 
innovative, effective and creative way to provide a service that adheres to 
those principles. This was in direct response to stakeholder input and 
feedback.

2.5

3.0 EQUALITY CONSIDERATIONS 
3.1 An equality impact assessment has been completed that has been 

informed by comments made during the stakeholder involvement 
exercises.  The specification and tender process have also been 
informed by stakeholder contributions. 

3.2 The proposed model maximises the opportunities for every Sheffield 
citizen to take part in Healthwatch Sheffield and have their voice heard.
The coproduced vision has equality of access and diversity enshrined as 
a principle. 

3.3 The new Healthwatch Sheffield organisation will become a corporate 
body and therefore have public sector duties and responsibilities 
including compliance with the Equality Act. 

8Page 52



3.4 Stakeholder involvement in equality impact assessment has directly 
influenced the proposed procurement strategy and plans.  For example, 
additional tender support events have been held by Commercial Services 
to encourage smaller organisations with less experience to be involved. 

3.5 The stakeholder engagement plan was designed to involve a wide range 
of citizens and organisations.  A range of creative mechanisms was 
employed to ensure that everyone had an accessible opportunity to 
participate.

4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
4.1 As stipulated in the Health and Social Care Act 2012, Healthwatch will be 

the new consumer champion for both health and social care.  It will exist 
in two distinct forms – Local Healthwatch, at local level, and Healthwatch 
England, at national level.

4.2 The Act does not allow for a host arrangement, unlike the arrangements 
for establishing LINks which stipulated that a host arrangement be put in 
place.

4.3 The Act stipulates that local authorities have a duty to establish a local 
Healthwatch in their area.  However, there is considerable freedom for a 
local authority to determine the appropriate approach in their area, taking 
into account the local situation and stakeholder opinion but will be subject 
to some limitations within regulations that are yet to be published.. 

4.4 The local Healthwatch will be held accountable for the public money used 
to establish and run it by publishing an annual report. 

4.5 The local Healthwatch will be established as a corporate body, but this 
could be done by an existing organisation(s) in a range of different ways 
to be determined locally provided contractual arrangements for providing 
the Healthwatch are made with a social enterprise.  This restriction does 
not apply in relation to the advocacy service

4.6 Healthwatch England does not have a regulatory role with respect to 
local Healthwatch, but can provide advice and support for a local 
Healthwatch.

4.7 The Department of Health has delayed the start date for Healthwatch 
until 1st April 2013 from the original date of 1st October 2012.  LINks 
funding will continue until 31st March 2012 and the host contract with 
VAS will be extended until that time. A period of transition is planned 
between LINk and the new provider between 2nd January and 1st April 
2013.  Healthwatch England will be established in October 2012. 

4.8 The Department of Health is currently undertaking consultation around 
the development of the regulations.  A response to the consultation will 
be published in July, but the publication of the regulations themselves is 
not scheduled to be until October 2012.  No draft regulations will be 

9Page 53



available before that date. 

4.9

4.10

The attached draft specifications for the new contracts have been seen 
by the Health and Wellbeing board in June 2012. 

Council Standing Orders require that any money spent on services with a 
contract value over £50k requires a tendering process. UK/European 
regulations require the process to be open, fair, transparent and non-
discriminatory and that Service/Supply contracts over £173k must be 
subject to competitive tender 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Funding for Healthwatch Sheffield will be allocated to Sheffield City 
Council from several different funding streams. 

5.2 The Department of Health has indicated that it will divide and transfer the 
funding from the current national contract for complaints advocacy and 
allocate a sum to each local authority for this purpose. 

5.3 The Department of Health indicated that the funding for the information 
and advice element of local Healthwatch would come from current PCT 
PALS funding.  However, there has been no decision yet about exactly 
how funding may transfer. 

5.4 The Department of Health has not confirmed funding allocations, and has 
indicated that it will not do so until December 2012.   A factsheet on 
some of the indicative funding amounts has been received from the DoH.
See table below. The latest (June 2012) indicative amounts are 
substantially reduced from the previous indicative amounts (Jan 2012).   

5.5 The existing funding for the LINKs function was mainstreamed in 2010/11 
budget as part of the area based grant review. 

The table below summaries the indicative amounts for the new functions 
transferring

Funding
source

2013/14 subsequent 
years funding 

PCT PALS 
(information and 
advice)

£133k £133k

ICAS
(complaints) 

£166k £166k

Indicative total £299 £299

This indicates transfer funding of £897,000 over a 3 year period for 
Sheffield, however dependent on how this is funded ie as a specific grant 
or via the revenue support grant, the actual funding level will not be 

10Page 54



confirmed until Dec 2012. If funding is not via specific grants then it is 
likely the allocation to Sheffield will be less then this indicative figure. 

Some flexibility in the tender arrangements to allow us to adapt based on 
the funding actually received.  Potential providers will be expected to 
demonstrate the ability to scale up/down their service delivery according 
to available resources from the Department of Health. 

5.6 The Department of Health has indicated that none of the Healthwatch 
funding streams will be ring-fenced funding.  However, it is not yet clear 
how this will be passported to local authorities and depending which 
route is used will impact on funding available. 

5.7 A small amount of development money for 2012/13 (£36,617) has been 
allocated to Sheffield City Council in addition to ongoing LINks funding. 

5.8 It is proposed that an ongoing percentage be retained by Sheffield City 
Council for contract management costs. 

5.9 It is proposed that a portion be retained by Sheffield City Council for 
contingencies.  This might be for example if a gap in engagement 
mechanisms emerges or is identified for a particular group of people, the 
contingency might be employed to support that. 

6.0 PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 
6.1 Procurement Strategy Approval will also be sought via the duly 

authorised Director of Commercial Services as required by contract 
standing orders. 

6.2 A procurement timetable has been developed below: 

  Pre-Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) available – 6th August 2012

  Deadline for PQQ submission – 6th September 2012 

  Evaluation of PQQ – By 21st September 2012 

  Deadline for submission of Tenders - November 5th November 2012 

  Interviews and presentations – 12th November 2012 

  Evaluation of Tenders – By 23rd November 2012 

  Contract Award (Contract Award Notice published) - 1st January 2013 

  Anticipated contract start date - 1st April 2013 

An options appraisal (Appendix D) has been undertaken to determine 
the best approach to tendering for the specialist independent advocacy 
for the NHS complaints service.  

6.3

6.4 It is recommended that the two elements, overarching Healthwatch and 
complaints advocacy, be let as two separate lots under one tender 

11Page 55



process.

6.5 Healthwatch tender opportunity Awareness Raising Events were run in 
November 2011 and January 2012 to generate market interest in the 
opportunity and understanding of the procurement process.  This was in 
response to stakeholder feedback which wanted the opportunity to be 
available to as many organisations as possible, including those that may 
have less experience of submitting tenders, but have creative and 
innovative ideas for service delivery.  

6.6 A tender support event took place on 27 June 2012, which was 
advertised to potential suppliers through the buy4sheffield distribution list, 
VAS connections and buying solutions notice board.  In addition all 
stakeholder engagement events have also drawn attention to this 
opportunity.

6.7 Further engagement is planned including involvement of stakeholders 
(children, young people and adults) in the evaluation of tenders and 
preferred supplier recommendation.

6.8
It is anticipated that this tender opportunity will primarily be of interest to 
third sector organisations with experience in the voluntary sector. 

6.9
The tender opportunities will be open to a stand alone organisation or to 
a group of organisations tendering as a consortium.  If a consortium is 
tendering for the contract(s) Sheffield City Council will require that one of 
the consortium members is the lead organisation that SCC will engage 
with for contract management purposes. 

7.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
7.1

7.2

The Council is prohibited under the Act from delivering Healthwatch itself.

In compliance with the Council’s Standing Orders, European finance 
regulations and the strongly expressed views of Sheffield stakeholders, 
there was no other realistic option other than to go out to tender for an 
overall Healthwatch  contract. 

7.3 An options appraisal for the complaints advocacy component of the 
contract has been completed.  This included stakeholder views of 
available options.  The highest scoring option recommended that the 
complaints aspect be let as a separate lot alongside the overarching 
Healthwatch lot within one tender process. 

8.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
8.1 We have a duty to obtain ‘Best value’ in any service we deliver. 

8.2 Stakeholders have indicated that Healthwatch needs to provide 
innovative ways to gather and include their views. Tendering will 
maximise opportunities for creativity and innovation in the delivery of 

12Page 56



Healthwatch.

8.3 Sheffield City Council Standing orders indicate the requirement to tender 
for services where the contract value exceeds £50k. 

8.4 UK/European regulations require that the procurement process is open, 
fair, transparent and non-discriminatory and that Service and that supply 
contracts over £173k must be subject to competitive tender. 

8.5 Letting the complaints advocacy service as a separate lot within one 
tender gives the best possibility of a strong professional service for 
citizens that complements rather than detracts from the overall 
Healthwatch vision. 

9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 

  approves the procurement strategy and draft specification for 
Healthwatch Sheffield and the advocacy service. 

  delegates to the Executive Director of Communities in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member with the Health, Care and Independent 
Living Portfolio and the Director of Commercial Services the 
decision to award the contracts and to determine the terms and 
conditions upon which the contracts will be awarded. 

  delegates to the Executive Director of Communities in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member with the Health, Care and Independent 
Living Portfolio the ability to take action which he feels is 
necessary to achieve the outcomes outlined in this report.

13Page 57



Appendix A 
DRAFT

Specification for Healthwatch Sheffield 

1.0 Background 

1.1 As part of the Government Health reforms, a commitment has been 
made to strengthening the patient, service user and public voice in 
health and adult social care services. (The Government white paper 
Equity and excellence: Liberating the NHS sets out that vision for the 
NHS; Vision for Adult Social Care, Working Together to Safeguard 
Children and Update of the Carers Strategy sets out the vision for  
social care). 

1.2 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 makes provisions for new 
commissioning and funding arrangements in the UK including the 
establishment of Healthwatch.  Healthwatch England shall be 
established from 1st October 2012, and Healthwatch Sheffield shall be 
established from 1st April 2013. 

1.3 The current arrangements for Local Involvement Networks (LINks) 
shall cease on 31st March 2013. LINks were established in 2008 as 
an independent network representing the views of users of local 
health and social care services to commissioners. The LINk is made 
up of volunteers, led by its participants and managed by an elected 
Governing Board.  The LINk is supported by a host organisation, 
which in Sheffield is Voluntary Action Sheffield. 

1.4 Healthwatch Sheffield shall continue to have the same powers and 
obligations as LINKs, which are: 

  Voice and influence role, representing the views of local children, 
young people and adults with health and social care commissioners 
and providers 

  Quality monitoring role, including the power to conduct enter and 
view visits to places of service provision 

The Act makes provision for Healthwatch to have some additional 
responsibilities, which include: 

  The provision of an independent complaints advocacy service for 
individuals who require some support progressing a complaint 
about NHS services. 

  The ability to report concerns about quality of Health and social 
care locally to Healthwatch England, independent of the Local 
Authority, with the basis that Healthwatch England can recommend 
the Care Quality Commission to take action.  

14Page 58



  The ability to feed up to Healthwatch England local views on health 
and social care in order for Healthwatch England to present a 
national viewpoint about issues. 

  A seat for a Healthwatch Sheffield representative on the local 
Health and Wellbeing Board, in order to influence local decisions in 
regard to health and social care

  Provide an independent advice and information service, or 
signposting service on health and social care locally 

1.5 Additional funding for the new responsibilities shall transfer across to 
Local Authorities for the financial year 2013/14. 

2.0 National vision for Healthwatch 
2.1 Healthwatch Sheffield shall be established as a corporate body, able 

to employ its own staff and recruit volunteers, so it can become the 
influential and effective voice of the public. It shall have to keep 
accounts and make its annual reports available to the public 

2.2  The aim of Healthwatch Sheffield shall be to give citizens and 
communities a stronger voice to influence and challenge how health 
and social care services are provided within their locality  

3.0 Local Authority role in Healthwatch 

3.1 Sheffield City Council has a duty to ensure that there is an effective 
and efficient local Healthwatch in their area. 

3.2 Local Authorities have the freedom to decide how to commission or 
arrange a local Healthwatch. 

3.3 Healthwatch Sheffield shall be accountable to Sheffield City Council 
for operating effectively, achieving outcomes and providing value for 
money.

3.4 At least one representative of Healthwatch Sheffield shall sit on the 
new Local Authority Health and Wellbeing Board, providing a strong 
consumer voice and ensuring this is integral to the wider, strategic 
decision-making across local NHS services, social care and health 
improvement.

3.5 Sheffield Council shall also be subject to scrutiny from Healthwatch 
Sheffield in respect of their social care services and public health 
function.

4.0 Transition from LINks to Healthwatch 

4.1 The government expects Local Authorities to work with their existing 
LINks wherever possible to manage a transition from LINks to 
Healthwatch.

4.2 The government has emphasised the importance in continuity through 
the transition from LINks to Healthwatch. 

15Page 59



4.3 In Sheffield a transition contract and plan has been developed by 
Sheffield City Council, Sheffield LINk and its current host 
organisation, Voluntary Action Sheffield (VAS). This is being actively 
monitored by Sheffield City Council. 

4.4 The Pathfinder (see section 5.0) also addresses transition issues and 
planning for transition. 

5.0 Pathfinder in Sheffield 

5.1 Sheffield City Council, together with Sheffield LINk and its host, 
Voluntary Action Sheffield (VAS), jointly applied for Pathfinder status 
from the Department of Health. 

5.2 Pathfinder status was granted to Sheffield by the Department of 
Health.

5.3 Work to deliver the Sheffield Pathfinder plan has been carried out by 
the LINk, VAS and Sheffield City Council, largely within existing 
resources.

5.4 £5k was allocated to Sheffield City Council for Pathfinder activity (as 
outlined in the Sheffield Pathfinder report) by the Department of 
Health in April 2012 for the financial year 2011/12. 

5.5 Sheffield has contributed to key national Pathfinder workshops and 
has been chosen by the Local Government Association as a national 
case study. 

6.0 Sheffield approach to Healthwatch 

6.1 Sheffield City Council, together with Pathfinder colleagues, has 
adopted a co-production approach to the development of the 
specification for the Sheffield Healthwatch.

6.2 Workshops have been held with key stakeholders including: local 
children, young people and adults, officers from the Local Authority, a 
range of NHS staff, representatives from Voluntary, Community and 
Faith sector organisations, individual citizens and other groups of 
interest to determine what shape Healthwatch in Sheffield should 
take.   Their comments and priorities have informed both the service 
specification and the procurement process, within legal and statutory 
parameters.

6.3 Officers have also been available to go out to groups and partnership 
boards to discuss Healthwatch in more detail and these comments 
too have been fed in to the overall development process. 

16Page 60



Service Specification

Highlighted = a key ‘golden thread’ from co-production workshops 

VISION FOR SHEFFIELD 

1. Sheffield vision for Healthwatch 

1.1. Healthwatch Sheffield vision has been co-produced over a series of 
workshops with key stakeholders 

1.2. Healthwatch Sheffield shall be a strong local consumer voice that 
makes a difference to Health and Social care provision on behalf of the 
children, young people and adults of Sheffield. 

1.3. Healthwatch Sheffield shall be a network of networks that builds on the 
work of LINk  

1.4. It shall expand and utilise the existing expertise of third sector 
organisations and groups of children, young people and adults in 
Sheffield

1.5. It shall provide a mechanism for diverse voices across Sheffield to be 
heard and ensure that where there are children, young people or adults 
who are seldom heard, Healthwatch shall provide innovative ways to 
gather and include their views. 

1.6. It shall be a respected and credible organisation that is unafraid to 
challenge service providers and commissioners. 

1.7. It shall bring together robust, evidence based local intelligence that 
influences key decision making for Health and Social care 

1.8. It shall ensure that every individual who approaches Healthwatch for 
information and advice receives timely and good quality information
from Healthwatch, or one of its signposting organisations. 

1.9. It shall ensures that complaints advocacy for NHS complaints is 
available for all Sheffield children, young people and adults who request 
that support.  (provided possibly by 3rd party contract) 

1.10. Healthwatch Sheffield shall be well known within the city, with an 
excellent communications strategy. 

2. Organisational requirements 

Healthwatch Sheffield must be: 

2.1. Independent - A free-standing body which is respected for its 
independence and trusted by residents and stakeholders.

2.2.Competent – an organisation that can demonstrate the relevant skills 
and competencies required to deliver its functions 

2.3.Skilled for influencing – able to make an impact on the local 
commissioning and provision of health and social care. 

17Page 61



2.4.Supporter of Volunteers - makes best use of both volunteers and paid 
officers and support them to work effectively together. 

2.5.Accountable – working to a clear set of standards against which the 
Local Authority and the residents it serves can appreciate its success. 

2.6.Evidence based - a body which uses a strong evidence base to underpin
its views, priority setting and targeting of its efforts. 

3. Who is Healthwatch Sheffield for and how shall it be accessed? 

3.1. Healthwatch Sheffield is for anyone who is legally entitled to access 
health or  social care services in Sheffield or anyone who cares for or 
represents anyone who is legally entitled to access health or social care 
services in Sheffield.

3.2. Healthwatch Sheffield shall be accessible to all citizens across Sheffield 
and shall actively seek the views and experiences of local children, young 
people and adults  including ‘seldom heard’ groups. It shall use a wide 
variety of media and creative mechanisms for people to be in touch and 
involved. 

3.3. Healthwatch Sheffield shall make full use of existing and well-established 
links and networks, and build on existing relationships and networks.  It 
shall create and establish new networks and relationships to ensure a 
strong network of networks within the city underpins Healthwatch 
Sheffield activities. 

4. KEY SERVICE FUNCTIONS 

4.1.Advice and information 

Providing advice and information about access to local health and social 
care services and support for making informed choices with respect to 
those services.

4.1.1. Healthwatch Sheffield shall operate a citywide advice and 
information signposting service, which maximises information that 
already exists and works with service providers and service users of 
all ages to identify and fill information gaps. 

4.1.2 Healthwatch shall provide, or signpost to, information and advice 
on any aspect of health and social care. 

18Page 62



4.1.3  It is expected that the service shall be available for citizens of all 
ages in a variety of forms, for example in person, online, via 
telephone etc. There shall be consideration given to ensure there 
are adequate opportunities for all citizens to access the service at 
times that are convenient to them.

4.1.4 In making the service available Healthwatch Sheffield must 
demonstrate it has taken full account of equality and diversity 
implications, including but not limited to consideration of the 
Equality Act.

4.1.5 Where Healthwatch Sheffield does not themselves hold the 
information requested, it shall signpost citizens to an 
organisation(s) or service(s) that can provide it. 

4.1.6 If an individual requires support to access the required 
information, or has difficulty in obtaining the necessary advice and 
information, Healthwatch shall support the individual to obtain it. 

4.1.7 Information and advice shall be tailored to specific need where 
possible and shall be delivered without bias to any particular 
organisation or group of organisations. Where there are a range of 
organisations that citizens could be signposted to, Healthwatch 
shall give citizens the choice as to how many 
contacts/websites/addresses they are given, and shall try and best 
match the information need with the organisation(s) that are most 
likely to be able to meet that need. 

4.1.8 Healthwatch Sheffield shall build specifically on the work developed 
by LINk and its host in the transition year April 2012 – March 2013, 
and shall operate an advice and information service from 1 April 
2013.

4.1.9 Healthwatch Sheffield information and advice service shall be 
expected to develop further its own knowledge of information and 
advice resources. 

4.1.10 Healthwatch Sheffield is expected to maintain good links and 
relationships with other key information and advice providers within 
the city, for example Help Yourself directory and NHS 111. 

4.1.11 Healthwatch Sheffield shall quality monitor the information 
provision to ensure that any concerns about information and advice 
provided by a third party are raised with the organisation concerned 
and addressed where these arise.  

4.1.12 The Healthwatch Sheffield information and advice service shall be 
well advertised and generate a strong awareness within all areas of 
the city. 

19Page 63



4.1.13 Information and advice shall be provided to end users in a timely 
and professional manner and queries shall be answered at the first 
point of contact where possible. 

4.2.National Health Service (NHS) Complaints Advocacy 

4.2.1. Responsibility for NHS complaints advocacy will also take effect 
from 1 April 2013. In Sheffield the complaints advocacy service shall 
be let as a separate lot within one tender. 

4.2.2. Sheffield Healthwatch shall make arrangements for supporting local 
children, young people and adults with any complaints they may wish 
to progress in relation to NHS service provision either through: 

4.2.2.1. A directly provided complaints advocacy service; or 
4.2.2.2. Referral to a third party contracted by the Local Authority 

expressly for these purposes. 

4.2.3 In 4.2.1 Healthwatch Sheffield shall:  

  Support any complaints function by signposting 
people to this service if not provided in-house. 

  Ensure there is a strong link between the provider of 
complaints advocacy and itself. 

4.2.4 Information and statistics collected by the provider of the 
complaints advocacy   service about NHS services through the 
complaints made shall be used as evidence by Healthwatch Sheffield 
when shaping their direction and priorities. 

4.3 Voice and influence 

Gathering views and understanding the experiences of children, young 
people and adults who use services, carers and the wider community.  

4.3.13 Healthwatch Sheffield shall ensure that everyone in Sheffield has an 
opportunity to have their say and shall create opportunities where there 
are gaps.  It must ensure there is equality of opportunity for all citizens, 
including alternative ways of holding meetings and collecting information, 
maximising opportunities for people across the city to give their views.  
This means meetings and events must be conducted in creative and non 
traditional ways that enable children, young people and adults to 
contribute positively.

4.3.14 Healthwatch Sheffield shall be creative and innovative and shall 
constantly be exploring new and successful ways to find out the views of 
Sheffield children, young people and adults by proactive engagement. 

4.3.15 Healthwatch Sheffield shall use a network of networks, which it shall 
actively build to create and maintain strong relationships with many 

20Page 64



groups and organisations across the city, and to gather the widest 
perspective of Sheffield citizens’ views. 

4.3.16 Healthwatch must employ demonstrably robust methods of gaining 
intelligence on the quality of health and adult social care services. 

4.3.17 Healthwatch Sheffield must work to find ways of growing membership. 

Making peoples views known.  

4.3.18 Healthwatch Sheffield must use the data it gathers to provide effective 
voice and influence. 

4.3.19 In order to give the children, young people and adults of Sheffield a strong 
and effective voice Healthwatch Sheffield shall routinely and on specific 
issues co-ordinate and analyse the expressed views of Sheffield citizens 
on health and social care issues. 

4.3.20 Healthwatch Sheffield shall not act as a stand alone organisation, but be a 
central core team which shall provide strategic and administrative support, 
signposting, representation of patient and public voice and wider co-
ordination of the Healthwatch approach and volunteers, being a core at 
the centre of the network of networks.    

4.3.21 Healthwatch Sheffield shall represent the views of Sheffield children, 
young people and adults.  This means that all views gathered may need 
to be represented on occasion eg at the Health and Well Being board.
However, in conducting its own work, Healthwatch may also reach its own 
conclusions for recommendations.   

4.3.22 Healthwatch shall demonstrate how childrens, young peoples and adults 
views have been represented to decision makers, and demonstrate how 
this has made a difference to commissioning plans and service delivery.  

Promoting and supporting the involvement of children, young people and 
adults in the commissioning and provision of local health and social care 
services and how they are scrutinized. 

4.3.23 Healthwatch Sheffield shall be an effective watchdog for all the children, 
young people and adults of Sheffield and ensure that the diversity of 
Sheffield opinion is sought and acted on.

4.3.24 Healthwatch should use a variety of mechanisms to explore service 
quality issues both routinely and where specific issues arise. This will 
include but not be limited to complaints or safeguarding issue or where a 
series of complaints or safeguarding issues are bought to their attention. 

21Page 65



This shall include ‘Enter and View’ visits, both announced and
unannounced.

4.3.25 At least one representative of Healthwatch Sheffield shall sit on the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.

4.3.26 Where decision makers or services do not take adequate note of the 
views of Sheffield Citizens, Healthwatch Sheffield shall make this known 
to the citizens of Sheffield and seek to address this through confident and 
constructive discussions with decision makers or services.

4.3.27 Healthwatch Sheffield must develop constructive relationships with health 
and social care providers and decision makers, but be unafraid to criticise 
where necessary.

4.4 Relationship with Healthwatch England 

4.4.28 When it appears necessary, Healthwatch Sheffield shall recommend 
investigation or special review of services via Healthwatch England or 
directly to the Care Quality Commission (CQC). 

4.4.29 Healthwatch Sheffield shall make the views and experiences of children, 
young people and adults known to Healthwatch England and shall provide 
a steer to help it carry out its role as national champion.

4.4.30 A timely two-way information flow shall be established between 
Healthwatch England and Healthwatch Sheffield. Healthwatch Sheffield’s 
role shall be to ensure that it influences Healthwatch England’s work and 
to inform it of local matters relevant to wider public health agendas. 

4.4.31 Operate within best practice framework to be published by Healthwatch 
England.

4.5 Communication 

4.5.29 Healthwatch Sheffield must develop and utilise a strong, effective and 
ongoing communications strategy which is reviewed and refreshed at 
least annually, ensuring that the children, young people and adults of 
Sheffield are able to access its service and are aware of its presence and 
activities.

4.5.30 The Healthwatch Sheffield Communication Strategy (‘the Strategy’) must 
include a range of means of communication that are accessible to all 
citizens of Sheffield, particularly those who are seldom heard, including 
but not limited to the use of social media and maximising the existing 
information we already have. 

4.5.31 Healthwatch Sheffield shall focus attention on communication with seldom 
heard groups and marginalised communities. 

4.5.32 Healthwatch Sheffield shall foster good relationship with the media to 
enhance communication with all citizens. 

22Page 66



4.5.33 The Strategy shall include developing and maintaining strong and 
appropriate links with network organisations to facilitate open 
communication as widely as possible. 

4.5.34 The Strategy must ensure its existence and work are well publicised and 
ensure the citizens of Sheffield, commissioners and providers understand 
the role of Healthwatch and how to access it. 

4.6 Volunteers and members 

4.6.1 Healthwatch Sheffield shall be expected to engage with and use a 
variety of volunteers and members and shall have strategies to recruit 
them to reflect the diversity of all citizens of Sheffield, particularly those 
from seldom heard and protected groups. 

4.6.2 Where it does use volunteers and members Healthwatch Sheffield 
shall provide appropriate training and support for them and provide 
them with a suitable person specification. 

4.6.3 Healthwatch Sheffield shall have suitable indemnity insurance for any 
activity volunteers undertake. 

5.0  Employment 

5.1 The Provider shall have employment policies and processes that take 
into account all current legislation. The policies shall cover advertising, 
recruitment and selection, supervision and training, disciplinary and 
grievance procedures and equal opportunities.

5.2  A standard application form shall be completed and used throughout 
the recruitment process. The application form shall provide for details 
of employment history, explanation of gaps in employment and 
declaration of previous convictions. The application form shall be 
signed to confirm the veracity of the information given. 

5.3 Gaps in employment history shall be investigated.  If convictions are 
declared a risk assessment shall be undertaken to determine the 
suitability for employment in the service. 

5.4 It shall be the responsibility of the Provider to ensure that any 
individual involved in the provision of the Service or as a member of 
Healthwatch that shall have access to vulnerable adults or children 
shall be subject to Enhanced CRB checks. 

5.5 A minimum of two written employment references shall be obtained 
and checks made to confirm referee status.  One of the references 

23Page 67



shall be from the current or most recent employer; the second can be a 
personal reference from a referee who is not a family member or a 
personal friend.  If the applicant has had no previous employment then 
two references may be sought from professional persons. 

5.6 As no employees of the Council are engaged in the provision of the 
Host Service, we consider that the Transfer of Undertakings 
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 do not apply to this 
tender because no employees are employed by the Host Service.  
However, at the expiry of the contract if the Service is re-tendered and 
employees of the Service Provider or one of its sub-contractors are 
employed or engaged in the provision of the Host Services then TUPE 
may apply.  Clause 28 of the draft form of Contract sets out a number 
of requirements on the part of the Service Provider if TUPE applies. 

6.0 Governance 

6.1 Healthwatch Sheffield must adopt a governance model that ensures all 
children, young people and adults in Sheffield can be represented by 
Healthwatch Sheffield. 

6.2 The model must be a strong and creative one that includes meaningful 
involvement of volunteers. 

6.3 Healthwatch Sheffield shall operate within an accountability framework 
including accountability for decision making and transparency of 
decisions.

6.4 Healthwatch Sheffield must ensure that the governance model it 
adopts reflects best practice guidance published by Healthwatch 
England (NB publication date not yet known) 

6.5 The code of conduct for the provider shall be the Nolan Principles of 
Public Life 

7.0  Record Management 

7.1 The Provider shall maintain records to a professional standard.  This 
shall apply to financial and other records including but not limited to 
recruitment and training, staffing and records of Healthwatch and its 
activities.

  These records shall be kept in such a way as to facilitate the 
transfer of information at the end of the contract. 

24Page 68



8 Contract Monitoring, Review and Reporting 

8.1 The Provider shall have in place and be able to demonstrate to the 
Purchaser a robust system for ensuring the quality of the service it 
provides and the quality of Healthwatch activities. 

  The Purchaser reserves the right to take its own measures to 
satisfy itself as to the quality of the service delivered by the 
Provider in relation to Healthwatch. 

  The Provider shall prepare and present financial and other data 
and reports as requested by the Purchaser and shall meet with 
the Purchaser at intervals as determined by the Purchaser and 
as required by Healthwatch.  The type, volume and frequency of 
the data shall be further specified as Healthwatch progresses, 
however the reporting shall be at least six monthly.

  The Provider shall actively participate and contribute to reviews 
and evaluation of Healthwatch and its activities as required.

  Following initial and subsequent reviews the Purchaser may, in 
agreement with the Provider, seek to vary the Service 
Specification.  Such variations shall be in line with the purpose 
and guidance on Healthwatch and its activities as issued by the 
Department of Health. 

  The Provider shall prepare and present an annual report on 
Provider and Healthwatch expenditure, activity and 
achievements as required by the Purchaser and by the 
Department of Health.  The Purchaser should be able to 
validate this report and it shall be a public document. 

  The Provider shall agree with the Council, prior to contract 
signature, a number of high-level performance targets, that shall 
be included in the Contract and against which the Council shall 
measure the effective implementation of the Services. The final 
scope of the targets shall be determined by the scope of 
services offered by the Provider but it is anticipated they shall 
cover areas such as, budget management, service 
performance, and service satisfaction levels of Healthwatch and 
other stakeholders.

  Potential bidders will need to demonstrate how they will scale 
up or down their proposed service according to the resources to 
be made available by the Department of Health. 

25Page 69



Appendix B 
DRAFT 

Specification for a Sheffield Independent NHS Complaints Advocacy 

1.0  Background 

Healthwatch

1.1 As part of the Government Health reforms, a commitment has been 
made to strengthening the patient, service user and public voice in 
health and social care services. (The Government white paper Equity 
and excellence: Liberating the NHS sets out that vision for the NHS; 
Vision for Adult Social Care, Working Together to Safeguard Children 
and Update of the Carers Strategy sets out the vision for social care). 

1.2 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 makes provisions for new 
commissioning and funding arrangements in the UK including the 
establishment of Healthwatch. Healthwatch England shall be 
established from 1st October 2012, and Healthwatch Sheffield shall be 
established from 1st April 2013. 

1.3 The current arrangements for Local Involvement Networks (LINks) 
shall cease on 31st March 2013. LINks were established in 2008 as an 
independent network representing the views of users of local health 
and social care services to commissioners. The LINk is made up of 
volunteers, led by its participants and managed by an elected 
Governing Board.  The LINk is supported by a host organisation, which 
in Sheffield is Voluntary Action Sheffield. 

1.4 Healthwatch Sheffield shall continue to have the same powers and 
obligations as LINKs, which are: 

  Voice and influence role, representing the views of local children, 
young people and adults with health and social care commissioners 
and providers. 

  Quality monitoring role, including the power to conduct enter and 
view visits to places of service provision 

1.5 The Act makes provision for Healthwatch to have some additional 
responsibilities, which include: 

  The provision of an independent complaints advocacy service for 
individuals who require some support progressing a complaint 
about NHS services. (In Sheffield this responsibility will be met via 
a contracted provider under a separate ‘Complaints Advocacy 
service’ contract.)

26Page 70



 The ability to report concerns about quality of Health and social 
care locally to Healthwatch England, independent of the Local 
Authority, with the basis that Healthwatch England can recommend 
the Care Quality Commission to take action.  

  The ability to feed up to Healthwatch England local views on health 
and social care in order for Healthwatch England to present a 
national viewpoint about issues. 

  A seat for a Healthwatch Sheffield representative on the local 
Health and Wellbeing Board, in order to influence local decisions in 
regard to health and social care

  Provide an independent advice and information service, or 
signposting service on health and social care locally. 

1.6 Additional funding for the new responsibilities shall transfer across to 
Local Authorities for the financial year 2013/14. 

2.0 Complaints Advocacy 

2.1 The provision of independent advocacy is a legal requirement for the 
Secretary of State under section 248(1) of the National Health Service 
Act 2006: 

“The Secretary of State must arrange, to such extent as he considers 
necessary to meet all reasonable requirements, for the provision of 
independent advocacy services.” 

2.2 Within the meaning of the Act, advocacy services relate only to the 
provision of assistance for individuals making or intending to make an 
NHS complaint (which includes a complaint to the Health Service 
Ombudsman). Within social care, local authorities are currently 
expected to make complaints advocacy services available if needed, 
but availability is a matter of local discretion and decision; there is no 
statutory requirement. 

2.3 Previously the Department of Health (DH) on behalf of the Secretary of 
State for Health, commissioned these services directly from the 
Independent Complaints Advocacy Service (ICAS), which is currently 
provided by three suppliers, The Carers Federation, POhWER and 
SEAP. The Carers Federation up until 1 April 2013 covers ICAS 
provision in Sheffield. 

2.4 The Department of Health currently has responsibility for the 
management of ICAS contracts, and the quality of service provided. 
These five-year contracts (let centrally); amounting to approximately 
£11.75m each year will expire on 31 March 2013. 

27Page 71



2.5Clause 185 of the Health & Social Care Act transfers a duty to 
commission independent advocacy services from the Secretary of 
State to individual local authorities; this transfer will take place on 1 
April 2013.

3.0 Sheffield’s Approach to Complaints Advocacy 

3.1 Sheffield City Council has chosen to competitively tender for 
Healthwatch Sheffield under two lots: the first lot will deliver the core 
Healthwatch requirements; the second lot will deliver the NHS 
complaints advocacy service.  This gives the best possibility of a 
strong, professional service that complements the overall Healthwatch 
vision.

3.2 Sheffield City Council shall make arrangements for supporting local 
children, young people and adults with any complaints they may wish 
to progress in relation to NHS service provision through a contracted 
third party. 

3.3 Anonymised complaints information and statistics collected by the 
provider of the complaints advocacy service about NHS services in 
Sheffield through complaints made, shall be made available to 
Healthwatch Sheffield and used as evidence by them when shaping 
their direction and priorities. 

4.0 Service Specification 

4.1 Vision and Purpose for Independent NHS Complaints Advocacy. 

4.1.1 The Provider will deliver a free, independent, confidential, 
professional support service to clients wishing to pursue a 
formal complaint against the NHS in Sheffield. 

4.1.2 The purpose of the NHS Complaints Advocacy Service will 
be to: 

  Help safeguard the rights of clients as set out in both health 
policy and law. 

  Empower clients to self advocate as far as they are able 

  Support clients to get their views heard 

  Support clients in seeking resolution to issues which concern 
them

  Enable client experiences to inform service development in 
the NHS by passing data to Healthwatch Sheffield for them 
to use in pressing for service redesign and quality 
improvement.

4.2 Core Principles 

The NHS Complaints Advocacy Service shall be governed by 

28Page 72



seven core principles which set out its approach to supporting its 
clients:

4.2.1 Empowerment: 

The service shall empower children, young people and adults by: 

  Providing them with information about the options open to 
them, enabling them to decide whether or not they wish to 
pursue a complaint about the NHS in Sheffield. 

  Where needed, by providing an advocate to support them in 
pursuing their complaint. 

4.2.2 Accessibility: 

The service shall be accessible to all citizens across Sheffield, shall 
respect the diversity of clients, and shall provide support appropriate to 
the needs of the client by: 

  Ensuring support is accessible at the point of contact to all 
Sheffield citizens, both in terms of the physical environment 
where it is delivered and the mode of communication used.  

  Providing appropriate services and materials for those 
clients who do not have English as their first language.  

  The Provider will be responsible for widely advertising its 
services widely to appropriate audiences and by the most 
appropriate media. 

4.2.3 Resolution: 

The service shall support clients in trying to achieve a resolution to their 
complaint, within the NHS complaints procedure by: 

  Supporting the process of Local Resolution, where clients 
and NHS staff work together to resolve complaints, at a point 
as close as possible to the point of service that has caused 
dissatisfaction.

4.2.4 Independence: 

  The service is not tied to, or controlled by the NHS, enabling 
it to work solely on behalf of its clients and within the best 
interest of the client. 

4.2.5 Partnership: 

  The service shall support the aspirations of the NHS in 
improving the patient experience by working with all 
stakeholders to promote positive change in the NHS. 

29Page 73



4.2.6 Confidentiality: 

 The service shall treat all interactions with clients as 
confidential, in line with the provider’s confidentiality policies.

4.2.7 Value for money: 

The provider shall deliver the service using the principles of value for money, 
those being: 

  Economy 

  Efficiency 

  Effectiveness 

5.0 Key Service Functions 

5.1 Advocacy for health related complaints 

5.2 The service shall be a client centred, flexible service that empowers 
anyone who wishes to resolve a complaint about healthcare 
commissioned and/or provided by the NHS in Sheffield.   

5.3 The provider’s staff shall use advocacy skills to provide practical 
support and direction to clients, in order to assist them in finding a 
resolution to their complaint.   

5.4 The relationship with the client shall focus on contact at each of the 
following points or activities in the NHS complaints procedure, those 
being:

  Identifying what the available options and possible 
outcomes are, and deciding which option to take. 

  Making the complaint to the appropriate NHS services 
provided by hospitals, health authorities, trusts, GPs, 
dentists, pharmacists, opticians and other health care 
practitioners.

  Deciding how to proceed with the complaint, following the 
initial response. 

  Supporting clients during the local resolution phase by 
attending meetings or entering into correspondence. 

  Making a complaint to the Care Quality Commission, or 
other relevant regulatory body 

  Supporting the Independent Review stage by attending 
meetings or entering into correspondence. 

  Making a complaint to the Health Service Ombudsman. 

  Understanding the Health Service Ombudsman’s final 
decision.

30Page 74



5.5The service shall also support clients with a grievance related to any 
aspect of healthcare that falls under the jurisdiction of the Health 
Service Ombudsman, such as complaints about poor treatment or 
service provided through the NHS in Sheffield. The Ombudsman looks 
into complaints against NHS services provided by hospitals, health 
authorities, trusts, GPs, dentists, pharmacists, opticians and other 
health care practitioners. The Ombudsman can also investigate 
complaints against private health providers if the treatment was funded 
by the NHS. (For more information on the work of the Ombudsman, 
please go to www.ombudsman.org.uk)

5.6 Whilst the service shall not provide on-going advocacy for clients 
outside of the health related complaint, the service shall suggest 
appropriate referrals for clients who require alternative, additional or 
specialist support. This will include referrals to PALS, professional 
bodies such as the GMC, and to specialist support such as medico-
legal advice, bereavement support, mental health support and 
Healthwatch Sheffield independent advice and information. 

5.7 Sheffield Complaint Advocates must ensure that clients understand: 

  The core service principles of independence and confidentiality; 

  What they can expect from the service and what the service expects 
from the client, through the early completion of the client/service 
contract when appropriate. 

  Limits of what the service can achieve. 

  What they can expect from the NHS complaints procedure and 
where other advocacy/support services can provide more specialist 
advice.

  When and how the advocacy service can be contacted. 

  They can request to meet with an advocate to talk in confidence to 
them (except when other staff have to be present for reasons of 
safety or security). The provider will have reasonable, not restrictive 
policies and procedures to accommodate this.   

  They can make a complaint about any aspect of the complaints 
advocacy service and know how to do so. 

5.8 Sheffield NHS Complaints Advocates must: 

  Only act or speak on behalf of a client if they, or someone acting on 
their behalf, request it. 

  When considering complaints about services provided to children or 
young people, be mindful of the requirements around consent to 
making a complaint. 

31Page 75



 Discuss options with clients providing full and balanced information 
to enable them to make decisions and choices. 

  Help clients access the information they need. 

  Where it is appropriate to the client, try to contain face-to-face 
advocacy requirements to no more than two meetings per client, and 
where further contact is needed, discuss how these requirements 
can be best met with the Sheffield Complaints Advocate supervisor.

5.9 Absolute requirements: 

5.9.1 Up to date Criminal Record Bureau checks for all 
Complaints Advocacy staff. 

5.9.2 Regular support and supervision for Complaints Advocacy 
staff including team working arrangements. 

5.9.3 A strategic training and development plan including utilising 
a performance management system. 

5.9.4 The provision of translation and interpretation services. 
5.9.5 Generalist skills should be available from all Complaints 

Advocacy staff and in addition, at least 25% advocates 
should be able to offer specialist knowledge, or skills that 
would allow them to support clients with more complex 
needs, such as those suffering with mental health problems, 
those with learning disabilities, communication difficulties, 
sight or hearing impairment or clients without English as 
their first language. 

5.9.6 The provider shall have the capacity and expertise to 
support clients in secure environments if necessary. 

5.9.7 The Provider shall have capacity to provide the advocacy 
service via telephone and other methods. 

6.0 Employment 

6.1 The Provider shall have employment policies and processes that take 
into account all current legislation. The policies shall cover advertising, 
recruitment and selection, supervision and training, disciplinary and 
grievance procedures and equal opportunities.

6.2  A standard application form shall be completed and used throughout 
the recruitment process. The application form shall provide for details 
of employment history, explanation of gaps in employment and 
declaration of previous convictions. The application form shall be 
signed to confirm the veracity of the information given. 

6.3 Gaps in employment history shall be investigated.  If convictions are 
declared a risk assessment shall be undertaken to determine the 
suitability for employment in the service. 

6.4 It shall be the responsibility of the Provider to ensure that any 
individual involved in the provision of the Service that shall have 

32Page 76



access to vulnerable adults or children shall be subject to Enhanced 
CRB checks. 

6.5 A minimum of two written employment references shall be obtained 
and checks made to confirm referee status.  One of the references 
shall be from the current or most recent employer; the second can be a 
personal reference from a referee who is not a family member or a 
personal friend.  If the applicant has had no previous employment then 
two references may be sought from professional persons. 

6.6 Clause 28 of the draft form of Contract sets out a number of 
requirements on the part of the Service Provider if TUPE applies. 

7.0 Governance 

7.1 The code of conduct for the provider shall be the Nolan Principles of 
Public Life. 

7.2Where services are provided by a voluntary or not-for-profit 
organisation, they should have an overall management committee which: 

  Is duly elected according to the governing documents. 

  Has representation of service users. 

  Oversees the sound financial management of the NHS 
complaints advocacy service. 

  Ensures the organisation adheres to charity and company law. 

  Organisations providing ICAS should ensure that they have a 
dedicated, appropriately qualified and experienced 
management structure, supported by the wider organisation. 

  The service must report on a quarterly basis in accordance with 
the contract requirements. 

8.0 Record Management 

8.1 The Provider shall maintain records to a professional standard.  This 
shall apply to financial and other records including but not limited to 
recruitment and training, staffing and records of Complaints Advocacy 
Service provision. 

8.2 Providers must ensure that accurate records are kept of all interactions 
with clients. 

8.3 Records must be securely stored to ensure the confidentiality of the 
client/service relationship. 

8.4 Clients should have access to their records. 

33Page 77



8.5The provider of advocacy services must comply with the requirements 
of the Data Protection Act 1998. 

8.6 These records shall be kept in such a way as to facilitate the transfer 
of information at the end of the contract. 

9.0 Contract Monitoring, Review and Reporting 

9.1 The Provider shall have in place and be able to demonstrate to the 
Purchaser a robust system for ensuring the quality of the service it 
provides and the quality of Complaints Advocacy activities. 

9.2 The Purchaser reserves the right to take its own measures to satisfy 
itself as to the quality of the service delivered by the Provider in 
relation to Complaints Advocacy. 

9.3 The Provider shall prepare and present financial and other data and 
reports as requested by the Purchaser and shall meet with the 
Purchaser at intervals as determined by the Purchaser and as required 
by Complaints Advocacy.  The type, volume and frequency of the data 
shall be further specified as Complaints Advocacy progresses, 
however the reporting shall be at least six monthly.

9.4 The Provider shall actively participate and contribute to reviews and 
evaluation of Complaints Advocacy and its activities as required.

9.5 Following initial and subsequent reviews the Purchaser may, in 
agreement with the Provider, seek to vary the Service Specification.  
Such variations shall be in line with the purpose and guidance on 
Complaints Advocacy and its activities as issued by the Sheffield City 
Council. 

9.6 The Provider shall prepare and present an annual report on Provider 
and Complaints Advocacy expenditure, activity and achievements as 
required by Sheffield City Council. Sheffield City Council should be 
able to validate this report and it shall be a public document. 

9.7 The Provider shall agree with Sheffield City Council, prior to contract 
signature, a number of high-level performance targets, that shall be 
included in the Contract and against which the Council shall measure 
the effective implementation of the Services. The final scope of the 
targets shall be determined by the scope of services offered by the 
Provider but it is anticipated they shall cover areas such as, budget 
management, service performance, and service satisfaction levels of 
Complaints Advocacy and other stakeholders.  

9.8 The provider needs to demonstrate how they will scale their proposed 
service up/down according to the resources to be made available by 
the Department of Health. 

34Page 78



35Page 79



Appendix C 

Engagement summary

Webpage - A Sheffield City Council Healthwatch webpage has been developed 
www.sheffield.gov.uk/healthwatch this has been updated throughout the 
development of Healthwatch Sheffield and it will continue to be used to provide 
information about developments. The page contains information about: 

  past stakeholder events and reports from them 

  planned events  

  links to other sources of information  

  tendering and support available 
and

  an opportunity for people and organisations to give their views. 

Meetings/visits with key stakeholders 

  Sheffield, Carers partnership Board 

  Partners for Inclusion 

  North patient group 

  Third sector Assembly 

  PALS services at the Sheffield Childrens and Royal Hallamshire Hospitals 

  ICAS 

Workshops and events: 

Six events have been co-produced via the Pathfinder Group, to engage with 
stakeholders about a range of issues and also to provide information for potential 
contractors and there has been some overlap between the two functions. 

Events have been publicised using a variety of mechanisms via: 

  the webpage www.sheffield.gov.uk/healthwatch

  an email network of 278 direct contracts  

  other organisations networks meaning a wide range of people received 
information

  distribution of fliers using a variety of means 

  other organisations websites 

March 2011 
Approximately sixty people, representing a wide variety of organisations across 
Sheffield and some individual citizens, met to begin considering the 
Government’s new plans for local Healthwatch.   Participants had a short 
introduction to the planned reforms from Richard Webb (executive director, 
Communities) and Mike Smith (chair of LINk).  This was followed by an 

36Page 80



opportunity for group discussion on the possible future shape and direction of 
Sheffield Healthwatch. 
Some key themes emerged from all the group discussions: 

  There is a large and challenging remit for Healthwatch  being set nationally 

  Publicity and clarity about future role of Healthwatch  is important 

  Healthwatch  should build on services and expertise already in existence e.g. 
advocacy, information provision and network with existing involvement 
channels and organisations 

  Priority should  be given to strategic work of Healthwatch

July 2011 
73 people attended a further workshop from a broad spectrum of organisations 
with the aim of building upon the progress made at the previous workshop held 
in March 2011 and also to: 

  Inform the design of Sheffield Healthwatch, including guidelines for those 
bidding to supply this service to the people of Sheffield.  

  Engage stakeholders in forming possible governance structures for 
Healthwatch

  Explore the interim arrangements for LINk’s until Healthwatch is formally 
established in April 2012.

  Ensure that LINk volunteers continue to offer their services to Healthwatch, 
and encourage wider participation from throughout Sheffield’s diverse 
communities.

Key themes emerged from the workshop:

  Ensure good quality training for volunteers that is enjoyable and flexible. 
Expectations and communications should be clear and concise

  There should be good quality publicity to promote Healthwatch, perhaps via 
a national awareness campaign, in order to encourage involvement from as 
broad a spectrum as possible. A variety of media should be used to raise 
awareness.  

  Priorities for Healthwatch should be to involve service users and groups that 
have been underrepresented. There should also be good consultation to 
ensure communities know what they should expect and closer cooperation 
with Sheffield City Council.

  The organisation selected to run Healthwatch should have a good track 
record in employment, understand the city and reach out to all types of 
service users. Non-profit organisations and groups of organisations should be 
considered.

November 2011 
Approximately 60 stakeholders including representatives from a variety of 
organisations across Sheffield attended.  

Five students aged 13 -19, who were taking part in ‘Takeover Day’ attended. The 
students provided practical support to the event and participated in the exercises 
as a group. (Takeover Day gives children and young people the chance to work 

37Page 81



with adults for the day and be involved in decision-making. Children benefit from 
the opportunity to experience the world of work and make their voices heard, 
while adults and organisations gain a fresh perspective on what they do). 

The purpose of the event was to: 

  provide stakeholders with more information about Healthwatch   

  check that the vision represents what people have already said– see the 
golden thread 

  test out some very specific questions and ideas 

Summary of outcomes 

Information and Advice Standards  
In general there was support for the proposed Healthwatch Pathfinder standards 
for organisations giving Information and Advice, with some helpful comments 
about shaping work on the standards in preparation for Healthwatch. 

Complaints Advocacy
There was most support for an approach whereby Healthwatch develop ‘generic 
advocacy’ in Sheffield and signpost health complaints to ‘generic advocacy’ in an 
exercise about handling health complaints. There was also some support for this 
being separated from other Healthwatch activity. Again there were helpful 
comments about shaping the approach to complaints. 

Citizens Views  
There was most support for Healthwatch representing the range of different 
views expressed to them about issues, rather than representing a Healthwatch 
viewpoint.

Governance Models
Many ideas were shared about what would contribute to a successful 
governance model, including; accountability, transparency, where it links to, 
training for members, the involvement of service users, principles and alternative 
ways of holding meetings. 

Tender Process
Helpful thinking about what will shape a good tender for Sheffield including; 
accessible information, clear specification, focus on quality not cost, 
consideration of equality issues, openness, transparent and clear. 

A tender event was also held in November 2011 and around 40 people 
representing organisations interested in finding out more about tendering for 
Healthwatch in Sheffield attended. 

The following questions were addressed: 

  How the complaints advocacy service will be contracted for. 

  About any restriction on the number of organisations who get to Invitation to 
Tender (ITT) stage depending and scoring. 

38Page 82



 The development of Sheffield Healthwatch from LINk and building on the 
work already done and transfer of staff.

  The number of providers considered necessary to deliver the core contract. 

  About the ‘network of networks’ and the relationship between organisations 
within it. 

  Legal entity proposed by the government and whether the development of it 
will need to be part of the contract or be in place before the contract is 
awarded.

  The signposting element and whether it includes both the Primary Care Trust 
(PCT) element and the Foundation Trust element.

Attendees also participated in exercises about: 

  Any questions about Healthwatch attendees still had and what they would still 
like to know. 

  Checking if attendees were clear about the commissioning process Sheffield 
City Council is following. If not, what still remained unclear. 

  About questions which need to be addressed by future tender events. 

February 2012 
Held a one off workshop where we explored whether a simple information 

standard/quality mark would be useful; and achievable for small groups. 

May 2012  
A further stakeholder event was held to update attendees on plans for 
Healthwatch Sheffield with interactive exercises to help us: 

  Test ways of measuring potential organisations who tender. 

  Decide how to choose stakeholders to be involved in awarding the tenders. 

  Check out further details of the specification. 

  Give brief information about the tendering process and support. 

Summary of outcomes: 

Testing the PQQ criteria and their weighting: 

Technical capability  
To what extent the contract fits with the tenderers primary    business, 
experience of delivering similar services. 
Ranked 1st

Quality 
Does the tenderer meet recognised quality standards and have evidence of 
quality management. 
Ranked 2nd

Sustainability 
Does the tenderer act in ways that are environmentally, socially and 
economically sustainable?

39Page 83



Ranked 3rd

Equality and diversity 
Does the tenderer comply with anti-discrimination laws? 
Ranked close 4th 

Health and Safety 
Does the tenderer comply with health and safety laws? 
Ranked 5th

Attendees were also asked to indicate what they would expect in terms of each 
criteria as a minimum from a potential contractor: 

An exercise to decide how to choose stakeholders to be involved in 
awarding the tenders made the following proposals concluded: 

We will probably not to have people involved at Pre-Qualification Questionnaire 
(PQQ) stage, having made sure that peoples views on weighting are taken note 
of.

Ensure that there is a 'golden thread' copy of the specification available which 
shows/illustrates how stakeholder involvement to date has influenced and 
shaped the service specification. 

For us to target a wider reference group of people to be involved in the final 
decision making process after the PQQ stage. The group: 

     Needs to be of around 25-30 people. 

  Includes a range of people with experience around partnership, with BME, 
disabled people, young people, LINk, people who use services and from user 
organisations representatives, with more than one representative for each 
equality/interest type group. 

  To elect/select 2 people to sit on the final panel. 

  Have a clear brief and a training session on how they are to be involved, 
what they can/cannot do, behaviour expected etc. 

  Members to sign confidentiality clauses and conflict of interest declarations.  

  Score e.g. a presentation from tenderers in small groups, to mitigate against 
a dominant voice/one perspective swaying others. 

  Members should be made known to potential tenderers beforehand 

  Involvement must not be tokenistic e.g. the scores must be used as part of 
final decision making. 

  Those people on the final panel need to have a clear definition of their role, 
especially around liability. 

  Should know that open feedback will be given to unsuccessful applicants 
which will help in the transparency of process, and in how comments etc are 
phrased and thought through. 

  If possible tenderers need will be anonymised before the group score, but 
this might be unrealistic given local known organisations are likely to bid. 

40Page 84



41

  Members need to have some understanding of the issues but need to be 
clear expertise in tender evaluation is not required, but ability to express their 
opinion on relevant issues is - possibly starting off with groups/people who 
have been involved in stakeholder events. 

  Recognition that conflict of interest is potentially an issue, but having a wider 
group helps mitigate against this.

Another exercise asked attendees to explore the role of a range of key 
stakeholders in the way Healthwatch Sheffield will work. 

An innovative art based exercise asked attendees to build and visualise the 
Healthwatch network of networks. This entailed attendees making connections 
with other organisations and people, describing the state of current relationships 
and where they’d like to strengthen or make connections.

Page 85



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 -

 H
e
a
lt

h
W

a
tc

h
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 –
 O

p
ti

o
n

s
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

–
 N

H
S

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

d
v

o
c

a
c

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

ti
n

g
 

O
p

ti
o

n
1

U
s
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 

in
v
e
s
t 

in
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

g
e
n
e
ri
c
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

w
it
h
in

 S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
. 

O
p

ti
o

n
 2

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

re
g
io

n
a
lly

, 
o
r 

s
u
b
 

re
g
io

n
a
lly

.

O
p

ti
o

n
 3

 

E
m

b
e
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
w

a
tc

h
 c

o
re

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

O
p

ti
o

n
 4

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h

w
a
tc

h
 c

o
re

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

i.
e
. 

2
 l
o

ts
. 

O
p

ti
o

n
 5

 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
w

a
tc

h
 c

o
re

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

h
o
ld

e
r 

to
 

s
u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
. 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 C
ri

te
ri

a
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y

a
)

8
a
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 8
a

) 
  

  
  

  
  

 8
 

a
)

7
a

) 
  

  
  

  
  

 6
 

A
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 s
tr

o
n
g
 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h
 H

W
 

S
h
e
ff
ie

ld

b
)

2
b
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 5
b

) 
  

  
  

  
  

 9
 

b
)

7
b

) 
  

  
  

  
  

 8
 

R
e
a
lis

ti
c
 o

p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

b
id

d
e
rs

c
)

5
c
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

c
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
 

c
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

 
c
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
 

F
it
 w

it
h
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r*

 
v
ie

w
s

d
)

6
d

) 
  

  
  

  
  

  
 3

 
d
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
3
 

d
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 7
 

d
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
 

C
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

e
)

5
e

) 
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

 
e
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

 
e
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

 
e
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

 

C
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 

s
tr

o
n
g
 H

e
a
lt
h
W

a
tc

h
 

f)
  
 6

 
f)

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
8

f)
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
 4

 
f)

  
  
  
  
8
 

f)
  

  
  

  
  

  
4
 

T
o

ta
l

s
c
o

re
3
2

3
8

3
7

4
5

3
5

4
2

Page 86



S
c
o

ri
n

g
- 

ra
n
g
e
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 0
 -

1
0
 p

e
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

/o
p
ti
o
n
, 

0
 b

e
in

g
 l
e
a
s
t 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
, 

1
0
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
s
t 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
. 

* 
F

o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l,
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
re

 t
h
e
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
o
’v

e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

h
e
ld

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 e
.g

. 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 o
f 
o
th

e
r 

ty
p
e
s
 o

f 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 i
n
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

D
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
: 

 
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 -

 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 ‘
v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
’ 
N

H
S

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 

S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.

 
 

A
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 s
tr

o
n
g
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
w

a
tc

h
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 –

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 l
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 N

H
S

 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
w

a
tc

h
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 t

o
 e

x
is

t 
o
r 

b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 e

.g
. 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 e
a
s
y
 e

x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
. 

 
 

R
e
a
lis

ti
c
 o

p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

b
id

d
e
rs

 -
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
lie

v
e
 t

h
is

 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 p

ro
p
o
s
it
io

n
fo

r 
th

e
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

b
id

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.
 

 
 

F
it
 w

it
h
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

v
ie

w
s
 -

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 f

it
s
 w

it
h
 w

h
a
t 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
ld

 u
s
 e

it
h
e
r 

a
t 

e
v
e
n
ts

, 
o
r 

in
 o

th
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
.

 
 

C
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 -

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 w

h
o
 c

a
n
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l

N
H

S
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

i.
e
. 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
c
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
. 

 
 

C
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 H

e
a
lt
h
W

a
tc

h
 -

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 H
e
a
lt
h
w

a
tc

h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
.

O
p

ti
o

n
s

:

T
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 a

ll 
g
e
n
u
in

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 r
is

k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

4
3

Page 87



C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 s
c
o

ri
n

g
: 

O
p

ti
o

n
 1

 
a
) 

M
o
re

 v
a
lu

e
 m

ig
h
t 

b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 u

s
in

g
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
/p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ie
s
 o

f 
s
c
a
le

. 
b
) 

M
a
y
 b

e
 m

u
d
d
le

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 i
f 

th
e
re

 a
re

 m
u
lt
ip

le
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
c
) 

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 

fe
e
l 
a
b
le

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 t

h
is

 s
o
rt

 o
f 

m
o
d
e
l.

d
) 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 a

 n
e
u
tr

a
l 
s
c
o
re

, 
w

e
ig

h
te

d
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

a
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 v

ie
w

s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

t 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

, 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 m

o
re

 w
e
ig

h
t 
g
iv

e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r.

 V
ie

w
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 
th

a
t 

a
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

re
fe

rr
e

d
. 

e
) 

N
o
n
-s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 l
im

it
e
d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g
e
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

r 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
. 

f)
 

L
im

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 d

a
ta

 w
it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
w

a
tc

h
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
/c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

h
o
ld

e
r.

 

O
p

ti
o

n
 2

 
a
) 

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ie
s
 o

f 
s
c
a
le

 a
n
d
 s

h
a
re

d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

. 
M

a
y
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
 r

is
k
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 p
ri
s
o
n
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
s
=

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
ra

w
 o

n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

e
) 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
lim

it
e
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
s
e
tu

p
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 t

o
o
ls

. 
f)

 
S

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
re

m
o
te

n
e
s
s
 f

ro
m

 ‘
lo

c
a
l’ 

p
ic

tu
re

. 

O
p

ti
o

n
 3

 
c
) 

C
o
u
ld

 w
o
rk

 v
ia

 e
.g

. 
c
o
n
s
o
rt

ia
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
d
) 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
t 

e
v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
lly

 n
o

t 
in

 f
a

v
o

u
r 

o
f 

th
is

 o
p

ti
o

n
. 

e
) 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.
 

f)
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

n
o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t.
 

O
p

ti
o

n
 4

b
) 

W
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

lig
h
t 

e
x
te

rn
a

l/
 l
im

it
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o
l.
 

O
p

ti
o

n
 5

 
a
) 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
. 

b
) 

S
tr

o
n
g
 l
in

k
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
lly

 e
n
fo

rc
e
d
. 

4
4

Page 88



C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
rs

 t
o

 a
p

p
ra

is
a
l:

 

C
h
a
ir
p
e
rs

o
n
 -

 S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 L

IN
k
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 &

 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

- 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
- 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

S
e
n
io

r 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

- 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

4
5

Page 89



4
6

Page 90



Sheffield City Council 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Guidance for completing this form is available on the intranet 
Help is also available by selecting the grey area and pressing the F1 key 

Name of policy/project/decision: Commissioning Sheffield Healthwatch   
 
Status of policy/project/decision: New 

Name of person(s) writing EIA: Nick Hoult 

Date: June 2012    Service: Business Strategy 

Portfolio: Communities 

What are the brief aims of the policy/project/decision?  
To commission Healthwatch Sheffield (HWS) as required by the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  
 
This EIA is focused on the approval of the 'procurement strategy process and 'subsequent contract award 
stage’. It also explores the equality impact of Healthwatch Sheffield when the service is in place. The EIA should 
be read in conjunction with the relevant Cabinet Report ' Approval for the procurement strategy, specifications 
and contract award for Healthwatch Sheffield'. 
 
As part the EIA we have looked at what the new service’s customer profile or ‘target population’ might look like, 
based on Sheffield’s citywide demographics and health factors and also some of the inequalities / factors which 
might influence to what extent people might need to use the service. 
 
We have tried to ensure that the organisations and individuals that we have engaged with during consultation 
on the procurement have been representative of the target population, work is ongoing to ensure groups who 
need to be engaged havean opportunity to influence the development and procurement of Healthwatch and the 
NHS complaints advocacy services. 
 
The views, conclusions and concerns expressed during the consultation and engagement have been used to 
directly influence and produce the vision, specification and procurement process.  This means that where we 
have achieved good levels of representation in our consultation and engagement, this will have helped us to 
ensure that equality impacts have been addressed at key stages in the Commissioning process. 
 
Background to HWS:   
Following the parliamentary passage of the Health and Social Care Act 2012, Healthwatch will be the new 
consumer champion for both health and social care. It will exist in 2 distinct forms – Local Healthwatch, at local 
level, and Healthwatch England, at national level.  
 
Local Healthwatch will be established in April 2013. Until then Local Involvement Networks (LINks) will continue 
to operate. Healthwatch Sheffield will carry out the same tasks as LINk, with the addition of some new 
responsibilities around information and advice for citizens and specialist independent advocacy for NHS 
complaints. 
 
A Local Healthwatch will be an independent organisation, able to employ its own staff and volunteers, so it can 
become the influential and effective voice of the public. It will have to keep accounts and make its annual 
reports available to the public. 
 
The Health and Social Care Act give the Local Authority a duty to establish, in a locally determined way, 
organisation/organisations to deliver HWS. 
 
A vision for Healthwatch Sheffield has been developed via workshops and events held as part of the 
Healthwatch Pathfinder to enable key organisations, groups and citizen representatives to shape proposals for 
Healthwatch Sheffield . 
 
The proposal for Healthwatch Sheffield is set out under four key objectives which Sheffield City Council will 
describe in more detail in a service specification: 
 
•To establish an approach to public voice, information provision, support and advocacy in health and social care 
which is integrated and embedded in networks across the city of Sheffield. 
•All people and communities in Sheffield will have equal access to the support and information they need to 
make health and social care choices which meet their individual needs. 

 

Page 91



Version 2.0 (November 2011) 2

•Provision of a transparent, accountable and non-bureaucratic governance structure for Sheffield Healthwatch 
which places public voice at the heart of local health, social care and public health decision making and 
commissioning. 
•Establish a Healthwatch that is an effective ‘critical friend’ of GP Commissioning Consortia, Sheffield City 
Council, the new Health & Wellbeing Board and providers of local health social care and public health services, 
using the existing powers of LINk and developing a strong relationship with Sheffield’s health scrutiny 
arrangements. 
  
The aim of Local Healthwatch will be to give citizens and communities a stronger voice to influence and 
challenge how health and social care services are provided within their locality.  
 
NHS Complaints advocacy 
An options appraisal (Appendix D) has been undertaken to determine the best approach to tendering for the 
specialist independent advocacy for NHS complaints service aspect of Healthwatch Sheffield and this indicates 
letting the Complaints Advocacy service as a separate lot within one tender giving the best possibility of a 
strong professional service.   
  
 
Are there any potential Council staffing implications, include workforce diversity? No 
 

Under the Public Sector Equality Duty, we have to pay due regard to: “Eliminate discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations.” More information is available on the 
council website 

 

Areas of 
possible
impact

Impact Impact 
level 

Explanation and evidence  
(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. This should be 
proportionate to the impact.) 

Age Positive Medium Customer profile / target population 
The older retired population (80+) is projected to increase by over half 
between 2008 and 2031, increasing from 24,000 people to 39,600 
people.  
 
There are now 11,700 people aged 85+. 
The working age population (16-64 age group) is projected to increase 
by over 20,000 people between 2008 and 2021. 
 
The main increase up to 2021 is in the younger, 16-39 age group. The 
older age group, the 40-64s, is stable until 2021, but is expected to grow 
significantly after that. 
The 0-15 age group is projected to increase from 94,800 people in 2008, 
to 115,500 people in 2031.  
 
Consultation / engagement 
A group of younger people supported and participated in the stakeholder 
event in Nov 2011 as part of 'Takeover Day'.  
 
Healthwatch's voice and influence role will be to represent the views of 
local children, young people and adults with health and social care 
commissioners and providers. It will havea Quality monitoring role, 
including the power to conduct enter and view visits to places of service 
provision (it's not clear if this will extend to children & young people's 
service provision at this time).The NHS complaints advocacy service will 
be for children, young people and adults. The local freedoms to develop 
HWS will be used to engage with young people and their organisations 
to further shape the service requirements for HWS.  
 
A CYP event is planned to be held on 3/8/12 See action plan below. 
 
Older People have been engaged via specific invitation to events 
through e.g. Age UK, Expert Elders and 50+. 
 
Also via the mechanisms outlined in the section below relating to all 
groups. 
 

Page 92



Version 2.0 (November 2011) 3

Areas of 
possible
impact

Impact Impact 
level 

Explanation and evidence  
(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. This should be 
proportionate to the impact.) 

Disability Positive Medium Customer profile / target population 
Mental health 
Approximately one in six people in the local population suffer with some 
form of mental illness, equating to around 100,000 people in the city. 
Local analysis indicates that there is a higher rate of depression in non-
white ethnic groups. 
 
Physical, Sensory and Cognitive Disabilities 
Census data indicates that areas with the highest rate of limiting long 
term illness are concentrated in the east of Sheffield and parts of the 
centre of the city. When taken to lower geographic levels, there are 
some parts of Sheffield where one in three people report such problems. 
 
Learning disabilities 
In the last five years (April 2004 to April 2009), the number of adults 
(over 20) with a learning disability, recorded by the Sheffield Case 
Register, increased by 14% - from 1,941 people to 2,205. This includes 
a 38% increase in young adults (aged 20 to 29).   
A local study in 2007 predicted that the next ten years will see a 27% 
increase in adults with a learning disability in Sheffield.  
The number of people with a learning disability from BME communities 
increased by 80% from 187 to 339 between 1998 and 2008. As a 
proportion of all people with a learning disability, this was an increase 
from 8% to 11%. The proportion is higher in younger age groups, with 
18% of under-20 year olds who have a learning disability being from 
BME communities. 
 
Consultation / engagement 
Disabled people have been engaged via specific invitation to 
stakeholder events e.g. through the Learning Disability Parliament, 
Sheffield Centre for Independent Living, a Diabetes self help group, 
Sheffield Royal Society for the Blind and Adult Social Care Customers.
 
The events have been accessible for disabled people for example, 
British Sign Language interpreters have been advertised and present at 
stakeholder events and venues accessible.  A range of methods have 
been used to gather views to ensure the process is accessible. 
 
Also via the mechanisms outlined in the section below relating to all 
groups. 
 
 

Pregnancy/ 
maternity 

Positive High Customer profile / target population 
Figures up to 2008/9 show that there were approximately 500 - 600 live 
births per month with a slightly upward trend. This would indicate around 
4,500 pregnant women in Sheffield at any given time. Pregnant women 
are proportionately more likely to use health services and therefore 
proportionately potentially more likely to wish to engage with 
Healthwatch than other groups.  
(Live Birth Trends - Monthly Monitoring - NHS Sheffield). 
 
Also via the mechanisms outlined in the section below relating to all 
groups. 
 

Race Positive Medium Customer profile / target population 
Approximately 92,700 people in Sheffield are from ethnic minorities, an 
increase from 55,200 in 2001.  This population is projected to continue 
increasing in size. This will have implications for cultural services and 
equalities.  
 
Consultation / engagement 
People form Black & Minority (BME) have been engaged via specific Page 93



Version 2.0 (November 2011) 4

Areas of 
possible
impact

Impact Impact 
level 

Explanation and evidence  
(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. This should be 
proportionate to the impact.) 

invitiation to stakeholder events e.g. ROSHNI, SADACCA, BME 
network, Sheffield Sickle Cell Foundation and Chinese Community. 
 
However feedback from the stakeholder event in November 2011 
highlighted a concern about lack of take up of the event by BME people.  
This will be addressed via a specific event - see action plan. 

Also via the mechanisms outlined in the section below relating to all 
groups. 

Religion/
belief

Positive Medium Via the mechanisms outlined in the section below. 

Sex Positive Medium Customer profile / target population 
Approximately 278,800 women and 276,700 men make up the overall 
population of 555,500. 
  
Consultation / engagement 
Both women and men have attended stakeholder events. 
 
Also via the mechanisms outlined in the section below relating to all 
groups. 
 
 

Sexual
orientation 

Positive -Select- Customer profile / target population 
Estimates vary but it's suggested that approximately one in twelve 
people are lesbian, gay or bi-sexual , around 8%.  There is a range of 
evidence to show that LGB people experience particular health 
inequalities and barriers to accessing services. 
 
Consultation / engagement 
 Whilst there has been some success in engaging with lesbian gay and 
bi-sexual people, see action plan re further steps. 
 
Also via the mechanisms outlined in the section below relating to all 
groups. 
 

Transgender Positive High Customer profile / target population 
Whilst the number of Transgender people in Sheffield is small, it is 
recognised that Transgender people are disproportionately afffected by 
health inequalities and therefore potentially more likely to have a need to 
engage with Healthwatch. Efforts have been made to engage with 
Transgender people in shaping proposals for Healthwatch Sheffield.See 
section below relating to all groups. 
 
consultation / engagement 
Whilst there has been some success in engaging transgender 
stakeholders, see action plan re further steps. 

Carers Positive Medium Customer profile / target population 
Carers are essential partners in providing care in the community and as 
such supporting carers is a priority for the city. The number of carers in 
Sheffield is approximately 61,000 people (10% of the total population).  
 
Consultation / engagement 
Carers and officers from the Sheffield Carers Centre and Advisory 
Service have attended Healthwatch Sheffield stakeholder events. 
 
Also via the mechanisms outlined in the section below relating to all 
groups. 
 

Voluntary, 
community & 
faith sector 

Positive Medium As part of the Pathfinder work a one-off workshop  was held where 
whether a simple information standard/quality mark would be useful; and 
achievable for small groups and organisations i.e. give out information 

Page 94



Version 2.0 (November 2011) 5

Areas of 
possible
impact

Impact Impact 
level 

Explanation and evidence  
(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. This should be 
proportionate to the impact.) 

and advice to people (leaflets, verbally etc): i.e. 
•  have a turnover of less than £10,000) 
or 
•  small user led organisation (i.e. run and governed by people who use 
the service or have a condition, impairment, or a special interest)  
 
Voluntary, Community and Faith sector have been well represented at 
stakeholder events. 
 
Also via the mechanisms outlined in the section below relating to all 
groups. 
  

Financial
inclusion,
poverty, 
social justice:  

Positive Medium We will need to ensure that the successful organisation considers 
financial inclusion issues where these are relevant to service delivery – 
for example, appropriate signposting e.g. to advice agencies; financial 
inclusion awareness of staff in relation to health and social care issues; 
consideration of the costs associated with how people access HWS, etc 
 
See action plan regarding picking this up in the service specification. 

Cohesion:  Positive Medium Via the mechanisms outlined in the section below. 

Other/additio
nal: All 
groups

Positive Medium The Sheffield population is approximately 555,500 and is projected to 
increase in the future, to around 600,900 people by 2020.   
 
A vision for Healthwatch Sheffield has been developed via workshops 
and events held as part of the Pathfinder to enable key organisations, 
groups and citizen representatives to shape proposals for Sheffield 
Healthwatch. Efforts have been made with some success to include as 
diverse a range of people from protected groups as possible in events 
as possible and also offer made to visit groups to discuss HWS 
publicised.  
 
A range of stakeholders have been contacted via the 'pathfinder' project 
including CVS Core Cities group, including NAVCA, regional children 
and young peoples infrastructure network and visits made to e.g.; 
Sheffield Carers partnership Board and Partners for Inclusion, Third 
Sector assembly, north Sheffield patient Group and others. 
 
An options appraisal has been undertaken jointly with LINk chair, HWS 
project team members and 'Procurement professional' to determine the 
approach to be taken towards tendering for the main HWS service 
contract and the complaints advocacy service contact. 
 
A dedicated web page www.sheffield.gov.uk/Healthwatch has been 
included on the SCC website containing information about Healthwatch 
and development of HWS. Events have been used to co-produce 
elements of the 'procurement strategy' and shape involvement of 
stakeholders in the actual process. 
 
A HWS service specification has been developed which includes the 
views expressed by stakeholders, in particular considerations about 
equality and diversity and the inclusion of seldom heard groups and how 
their requirements should be met by Healthwatch Sheffield. 
 
The HWS model co-produced with stakeholders is predicated on a 
network of networks model to 'provide a mechanism for diverse voices 
across Sheffield to be heard and ensure that where there are people 
who are seldom heard, Healthwatch will provide innovative ways to 
gather and include their views'. 
 
Healthwatch tender opportunity Awareness Raising Events were run in 
November 2011 and January 2012 to generate market interest in the 

Page 95



Version 2.0 (November 2011) 6

Areas of 
possible
impact

Impact Impact 
level 

Explanation and evidence  
(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. This should be 
proportionate to the impact.) 

opportunity and understanding of the procurement process.  Potential 
suppliers will be targeted through the buy4sheffield distribution list, 
Voluntary Action Sheffield connections and buying solutions notice 
board. 
 
A further tender support event was held on 27 June 2012. 
 
Stakeholder events have been held in July & November 2011, January & 
May 2012 to co-produce HWS. Where possible a range of interactive 
exercises have been used to gather stakeholder views. 
(see cabinet report for further detail) 
 
The new Healthwatch Sheffield organisation will become a corporate 
body and therefore have public sector duties and responsibilities 
including compliance with the Equality Act. This requirement has been 
included in the service specification.   

 

Overall summary of possible impact (to be used on EMT, cabinet reports etc):  

The impact of HWS should be positive for all protected groups.  This is, however dependant on the Council 
ensuring that we continue to take a comprehensive and robust approach to equality issues throughout the 
procurement strategy, specification and contract award stages of commissioning the service.  When the 
contract has been awarded, we need to ensure that we continue to monitor equality of opportunity (for all 
protected groups) as part of our governance role. 
 

  This assessment reflects comments and concerns raised during the stakeholder involvement exercises.  

  The proposed model maximises the opportunities for every Sheffield citizen to take part in Healthwatch 

Sheffield and have their voice heard.  The coproduced vision has equality of access and diversity 

enshrined as a principle.  

  Stakeholder involvement in equality impact assessment has directly influenced the proposed 

procurement strategy and plans.  For example, additional tender support events have been held to 

encourage smaller organisations with less experience to be involved. 

  The stakeholder engagement plan was designed to involve a wide range of citizens and organisations.  

A range of creative mechanisms was employed to ensure that everyone had an accessible opportunity 

to participate. 

 

If you have identified significant change, med or high negative outcomes or for example the impact is on 
specialist provision relating to the groups above, or there is cumulative impact you must complete the action 
plan. 

 

Review date: January 2013 Q Tier Ref     Reference number:       

Entered on Qtier: No   Action plan needed: Yes 

Approved (Lead Manager): Bev Coukham   Date: 3/7/12 

Approved (EIA Lead person for Portfolio): Phil Reid Date: 3/7/12 

Does the proposal/ decision impact on or relate to specialist provision: no 

Risk rating: Low 

 

Action plan 

Page 96



Version 2.0 (November 2011) 7

Area of impact Action and mitigation Lead, timescale and 
how it will be 
monitored/reviewed 

All groups Include stakeholder views expressed at events are included in 
the selection process. In line with this select a diverse wider 
group of people to be involved in the selection process. 

June - November 
2012 
Monitored via 
procurement project 
group. 

All groups Include equalities issues/duties in service specification, including 
those raised by stakeholders. 

June 2012 - 
completed   

All groups Adhere to procurement procedures throughout the procurement 
process to ensure 'equity'. 

June - November 
2012 
Monitored via 
procurement project 
group. 

All groups Approach and visit groups on request to publicise the 
development of Healthwatch.  

June - November 
2012 
Monitored via 
Pathfinder Group 

All groups Include requirement to publicise HWS in service specification to 
ensure information about HWS Sheffield reaches protected 
groups. 

June 2012 - 
completed 
 
 

All groups Work with Pathfinder group on Communications plan during 
procurement process and transition to ensure information about 
HWS Sheffield reaches protected groups 

Pathfinder Group 
January-April 2013 

Race Hold a specific BME stakeholder event as part of the Pathfinder 
project, inviting people using a range of methods. 

Held 16 July 2012 - 
Pathfinder Group- 
completed 

Sexual orientation Approach the Centre for HIV and sexual health, about potential 
visits/meetings to provide information about Healthwatch 
Sheffield and engage individuals and groups in the procurement.  

June/July 2012 - 
Pathfinder group 

Financial inc Service specification to include re. ensuring that the successful 
organisation considers financial inclusion issues where these are 
relevant to service delivery – for example, appropriate 
signposting e.g. to advice agencies; financial inclusion awareness 
of staff in relation to health and social care issues; consideration 
of the costs associated with how people access HWS, etc. 
 

July 2012 

Age The local freedoms to develop HWS will be used to engage with 
children, young people and their organisations to further shape 
the service requirements for HWS.  
 
 

3
rd

 of August 2012  

All groups Additional considerations for the service specification and the 
Council’s ongoing governance role of HWS: 

  The ‘Network of network’ includes networks representing 
diverse groups. 

  The Complaints Advocacy Service is subject to the same 
rigorous approach to equality.  

  HWS should be able to evidence that people accessing its 
service are representative of its ‘target population’ (Part of 
this evidence will be through equality monitoring.  Evidence 
of reasonable adjustments / accessibility of service may also 
be required). 

  HWS should be able to monitor customer satisfaction with its 
service and disaggregate this data by equality groups. 

 

 

 

Approved (Lead Manager): Bev Coukham Date: 3 July 2012 

Approved (EIA Lead Officer for Portfolio): Phil Reid Date: 3 July 2012 

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



12
SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet Report 

Report of:   Deputy Chief Executive 
______________________________________________________________

Date:    August 1st 2012 
______________________________________________________________

Subject:   Annual Equalities and Inclusion Report - 2011/12
______________________________________________________________

Author of Report:  Social Justice and Inclusion Manager 
Tel 27 35861 

______________________________________________________________

Summary: To provide Cabinet with 

  An overview of progress and challenges on Equality, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI)

  An update on progress on objectives in the Single Equality Scheme 2010 -13  

  An outline of the priorities, work underway and challenges, focused around work 
required to meet our Equality Duties and local priorities 

  Recommendations for action.
_____________________________________________________________

Reasons for Recommendations:
Our aim is to make Sheffield a fairer place to live and work and on an ongoing basis we will 
continue to meet the needs of our diverse customers. There is excellent work being 
undertaken across the Council in relation to equality, diversity and inclusion that will 
continue to make a difference to people’s lives in the city.  

However alongside this work there are areas of persistent inequality in key areas across the 
Council that this report has highlighted and undermines the good work in services. These 
areas should be recognised as priorities and addressed specifically if we are to improve 
outcomes for everyone across the city. 

Recommendations: That Cabinet 

a) Agree the report and agree the action plans 
b) Agree the new Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy 
c) Focus our attention via the Strategic Equality Board on 

  Ensuring we have joined up approaches to equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI), 
including working with partners to deliver joint equality approaches and objectives  

  Strengthening civic participation through representation on boards in line with the city 
population e.g. women, disabled, BME people, etc 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 1

Agenda Item 12

Page 99



 Strengthening monitoring and reporting of hate incidents & discrimination to ensure 
we are working to eliminate discrimination and harassment 

  Setting new priority indicators for 2013- 17 in line with the recommendations of the 
Fairness Commission  to prioritise areas with key outcome differentials or impacts   

  Mainstreaming EDI performance into the Performance Management Framework and 
throughout business planning 

  Developing a deeper knowledge of our customers & communities including 
consistent monitoring / analysis of differences within communities and new profiles 

  Action in line with Workforce Equality Review  

  Add additional questions in the staff survey on EDI and more work undertaken to 
understand and reduce differences.

  Ensuring EDI is embedded in procurement and commissioning arrangements.  

  Re evaluate approaches to EDI in Portfolios’ to ensure they are fit for purpose 

 To continue to review EDI arrangements in line with any changes to legislation. 

______________________________________________________________

Background Papers:   Appendices Attached 
Sheffield City Council - Single Equality Scheme 2010 -13 

Category of Report: OPEN/

* Delete as appropriate 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 2Page 100



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

Financial Implications 

YES Cleared by: Paul Jeffries 

Legal Implications 

YES/ Cleared by: Lynne Bird 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

YES Cleared by: Adele Robinson 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

YES

Human rights Implications

YES

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

YES/NO

Economic impact 

YES

Community safety implications 

YES

Human resources implications 

YES

Property implications 

/NO

Area(s) affected 

City wide and across the Council 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities and Inclusion  

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

Scrutiny Management Committee 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO

Press release 

/NO

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 3Page 101



Annual Sheffield City Council  

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Report 2011/ 2012 

1.0  SUMMARY 

To provide Cabinet with: 

  An overview on the background and challenges on Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

  An update on progress on objectives in the Single Equality Scheme

  An outline of the priorities, work underway and challenges, focused around work 
required to meet our Duties and local priorities including workforce 

  Recommendations for action.  

2.0   BACKGROUND 

2.1  Fairness is at the heart of the Council’s values, we believe that everyone should get 
a fair chance to succeed but recognise that some people and communities need 
extra help to reach their full potential, particularly when they face multiple layers of 
deprivation. Tackling inequality is crucial to increasing fairness and social cohesion, 
reducing health problems and helping people to have independence and control over 
their lives. It will underpin all that we do.  “. “Standing up for Sheffield: Corporate Plan 
2011-14.

2.2  The business case for equality, diversity & inclusion (EDI) is strong; good practice 
will lead to benefits for all. We want our workforce culture to promote and embrace 
EDI; realising that each individual adds value to a team.  We know our strength 
comes from building on and valuing our staff and customers’ differences and 
similarities.  We are committed to supporting our workforce to develop and to 
commission or deliver high quality services that meet the needs of everyone. 

3.0 WHAT DOES IT MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE AND THE CHALLENGES 
AHEAD? 

3.1 As a City Council, we know that unfairness and inequalities do and will exist across 
the city. We have a major role in tackling this, and it is important that we work with 
communities and partners to understand the nature of the fairness and inequalities 
issues affecting individuals and communities in Sheffield, along with the effect of our 
policies and practices 

3.2   Our aim is to make Sheffield a fairer place to live and work and the report will 
consider how to do this in the context of reducing resources and as the organisation 
goes through a period of organisational changes. People have different needs and 
some people may need more or different resources to have access to the same 
outcomes as others. It places an emphasis on reducing the barriers and constraints 
that people operate under, helping people to have the ability to face up to 
challenges, and recognises that people will have diverse goals in life and make 
different choices. 

3.3  As we address some of the persistent long term inequalities that exist in the city, it is 
also important that we continue on a daily basis to make real improvements and 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 4Page 102



changes to services and practices that positively impact on peoples lives. A lot of 
these areas are highlighted through our equality impact assessment process. 

3.4 Some key areas of inequality and disadvantage are outlined below and must be 
addressed if all people are to fully contribute to all areas of life in the city and if 
Council priorities are to be achieved (see Appendix 9 for more detail).  

  Financial exclusion is inextricably linked with poverty, and it remains a major 
challenge for Sheffield, which has the highest levels of financial exclusion in almost 
half of its wards (affecting approximately 218,743 people in 48% of wards). 

  The achievement of children and young people in Sheffield has continued to 
improve. However, Sheffield remains below national figures and the achievement 
gap between the lowest 20% of children and the average has widened by 2%.

  The difference in life expectancy across Sheffield is approximately 11 years for men 
and over 6 for women.

  Women working full-time are paid on average of 15.5% less an hour than men for 
doing work of equivalent value. Women pensioners therefore tend to be poorer than 
male pensioners. Other issues, which cannot be separated from experiences of 
financial exclusion and poverty, include age, ethnicity, sexuality, disability and 
domestic abuse etc.

  BME and disabled people have lower average rates of employment; women have 
lower rates of employment, with ethnic minority women having much lower rates of 
employment than all other groups.

  Disabled people are particularly at risk of disadvantage, as the unemployment and 
disability can become mutually reinforcing. 

  BME people have lower average rates of employment. National figures show that 
unemployment among young black men has doubled in three years, rising from 
28.8% in 2008 to 55.9% in the last three months of 2011.1 . There is a need to 
understand how the above applies to Sheffield in the absence of local data. 

  In terms of child poverty 37% of Sheffield is in the bottom 30% of areas, with 21% of 
all children in the city living in households receiving council tax benefit or housing 
benefit. It is also estimated that 25% of children in Sheffield live in low income 
households. 

3.5   Areas of specific challenge have both a staff and customer focus: 

 Citizens and customers: inequalities in health, attainment, employment and skills, 
financial inclusion, social care and personalisation, housing, community safety 
including hate incidents, domestic & sexual abuse and access. Developing a deeper 
understanding of inequality and fairness in Sheffield and of the impact on different 
people is critical. 

 Staff: workforce diversity, workforce opinion, shared understanding, reasonable 
adjustments, access, employee engagement, communication and training.

 Both: A lack of a shared understanding of equality, diversity and inclusion that risks 
leading to inappropriate and unacceptable behaviour.

3.6  We should ensure our processes are transparent and fair and are seen to be. To 
meet this challenge we must address key elements of process, e.g. ensuring we 

                                           
1 1

(http://www.guardian.co.uk/society/2012/mar/09/half-uk-young-black-men-unemployed

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 5Page 103



have accurate base-line information, monitoring and recording to demonstrate where 
and how we are making progress. 

3.5 The Fairness Commission has been established by Sheffield City Council to make a 
non-partisan strategic assessment of the nature, extent, causes and impact of 
inequalities in the City and to make recommendations for tackling them 

4.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY  

4.1 Although this report will address some key ongoing challenges facing the Council, it 
is important to highlight that there are daily successes and excellent ongoing work is 
being undertaken by staff across the Council making a difference to people’s lives.  

4.2 Appendix 4 notes some detailed examples in relation to

 Stonewall Education Champions - Tackling Homophobic Bullying 

 MAST Team 

 Fellowship Programme 

 Home Language Accreditation (HoLA) Project

 Apprenticeship Scheme 

4.3 A few short examples from across the Council include: 

Advancing Equality of Opportunity 

 Community Access and Reablement Service (CARS) pilot supports people to get 
back as much of their independence as possible.  The service helps people develop 
a personal plan for the things they want to do more independently. It also offers 
advice, information and signposting to other services.  Customer satisfaction with the 
service is high – 100% of people were satisfied with their personal plan and 93% felt 
more independent after six weeks reablement 

  The Self Directed Support introduction gave us the chance to offer a bigger choice 
of travel and transport options. A new team called Travel Solutions was set up and 
has helped more than 100 people get about the way that is right for them. 

 6000 Carers assessments resulted in 2,500 carers receiving a separate carers’ 
service and another 2,500 provided with advice and information. All Sheffield GP’s 
have been given a booklet about how they can offer advice and support to carers. 

 Young Carers Strategy Group established to support Young Carers Project and the 
VOYCE Project) with the aim of developing new models of working which bring 
Young Carers and organisations providing services together.

 Reshaping the Voluntary Sector Grants and the setting up of a new Small Grants 
Fund. Benefits for local people arising from the grants include access to services for 
people experiencing domestic abuse, support for vulnerable adults, support for older 
people, opportunities for people from BME communities and access to advice and 
advocacy services 

 Highways PFI Client Team- Highways is traditionally a white, middle aged, male 
service.  However, in the recent recruitment exercise out of 21 posts recruited, 3 of 
the appointees are BME (14%), 4 are female (19%) and 13 are in their 30's (62%).

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 6Page 104



In addition, the BME, female and young appointees are evenly spread across the 
grade structure.

 Improving Social Care Payments A group of customers from adult social care 
and officers are working together to coproduce a new service to process all 
the financial and payments aspects of receiving a personal budget

 Work in Customer Services to improve access to services the following are some 
headlines
  Extension of availability of the Family Information Service 
  Digital champions introduced in First Point. Assisting people to reduce waiting 

time for things that can be done online e.g. blue badge
  Access to money advice is being promoted as part of our service at First Point 
  Work is taking place in First Point to promote health and well-being  

 The Quality Improvement Network in Communities has achieved the following; 
  Designed and delivered disability equality training for home care agencies 
  Been trained to recruit and select our staff
  Co-produced a booklet to tell people about the Right to Control
  Been on panels for nominating applicants for an accessible housing 

opportunity  and to decide who would get funding for innovation projects  
  Worked with staff and partners to decide priorities and plans for the year
  Reviewed information packs for customers to make sure they are easy to read 

  New Web pages have been developed with extra content under headings such as, 
our customers, our workforce, our city and our partners. This is ongoing with the aim 
of improving access to information on equality, diversity and inclusion. Some 
community groups have agreed to test the new pages

  Establishing the Fairness Commission to make a non-partisan strategic 
assessment of the nature, extent, causes and impact of inequalities in the City.

  The Sheffield 100 Apprenticeship Programme represents the Council contribution 
to the overall goal of increasing the numbers of apprentices across the city, and 
identifying additional places. 

Eliminating Discrimination 

 Stonewall Education Champions We achieved 4th place nationally this reflects 
effective partnership-led work on challenging homophobia and bullying in schools.  

  We are rated by Stonewall as a ‘top 100 employer’ and 'consistently top performer' 
in the Stonewall Diversity champions Workforce Index. 

 Safeguarding Adults is now included in training with links to disability hate crime 
and discriminatory abuse. 

  Sheffield long-listed last year for European Access City Award, one of only two 
cities in the UK. 

  Become a ‘Mindful Employer’ organisation to support staff that experience stress, 
anxiety, depression and other mental health conditions.   

  New customer monitoring form and guidance for staff and customers has been 
developed. This was launched in Customer Services Week in 2011. 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 7Page 105



 Equality Impact Assessments played a significant role in helping to mitigate the 
impacts of the recent recession and subsequent public spending cuts, in ensuring 
that, as far as possible, the city is socially and economically resilient. This can be 
evidenced through the recent 2012/13 Council budget setting process whereby 
attempts were made to minimise funding reductions to key frontline services such as 
Adult Social Care and protect spending in Children’s Social Care. 

  We have also reviewed our impact assessment process and included additional 
areas beyond the Equality Act protected characteristics to include carers, poverty 
and cohesion. 

  Sheffield has signed up to a Community Covenant and established a Community 
Covenant Partnership Panel to improve services for the local armed forces.

 Home Language Accreditation (HoLA) Project. Working in partnership with King 
Edward VII secondary school, Languages Sheffield and Children’s University we 
have secured funding for a 3 year project. It focuses on the relationship between the 
complimentary and mainstream schools. The Project has been nominated for the 
European Award for Languages. See appendix 4. 

Fostering Good Relations 

  Developed a new Housing Equalities Group and they will be help us to develop the 
Housing Equalities Plan his year. 

 Partnership work with the Somali Community to develop capacity within the 
community to address disadvantage and develop community resilience and work in 
Partnership with community group to address disadvantage and develop Roma 
community links, leadership and community resilience.

 International Women’s Day Centenary events in 2011 and 2012 across the city 
involving women from different communities and sectors, including the ‘Women of 
Steel’ celebration. Led to the development of new community Women’s Network. 

 Work in partnership and support disabled citizens through the various groups 
such as ALG, T4All, and Partners for Inclusion. An example of this is the consultation 
done with the refurbishment of Weston Park Museum, including the establishment of 
accessible displays, the development of a Braille-tactile guide to the Park, disability 
awareness training for staff, including how to guide blind people and how to describe 
a display which cannot otherwise be accessed. 

  The city centre management team have been working with LGBT communities
supporting Sheffield Pride to help improve planning. There have been a number of 
improvements which will be seen at this years event on 2nd June, including having 
the first ever Pride Parade into the Endcliffe Park where the event takes place. Other 
services such as the Registry Office also attended to promote access to services. 
This is expected to attract in excess of 10,000 visitors from around the region. 

  Over the past year we have further developed Community Knowledge Profiles in 
some new areas such as LGBT, disabled, lone parents, women and carers; we have 
also upgraded our existing BME profiles. 

 Partnership work with the BME Network on a range of identified challenges such 
as the economy, children and young people, housing and older people. 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 8Page 106



 LGBT survey as part of the consultation for the Housing Strategy in 2011 (Feb-April) 
to help identify LGBT people's housing issues and priorities. The interim Housing 
Equalities Plan (2012-13) has LGBT actions on monitoring.

 We continue to support and work with staff forums for under represented groups 
within the Council such as disabled, BME and LGBT staff and have developed new 
carers and women’s forums as a result of issues raised. 

5.0  Legislation and Our Public Sector Duties 

5.1  We currently comply with our legislative requirements under the Equality Act 2010 
and associated Public Sector Duties (PSED). These are wide ranging and affect all 
areas of what the Council does. (See Appendix 5 for more detail). 

5.2  We have responded to the move by Government Equalities Office towards public 
oversight and local accountability in how we are meeting our objectives rather than 
national auditing. 

5.3  In line with our duties we have reshaped our web pages to make more information 
accessible to the public in January 2012 on the external site. We have grouped 
information in relation to 4 key areas our city, our customers, our workforce and our 
partners. We are consulting with stakeholders and are continuing to develop these.

5.4  As a matter of operational practice, we regularly undertake equality impact 
assessments across the Council, as a systematic way of assessing the effects that a 
proposed policy or decision is likely to have on different people within the city.

5.5   The Government has recently announced as part of its “red tape challenge” that it is 
to undertake a review in how the PSED is working in practice. We will review and 
ensure that our policies and practices are in line with any changes and the values 
and priorities of the Council.  

6.0  Leadership & Strategic Oversight on Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI)  

6.1  Leadership and commitment is vital to our success, at Cabinet level the Leader has 
been responsible for Equalities and now there is a new Cabinet member for 
Communities and Inclusion following changes in May 2012.  At Officer Level, the 
Strategic Equalities Board has been chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive and will 
soon be chaired by the Chief Executive. It provides a clear framework and approach 
to EDI across the Council, oversees performance management, and ensures 
services demonstrate that EDI outcomes are being delivered. The Board has 
representatives from each Portfolio, and also from key commercial partners such as 
Kier, Capita, Sheffield Homes and Veolia. 

6.2  In addition to the Social Justice and Inclusion Manager, a range of Officers work on 
equality issues in Portfolios to try to ensure a robust approach to equalities in service 
planning and delivery and to ensure resources are used and coordinated effectively. 
Given the changes and challenges identified within the Council it is important that 
each Portfolio review its approaches and ensures the arrangements are fit for 
purpose.

6.3  Our approach to addressing poverty and increasing social justice will primarily come 
under the remit of the tackling poverty and social justice outcome linking, income 
maximisation, financial capability and the Whole household / key worker model and 
leading to the Council becoming a guarantor of excellence in equality. 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 9Page 107



6.4 In light of the work of the fairness commission we will work to assess the impacts on 
individuals and communities and monitor to ensure that we enhance potential 
positive impacts and ensure negative impact is mitigated as far as possible. The new 
Equality objectives will be embedded into business plans and the Performance 
Management Framework (PMF) and customer insight and journey mapping will be 
used to build a better picture of our customers. 

7.0 Priority Areas 

7.1 In discussion with Members, we have prioritised key strategic issues and approaches 
to EDI. These issues include: 

a) Meeting our Duties – Single scheme, objectives, knowing our communities
b) Focus on key areas and outcomes  
c) Assessing the impact and future plans  
d) Staff and Workforce issues 
e) External assessments 

A) Meeting our Duties – What we must do.

7.2 The Single Equality Scheme (SES) 2010-13 provides a clear framework for meeting 
our equality duties. The SES enables all Portfolios to contribute to equality objectives 
and ensures these are mainstreamed throughout the Council.

7.3 The SES recognises that everyone’s needs are met in different ways. Our core 
challenge is to embed this standard in the service each person receives either as a 
service user, resident, visitor or employee. This will help us reduce inequality, 
barriers and discrimination. The recognition of the 5 Keys to Inclusion was a key 
principle of the SES which we committed to using as a guide to ensure our services 
are inclusive. We need to continue to incorporate this principle in our work. 

 Reach it? (Can people access our services) 
 Understand it? (Do services communicate in ways that people understand) 
 Find it? (Can the services be located easily) 
 Control it? (Can people take control for themselves and be independent) 
 Relate to it? (Does it relate to our customers, citizen and visitor needs) 

7.4 The Scheme sets out the objectives and outcomes that demonstrate our compliance 
with our Public Sector General Duty. Under the General Duty one thing we must do 
is to demonstrate we are trying to eliminate discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation (including Hate Incidents). Although we have a new cross partner 
Strategic Group and action plan in relation to hate incidents/ crime this is an area 
where we need to do further work. There were very few reports in relation to 
disability hate crime, we believe this is due to under reporting rather than no 
incidents taking place, therefore we need to increase reporting.

7.5 We must demonstrate that from a customer and staff perspective we are monitoring, 
analysing and taking action in relation to the Duty. The Council is increasing coming 
under community scrutiny to do more of this. We therefore must further develop 
monitoring especially in under developed areas like LGB monitoring that better 
equips us to meet our objectives and Duties. This includes strengthening monitoring 
and recording of hate Incidents and discrimination systematically across staff and 
customers. 

  Examples of customer monitoring are included on our Specific Duty web pages such 
as use translation and interpreting, Activity Sheffield or Blue Badge applications. We 
also include monitoring information in relation to staff, partners and the city.

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 10Page 108



7.6 We have also updated and consulted on our Equality, Diversity & Inclusion policy.

Single Equality Scheme Objectives 

7.7  A significant amount of work has been undertaken on the objectives outlined in the 
Equality Scheme. Out of the 57 objectives set out in 2010 58% of them are on target 
green no concern, 39% are amber indicating they are slightly off track and are being 
actively managed and only 3% are red which are significantly off track and escalation 
is needed. 

7.8 Red areas on concern are

  Increase numbers of people with mental health issues and learning disabilities 
into employment. This is being actively managed however the economic 
downturn has significantly impacted on this and adjustment will be required. 

  To year on year reduce BME exclusions, although there has been a target, over 
the 2009-11 period, the expected reduction of exclusions has not occurred, there 
is a working group on this issue however this requires ongoing action. This is 
being actively monitored and an action plan is in place for this target. 

7.9 Amber areas of most concern

  Workforce diversity appears in a number of objectives but for different groups. Due to 
the financial challenges for the Council and public sector in general, recruitment has 
been limited. However although this is amber there has been year on year 
improvement (see Appendix 7). 

  Health inequalities appear in a number of areas. The health inequalities plan has 
been running for 18 months and although outputs are favourable due to the 5 year 
rolling average method of measurement of Health Inequalities the outcome will only 
become clearer over the next 12 months. 

  Attainment targets have been set for specific groups e.g. BME, Special Educational 
needs and Free School meals pupils is very broad however attainment progress has 
been mixed year on year. Requires ongoing action more detail is provided in annual 
scrutiny reports which are available.

  A city wide partnership Hate Crime Action Plan has been developed and is being 
overseen by the Safer and Sustainable Communities Partnership Board, however 
reporting is reducing and further ongoing action is required. There were very few 
reports in relation to disability hate crime, we believe this is due to under reporting 
rather than no incidents taking place, therefore we need to increase reporting.

  Increase women’s civic participation, decision making, participation and 
engagement. Although in the Scheme this applies to women there are concerns in 
relation to other groups such as BME and disabled people as well. This needs further 
monitoring

Others Issues 

  Increase percentage year on year of accessible buildings in Sheffield. Although this 
area is green and we promote this with inclusive design via the use of Planning laws 
and Building Regulations.  We do not currently monitor this and disabled people 
have indicated that this is still an area of concern.

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 11Page 109



7.10 The full set of objectives and progress report against each individual action is 
detailed in Appendix 3 

Knowing our Communities

7.11 The General Duty requires us to foster good relations and encourage the 
participation of communities of interest in public life. Work in this area is developing 
especially around new health arrangements. Work around Community Assemblies 
has improved local involvement but we need to build on this and join up approaches 
with partners more in this area.

7.12 The Sheffield population has changed significantly in the past few years (See 
Appendix 5).  Demographics raise a number of issues that the Council must consider 
when planning services. Communities are changing and therefore people’s needs 
are changing. Segmentation of information is therefore crucial for effective planning 
and service delivery. We need deeper understanding of the differences within 
communities.

7.13 Over the past year we have developed Community Knowledge Profiles in some new 
areas such as LGBT, disabled, lone parents and carers and we have also upgraded 
our existing BME profiles. The profiles bring together a range of quantitative research 
and analysis, using a variety of sources. We will continue to further develop and take 
action as a result of knowledge of our customers and communities including deeper 
analysis of differences within communities and new community profiles 

7.14 We are also seeking to address inconsistent customer monitoring across services via 
a new approach.  A new monitoring form and guidance for staff and customers has 
been developed. This was launched in Customer services week in 2011 and it aims 
to ensure we collect consistent monitoring information to ensure our services are 
accessible and we can understand what customers need. If there are unfair 
differences we can address and change this. This will help us to provide information 
on groups of people that use our services. We need to further develop consistent 
monitoring practice across the Council. 

7.15 The Council continues to support the work of a range of networks and groups such 
as the BME Network, Expert Elders, Youth Council, People’s Parliament, 50 plus 
Network, Partners For Inclusion, Access Liaison Group, T4all etc.  The Council is 
also represented on a number of multi-agency forums to work on specific issues.

7.16 However sometimes there is duplication of activity and increasing expectations on 
the Council to support other community networks. The Council and its partners need 
to ensure we strengthen capacity for meaningful engagement including looking at 
new ways of doing things especially utilising IT and social media. Work is underway 
to identify requirements for community networks that will inform a review of the 
voluntary and community sector infrastructure.  

B) Focus on key areas and outcomes* 

7.17 There are areas of persistent inequality in key areas across the City that the Council 
and partners recognise recognised to be addressed differently if we are to improve 
outcomes for everyone across the city. (See Appendix 9 for more details) 

Areas of concern include: 

 Financial exclusion is inextricably linked with poverty, and it remains a major 
challenge for Sheffield, which has the highest levels of financial exclusion in almost 
half of its wards (affecting approximately 218,743 people in 48% of wards). Rates of 
unemployment are highest among those with no or few qualifications and skills, 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 12Page 110



those with caring responsibilities, lone parents, those from some ethnic minority 
groups, older workers and, in particular, young people. We need to further develop 
understanding and impact on specific groups and work to reduce current inequalities.

 Health Inequalities both in the Council and NHS Sheffield. Inequalities have meant 
that lives are cut short and people are not living life to the full and enjoying 
opportunities open to them. As the responsibility for Public Health moves into the 
Council we will work to reduce persistent inequalities.

 Educational attainment is strongly linked to socio-economic deprivation. Barriers
such as poor levels of health and poor educational attainment interlink, and restrict 
people from improving their socio-economic position and that of their families. It is 
important that both aspiration and subsequent achievement are increased if this link 
is to be weakened. This should also include work on absenteeism and exclusions. 

 Community Safety is a key factor to reducing inequality, the wellbeing of the city’s 
residents is seriously affected by the reality and fear of crime. Gender, disability, age, 
ethnicity and where you live are significantly associated with feelings of safety. A 
further significant concern is around youth offending and gangs. 

C) Assessing the Impact and Future plans 

7.18 The principles of fairness and social justice are embedded throughout the Corporate 
Plan, Standing up for Sheffield. We must integrate consideration of impacts and 
outcomes for different people whether services are delivered in house or with 
external partners. Carrying out impact assessments will help us to do this.

7.19 Equality Impact assessments (EIAs) are one of the main routes we embed and 
demonstrate EDI considerations across the Council.  EIAs, however, should be 
proportionate and the need to focus on high impact and risk. 

7.20 Equality considerations have been made an integral part of the budget setting and 
decision making process. This includes building EIAs into Q Tier and business 
planning. The Council conducted a wide range of EIAs to understand the impact of 
the budget on individuals and groups in relation to fairness but understanding of 
cumulative impact remains the most difficult to address. EIAs must seek to further 
understand and mitigate where possible cumulative impact on different groups. 

D) Staff / Workforce Issues

7.21 As a result of persistent workforce equality issues being identified we asked an 
independent consultancy EW Group to review and advise on further actions in 
relation to these areas. The review included a workforce survey, focus groups, 
individual interviews with staff and a desk top review of documents.  

7.22  The review included significant stakeholder engagement and alongside looked at 
more than 120 documents 

• Staff Survey – 1342 
• Managers’ Survey – 303 
• Individual Interviews – Focus Groups – 8 Groups 
• Briefings / Facilitated Dialogues 

7.23 The survey results are attached (Appendix 8) along with an action plan to address 
the key issues overseen by EMT (Appendix 2). The key themes arising from the 
report were; 

• High Staff Interest on Equality, Diversity Inclusion
• Significant steps by the Council on EDI

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 13Page 111



• Creating a More Positive "Culture" on E,D & I and moving beyond compliance
• Inconsistency in Staff Experience
• Lack of Workforce Representation for Specific Social Identity Groups
• Support Needed for Managers on E,D & I
• Creating More Effective Staff Forums

7.24 The Council has clearly achieved progress especially in the areas of structures, 
systems and strategies. However further work is needed in the areas involving staff, 
skills and style. In relation to strategy and management development the findings 
pointed to an organisation that has significant policies and processes in place to 
support delivery on equality and diversity. The report highlights that the effective 
delivery in some but not all sections of the Council is hampered by a culture that is 

viewed as “old school  or “predominantly white and male.   

7.27  The general situation described above leads to issues arising for specific sections of 
the workforce with some common and separate themes emerging. The key common 
theme that emerges is an experience in particular voiced by women, BME and LGB 
staff, of discriminatory language which has over time resulted in harassment and 
discrimination. For disabled staff the discrimination is experienced additionally in the 
less than consistent application of reasonable adjustments.

7.28  The Review will support the Council in moving to a more complex or intercultural 
view of diversity and difference and help the Council move the organisation from 
beyond a "compliance culture" around EDI to where it is seen as a necessary part of 
the Council in achieving its vision, goals and objectives.

7.29  The key workforce diversity priorities to address include  

  Lack on declaration rates for some staff e.g. disabled and LGB 

  A gap between the BME and disabled profile of the city and Council,  

  Job segregation in some areas.  

Description 
Profile
% 06/07 

Profile
% 07/08 

Profile % 
09/10

Profile
10/11

Profile
11/12

% Sheffield  
(2006 ONS) 

BME Employees 

11.5% undeclared 

6.00% 6.47% 8.75% 8.73% 10.41% 15.52%

Top 5% 6.3% 6.85% 7.01%

Disabled
Employees

48% undeclared 

1.26
1.51

2.15% 2.2% 4.51% 16.09% 

Top 5% 1.5 1.29 % 2.26%

Male employees* 39.59%
FTE

34.91 % 
FTE

35.63 49.9%

Top 5% 51.83 52.83% 45.91

Female
employees*

41.93 60.41% 
FTE

65.09 64.37 50.1%

Top 5% 48.16 47.7% 54.09

LGB employees 

49% undeclared 

NK NK 1.5 1.65* 3.16% 6% national 
data

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 14Page 112



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 15

It is important to note that there are more young males than females.  Females outnumber 
males considerably in the 60+ age group. 

Portfolio Profiles October 2011 - See Appendix 6 for a full breakdown

BME Profile 
Communities = 10.43% 
CYPF = 14.4% 
Place 5.2% 
DCEX 7.9% 
Resources 8.2%% 

Women Profile 
Communities 77.*% 
CYPF = 72% 
Place = 27 % 
DCEX = 66% 
Resources = 50.6% 

Disability Profile 
Communities 5.7% 
CYPF = 3.5% 
Place = 2.9% 
DCEX = 5.3% 
Resources 5.5% 

7.30 We continue to monitor staff perception through the employee opinion survey. Staff 
who are Trans, LGBT, disabled, BME, and carers score lower overall. There are 
significant differences in each Portfolio and services (See Appendix 7).Further
questions in the staff survey will be added on EDI and more work undertaken to 
understand and reduce differences. 

7.31   The Council also hosts apprenticeships and work placements for young and 
vulnerable people.  These activities present opportunities to increase the diversity of 
the workforce by e.g. targeting under- represented groups or attracting people to 
work for the Council through work placements or apprenticeships. See appendix 4. 

7.32   Although the Review looked at key challenges facing the Council, it is important to 
highlight that there are daily successes and excellent ongoing work is being 
undertaken by staff. A few examples from HR include

  A Workforce Profile Improvement Toolkit to assist managers

  Mandatory Diversity Challenge training and an Equality and Diversity E - Learning 
course for Directors and rolled out the e learning to our other tiers of service leaders / 
managers and developed an E - Learning tool for employees

  EIAs for managing employee reductions to help mitigate any actions taken and 
undertaken EIAs for other key changes to HR Policy

  New Family Leave Policy allowing parents to transfer some of their maternity or 
adoption leave and a new policy for Dignity and Respect including new Contact 
Advisers to advise and support employees. 

  New reasonable adjustments guide for managers; however there are still some 
fundamental issues arising on a day to day basis in relation to access and 
reasonable adjustments for disabled staff that need to be addressed and monitored. 
This will be monitored by Portfolios and HR.

E) External Assessments 

7.33 One of the primary ways of assessing our progress on EDI previously has been 
through the Equality Framework for Local Government. However during the initial 
review of our readiness to meet the “Excellence” standard it was decided that the 
Council needs to go further than the EFLG in measuring our progress. The EFLG as 
it stands is quite process rather than outcome driven. It was therefore agreed last 
year by EMT to postpone our external assessment. There has since been a further 
move by Government towards public oversight and local accountability in how we are 
meeting our objectives rather than national auditing. We do not believe that audit 
would be beneficial in improving outcomes and therefore we recommend not to 

Page 113



progress with the external EFLG assessment at this point. We should instead focus 
on the Workforce action plan and direct engagement with communities in Sheffield. 

8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1  There will be further costs associated with the workforce action plan such as training 
for staff at a cost of approx 6k which will be split between HR and the equalities 
budget in DCEX. There may be costs associated with changing and supporting 
practice in some areas including the potential training required on some actions, but 
these would be managed from within the existing Portfolio /service budget as set out 
in the action plan. For example Resources to meet any HR cost implications and 
DCEX to meet the cost of community profiles. 

9.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

9.1  As a Public Authority, we have legal requirements under Section 149 and 158 of the 
Equality Act 2010 as referred to in section and Appendix 5 of this document. These 
are often collectively referred to as the ‘general duties to promote equality’. To help 
us meet the general equality duties, we also have specific duties, such as the 
requirement to produce, publish and report on equality objectives as set out in the 
Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) Regulations 2011. 

10.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

10.1  The actions and recommendations noted are considered to be the best way to meet 
our Public Sector Equality Duties, to address persistent long term inequalities and to 
help make Sheffield a fairer and more equal place to live and work.

11.0  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

11.1 Our aim is to make Sheffield a fairer place to live and work and on an ongoing basis 
we will continue to meet the needs of our diverse customers. There is excellent work 
being undertaken across the Council in relation to equality, diversity and inclusion 
that will continue to make a difference to people’s lives in the city. 

11.2 However alongside this work there are areas of persistent inequality in key areas 
across the Council that this report has highlighted and undermines the good work in 
services. These areas should be recognised as priorities and addressed differently if 
we are to improve outcomes for everyone across the city. 

12.0   RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet 
d) Agree the report and agree the action plans 
e) Agree the new Equality, Diversity and Inclusion policy 
f) Focus our attention via the Strategic Equality Board on 

  Ensuring we have joined up approaches to equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI), 
including working with partners to deliver joint equality approaches and objectives  

  Strengthening civic participation through representation on boards in line with the city 
population e.g. women, disabled, BME people, etc 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 16Page 114



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 17

  Strengthening monitoring and reporting of hate incidents & discrimination to ensure 
we are working to eliminate discrimination and harassment 

  Setting new priority indicators for 2013- 17 in line with the recommendations of the 
Fairness Commission  to prioritise areas with key outcome differentials or impacts   

  Mainstreaming EDI performance into the Performance Management Framework and 
throughout business planning 

  Developing a deeper knowledge of our customers & communities including 
consistent monitoring / analysis of differences within communities and new profiles 

  Action in line with Workforce Equality Review  

  Add additional questions in the staff survey on EDI and more work undertaken to 
understand and reduce differences.

  Ensuring EDI is embedded in procurement and commissioning arrangements.  

  Re evaluate approaches to EDI in Portfolios’ to ensure they are fit for purpose 

 To continue to review EDI arrangements in line with any changes to legislation. 

Appendices Content 

1 Report Action Plan 

2 Workforce Action Plan  

3 Equality Objectives Report 

4 Compliance Good Practice examples 

a) Stonewall Education Champions - Tackling Homophobic Bullying 

b) North Mast Team  

c) Sheffield Fellowship Programme  

d) Home Language Accreditation (HoLA) Project  

e) Apprenticeship Scheme 

5 Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty 

6 Key population issues for Sheffield  

7 Staff workforce opinion and workforce profile 

8 Equalities Review Questionnaire Results 

9 Reports on key areas of persistent Inequality

a) Employment and Skills and Financial Exclusion 

b) Education – attainment, absenteeism and exclusion 

c) Health:  Health Inequalities Action plan 2010 – 2013 - key issues 

d) Community Safety - Youth Justice, Domestic Abuse and Hate Crime 

10. Equality Diversity and Inclusion Policy 

Page 115



Annual Equalities Report 2011/12  

Cabinet Appendices Content 

1 Report Action Plan 

2 Workforce Action Plan  

3 Equality Objectives Report 

4 Compliance Good Practice examples 

a) Stonewall Education Champions - Tackling Homophobic Bullying 

b) North Mast Team  

c) Sheffield Fellowship Programme  

d) Home Language Accreditation (HoLA) Project  

e) Apprenticeship Scheme 

5 Public Sector Equality Duty 

6 Key population issues for Sheffield  

7 Staff workforce opinion and workforce profile 

8 Equalities Review Questionnaire Results 

9 Reports on key areas of persistent Inequality

a) Employment and Skills and Financial Exclusion 

b) Education – Attainment, Absenteeism and Exclusion 

c) Health:  Health Inequalities Action Plan 2010 – 2013 - key issues 

d) Community Safety including Youth Justice, Domestic Abuse and Hate Crime 

10  Equality Diversity and Inclusion Policy 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 1Page 116



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

a
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 a

n
d

 o
v
e
rs

e
e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 E
q

u
a
li
ty

 B
o

a
rd

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 

G
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 w

e
ll 

/ 
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 -

 N
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 

A
 

S
lig

h
tl
y
 o

ff
 t

ra
c
k
 /

 M
in

o
r 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 -

 A
c
ti
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 
K
e
y

 

R
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 O

ff
 t

ra
c
k
 /

 M
a

jo
r 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 -

 E
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 

D
u

ty
 

Is
s

u
e

s
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y
 

B
y
 W

h
e

n
 

R
A

G
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 /

 3
1

s
t  O

c
t/

 J
a

n
 3

1
s
t / 

A
p

r 
3

0
 a

n
d

 3
1

s
t

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

G
2

E
n

s
u

re
 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 e

q
u
a

lit
y
, 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

jo
in

t 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
  

E
M

T
/ 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 

B
o

a
rd

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
2

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 c
iv

ic
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
b

e
tt

e
r 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 b

o
a

rd
s
 e

tc
 e

.g
. 

w
o

m
e

n
, 

d
is

a
b

le
d

, 
b

m
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 e

tc
. 
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 F
ir

s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
1

&
 3

 
S

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
h

a
te

 I
n

c
id

e
n
ts

,&
 d

is
c
ri

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

s
y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
  

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
H

R
 

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
2

&
 S

1
 

In
te

g
ra

ti
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
a

in
s
tr

e
a

m
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

in
 t

h
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
.

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
2

E
n

s
u

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
ts

 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 a
c
te

d
 

u
p

o
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

S
o

c
ia

l 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
2

&
 S

2
 

&
 3

 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

o
u
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

d
e

e
p

e
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

G

G
1

,
2

, 
3

 
C

o
lle

c
t 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 w
e

 c
a

n
 

&
 d

e
liv

e
r 

w
h

a
t 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 n

e
e

d
.

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 D
ir

e
c
to

rs
 

o
f 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
1

,2
3

P
o

rt
fo

lio
’s

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
 t

o
 e

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

. 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

S
e

p
t

2
0

1
2

A

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

2

Page 117



G
3

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 f

e
e

d
 i
n

to
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
f 

V
C

F
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
1

,
G

2
G

3

T
a

k
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

  

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
H

R
 

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
1

Im
p

ro
v
e

 s
ta

ff
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 e

g
 

T
ra

n
s
, 

L
G

B
, 

D
is

a
b

le
d

, 
B

M
E

 a
n

d
 C

a
re

rs
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
H

R
 

J
u

ly
 

2
0

1
3

A

G
1

& G
2

M
o

n
it
o

r 
a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
E

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 S

k
ill

s
 

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

in
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 e

.g
. 

d
is

a
b

le
d

, 
B

M
E

, 
w

o
m

e
n

, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
E

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 S

k
ill

s
 

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
1

E
n

s
u

re
 E

D
I 

is
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 i
n

 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

o
lic

y

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

G
2

E
n

s
u

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

re
 p

u
b

lis
h

in
g

 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

E
D

I 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 
a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
d

u
ti
e

s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

J
u

ly
  

2
0

1
3

A

S
2

P
u

b
lis

h
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 t

o
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

S
o

c
ia

l 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

J
a

n

2
0

1
3

A

S
3

P
u

b
lis

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 c
u
s
to

m
e

rs
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 D
u

ti
e

s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

J
a

n

2
0

1
3

A

S
1

C
o

n
s
u

lt
 o

n
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
 n

e
w

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 2

0
1

3
-1

7
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

F
a

ir
n

e
s
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

A
p

ri
l

2
0

1
3

A

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 -

 1
2
 m

o
n

th
s
 2

0
1
2
- 

2
0
1
4
 

Page 118



S
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 b

lu
e

 

T
a

s
k

A
c

ti
o

n
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
L

e
a

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
/ 
3
1

s
t  J

u
ly

/ 
3

1
s
t  O

c
t/

 J
a

n
 3

1
s
t / 

A
p

r 
3

0
 2

0
1
3

 
P

o
r

R
/A /G

T
h

e
m

e
 1

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 S
h

a
re

d
 U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
A

p
ri

l
2

0
1

3
S

o
n

ia
S

h
a
rp

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

: 

A
M

a
p

 c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
d

ir
e

c
to

rs
/m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

, 
ro

a
d

 s
h
o

w
s
 a

n
d

 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 
P

B
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 k

e
y
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

(E
D

I)
 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 
m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 v
ia

 w
e
b

s
it
e

. 

P

C
S

e
t 
s
e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
c
ri
te

ri
a

 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 a

re
a
s
 o

f,
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
, 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

D

C
o

n
d

u
c
t 
s
e

lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 
a

re
a
s
 i
n

 e
a
c
h
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

, 
re

p
o

rt
 v

ia
 P

L
T

, 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 t
o

 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
re

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 p

ic
tu

re
. 

P

E
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e
d

 i
n

 
e
a
c
h
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

. 
P

F
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 m
e

s
s
a

g
e
s
 

w
it
h
 s

ta
ff
 o

n
 E

D
I 

 
P

T
h

e
m

e
 2

: 
L

e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

, 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
A

p
ri

l
2

0
1

3
L

a
ra

in
e

M
a
n

le
y
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

: 

A
D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 a

n
d
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
 H

R
 t
o
 

e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

, 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 

to
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

, 
le

a
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 

 

B
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
D

ia
lo

g
u
e

s
 f
o

r 
L
e

a
d

e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
F

o
ru

m
s
: 
B

u
ild

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

d
 d

ia
lo

g
u
e

s
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 

s
h
a
re

d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

la
ri
ty

 a
b
o
u
t 
E

D
I 
in

 S
C

C
. 
 

 

C
E

n
s
u
re

 E
D

I 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 c

u
lt
u
re

 &
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

is
 

b
u
ilt

 i
n
to

 d
ir
e
c
to

rs
/ 
m

a
n
a
g
e

r’
s
 e

v
e
n
ts

 &
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 r
o
a
d
 

s
h

o
w

s
. 

 
P

D
P

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
‘e

q
u
a
lit

y
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
’ 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
a
ll 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

s
 

 
P

T
h

e
m

e
 3

: 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 E

q
u

a
li
ty

 B
o

a
rd

A
p

ri
l

2
0

1
3

L
e

e
A

d
a

m
s

A
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 n
e

w
 c

h
a
ir
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 J
o
h

n
 M

o
th

e
rs

o
le

 t
o

 c
h

a
ir
 a

n
d

 E
M

T
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o

 
n

o
m

in
a

te
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
 t
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
 

T
h

e
m

e
 4

: 
P

o
li
c
ie

s
/G

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

A
p

ri
l

2
0

1
3

L
a

ra
in

e
M

a
n

le
y
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

: 
G

A
R

e
v
is

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 t
o
o
lk

it
, 

le
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 i
m

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
s
, 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
, 

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

4

Page 119



T
a

s
k

A
c

ti
o

n
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
L

e
a

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
/ 
3
1

s
t  J

u
ly

/ 
3

1
s
t  O

c
t/

 J
a

n
 3

1
s
t / 

A
p

r 
3

0
 2

0
1
3

 
P

o
r

R
/A /G

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
, 
c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 b

e
lie

f,
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

B
E

n
s
u
re

 j
o

b
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
k
 f
o

r 
o
n

ly
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
ri
e
n

c
e

 -
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

c
o

m
p
e

te
n
c
ie

s
 

 
P

C
U

p
d
a

te
 c

o
d
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
fo

r 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

 

D
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 v

ia
 s

p
o
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 o

n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 e

g
 

p
a

n
e

ls
 a

n
d

 J
D

’s
 (

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l)
 

 

T
h

e
m

e
 5

 :
 S

k
il
ls

 f
o

r 
L

e
a
d

e
rs

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
A

p
ri

l
2

0
1

3
L

a
ra

in
e

M
a
n

le
y
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

: 

R
e
v
is

e
 a

n
d
/o

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
: 

 
 

 
 

E
D

I 
w

ill
 e

x
p
lic

it
ly

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 
im

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
s
, 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

fr
a

m
e
w

o
rk

 

 

 
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 t
ra

in
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

s
 i
n
 E

D
I 
e
x
p
lic

it
ly

 
 

 
 

F
a
c
e

 t
o
 f
a
c
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
&

 s
ta

ff
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 i
n
 E

D
I 

 
P

 
 

O
n

lin
e

 E
D

I 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

  
s
u
c
h

 a
s
 

w
o

rk
p

la
c
e

 c
u

lt
u

re
 &

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
rs

 
 

A

 
 

E
n

s
u
re

 b
a

la
n
c
e

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
id

e
n

ti
ty

 g
ro

u
p
s
 

in
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
 

P

T
h

e
m

e
 6

: 
S

ta
ff

 S
k
il
ls

A
p

ri
l

2
0

1
3

L
a

ra
in

e
M

a
n

le
y

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

: 

A
E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n
c
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

to
ry

 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 

 
P

B
T

e
s
t 
s
h
a
re

d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 b

y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 3
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 E

D
I 
in

to
 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
2
 

y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 m
o
n

it
o

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 
 

 

C
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

d
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff
 c

e
n
s
u
s
. 

 
P

D
H

o
ld

 a
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 L

G
B

T
 

m
u

lt
i 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 g

ro
u
p

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

 

T
h

e
m

e
 7

: 
P

o
s
it

iv
e

 A
c
ti

o
n

 m
e
a
s
u

re
s

A
p

ri
l

2
0

1
3

S
im

o
n

G
re

e
n

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

: 
G

A
R

e
c
ru

it
 a

n
d

 r
e

ta
in

 a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

t 
a

ll 
le

v
e

ls
 t
h

a
t 
re

fl
e
c
ts

 
th

e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 

 
P

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

5

Page 120



G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

6

T
a

s
k

A
c

ti
o

n
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
L

e
a

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
/ 
3
1

s
t  J

u
ly

/ 
3

1
s
t  O

c
t/

 J
a

n
 3

1
s
t / 

A
p

r 
3

0
 2

0
1
3

 
P

o
r

R
/A /G

B
S

e
t 
u
p
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 a
 p

ro
je

c
t 
le

a
d
 

o
ff
ic

e
r 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

 

 
 

U
s
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 H

R
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
s
tr

e
n
g

th
s
 a

n
d
 g

a
p

s
, 
a

n
d

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

la
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

to
 b

ro
a

d
e

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

 

 
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 m

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
d

ir
e
c
to

rs
 v

ia
 r

o
a

d
 s

h
o
w

s
 e

tc
 

 
P

 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
c
y
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 

 
P

 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 d

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
  

P

 
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 w
it
h

 g
o

a
ls

 a
n

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 t
o
 e

a
c
h

 P
o
rt

fo
lio

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
, 
w

o
rk

 
s
h

a
d

o
w

in
g

. 

 

P

 
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t,

 
c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
  

 
P

 
 

M
a
in

ta
in

 S
to

n
e
w

a
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

s
c
o

re
. 
E

n
s
u

re
 a

w
a
re

n
e

s
s
 r

a
is

in
g

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
s
tr

a
ig

h
t/

h
e

te
ro

s
e

x
u
a

l 
c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 w

e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e
d

 a
b
o
u
t 
L
G

B
 i
s
s
u
e
s

 

P

 
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 v

is
ib

le
 a

n
d

 o
p
e

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 r

o
le

 m
o

d
e

ls
 i
n

 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 L

G
B

T
 

 
P

T
h

e
m

e
 8

: 
E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 s
ta

ff
 f

o
ru

m
s
/ 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 

A
p

ri
l

2
0

1
3

R
ic

h
a

rd
 

W
e

b
b

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 

A
E

n
g
a
g
e
 S

ta
ff
 F

o
ru

m
s
/ 
n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 o

n
 a

n
 "

in
te

rn
a
l"

 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 w

a
y
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
, 
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 

s
ty

le
s
 a

n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 o

f 
fo

ru
m

s
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 

B
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
ri
tt
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n
s
 w

it
h

 
fo

ru
m

s
. 

 

C
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 c
o
n

s
is

te
n
c
y
 a

n
d

 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
fo

ru
m

s
/n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
, 
fa

c
ili

ty
 

ti
m

e
, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

ir
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

D
R

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

h
o
 d

o
 

n
o
t 
b
e
lo

n
g
 t
o
 o

r 
h
a
v
e
 a

 f
o
ru

m
. 
 

 

Page 121



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
: 

 E
q

u
a
li
ty

 O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

 3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 E
q
u
a
li
ty

 S
ch
e
m
e

 O
b
je
ct
iv
e
s 
U
p
d
a
te

 !
 2
0
1
1
/1
2

 

G
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 w
e
ll

 /
 N

o
 c

o
n

ce
rn

 !
 N

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
ct

io
n

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 

A
 

S
li
g
h

tl
y

 o
ff

 t
ra

ck
 /

 M
in

o
r 

co
n

ce
rn

 !
 A

ct
iv

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
n

e
e
d

e
d

 
K
e
y

 

R
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

tl
y

 O
ff

 t
ra

ck
 /

 M
a
jo

r 
co

n
ce

rn
 !

 E
sc

a
la

ti
o

n
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 

Is
su
e

 
M
e
a
su
re

 
P
ro
g
re
ss

 
P
ro
g
re
ss

 

ra
ti
n
g

  

R
e
li
g
io

n
 a

n
d

 

b
e
li
e
f 

E
xt

e
n

d
 r

e
co

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 

sy
st

e
m

s 
to

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 f
a
it

h
 a

n
d

 b
e
li
e
f 

O
u

r 
E
q

u
a
li
ty

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 f
o

rm
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
n

o
w

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

s 
F
a
it

h
/R

e
li
g
io

n
/B

e
li
e
f.

 

G
u

id
a
n

ce
 h

a
s 

b
e
e

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 f
o

r 
st

a
ff

 a
n

d
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

je
ct

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
q

u
a
li
ty

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 i
n

 C
a
re

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n

 

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

. 
  

G
re
e
n

 

R
e
li
g
io

n
 a

n
d

 

b
e
li
e
f 

E
n

su
re

 c
o

n
su

lt
a
ti

o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s 
ta

k
e

 i
n

to
 

a
cc

o
u

n
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 f
a
it

h
 a

n
d

 b
e

li
e
f 

g
ro

u
p

s 
 

R
e
li
g
io

n
 /

b
e
li
e
f 

is
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

e
a
ch

 i
m

p
a
ct

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n

t 
so

 i
s 

a
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
n

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 m
a
k
in

g
. 

C
o

n
su

lt
a
ti

o
n

 t
a
k
e
s 

p
la

ce
 w

it
h

 f
a
it

h
 g

ro
u

p
s 

w
h

e
re

v
e
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
e
.g

. 
b

e
fo

re
 b

u
il
d

in
g

 o
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

w
o

rk
 c

lo
se

 t
o

 a
 p

la
ce

 o
f 

w
o

rs
h

ip
. 
E
IA

s 
a
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
fo

r 
m

a
jo

r 
co

n
su

lt
a
ti

o
n

s.
 

G
re
e
n

 

R
e
li
g
io

n
 a

n
d

 

b
e
li
e
f 

B
u

il
d

 c
a
p

a
ci

ty
 o

f 
fa

it
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s 
to

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 a
re

a
 

T
h

e
 F

a
it

h
 F

o
ru

m
 e

xi
st

e
d

 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 u
n

ti
l 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

2
. 
T
h

is
 w

a
s 

fu
ll
y

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

w
it

h
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

. 
U

n
fo

rt
u

n
a
te

ly
 i
n

 l
a
te

 2
0

1
1

 

th
e

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 w
a
s 

n
o

 l
o

n
g
e
r 

a
v
a
il
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
o

ru
m

's
 c

o
re

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 

th
e

 F
a
it

h
 F

o
ru

m
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
in

 a
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
co

st
s 

o
f 

th
e

 f
o

ru
m

. 
T
h

o
u

g
h

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 g
a
p

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 t

h
e

 F
o

ru
m

 t
im

e
 t

o
 s

e
cu

re
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
re

so
u

rc
e
s,

 t
h

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 F
o

ru
m

 d
e

ci
d

e
d

 t
o

 d
is

so
lv

e
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

it
 w

a
s 

th
e
n

 c
o

n
st

it
u

te
d

. 
G

o
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 F
a
it

h
 L

e
a
d

e
rs

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

F
a
it

h
 L

e
a
d

e
rs

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 F

a
it

h
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
v
e
s 

li
n

k
e
d

 t
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 A
ss

e
m

b
li
e
s.

 W
e

 w
il
l 
a
ls

o
 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

d
v
is

e
 f

a
it

h
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

 o
n

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
y

 m
a
y

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

 t
h

e
m

se
lv

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 

A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
li
g
io

n
 a

n
d

 

b
e
li
e
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
 f

a
it

h
 a

n
d

 b
e

li
e
f 

a
w

a
re

n
e
ss

 

tr
a
in

in
g

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 a
n

d
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
f 

fr
o

n
tl

in
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

  

T
h

e
 c

u
lt

u
re

 g
u

id
e

 i
s 

in
 n

e
e

d
 o

f 
u

p
d

a
ti

n
g
, 
it

 i
s 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
. 

  
‘T

h
e

 g
u

id
e

 

w
il
l 
re

fl
e
ct

  
b

e
li
e
fs

, 
li
fe

st
y
le

 a
n

d
 c

u
lt

u
re

s 
n

o
t 

ju
st

 r
e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 r

e
li
g
io

n
.O

n
 l
in

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 o
n

 a
ll

 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
ss

u
e

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

a
it

h
 h

a
s 

b
e
e

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

. 
 

A
m
b
e
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

7

Page 122



R
e
li
g
io

n
 a

n
d

 

b
e
li
e
f 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 m
u

lt
i 

fa
it

h
 p

ra
y
e
r/

q
u

ie
t 

sp
a
ce

 a
n

d
 r

e
ta

il
 

ch
a
p

la
in

cy
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

A
 p

ra
y
e
r 

ro
o

m
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 e

xi
st

s 
in

 C
a
st

le
 M

a
rk

e
t 

a
lt

h
o

u
g
h

 i
t 

is
 r

a
re

ly
 u

se
d

. 
 T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 p
la

n
s 

fo
r 

a
 m

u
lt

i 
fa

it
h

 p
ra

y
e
r 

ro
o

m
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 M
a
rk

e
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 u
n

d
e
r 

u
se

 o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

 f
in

a
n

ci
a
l 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

th
e

 p
ro

je
ct

 i
s 

n
o

w
 n

o
t 

p
la

n
n

e
d

. 
W

e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

w
it

h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o

 l
o

o
k

 a
t 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s.

 

A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
li
g
io

n
 a

n
d

 

b
e
li
e
f 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
a
p

a
ci

ty
 b

u
il
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
fa

it
h

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 b

e
co

m
e

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

b
o

a
rd

s 
to

 

p
ro

m
o

te
 c

iv
ic

 i
n

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
  
S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 F
a
it

h
 L

e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 g
ro

u
p

 i
s 

re
p

re
se

n
te

d
 o

n
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 l
e
a
d

s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 d
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 F
ir

st
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s 
a
b

o
u

t 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
n

 

o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 g
ro

u
p

s.
 T

h
e

 f
a
it

h
 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 g
ro

u
p

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 F
a
ir

n
e
ss

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

. 

G
re
e
n

 

R
e
li
g
io

n
 a

n
d

 

b
e
li
e
f 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
th

a
t 

h
e
lp

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o

p
le

 e
xp

lo
re

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e
ir

s 

a
n

d
 o

th
e
rs

’ 
fa

it
h

s,
 s

p
ir

it
u

a
li
ty

, 
v
a
lu

e
s 

a
n

d
 b

e
li
e
fs

 

W
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 C

Y
P

F
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 C

o
h

e
si

o
n

 A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 l
in

k
s 

b
e

tw
e
e

n
 M

a
d

ra
ss

a
s 

a
n

d
 s

ch
o

o
ls

; 
a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

y
o

u
th

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 

B
M

E
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 m
a
n

y
 o

f 
w

h
o

m
 c

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 a
 f

a
it

h
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
rf

a
ce

 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 f

a
it

h
 a

n
d

 L
G

B
T

 v
ia

 L
G

B
T

 H
is

to
ry

 M
o

n
th

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

a
ct

io
n

s.
 T

h
is

 i
s 

a
n

 a
re

a
 o

f 
o

n
g
o

in
g

 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 f

o
r 

C
Y
P

F
. 

 

A
m
b
e
r 

S
e
xu

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

B
e

 a
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

o
f 

ch
o

ic
e

 f
o

r 
LG

B
 

p
e
o

p
le

 b
y

 m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

o
u

r 
sc

o
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

to
n

e
w

a
ll

 W
o

rk
p

la
ce

 

E
q

u
a
li
ty

 I
n

d
e

x 
 

W
e

 h
a
v
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
to

n
e
w

a
ll

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 o
u

r 
y
e
a
r 

o
n

 y
e
a
r 

sc
o

re
. 

W
e

 a
re

 o
n

e
 o

f 
o

n
ly

 a
 f

e
w

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s 
to

 b
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

to
n

e
w

a
ll

 T
o

p
 1

0
0

 i
n

d
e
x 

e
v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r.

 

P
ro

d
u

ce
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 e

v
e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

LG
B

T
 H

is
to

ry
 M

o
n

th
, 
In

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
D

a
y

 

A
g
a
in

st
 H

o
m

o
p

h
o

b
ia

 (
ID

A
H

O
),

 S
p

ri
n

g
 O

u
t 

LG
B

T
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 e

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 P
ri

d
e

 (
a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
).

 H
ig

h
li
g
h

te
d

 W
E
I 
in

 ‘
W

o
rk

in
g

 f
o

r 
S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

’ 
a
rt

ic
le

. 
P

ro
d

u
ce

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 E
q

u
a
li
ty

 B
o

a
rd

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 L
G

B
T

 w
o

rk
 i
s 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 

G
re
e
n

 

S
e
xu

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

E
xt

e
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 t
o

 f
u

ll
y

 

in
cl

u
d

e
 L

G
B

 p
e
o

p
le

 

In
cl

u
d

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

q
u

a
li
ty

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 G
u

id
a
n

ce
 i
ss

u
e
d

 i
n

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

. 
 T

h
is

 i
n

cl
u

d
e
s 

a
 

su
g
g
e
st

e
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 f
o

rm
 w

h
ic

h
 f

u
ll
y

 i
n

cl
u

d
e
s 

LG
B

. 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

p
ro

je
ct

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
q

u
a
li
ty

 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 i
n

 C
a
re

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

. 
W

e
 w

il
l 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 i
s 

p
ro

g
re

ss
e
d

 

G
re
e
n

 

S
e
xu

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

R
e
d

u
ce

 y
e
a
r 

o
n

 y
e
a
r 

H
o

m
o

p
h

o
b

ic
 

b
u

ll
y
in

g
 i
n

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 

O
v
e
r 

a
 f

iv
e

 y
e

a
r 

p
e
ri

o
d

, 
th

e
re

 h
a
s 

b
e

e
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
ci

d
e
n

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 f
o

u
r 

o
u

t 
o

f 
fi

v
e

 y
e
a
rs

. 
T
h

e
re

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

v
e
st

m
e
n

t 
in

 a
ct

io
n

s 
to

 t
a
ck

le
 

h
o

m
o

p
h

o
b

ic
 b

u
ll
y
in

g
 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 s
ch

o
o

ls
. 

 W
e

 h
a
v
e

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 C
h

a
rt

e
r 

a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 

co
m

m
i t

m
e

n
ts

. 

G
re
e
n

 

S
e
xu

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

M
a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 S

to
n

e
w

a
ll

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s 

S
ch

e
m

e
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

re
n

e
w

e
d

 i
ts

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 S
to

n
e
w

a
ll

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

!1
3

. 
W

e
 w

e
re

 4
th

 i
n

 t
h

e
 I
n

d
e

x 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 
G

o
o

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

 e
xa

m
p

le
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 

in
 t

h
e

 m
a
in

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

G
re
e
n

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

8

Page 123



S
e
xu

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

E
n

su
re

 H
o

m
o

p
h

o
b

ic
 h

a
te

 i
n

ci
d

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
ce

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

T
h

e
 r

e
co

rd
in

g
 o

f 
cu

st
o

m
e
r 

co
m

p
la

in
ts

 c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y

 i
n

cl
u

d
e
s 

a
 t

ic
k

 p
o

in
t 

o
n

 h
a
te

 i
n

ci
d

e
n

ts
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

w
h

e
re

 a
 h

a
te

 i
n

ci
d

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

b
e
e
n

 a
ll
e
g
e

d
 t

h
is

 c
a
n

 b
e

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 o
n

. 

T
h

e
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 A
d

u
lt

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

 h
a
s 

e
n

d
o

rs
e
d

 a
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

 a
n

 E
IA

 o
n

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s,

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 
re

ly
 u

p
o

n
 d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

cl
u

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
!1

1
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
1

!1
2

. 
 T

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 w
il
l 
b

e
 c

a
sc

a
d

e
d

 a
cr

o
ss

 a
ll

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
ss

 a
b

o
u

t 
h

a
te

 i
n

ci
d

e
n

ts
/c

ri
m

e
s 

in
 

a
ll

 p
u

b
li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s 
! 

N
H

S
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

, 
S
Y

 P
o

li
ce

, 
P

ro
b

a
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
, 
S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 H
e
a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 e

tc
. 
H

o
m

o
p

h
o

b
ic

 i
n

ci
d

e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 b
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

h
a
te

 c
ri

m
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s.
  
La

st
 y

e
a
r 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 2
5

 h
o

m
o

p
h

o
b

ic
a
ll
y

 m
o

ti
v
a
te

d
 i
n

ci
d

e
n

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

. 
. 
F
o

r 
st

a
ff

 

th
e

 D
ig

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 R
e
sp

e
ct

 p
o

li
cy

, 
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
 a

n
d

 i
n

tr
a
n

e
t 

p
a
g
e
s 

h
a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 n
e
w

 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 A

d
v
is

e
rs

 r
e
cr

u
it

e
d

. 
C

a
se

s 
w

il
l 
b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 o
n

. 

G
re
e
n

 

S
e
xu

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

S
e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
o

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ce

 h
e
a
lt

h
 

in
e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s 

fo
r 

LG
B

 p
e
o

p
le

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
v
e

 p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 j
o

in
tl

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

C
T

 a
 H

e
a
lt

h
 I
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 

co
n

ta
in

s 
a
ct

io
n

s 
a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 t

w
o

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s 
a
im

e
d

 a
t 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 h
e
a
lt

h
 i
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s 

w
h

e
re

v
e
r 

th
e
y

 a
ri

se
. 
T
h

e
 a

ct
io

n
s 

co
n

ta
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

 r
e

co
g
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 I
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
d

 b
y

 B
M

E
 

a
n

d
 L

G
B

T
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 T
h

e
 a

ct
io

n
s 

a
im

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

ce
ss

, 
p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 l
if

e
 c

o
u

rs
e
. 

 

 T
h

is
 p

la
n

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
1

8
 m

o
n

th
s 

a
n

d
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 a
re

 f
a
v
o

u
ra

b
le

 b
u

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 5

 y
e
a
r 

ro
ll
in

g
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 m
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
m

e
a
su

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

e
a
lt

h
 I
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s 

th
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 w
il
l 
b

e
co

m
e

 

cl
e
a
re

r 
o

v
e
r 

th
e

 n
e

xt
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
s 

 

G
re
e
n

 

S
e
xu

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

E
n

su
re

 L
G

B
 a

w
a
re

n
e
ss

 r
a
is

in
g

 e
v
e

n
ts

 

a
re

 g
iv

e
n

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
p

ro
fi

le
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

P
ri

d
e
, 
ID

A
H

O
 e

tc
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
s 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
v
e

n
ts

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
P

ri
d

e
 &

 I
D

A
H

O
 a

n
d

 S
p

ri
n

g
 O

u
t.

 E
.g

. 
o

n
 o

u
r 

w
e
b

si
te

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
o

ci
a
l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s 
a
n

d
 i
n

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 N
e
w
s
 e
t
c
. 
W

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 C
h

a
ir

 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 L
G

B
T

 m
u

lt
i 
a
g
e
n

cy
 g

ro
u

p
. 

G
re
e
n

 

S
e
xu

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  
S
u

rv
e
y

 o
ld

e
r 

LG
B

T
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 n

e
e

d
s 

W
e

 a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 n
e
w

 t
e
n

 y
e
a
r 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 f
o

r 
S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 a
n

d
 w

e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 m
a
k
e

 s
u

re
 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
d

d
re

ss
e
s 

th
e

 n
e
e

d
s 

o
f 

le
sb

ia
n

, 
g
a
y
, 
b

is
e
xu

a
l 
a
n

d
 t

ra
n

sg
e
n

d
e
r 

(L
G

B
T
) 

p
e
o

p
le

 

li
v
in

g
 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

. 
T
o

 h
e
lp

 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

is
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
ce

n
tl

y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 u
s 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 b
a
rr

ie
rs

 a
n

d
 c

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s 

fa
ce

d
 b

y
 L

G
B

T
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

. 
. 

G
re
e
n

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

9

Page 124



G
e
n

d
e
r 

 
R

e
d

u
ce

 y
e
a
r 

o
n

 y
e
a
r 

co
n

ce
p

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 o
f 

g
ir

ls
 a

g
e
d

 1
5

 !
1

7
 

O
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n

 a
 g

ra
d

u
a
l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
te

e
n

a
g
e

 p
re

g
n

a
n

ci
e
s.

 U
n

d
e
r 

1
8

 c
o

n
ce

p
ti

o
n

 

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
0

0
0

 g
ir

ls
 (

1
5

!1
7

) 
  

  
2

0
0

2
 !

 2
0

1
0

  
2

0
0

2
 2

0
0

3
 2

0
0

4
 2

0
0

5
  
2

0
0

6
 2

0
0

7
 2

0
0

8
 2

0
0

9
  
2

0
1

0
  

  

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
5

6
.1

  
 5

3
.3

  
5

4
.7

  
5

1
.6

  
4

9
.0

  
5

0
.5

  
4

6
.6

  
4

2
.9

  
4

1
.4

  
  

Y
o

rk
sh

ir
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 H
u

m
b

e
r 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 4

7
.0

  
 4

6
.7

  
4

7
.3

  
4

7
.7

  
4

6
.8

  
4

7
.7

  
4

7
.3

  
4

4
.1

  
4

0
.5

  
  

 

S
ta

ti
st

ic
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

2
.4

  
 4

9
.9

  
5

1
.6

  
5

3
.0

  
5

1
.8

  
5

1
.3

  
5

1
.0

  
4

9
.7

  
4

5
.6

  
  

 

E
n

g
la

n
d

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 4

2
.7

  
 4

2
.1

  
4

1
.6

  
4

1
.3

 4
0

.6
  
 4

1
.8

  
4

0
.5

  
3

8
.2

  
3

5
.4

  

G
re
e
n

 

G
e
n

d
e
r 

 

T
o

 r
e
cr

u
it

 a
n

d
 r

e
ta

in
 a

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
h

a
t 

re
fl

e
ct

s 
th

e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y

 o
f 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 a
t 

e
v
e
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 m

e
a
su

re
s 

to
 

ta
ck

le
 j
o

b
 s

e
g
re

g
a
ti

o
n

 

H
R

 c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 h

ig
h

li
g
h

t 
a
n

d
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h

 g
e

n
d

e
r 

in
e
q

u
a
li
ty

 –
 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g

 

d
e
a
li
n
g

 w
it
h

 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

 a
tt
it
u
d
e
s 
a
n
d

 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
, 
jo
b

 s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n

 e
tc
. 

A
 n
e
w

 w
o
m
e
n
’s

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d

 a
ct
io
n

 p
la
n

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
E
q
u
a
l 
p
a
y

 c
la
im

s 
b
e
in
g

 

a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d

 a
n
d

 d
e
a
lt

 w
it
h
. 
W
o
rk
fo
rc
e

 E
IA
s 
h
a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

 a
n
d

 u
p
d
a
te
d

 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
. 

A
m
b
e
r 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

 
Im

p
ro
v
e

 a
cc
e
ss

 t
o

 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 

e
xp
e
ri
e
n
ci
n
g

 d
o
m
e
st
ic

 a
b
u
se

 

T
h
e

 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
e
w

 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls

 i
n
to

 D
o
m
e
st
ic

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

 H
e
lp
li
n
e

 s
u
g
g
e
st
s 
th
a
t 
th
e

 s
e
rv
ic
e

 i
s 
o
n

 

tr
a
ck
. 
T
h
e

 s
e
rv
ic
e

 w
il
l 
co
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 

 
G
re
e
n

 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

 

G
a
th
e
r 
a
n
d

 a
n
a
ly
se

 s
ta
ti
st
ic
a
l 
a
n
d

 

co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 g
e
n
d
e
r 

W
e

 p
u
b
li
sh

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h
e

 w
e
b
si
te

 i
n

 r
e
la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 o
u
r 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e

 a
n
d

 u
se

 t
h
e

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 

to
 i
n
fo
rm

 E
IA
s 
a
n
d

 P
o
li
cy
. 
W
e

 h
a
v
e

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

 a
 W

o
m
e
n
's
, 
lo
n
e

 p
a
re
n
ts

 a
n
d

 c
a
re
r’
s 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e

 

p
ro
fi
le
s 
fo
r 
th
e

 c
it
y
. 

G
re
e
n

 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o

 d
e
v
e
lo
p

 a
n
d

 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts

 f
o
r 

y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

 t
o

 

e
n
co
u
ra
g
e

 m
o
re

 w
o
m
e
n

 t
o

 b
e
co
m
e

 

e
n
tr
e
p
re
n
e
u
rs

 

E
R
D
F

 s
ta
ti
st
ic
s 
sh
o
w

 (
i.
e
. 
th
a
t 
w
e

 c
a
n

 f
u
ll
y

 e
v
id
e
n
ce

 a
n
d

 a
re

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
th
a
t 
h
a
v
e

 e
xi
st
e
d

 f
o
r 
a

 

fu
ll

 1
2

 m
o
n
th
s)
. 

 .
N
o

 o
f 
B
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
A
ss
is
te
d

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 S
M
E
’s

 –
 3
8
5

 

N
o

 o
f 
B
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
A
ss
is
te
d

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 S
o
ci
a
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
se
s 
–

 1
0

  

N
o

 o
f 
N
e
w

 B
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
C
re
a
te
d

 –
 2
1
5

 

G
ro
ss

 N
e
w

 J
o
b
s 
C
re
a
te
d

 –
 2
6
7

  

O
f 
w
h
ic
h

  

N
o

 o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 –
 m

a
jo
ri
ty

 f
e
m
a
le

 o
w
n
e
d

 –
 9
4

 

N
o

 o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 –
 m

a
jo
ri
ty

 B
A
M
E

 o
w
n
e
d

 –
 3
5

 

G
ro
ss

 n
e
w

 j
o
b
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 f
o
r 
w
o
m
e
n

 –
 1
2
6

 

G
ro
ss

 n
e
w

 j
o
b
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 f
o
r 
B
A
M
E

 –
 1
4
7

 

W
e

 h
a
v
e

 d
e
ta
il
s 
o
n

 o
u
r 
d
a
ta
b
a
se

 o
f 
1
5
0

 B
M
E

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
th
a
t 
w
e

 h
a
v
e

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d

 a
n
d

 h
e
lp
e
d

 

to
 s
ta
rt

 b
u
t 
w
h
ic
h

 a
t 
th
is

 t
im

e
 w
e

 c
a
n
n
o
t 
fu
ll
y

 e
v
id
e
n
ce

 t
o

 1
2

 m
o
n
th
s 

G
re
e
n

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

1
0

Page 125



G
e
n
d
e
r 

 

Im
p
ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 h
e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e
ll
b
e
in
g

 o
f 

w
o
m
e
n

 a
n
d

 m
e
n

 w
it
h

 a
 f
o
cu
s 
o
n

 t
a
k
in
g

 

a
ct
io
n

 t
o

 r
e
d
u
ce

 h
e
a
lt
h

 i
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 

T
h
e

 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
v
e

 p
ro
d
u
ce
d

 j
o
in
tl
y

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 P
C
T

 a
 H
e
a
lt
h

 I
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
A
ct
io
n

 P
la
n

 w
h
ic
h

 

co
n
ta
in
s 
a
ct
io
n
s 
a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 t
w
o

 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
im

e
d

 a
t 
re
d
u
ci
n
g

 h
e
a
lt
h

 i
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
w
h
e
re
v
e
r 

th
e
y

 a
ri
se
. 
T
h
e

 a
ct
io
n
s 
co
n
ta
in
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
la
n

 r
e
co
g
n
is
e

 t
h
e

 I
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
e
xp
e
ri
e
n
ce
d

 b
y

 m
e
n

 

a
n
d

 w
o
m
e
n

 a
n
d

 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
co
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s.

 T
h
e

 a
ct
io
n
s 
a
im

 t
o

 i
m
p
ro
v
e

 s
e
rv
ic
e

 p
ro
ce
ss
, 

p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 p
ro
v
is
io
n

 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 l
if
e

 c
o
u
rs
e
. 

 

T
h
is

 p
la
n

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 r
u
n
n
in
g

 f
o
r 
1
8

 m
o
n
th
s 
a
n
d

 o
u
tp
u
ts

 a
re

 f
a
v
o
u
ra
b
le

 b
u
t 
d
u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 5
 y
e
a
r 

ro
ll
in
g

 a
v
e
ra
g
e

 m
e
th
o
d

 o
f 
m
e
a
su
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h

 I
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
th
e

 o
u
tc
o
m
e

 w
il
l 
b
e
co
m
e

 

cl
e
a
re
r 
o
v
e
r 
th
e

 n
e
xt

 1
2

 m
o
n
th
s.

  

A
m
b
e
r 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o

 r
a
is
e

 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
th
e

 

a
ch
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le
, 
w
it
h

 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
re
fe
re
n
ce

 t
o

 b
o
y
s’

 a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 

In
 t
e
rm

s 
o
f 
b
o
y
s,

 o
v
e
r 
2
0
0
9

!1
1
, 
th
e
re

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
p
ro
g
re
ss

 a
t 
K
S
4
. 
a
t 
K
S
1

 a
n
d

 K
S
2
, 

le
ss

 s
o
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 c
it
y

 i
s 
lo
w
e
r 
th
a
n

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
s.

 S
e
e

 r
e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d

 

a
p
p
e
n
d
ic
e
s 
fo
r 
d
e
ta
il
s.

 

A
m
b
e
r 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

 

In
cr
e
a
se

 w
o
m
e
n
’s

 C
iv
ic

 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
, 

d
e
ci
si
o
n

 m
a
k
in
g
, 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
h
e

 C
e
n
te
n
a
ry

 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
W
o
m
e
n
's

 D
a
y

 w
a
s 
ce
le
b
ra
te
d

 a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 c
it
y

 i
n

 2
0
1
1

 w
it
h

 a
 

m
a
jo
r 
e
v
e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e

 T
o
w
n

 h
a
ll
. 
T
h
e

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 f
o
u
n
d
e
d

 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
is

 a
n
d

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s 
th
is

 

a
im

. 
E
q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m
p
a
ct

 A
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
ts

 a
im

 t
o

 e
n
su
re

 t
h
a
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,

 a
n
d

 d
e
ci
si
o
n

 m
a
k
in
g

 a
re

 i
n
cl
u
si
v
e

 f
o
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s 
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g

 m
e
n
/w

o
m
e
n
).

  

In
 P
la
ce

 p
o
rt
fo
li
o

 !
 I
n
cl
u
si
v
e

 d
e
si
g
n

 p
ri
n
ci
p
le
s 
a
re

 u
se
d

 ,
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly

 f
o
r 
d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 a
cc
e
ss

 i
ss
u
e
s,

 

b
u
t 
a
ls
o

 f
o
r 
g
e
n
d
e
r 
is
su
e
s 

! 
fo
r 
e
xa
m
p
le
, 
b
u
il
d
in
g

 f
a
m
il
y

 f
ri
e
n
d
ly

 d
e
si
g
n
s,

 s
a
fe
ty

 m
e
a
su
re
s 
a
n
d

 

g
o
o
d

 s
tr
e
e
t 
li
g
h
ti
n
g

 i
n
to

 a
ll

 n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

A
m
b
e
r 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p

 s
tr
a
te
g
y

 f
o
r 
ca
re
rs

 a
n
d

 

a
d
d
re
ss

 c
h
il
d
ca
re

 i
ss
u
e
s 

Jo
in
t 
C
a
re
rs

 C
it
y

 s
tr
a
te
g
y

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

 &
 s
ig
n
e
d

 u
p

 t
o

 b
y

 H
e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e
ll
b
e
in
g

 B
o
a
rd

 J
u
n
e

 2
0
1
0
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

 b
e
in
g

 m
o
n
it
o
re
d

 b
y

 C
a
re
rs

 &
 Y
o
u
n
g

 C
a
re
rs

 B
o
a
rd

 (
su
b

 g
ro
u
p

 o
f 
H
W
B

 B
o
a
rd
).

  

C
a
re
rs

 m
a
k
e

 u
p

 5
0
%

 o
f 
B
o
a
rd

 m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
. 

 

G
re
e
n

 

R
a
ce

  
T
o

 f
in
d

 n
e
w

 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
it
ch
e
s 
fo
r 
th
e

 

G
y
p
sy
/T
ra
v
e
ll
e
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y

  

N
e
w

 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
it
ch
e
s 
fo
r 
th
e

 G
y
p
sy
/T
ra
v
e
ll
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

 w
e
re

 p
re
p
a
re
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
0

 b
u
t 
w
e
re

 

re
je
ct
e
d
. 

 N
e
w

 p
la
n
s 
a
re

 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
ro
ce
ss

 o
f 
b
e
in
g

 d
ra
w
n

 u
p
. 

 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,

 i
n

 o
rd
e
r 
fo
r 
th
is

 t
o

 

h
a
p
p
e
n

 w
e

 a
re

 w
a
it
in
g

 f
o
r 
tw

o
 t
h
in
g
s 

! 
1
) 
T
h
e

 l
a
te
st

 g
u
id
a
n
ce

 f
ro
m

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
(d
u
e

 

to
 a
rr
iv
e

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
) 
a
n
d

 2
) 
th
e

 R
e
v
is
e
d

 A
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
N
e
e
d

 w
h
ic
h

 i
s 
b
e
in
g

 p
re
p
a
re
d

 b
y

 

D
o
n
ca
st
e
r 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
(c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y

 i
n

 d
ra
ft

 f
o
rm

).
  
O
n
ce

 w
e

 h
a
v
e

 t
h
e
se

 w
e

 c
a
n

 p
re
p
a
re

 n
e
w

 p
la
n
s 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
n

 b
e
g
in

 t
h
e

 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d

 p
u
b
li
c 
co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n

 p
ro
ce
ss
e
s 
o
n
ce

 a
g
a
in
. 

A
m
b
e
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

1
1

Page 126



R
a
ce

  

M
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d

 i
m
p
ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 i
n
v
e
st
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 b
u
si
n
e
ss

 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
in

 B
M
E

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 

E
R
D
F

 s
ta
ti
st
ic
s 
sh
o
w

 (
i.
e

 t
h
a
t 
w
e

 c
a
n

 f
u
ll
y

 e
v
id
e
n
ce

 a
n
d

 a
re

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
th
a
t 
h
a
v
e

 e
xi
st
e
d

 f
o
r 
a

 

fu
ll

 1
2

 m
o
n
th
s)
. 

 .
N
o

 o
f 
B
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
A
ss
is
te
d

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 S
M
E
’s

 –
 3
8
5

 

N
o

 o
f 
B
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
A
ss
is
te
d

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 S
o
ci
a
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
se
s 
–

 1
0

  

N
o

 o
f 
N
e
w

 B
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
C
re
a
te
d

 –
 2
1
5

 

G
ro
ss

 N
e
w

 J
o
b
s 
C
re
a
te
d

 –
 2
6
7

  

O
f 
w
h
ic
h

  

N
o

 o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 –
 m

a
jo
ri
ty

 f
e
m
a
le

 o
w
n
e
d

 –
 9
4

 

N
o

 o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 –
 m

a
jo
ri
ty

 B
A
M
E

 o
w
n
e
d

 –
 3
5

 

G
ro
ss

 n
e
w

 j
o
b
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 f
o
r 
w
o
m
e
n

 –
 1
2
6

 

G
ro
ss

 n
e
w

 j
o
b
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 f
o
r 
B
A
M
E

 –
 1
4
7

 

W
e

 h
a
v
e

 d
e
ta
il
s 
o
n

 o
u
r 
d
a
ta
b
a
se

 o
f 
1
5
0

 B
M
E

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
th
a
t 
w
e

 h
a
v
e

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d

 a
n
d

 h
e
lp
e
d

 

to
 s
ta
rt

 b
u
t 
w
h
ic
h

 a
t 
th
is

 t
im

e
 w
e

 c
a
n
n
o
t 
fu
ll
y

 e
v
id
e
n
ce

 t
o

 1
2

 m
o
n
th
s 

 

G
re
e
n

 

R
a
ce

  

Im
p
ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 e
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

B
M
E

 c
h
il
d
re
n

 a
n
d

 y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 

y
e
a
r 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
in
cr
e
a
se

 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
B
M
E

 a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 a
 r
e
d
u
ct
io
n

 o
f 
g
a
p
s 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 2
0
1
0

!1
1
, 
w
it
h

 a
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
h
is

 t
re
n
d

 b
e
in
g

 a
t 
K
S
2
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
t 
K
S
2

 s
o
m
e

 g
ro
u
p
s,

 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y

 S
o
m
a
li

 a
n
d

 Y
e
m
e
n
i 
p
u
p
il
s 
h
a
v
e

 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 2
0
1
0

!1
1
. 
F
o
r 
th
is

 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r,

 a
ll

 

B
M
E

 g
ro
u
p
s 
a
re

 g
ro
u
p
e
d

 t
o
g
e
th
e
r;

 h
o
w
e
v
e
r,

 s
o
m
e

 B
M
E

 g
ro
u
p
s 
h
a
v
e

 v
e
ry

 h
ig
h

 a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
ls
. 

 

A
m
b
e
r 

R
a
ce

  

Im
p
ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 h
e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e
ll
b
e
in
g

 o
f 

B
M
E

 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
a
n
d

 r
e
d
u
ce

 h
e
a
lt
h

 

in
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
b
e
tw

e
e
n

 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 

  

T
h
e

 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
v
e

 p
ro
d
u
ce
d

 j
o
in
tl
y

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 P
C
T

 a
 H
e
a
lt
h

 I
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
A
ct
io
n

 P
la
n

 w
h
ic
h

 

co
n
ta
in
s 
a
ct
io
n
s 
a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 t
w
o

 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
im

e
d

 a
t 
re
d
u
ci
n
g

 h
e
a
lt
h

 i
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
w
h
e
re
v
e
r 

th
e
y

 a
ri
se
. 
T
h
e

 a
ct
io
n
s 
co
n
ta
in
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
la
n

 r
e
co
g
n
is
e

 t
h
e

 I
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
e
xp
e
ri
e
n
ce
d

 b
y

 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
co
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
in
cl
u
d
in
g

 B
M
E

 p
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e

 a
ct
io
n
s 
a
im

 t
o

 i
m
p
ro
v
e

 s
e
rv
ic
e

 p
ro
ce
ss
, 

p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 p
ro
v
is
io
n

 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 l
if
e

 c
o
u
rs
e
. 
T
h
is

 p
la
n

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 r
u
n
n
in
g

 f
o
r 
1
8

 

m
o
n
th
s 
a
n
d

 o
u
tp
u
ts

 a
re

 f
a
v
o
u
ra
b
le

 b
u
t 
d
u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 5
 y
e
a
r 
ro
ll
in
g

 a
v
e
ra
g
e

 m
e
th
o
d

 o
f 

m
e
a
su
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h

 I
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s 
th
e

 o
u
tc
o
m
e

 w
il
l 
b
e
co
m
e

 c
le
a
re
r 
o
v
e
r 
th
e

 n
e
xt

 1
2

 

m
o
n
th
s.

 !
 A
ct
iv
it
y

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 t
a
rg
e
ts

 t
h
e
ir

 h
e
a
lt
h

 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk

 a
t 
p
o
o
re
r 
co
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 

in
cl
u
d
in
g

 B
M
E

 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s.

  
T
h
e
y

 k
e
e
p

 d
a
ta

 t
o

 p
ro
v
e

 t
h
e
ir

 i
m
p
a
ct

 i
n

 t
h
e
se

 a
re
a
s.

 

A
m
b
e
r 

R
a
ce

  
 

In
cr
e
a
se

 p
ro
v
is
io
n

 o
f 
E
S
O
L 
(E
n
g
li
sh

 f
o
r 

sp
e
a
k
e
rs

 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
s)

 p
ro
v
is
io
n

 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

 c
it
y

 

W
e

 o
ff
e
r 
su
p
p
o
rt

 t
o

 E
S
O
L 
le
a
rn
e
rs

 i
n

 t
e
rm

s 
o
f 
li
te
ra
cy

 q
u
a
li
fi
ca
ti
o
n

 a
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
te
st

 l
e
v
e
l 
1
/2
. 

W
e

 a
re

 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y

 n
o
t 
su
p
p
o
rt
in
g

 a
n
y

 n
u
m
e
ra
cy

 l
e
a
rn
e
rs
. 
W
e

 r
e
sp
o
n
d

 t
o

 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
w
h
o

 s
ig
n
p
o
st

 

a
ll

 l
e
a
rn
e
rs

 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g

 E
S
O
L 
le
a
rn
e
rs
. 
T
h
e

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
P
o
rt
fo
li
o

 h
a
s 
a

 S
F
L 
a
ct
io
n

 p
la
n

 w
h
ic
h

 

li
n
k
s 
to

 t
h
e

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
G
o

 A
w
a
rd

 C
ri
te
ri
a

 w
h
ic
h

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s 
th
e

 n
e
e
d

 t
o

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 E
S
O
L 
le
a
rn
e
rs

 t
o

 

a
cc
e
ss

 l
e
a
rn
in
g
. 
T
o

 h
e
lp

 w
it
h

 t
h
is

 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e

 a
cr
o
ss

 s
e
rv
ic
e

 a
re
a
s 
w
e

 h
a
v
e

 2
4

 S
k
il
ls

 f
o
r 
Li
fe

  

Le
a
rn
e
r 
su
p
p
o
rt
s 
w
h
o

 h
a
v
e

 u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k

 a
 q
u
a
li
fi
ca
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 1
0

 o
f 
th
e
se

 h
a
v
e

 a
 s
p
e
ci
fi
c 
u
n
it

 i
n

 

su
p
p
o
rt
in
g

 E
S
O
L 
le
a
rn
e
rs

  

A
m
b
e
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

1
2

Page 127



R
a
ce

  

T
o

 r
e
cr
u
it

 a
n
d

 r
e
ta
in

 a
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e

 t
h
a
t 

re
fl
e
ct
s 
th
e

 d
iv
e
rs
it
y

 o
f 
S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 a
t 

e
v
e
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo
p

 m
e
a
su
re
s 
to

 

ta
ck
le

 j
o
b

 s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n

 

P
ro
m
o
te
d

 t
h
e

 P
o
si
ti
v
e

 A
ct
io
n

 m
e
a
su
re
s 
in

 t
h
e

 E
q
u
a
li
ty

 A
ct
. 

 P
ro
d
u
ce
d

 a
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e

 P
ro
fi
le

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
o
lk
it
. 
U
p
d
a
ti
n
g

 t
h
e

 R
e
cr
u
it
m
e
n
t 
&

 S
e
le
ct
io
n

 p
o
li
cy

 a
n
d

 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
. 
F
a
ci
li
ta
te
d

 

B
M
E

 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e

 f
o
ru
m

 a
n
d

 w
o
rk
p
la
ce

 c
o
n
fe
re
n
ce
. 
F
a
ci
li
ta
ti
n
g

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
B
M
E

 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e

 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
n

 r
e
cr
u
it
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 s
e
le
ct
io
n

 p
ro
ce
ss
e
s 

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

 j
o
b

 a
d
v
e
rt
s 
fo
r 
n
e
w

 p
o
st
s 
e
.g
. 

 t
h
e

 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s 
P
F
I 
te
a
m

 h
a
v
e

 i
n
cl
u
d
e
d

 p
o
si
ti
v
e

 

a
ct
io
n

 s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

 t
o

 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e

 a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s 
fr
o
m

 u
n
d
e
r 
re
p
re
se
n
te
d

 g
ro
u
p
s.

  

A
m
b
e
r 

R
a
ce

  

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o

 d
e
v
e
lo
p

 w
o
rk

 t
o

 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e

 

m
o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro
m

 B
M
E

 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
to

 

b
e
co
m
e

 e
n
tr
e
p
re
n
e
u
rs

 

S
e
e

 g
e
n
d
e
r 
a
b
o
v
e

 n
e
w

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 –
 m

a
jo
ri
ty

 f
e
m
a
le

 o
w
n
e
d

 –
 9
4
N
o

 o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 

cr
e
a
te
d

 –
 m

a
jo
ri
ty

 B
A
M
E

 o
w
n
e
d

 –
 3
5
G
ro
ss

 n
e
w

 j
o
b
s 
cr
e
a
te
d

 f
o
r 
w
o
m
e
n

 –
 1
2
6
G
ro
ss

 n
e
w

 j
o
b
s 

cr
e
a
te
d

 f
o
r 
B
A
M
E

 –
 1
4
7

 

G
re
e
n

 

D
is
a
b
il
it
y

  

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 c
a
p
a
ci
ty

 b
u
il
d
in
g

 d
is
a
b
le
d

 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 b
e
co
m
e

 m
e
m
b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

 a
n
d

 o
th
e
r 
b
o
a
rd
s 
to

 

p
ro
m
o
te

 c
iv
ic

 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

 A
d
v
is
o
ry

 F
o
ru
m

 !
 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 g
ro
u
p

 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e

 u
se
s 
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g

 l
e
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y
, 

p
h
y
si
ca
l 
im

p
a
ir
m
e
n
t,

 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
se
n
so
ry

 i
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t 
e
tc
) 
h
a
v
e

 s
e
t 
u
p

 a
 g
ro
u
p

 t
o

 a
d
v
is
e

 a
n
d

 

m
a
k
e

 r
e
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 
to

 t
h
e

 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

 b
o
a
rd
s 
a
ro
u
n
d

 p
o
li
cy

 a
n
d

 p
ro
ce
d
u
re

 a
n
d

 t
ra
in
in
g

 

a
n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

 A
 g
ro
u
p

 m
e
m
b
e
r 
fr
o
m

 t
h
e

 L
D
P
B

 i
s 
b
e
in
g

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o

 c
h
a
ir

 t
h
e

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s.

 

Le
a
rn
in
g

 D
is
a
b
il
it
y

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 (
LD

P
B
) 

! 
A

 r
a
n
g
e

 o
f 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
a
re

 i
n

 p
la
ce

 t
o

 p
ro
m
o
te

 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e

 L
D
P
B

 a
n
d

 w
id
e
r 
le
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
: 

E
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t 
o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 f
o
ru
m

 (
P
e
o
p
le
's

 P
a
rl
ia
m
e
n
t)

 t
o

 e
le
ct

 i
ts

 o
w
n

 m
e
m
b
e
rs

 t
o

 

re
p
re
se
n
t 
p
e
o
p
le
's

 v
o
ic
e
s 
o
n

 L
D
P
B

 a
n
d

 w
o
rk
in
g

 g
ro
u
p
s 

C
lo
se

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h

 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 t
o

 m
a
k
e

 L
D
P
B

 a
s 
a
cc
e
ss
ib
le

 a
s 
p
o
ss
ib
le

 

LD
P
B

 C
o

!C
h
a
ir
s 
a
re

 a
 p
e
rs
o
n

 w
it
h

 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
y

 

a
n
d

 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
Li
v
in
g

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
LD

P
B

 a
n
d

 w
o
rk
in
g

 g
ro
u
p
s 
w
h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h

 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 a
re

 i
n

 

le
a
d
/p
ro
m
in
e
n
t 
ro
le
s 

! 
e
.g
. 
h
o
u
si
n
g
, 
sa
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
, 
le
is
u
re
/c
u
lt
u
re

 

S
p
e
ci
fi
c 
a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
li
n
k
e
d

 t
o

 L
D
P
B

 t
o

 p
ro
m
o
te

 c
iv
ic

 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t:

 

S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 S
a
fe

 P
la
ce
s 

! 
(f
ro
m

 M
a
y

 2
0
1
2
) 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h

 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 a
t 
fo
re
fr
o
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
je
ct

 

to
 s
ig
n

 u
p

 s
h
o
p
s,

 h
o
u
si
n
g

 o
ff
ic
e
s,

 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s 
a
n
d

 o
th
e
r 
p
re
m
is
e
s 
to

 p
ro
v
id
e

 p
la
ce
s 
o
f 
su
p
p
o
rt

! 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

 A
ss
e
m
b
li
e
s 
(J
u
n
e
/J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
) 

! 
ta
rg
e
te
d

 e
v
e
n
ts

 t
o

 e
n
a
b
le

 d
is
a
b
le
d

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 h
a
v
e

 

g
re
a
te
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
sa
y

 i
n

 t
h
e
ir

 l
o
ca
l 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 

A
u
ti
sm

 S
tr
a
te
g
y

 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

 G
ro
u
p

 (
A
S
IG
) 

! 
A
S
IG

 o
p
e
ra
te
s 
e
ff
e
ct
iv
e
ly

 a
s 
a

 B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d

 w
il
l 

b
e

 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g

 t
o

 t
h
e

 H
e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e
ll
b
e
in
g

 B
o
a
rd
. 
P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h

 a
n

 a
u
ti
st
ic

 s
p
e
ct
ru
m

 c
o
n
d
it
io
n

 

a
re

 m
e
m
b
e
rs

 o
f 
A
S
IG

 a
n
d

 i
ts

 w
o
rk
in
g

 g
ro
u
p
s,

 s
o
m
e

 o
f 
w
h
ic
h

 s
p
e
ci
fi
ca
ll
y

 a
d
d
re
ss

 c
iv
ic

 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

! 
a
cc
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
&

 i
n
cl
u
si
o
n
. 

C
lo
se

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h

 a
n

 a
u
ti
st
ic

 s
p
e
ct
ru
m

 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
, 
a
n
d

 p
e
e
r 
su
p
p
o
rt

 g
ro
u
p
s,

  

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p

 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 f
e
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e
ir

 v
ie
w
s 
a
n
d
, 
u
lt
im

a
te
ly
, 
co

!p
ro
d
u
ce

  

fu
tu
re

 t
ra
in
in
g

 a
n
d

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv
ic
e
s.

 

G
re
e
n

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

1
3

Page 128



D
is
a
b
il
it
y

  
In
cr
e
a
se

 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
o
f 

a
cc
e
ss
ib
le

 b
u
il
d
in
g
s 
in

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 

In
cl
u
si
v
e

 D
e
si
g
n

 b
y

 P
la
ce

 p
o
rt
fo
li
o
. 

 W
e

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o

 p
ro
m
o
te

 a
n
d

 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
it

 t
h
ro
u
g
h

 u
se

 o
f 

P
la
n
n
in
g

 l
a
w
s 
a
n
d

 B
u
il
d
in
g

 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s.

  
E
v
e
ry

 n
e
w

 p
u
b
li
c 
b
u
il
d
in
g
, 
w
o
rk
p
la
ce

 o
r 
re
si
d
e
n
ti
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h

 4
 u
n
it
s 
o
r 
m
o
re

 m
u
st

 b
e

 f
u
ll
y

 a
cc
e
ss
ib
le
. 

 P
la
n
n
in
g

 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s 
a
n
d

 B
u
il
d
in
g

 

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s 
a
re

 u
se
d

 t
o

 e
n
fo
rc
e

 t
h
is
. 

 T
h
e
re
fo
re
, 
S
h
e
ff
ie
ld
's

 b
u
il
d
in
g
s 
d
o

 b
e
co
m
e

 i
n
cr
e
a
si
n
g
ly

 

a
cc
e
ss
ib
le

 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h

 w
e

 n
e
e
d

 t
o

 m
o
n
it
o
r 
to

 e
n
su
re

 t
h
is
. 

 

A
m
b
e
r 

 

D
is
a
b
il
it
y

  
P
ro
d
u
ce

 S
ch
o
o
ls

 A
cc
e
ss
ib
il
it
y

 S
tr
a
te
g
y

 

a
n
d

 a
ct
io
n

 p
la
n

 
S
ch
o
o
ls

 i
ss
u
e
d

 w
it
h

 a
n

 E
q
u
a
li
ty

 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
to
o
lk
it

 w
h
ic
h

 i
n
co
rp
o
ra
te
s 
a
cc
e
ss
ib
il
it
y
. 

 
A
m
b
e
r 

D
is
a
b
il
it
y

  

E
n
su
re

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 r
e
la
te
d

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 i
s 

in
cl
u
d
e
d

 i
n

 h
a
te

 c
ri
m
e

 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g

 a
n
d

 

ta
rg
e
t 
re
p
o
rt
in
g

 

W
o
rk

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g

 a
 c
it
y

 w
id
e

 H
a
te

 C
ri
m
e

 A
ct
io
n

 P
la
n

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

 a
n
d

 i
s 
b
e
in
g

 

o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
e
d

 b
y

 t
h
e

 S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d

 S
u
st
a
in
a
b
le

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 t
o

 c
le
a
rl
y

 

in
co
rp
o
ra
te

 t
h
e

 E
H
R
C

 r
e
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 
in

 r
e
la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 r
e
la
te
d

 h
a
ra
ss
m
e
n
t 

 

T
h
e

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 A
d
u
lt

 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

 (
S
A
S
P
) 
E
xe
cu
ti
v
e

 h
a
s 
e
n
d
o
rs
e
d

 a
 

re
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

 t
o

 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e

 a
n

 E
IA

 o
n

 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

 a
ct
iv
it
y

 a
n
d

 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s,

 a
n
d

 w
il
l 
re
ly

 

u
p
o
n

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 i
n
cl
u
d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 
2
0
1
0

!1
1

 a
n
d

 2
0
1
1

!

1
2
. 
. 
T
h
is

 i
n
cl
u
d
e
s 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
ct
io
n
s 
in

 a
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
it

 w
il
l 
b
e

 c
a
s c
a
d
e
d

 a
cr
o
ss

 a
ll

 S
A
S
P

 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs

 t
o

 h
o
p
e
fu
ll
y

 r
a
is
in
g

 a
w
a
re
n
e
ss

 a
b
o
u
t 
h
a
te

 i
n
ci
d
e
n
ts
/c
ri
m
e
s 
in

 a
ll

 p
u
b
li
c 
se
ct
o
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s 

! 
N
H
S

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld
, 
S
Y

 P
o
li
ce
, 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n

 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 H
e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h

 

e
tc
. 

G
re
e
n

 

D
is
a
b
il
it
y

  

In
cr
e
a
se

 n
u
m
b
e
rs

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h

 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h

 i
ss
u
e
s 
a
n
d

 l
e
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s 

in
to

 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

 M
a
rc
h

 2
0
1
2
: 
N
I 
1
4
6

 !
 A
d
u
lt
s 
w
it
h

 l
e
a
rn
in
g

 d
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s 
in

 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t:

  
T
h
e

 l
a
te
st

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 

w
e

 h
a
v
e

 i
s 
fo
r 
Q
3

 (
O
ct

!D
e
c)
, 

 2
0

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n

 p
a
id

 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,

 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e

 6
0
4

 

a
ss
e
ss
e
d
/r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
, 
m
a
k
in
g

 3
.3
1
%
.U
si
n
g

 t
h
is

 a
s 
a

 n
u
m
e
ra
to
r 
o
r 
d
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r,

 6
0
4

 i
s 
le
ss

 t
h
a
n

 

h
a
lf

 o
f 
th
e

 r
e
g
is
te
r 
k
n
o
w
n

 t
o

 S
o
ci
a
l 
se
rv
ic
e
s.

  
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n

 F
u
n
d
in
g

 p
ro
je
ct

 w
o
rk
, 
is

 o
n

 

ta
rg
e
t;

 x
5

 j
o
b
s 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e

 a
g
re
e
d

 1
0
, 
2
2

 w
o
rk

 p
la
n
s 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e

 a
g
re
e
d

 4
5
. 
T
im

e
sc
a
le

 f
o
r 

co
m
p
le
ti
o
n

 i
s 
e
n
d

 A
u
g
u
st

 2
0
1
2
. 

  

R
e
d

 

D
is
a
b
il
it
y

  
M
o
n
it
o
r 
re
a
so
n
a
b
le

 a
d
ju
st
m
e
n
ts

 a
cr
o
ss

 

th
e

 C
o
u
n
ci
l 

U
p
d
a
te
d

 p
o
li
cy

 a
n
d

 e
n
su
ri
n
g

 R
e
a
so
n
a
b
le

 A
d
ju
st
m
e
n
ts

 a
re

 m
o
n
it
o
re
d

 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e

 n
e
w

 I
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce

 r
e
v
ie
w
. 
T
h
is

 w
il
l 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
n
e
e
d

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 a
s 
th
is

 a
re
a

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 i
n
d
e
n
te
d

 h
a
s 

h
a
v
in
g

 i
n
co
n
si
st
e
n
t 
p
ra
ct
ic
e
. 

A
m
b
e
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

1
4

Page 129



G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

1
5

D
is
a
b
il
it
y

  
S
ig
n

 u
p

 t
o

 t
h
e

 M
in
d
fu
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
r 

S
ch
e
m
e

 a
n
d

 m
o
n
it
o
r 
e
ff
e
ct
iv
e
n
e
ss

 

S
C
C

 d
id

 a
p
p
ly

 f
o
r,

 a
n
d

 w
a
s 
g
ra
n
te
d

 M
in
d
fu
l 
E
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
st
a
tu
s 
in

 M
a
y

 2
0
1
0
. 
T
h
is

 h
a
s 
b
ro
u
g
h
t 
a

 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

  

It
 i
s 
im

p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
a
t 
m
a
n
y
, 
p
e
rh
a
p
s 
m
o
st
, 

 o
f 
th
e

 a
ct
io
n
s 
ta
k
e
n

 t
o

 i
m
p
ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 C
o
u
n
ci
l'
s 

a
p
p
ro
a
ch

 &
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce

 i
n

 r
e
sp
e
ct

 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
l t
h

 h
a
v
e

 o
th
e
r 
d
ri
v
e
rs
, 
fo
r 
e
xa
m
p
le

 

im
p
ro
v
in
g

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
ce

 &
 r
e
d
u
ci
n
g

 s
ic
k
n
e
ss

 a
b
se
n
ce
, 
fa
ci
li
ta
ti
n
g

 s
u
cc
e
ss
fu
l 
re
h
a
b
il
it
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 

re
tu
rn

 t
o

 w
o
rk
, 
ta
ck
li
n
g

 i
ss
u
e
s 
o
f 
h
a
ra
ss
m
e
n
t 
d
is
cr
im

in
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 b
u
ll
y
in
g
, 
a
tt
ra
ct
in
g

 &
 

re
ta
in
in
g

 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 
e
tc
. 
T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls
o

 l
in
k
a
g
e
s 
b
e
tw

e
e
n

 b
e
tt
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h

 i
ss
u
e
s 
in

 t
h
e

 w
o
rk
p
la
ce

 a
n
d

 b
e
tt
e
r 
se
rv
ic
e

 t
o

 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs

 w
h
o

 m
a
y

 h
a
v
e

 a
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h

 

co
n
d
it
io
n
. 
T
h
e

 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
is

 s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g

 a
n

 a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n

 t
o

 r
e
n
e
w

 i
ts

 M
in
d
fu
l 
E
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
st
a
tu
s.

 T
h
is

 

a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 
re
n
e
w
a
l 
d
e
sc
ri
b
e
s 
p
ro
g
re
ss

 o
v
e
r 
th
e

 p
a
st

 t
w
o

 y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d

 a
ls
o

 s
h
a
re
s 
w
it
h

 

M
in
d
fu
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
th
e

 w
o
rk

 p
la
n
n
e
d

 o
r 
ju
st

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y

 e
.g
. 
th
e

 i
n
cl
u
si
o
n

 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h

 i
n

 t
h
e

 

co
re

 c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m

 f
o
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 I
ss
u
e
s 
–

 

O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

 S
e
t 
u
p

 W
o
rk
sh
o
p

 a
n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo
p

 a
ct
io
n

 

p
la
n

 o
n

 B
M
E

 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 

W
o
rk
sh
o
p

 h
e
ld

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 B
M
E

 N
e
tw

o
rk
. 
In

 s
tr
a
te
g
ic

 c
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

 'E
m
b
e
d
d
in
g

 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
' 

p
ro
je
ct

 i
s 
o
n
g
o
in
g
. 

 T
h
e

 a
im

s 
o
f 
th
is

 w
o
rk

 s
tr
e
a
m

 a
re
; 

•
 F
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs

 a
n
d

 S
tr
a
te
g
ic

 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

 a
n
d

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

 t
o

 h
a
v
e

 a
 g
o
o
d

 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e

 a
n
d

 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g

 o
f 
cu
st
o
m
e
rs
, 
co
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
a
n
d

 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e

 s
o

 t
h
a
t 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
re

 a
cc
e
ss
ib
le
, 
o
f 

h
ig
h

 q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d

 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

 f
o
r 
th
e

 n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
th
e

 p
e
o
p
le

 o
f 
S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 

•
 T
h
a
t 
e
q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d

 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
is

 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d

 i
n

 b
u
si
n
e
ss

 a
s 
u
su
a
l 
fo
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic

 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

 

a
n
d

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

 a
n
d

 p
ro
v
id
e
rs

 

W
o
rk

 c
o
m
p
le
te
d

 a
s 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th
is

 w
o
rk

 s
tr
e
a
m

 i
n
cl
u
d
e
s;

 

E
q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d

 D
iv
e
rs
it
y

 p
la
n

 s
e
tt
in
g

 o
u
t 
a
ct
io
n
s 
th
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e

 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d

 t
o

 e
m
b
e
d

 e
q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d

 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y

 i
n

 w
o
rk

 a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 p
ro
je
ct

 a
n
d

 i
n

 b
u
si
n
e
ss

 a
s 
u
su
a
l 
fo
r 
S
C
a
P

 a
n
d

 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 
M
a
st
e
r 

cl
a
ss

 f
o
r 
st
a
ff

 h
e
ld
, 
tr
a
in
in
g

 o
n

 c
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

 a
n
d

 d
iv
e
rs
it
y

 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d

 f
o
r 
A
LL

 S
C
a
P

 s
ta
ff
. 

D
iv
e
rs
it
y

 a
 k
e
y

 t
h
e
m
e

 i
n

 P
if

 a
n
d

 i
ts

 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

  

In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in

 B
M
E

 w
o
rk
sh
o
p

 .
T
ra
in
in
g

 o
n

 D
iv
e
rs
it
y

 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs

 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
. 
D
iv
e
rs
it
y

 a
n
d

 

e
q
u
a
li
ty

 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s 
a
n
d

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 S
C
a
P

 w
e
b
si
te

 

W
h
il
e

 t
h
e

 a
b
o
v
e

 a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
w
e
re

 s
u
cc
e
ss
fu
l 
w
o
rk

 i
s 
o
n
g
o
in
g

 t
o

 e
n
su
re

 d
iv
e
rs
it
y

 i
s 
e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d

 

a
n
d

 s
e
e
n

 a
s 
b
u
si
n
e
ss

 a
s 
u
su
a
l 
a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 b
o
a
rd
. 

 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

E
n
su
re

 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e

 a
cc
e
ss

 t
o

 f
u
ll

 

ra
n
g
e

 o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g

 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 

h
tt
p
s:
//
w
w
w
.s
h
e
ff
ie
ld
.g
o
v
.u
k
/c
a
re
su
p
p
o
rt
/a
d
u
lt
s/
o
ld
e
rp
e
o
p
le
/l
e
a
rn
in
g
.h
tm

l 

("
A
g
e
in
g

 w
e
ll

 i
n

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld
" 
is

 a
 r
e
so
u
rc
e

 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 o
n

 t
h
e

 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
a
n
d

 a
s 
a

 

b
o
o
k
le
t 

! 
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d

 i
n

 l
o
ca
l 
li
b
ra
ri
e
s,

 t
o

 "
E
xp
e
rt

 E
ld
e
rs
" 
a
n
d

 A
d
u
lt

 S
o
ci
a
l 
C
a
re

 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs

 a
g
e
d

 

5
0
+
).

 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

E
n
su
re

 t
h
a
t 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e

 t
h
e

 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e

 a
n
d

 

g
u
id
a
n
ce

 i
n

 r
e
la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 s
ta
y
in
g

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d

 

se
cu
re

  

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w
.s
h
e
ff
ie
ld
.g
o
v
.u
k
/c
a
re
su
p
p
o
rt
/a
d
u
lt
s/
o
ld
e
rp
e
o
p
le
/s
a
fe
ty
#
lo
o
k

 

("
A
g
e
in
g

 w
e
ll

 i
n

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld
" 
is

 a
 r
e
so
u
rc
e

 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 o
n

 t
h
e

 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
a
n
d

 a
s 
a

 

b
o
o
k
le
t 

! 
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d

 i
n

 l
o
ca
l 
li
b
ra
ri
e
s,

 t
o

 "
E
xp
e
rt

 E
ld
e
rs
" 
a
n
d

 A
d
u
lt

 S
o
ci
a
l 
C
a
re

 c
u
st
o
m
e
rs

 a
g
e
d

 

5
0
+
).

 

G
re
e
n

 

Page 130



A
g
e

 –
 O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

E
n
su
re

 t
h
a
t 
th
e

 o
ld
e
r 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n

 h
a
v
e

 a
 

ra
n
g
e

 o
f 
a
cc
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

 o
p
ti
o
n
s 
to

 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir

 n
e
e
d
s 

 

E
st
a
b
li
sh
e
d

 r
e
fe
re
n
ce

 g
ro
u
p

 o
f 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 c
o
p
ro
d
u
ce

 t
h
e

 s
tr
a
te
g
y

 f
o
r 
m
a
k
in
g

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 a
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
p
la
ce

 t
o

 g
ro
w

 o
ld

 h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w
.s
h
e
ff
ie
ld
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n

!y
o
u
r!
a
re
a
/h
o
u
si
n
g

!s
e
rv
ic
e
s/
h
o
u
si
n
g

!

st
ra
te
g
ie
s 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

E
n
su
re

 e
a
sy

 a
cc
e
ss

 t
o

 g
o
o
d

 q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d

 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
b
o
u
t 
se
rv
ic
e
s 

A
d
u
lt

 s
o
ci
a
l 
ca
re

 h
a
s 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

 a
n

 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 A
d
v
ic
e

 S
tr
a
te
g
y

 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 n
e
e
d
in
g

 s
o
ci
a
l 

ca
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld
. 
It

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s 
g
o
o
d

 p
ra
ct
ic
e

 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 a
d
v
ic
e
, 
a
n
d

 

d
e
ta
il
s 
th
e

 s
p
e
ci
a
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
co
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s,

 i
n
cl
u
d
in
g

 c
u
st
o
m
e
r 
ca
re

 g
ro
u
p
s 

a
n
d

 m
i n
o
ri
ty

 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s.

  
 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 
D
e
v
e
lo
p

 a
 C
it
y

!w
id
e

 C
a
re
rs
’ 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

  

Jo
in
t 
C
a
re
rs

 C
it
y

 s
tr
a
te
g
y

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

 &
 s
ig
n
e
d

 u
p

 t
o

 b
y

 H
e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e
ll
b
e
in
g

 B
o
a
rd

 J
u
n
e

 2
0
1
0
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

 b
e
in
g

 m
o
n
it
o
re
d

 b
y

 C
a
re
rs

 &
 Y
o
u
n
g

 C
a
re
rs

 B
o
a
rd

 (
su
b

 g
ro
u
p

 o
f 
H
W
B

 

B
o
a
rd
).
S
e
e

 h
tt
p
s:
//
w
w
w
.s
h
e
ff
ie
ld
.g
o
v
.u
k
/c
a
re
su
p
p
o
rt
/c
a
re
rs
/c
a
re
rs
st
ra
te
g
y
.h
tm

l 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

 I
n
cr
e
a
se

 t
h
e

 r
a
n
g
e

 o
f 
a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 t
a
k
e

 p
a
rt

 

in
. 

A
ct
iv
it
y

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 p
ro
v
id
e

 a
 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
cr
o
ss

 t
h
e

 c
it
y

 t
o

 t
a
k
e

 p
a
rt

 i
n
, 

in
cl
u
d
in
g

 C
h
a
ir

 B
a
se
d

 E
xe
rc
is
e
, 
fu
n
/m

u
lt
i 
a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
a
n
d

 g
a
m
e
s,

 v
a
ri
o
u
s 
sp
o
rt
s,

 h
e
a
lt
h

 w
a
lk
s,

 

g
u
id
e
d

 w
a
lk
s 
a
n
d

 h
is
to
ry

 t
a
lk
s,

 p
ra
ct
i c
a
l 
w
o
rk

 d
a
y
s 
i.
e
. 
b
u
il
d
in
g

 c
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n

 s
k
il
ls

 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

E
n
su
re

 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 s
k
il
ls

 a
re

 p
o
si
ti
v
e
ly

 

re
co
g
n
is
e
d

 a
n
d

 w
e

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o

 

e
n
co
u
ra
g
e

 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 b
e

 a
ct
iv
e

 i
n

 

th
e

 l
if
e

 o
f 
th
e

 c
it
y
. 

A
ct
iv
it
y

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y

 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e

 a
ll

 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir

 s
e
ss
io
n
s 
to

 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
/m

a
in
ta
in

 t
h
e
ir

 a
ct
iv
it
y

 l
e
v
e
ls

 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
a
n
d

 a
ct
iv
e
ly

 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e

 t
h
e
m

 t
o

 u
ti
li
se

 

S
h
e
ff
ie
ld
’s

 G
re
e
n

 a
n
d

 O
p
e
n

 S
p
a
ce
s.

 O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
's

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d

 s
k
il
ls

 i
s 
re
co
g
n
is
e
d

 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

fr
o
m

 s
ta
ff

  

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 Y
o
u
n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 

S
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts

 t
o

 r
a
is
e

 e
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
le
v
e
ls

 o
f 
B
M
E
, 
S
E
N
, 
ch
il
d
re
n

 

w
h
o

 r
e
ce
iv
e

 f
re
e

 s
ch
o
o
l 
m
e
a
ls

 a
n
d

 b
o
y
s 

T
h
e

 o
b
je
ct
iv
e

 o
f 
se
tt
in
g

 t
a
rg
e
ts

 t
o

 r
a
is
e

 t
h
e

 e
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
le
v
e
ls

 o
f 
B
M
E
, 
S
E
N
, 

ch
il
d
re
n

 w
h
o

 r
e
ce
iv
e

 f
re
e

 s
ch
o
o
l 
m
e
a
ls

 a
n
d

 b
o
y
s 
is

 v
e
ry

 b
ro
a
d

 a
n
d

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s 
o
n
g
o
in
g

 a
ct
io
n
. 

T
h
e
se

 a
re
a
s 
a
re

 m
o
n
it
o
re
d

 b
y

 C
Y
P
F

 a
n
d

 s
cr
u
ti
n
y

 r
e
p
o
rt
s 
a
re

 c
a
rr
ie
d

 o
u
t 
e
v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r.

 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 

ta
rg
e
ts

 h
a
v
e

 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n

 c
o
n
si
st
e
n
tl
y

 m
e
t 

A
m
b
e
r 

A
g
e

 –
 Y
o
u
n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 

T
o

 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
re
d
u
ce

 B
M
E

 p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 

a
b
se
n
te
e
is
m

 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
ct
io
n
s 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 a
 r
e
d
u
ct
io
n

 o
f 
p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
B
M
E

 a
b
se
n
te
e
is
m

 a
s 

w
e
ll

 a
s 
b
ro
a
d

 a
b
se
n
te
e
is
m
. 
T
h
e
re

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 a
 n
e
w

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
ce

 p
o
li
cy

 f
o
r 
sc
h
o
o
ls

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

 a
s 

w
e
ll

 a
s 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h

 p
a
re
n
ts

 a
n
d

 c
a
re
rs
. 
T
h
e

 f
o
u
r 
D
a
rn
a
ll

 P
ri
m
a
ry

 S
ch
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e

 t
a
k
e
n

 a
 

ta
rg
e
te
d

 a
p
p
ro
a
ch

 a
n
d

 a
 c
o
ll
a
b
o
ra
ti
v
e

 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

 a
n
d

 l
a
u
n
ch
e
d

 a
t 
sp
e
ci
fi
c 

e
v
e
n
ts

 w
h
e
re

 p
a
re
n
ts

 a
n
d

 c
a
re
rs

 w
e
re

 i
n
v
it
e
d
, 
th
is

 w
a
s 
re
p
o
rt
e
d

 v
ia

 t
h
e

 l
o
ca
l 
m
e
d
ia
. 
A

 

co
m
p
e
ti
ti
o
n

 i
s 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y

 b
e
in
g

 r
u
n

 t
o

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ch
o
o
ls

 a
n
d

 e
a
rl
y

 y
e
a
rs

 s
e
tt
in
g
s 
in

 r
a
is
in
g

 

a
w
a
re
n
e
ss

 o
f 
th
e

 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
ce

 o
f 
re
g
u
la
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
ce
. 

 

A
m
b
e
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

1
6

Page 131



G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

1
7

A
g
e

 –
 Y
o
u
n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 
T
o

 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
re
d
u
ce

 B
M
E

 e
xc
lu
si
o
n
s 

 

T
h
o
u
g
h

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 a
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to

 s
e
e

 s
ch
o
o
ls

 i
n

 S
h
e
ff
ie
ld

 h
a
v
e

 a
 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
re
d
u
ct
io
n

 o
f 

B
M
E

 e
xc
lu
si
o
n
s,

 o
v
e
r 
th
e

 2
0
0
9

!1
1

 p
e
ri
o
d
s,

 t
h
e

 e
xp
e
ct
e
d

 y
e
a
r 
o
n

 y
e
a
r 
re
d
u
ct
io
n

 o
f 
e
xc
lu
si
o
n
s 

a
s 
ta
rg
e
te
d

 h
a
s 
n
o
t 
o
cc
u
rr
e
d
. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s 
a

 w
o
rk
in
g

 g
ro
u
p

 o
n

 t
h
is

 i
ss
u
e

 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s 

o
n
g
o
in
g

 a
ct
io
n
. 
T
h
is

 i
s 
b
e
in
g

 a
ct
iv
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
re
d

 a
n
d

 a
n

 a
ct
io
n

 p
la
n

 i
s 
in

 p
la
ce

 f
o
r 
th
is

 t
a
rg
e
t .

 

R
e
d

 

A
g
e

 –
 Y
o
u
n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 

T
o

 r
e
d
u
ce

 t
h
e

 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n

 o
f 
ch
il
d
re
n

 

e
xp
e
ri
e
n
ci
n
g

 b
u
ll
y
in
g

 f
ro
m

 2
5
%

 i
n

 2
0
0
7

 

to
 2
0
%

 i
n

 2
0
1
0

!1
1

 a
ch
ie
v
e

 a
 r
e
d
u
ct
io
n

 

o
f 
ra
ci
a
l,

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 r
e
la
te
d

 o
r 

h
o
m
o
p
h
o
b
ic

 b
u
ll
y
in
g
. 

M
o
d
e
l 
B
u
ll
y
in
g

 P
o
li
cy

 i
ss
u
e
d

 t
o

 a
ll

 s
ch
o
o
ls
. 
S
u
rv
e
y

 o
f 
sc
h
o
o
ls

 o
n

 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce

 w
it
h

 h
o
m
o
p
h
o
b
ic

 

b
u
ll
y
in
g

 c
a
rr
ie
d

 o
u
t.

 W
e

 h
a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 a
 S
to
n
e
w
a
ll

 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n

 C
h
a
m
p
io
n

 s
in
ce

 2
0
0
9
. 
In

 t
h
e

 

in
a
u
g
u
ra
l 
S
to
n
e
w
a
ll

 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n

 I
n
d
e
x 
2
0
1
1
, 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
ll
y

 w
e

 c
a
m
e

 i
n

 4
th

 p
la
ce

 i
n

 r
e
la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 w
o
rk

 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n

 t
o

 r
e
d
u
ce

 h
o
m
o
p
h
o
b
ic

 b
u
ll
y
in
g
. 
S
ch
o
o
ls

 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
la
u
n
ch
e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
1
. 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 Y
o
u
n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 

E
n
su
re

 e
a
ch

 s
ch
o
o
l 
h
a
s 
a

 p
la
n

 t
o

 r
e
d
u
ce

 

b
u
ll
y
in
g

 i
n

 r
e
la
ti
o
n

 r
a
ci
a
l,

 d
is
a
b
il
it
y

 

re
la
te
d

 o
r 
h
o
m
o
p
h
o
b
ic

 b
u
ll
y
in
g

 

A
ll

 s
ch
o
o
ls

 i
ss
u
e
d

 w
it
h

 a
 m

o
d
e
l 
b
u
ll
y
in
g

 p
o
li
cy

 i
n

 2
0
0
9
. 
S
u
rv
e
y

 o
f 
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce

 s
p
e
ci
fi
ca
ll
y

 o
n

 

h
o
m
o
p
h
o
b
ic

 b
u
ll
y
in
g

 c
a
rr
ie
d

 o
u
t 
in

 e
a
rl
y

 2
0
1
2
. 

 
G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 Y
o
u
n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 

T
o

 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts

 o
n

 a
ct
io
n

 a
n
d

 r
e
d
u
ce

 y
e
a
r 

o
n

 y
e
a
r 
B
M
E

 o
v
e
r 
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h
e

 

y
o
u
th

 j
u
st
ic
e

  

A
n

 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
B
M
E

 y
o
u
th

 i
n
te
ra
ct
io
n

 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
Ju
st
ic
e

 s
y
st
e
m

 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n

 c
o
m
p
li
e
d

 a
n
d

 

re
p
o
rt
e
d

 w
it
h
in

 a
 M

u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
cy

 G
ro
u
p

 o
f 
k
e
y

 o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
S
o
m
e

 o
f 
th
e

 a
ct
io
n
s 
in

 t
h
e

 C
Y
P
F

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

 C
o
h
e
si
o
n

 A
ct
io
n

 P
la
n
, 
fo
r 
e
xa
m
p
le

 d
iv
e
rs
io
n
a
ry

 p
o
si
ti
v
e

 a
ct
iv
it
ie
s,

 e
n
g
a
g
in
g

 w
it
h

 

d
is
e
n
g
a
g
e
d

 y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
il
l 
su
p
p
o
rt

 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm

 r
e
d
u
ct
io
n
s 
o
f 
B
M
E
's

 e
n
te
ri
n
g

 t
h
e

 y
o
u
th

 

ju
st
ic
e

 s
y
st
e
m

 R
E
M
E
D
I 
h
a
s 
ju
st

 b
e
e
n

 a
w
a
rd
e
d

 a
 l
a
rg
e

 g
ra
n
t 
fo
r 
5

 y
e
a
rs

 f
o
r 
R
e
st
o
ra
ti
v
e

 P
ra
ct
is
e

 

w
o
rk

 i
n

 3
 S
e
co
n
d
a
ry

 S
ch
o
o
ls

 w
h
ic
h

 w
il
l 
p
ro
v
id
e

 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
ro
u
te

 t
o

 d
iv
e
rt

 B
M
E

 y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le
. 

 

A
m
b
e
r 

A
g
e

 –
 Y
o
u
n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 

E
n
su
re

 t
h
a
t 
fo
st
e
r 
ca
re
rs

 a
re

 

re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
v
e

 o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d

 a
ft
e
r 
ch
il
d
re
n

 
M
o
d
e
l 
e
q
u
a
li
ty

 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 t
o
o
lk
it

 p
ro
d
u
ce
d
. 

G
re
e
n

 

A
g
e

 –
 Y
o
u
n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 

T
o

 e
st
a
b
li
sh

 a
 t
im

e
ta
b
le

 f
o
r 
th
e

 r
e
v
ie
w

 

a
n
d

 u
p
d
a
te

 o
f 
sc
h
o
o
l 
b
a
se
d

 e
q
u
a
li
ty

 

p
o
li
ci
e
s 
in

 l
in
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 E
q
u
a
li
ty

 A
ct

 

S
ch
o
o
ls

 i
ss
u
e
d

 w
it
h

 m
o
d
e
l 
E
q
u
a
li
ty

 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 t
o
o
lk
it

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir

 d
u
ti
e
s 

u
n
d
e
r 
th
e

 E
q
u
a
li
ty

 A
ct

 2
0
1
0
. 

G
re
e
n

 

T
ra
n
sg
e
n
d
e
r 

 
W
e

 w
a
n
t 
to

 i
m
p
ro
v
e

 t
h
e

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 

a
n
d

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
sg
e
n
d
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 

W
o
rk
in
g

 w
it
h

 T
ra
n
s 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 
th
ro
u
g
h

 L
G
B
T

 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d

 L
G
B
T

 M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
cy

 

G
ro
u
p

 t
o

 p
ro
m
o
te

 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 T
ra
n
s 
is
su
e
s.

 E
n
su
re

 T
ra
n
s 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 
a
re

 m
o
n
it
o
re
d

 v
ia

 t
h
e

 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e

 c
e
n
su
s 
a
n
d

 r
e
cr
u
it
m
e
n
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 

A
m
b
e
r 

T
ra
n
sg
e
n
d
e
r 

 
 I
m
p
ro
v
e

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
to

 

in
cl
u
d
e

 T
ra
n
s 
g
e
n
d
e
r 

 

In
cl
u
d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 E
q
u
a
li
ty

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 G
u
id
a
n
ce

 i
ss
u
e
d

 i
n

 O
ct
o
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 

 T
h
is

 i
n
cl
u
d
e
s 
a

 

su
g
g
e
st
e
d

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h

 i
n
cl
u
d
e
s 
a

 q
u
e
st
io
n

 o
n

 g
e
n
d
e
r 
id
e
n
ti
ty

 
G
re
e
n

 

T
ra
n
sg
e
n
d
e
r 

 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
tr
a
n
s 
h
a
te

 c
ri
m
e

 a
n
d

 p
ro
m
o
te

 

re
p
o
rt
in
g

 o
f 
in
ci
d
e
n
ts

 

T
ra
n
sg
e
n
d
e
r 
m
o
ti
v
a
te
d

 i
n
ci
d
e
n
ts

 c
a
n

 b
e

 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d

 a
s 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
h
a
te

 c
ri
m
e

 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g

 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s.

  

H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
la
st

 y
e
a
r 
th
e
re

 w
e
re

 o
n
ly

 n
o

 t
ra
n
sg
e
n
d
e
r 
m
o
ti
v
a
te
d

 i
n
ci
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
. 

A
m
b
e
r 

Page 132



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 18

Appendix 4 Good Practice Examples 

A) Tackling Homophobic Bullying Good Practice 

Sheffield City Council has been a Stonewall Education Champion since 2009. In the inaugural 
Stonewall Education Equality Index 2011, nationally we came in 4th place. 

Our good practices include: 

  Research on homophobic bullying by speaking to LGBT young people, parents and carers 
and school based staff. A summary of the individual research reports were sent to all 
Sheffield Headteachers and Chairs of Governors during Anti Bullying Week

  Developing the Sheffield Schools Charter and its Guidance as a practical way of ensuring 
that schools implement their policies on homophobic bullying. Target of 35 (Primary and 
Secondary) schools achieving our Charter by July 2012 

  Survey of Sheffield Schools on their bullying policy and a model Equality Statement and 
Toolkit deveolped to help Sheffield schools meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 
refers to tackling discriminatory language and homophobic bullying

  Working in partnership to re establish a Sheffield Sex and Relationships Forum in November 
2011 as a way of supporting professionals to provide excellent SRE in Sheffield 

  Commissioned the NSPCC/Anti Bullying Alliance to deliver Anti Bullying training  and  
introductory training for staff working in the 16-18 Sector 

  Worked with Sheffield Hallam University on their report on tackling homophobia in South 
Yorkshire which was launched in Anti Bullying Week November 2011. This included the 
views of children and young people. Supported the University in event for local schools as 
part of LGBT History Month

  In schools good practice includes Y10 Equal Opportunities (Citizenship Unit); using the 
Stonewall FIT DVD; staff members being mentors to LGBT young people; links with 
Religious Studies, Art and History, for example specific lessons or talks; discussing  different 
family structures in the curriculum etc

  Some Primary and Secondary schools who have been cited nationally as good practice by 
Stonewall and we support the use of the Stonewall Primary School DVD resource. 

  We fund Side by Side, a peer drama on tackling homophobic bullying in schools

  Pupils from the former Wisewood Sports College performed in front of the Equalities Minister 
at the historic “Tackle It” Rugby Football League match involving the Sheffield Eagles Rugby 
Football League Club in March 2011

  Engaged with young people, through the “Dragons Den” activity held in Democracy Week

  Secondary schools and the University of Sheffield carried out research on SRE and South 
Asian communities which was disseminated autumn 2011.

B) Inclusion and Inequalities Multi Agency Support Team (MAST) 

MAST continues to collaboratively work with a range of partners to improve inclusion of vulnerable 
groups and individuals. We aim to reduce economic inequalities with access to health care, 
educate and raise aspirations of young people and parents.  Examples of our activity include the 
following:

Page 133



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 19

MIF (Migration Impact Fund) 
Following the MIF project funding ending in 2011 multi-agency work has continued with partners 
from schools, voluntary sector, police and housing. A group discusses overarching issues and 
planning an effective response. A focus group has been established to consider the specific 
community areas, individual cases, community cohesion and improving relations. 
Direct Access to a Clinical Psychologist
MAST are working closely with a number of partnering schools, through the exceptional needs pilot 
which enables mental health therapeutic interventions to be more accessible to children and 
families by offering Clinical Psychology provision through the schools.

Leadership Training for New Arrivals
We are working closely with schools on delivering the priorities of the New Arrivals pilot, for 
example leadership training to students that have settled in the school well. This helps to give them 
a voice in community, raise aspirations and the opportunity to mentor and buddy more recent new 
arrivals.

Valuing Diversity – Rainbow project
As part of the New Arrivals Pilot at Longley Primary, we have applied learning over recent years 
with meeting the needs of students with exceptional needs and language development into a base 
for EAL (English as an Additional Language) learners called the Rainbow Group. A staff member 
works with students on language and social development, and work with parents through drop ins 
at the school. Students are trained to be buddies to help new arrivals.

Another intervention at Longley School is the Sunshine Group which enables children with 
exceptional needs to make increased gains in their learning and develop confidence in a greater 
range of skills. 

We have delivered training for teaching staff at Parkwood Academy that helps engage learners 
who are new to English, new to formal education, also high achievers that are new to English.  

C) Sheffield Fellowship Key Stage 2 Programme  

The Ethnic Minority Traveller Achievement Service set up a pilot KS2 Fellowship programme in 
April 2009. This is a positive action initiative that aims to raise achievement, attainment and 
motivation of black minority ethnic pupils and other vulnerable groups at risk of underachieving at 
KS2. Supporting pupils at Y5 (spring term) through Y6 and transition support into Y7 (Autumn 
Term) at secondary, enhancing key skills in literacy and numeracy with an EAL focus.  This offers 
personal development activities that impact positively on learning, motivation and aspirations. 

Aims and Objectives: 

  Narrow the gap between BME/EAL pupils and Sheffield’s average attainment at KS2 Level 
4+ combined English and Maths 

  To raise academic achievement of BME pupils and other vulnerable groups at risk of 
underachieving at KS2 and narrow the gap. 

  To improve motivation, confidence and self-esteem 

  To establish effective partnerships between schools, pupils, parents to improve outcomes. 

  To support transition in to secondary school 

Page 134



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 20

The programme has successfully supported 3 cohorts, and received positive feedback from 
schools, parents and pupils: 

“The teachers have helped me with my English and Maths”. (Pupil) 

“My daughter’s educational attainment at school has improved very well. Her self-
confidence has also improved”. (Parent) 

“I don’t know what you do with X but he’s a completely different boy in class”. (School 
teacher)

Attainment results

The first 2 cohorts in 2010 and 2011 have achieved great results. Pupils exceeded both the 
city’s average and city’s BME attainment average. 

KS2 Fellowship Student Results

Number of 
Pupils

Supported
Achieved L4+ 

English
Achieved L4+ 

Maths
Achieved L4+ E & 

M Combined

2010 29 83% (24) 83% (24) 72% (21) 

2011 39 85% (33) 82% (32) 74% (29) 

2012 29 TBC TBC TBC 

Our current Y5 cohort size is 60 pupils from across Sheffield School. 

D) The Home Language Accreditation (HoLA) Project.

Bi- lingual children make up almost two thirds of all Sheffield school age BME population.  Many of 
whom attend a range of supplementary (community language) schools as well as one of the city’s 
mainstream schools. Yet there is currently very little communication between the two sectors. 

The Ethnic Minority Traveller Achievement (EMTAS) working in partnership with King Edward VII 
secondary school, Languages Sheffield and Children’s University have successfully secured 
funding from the Hamlyn foundation for a 3 year project.  The project focuses on the relationship 
between the complimentary and mainstream schools.

The HoLA project aims to enable supplementary schools and mainstream schools to communicate 
effectively, to develop and accredit formally the home languages of their students, and increase the 
engagement of bilingual children and young people and their families with mainstream schools.

Over the next three years and using the Children’s University model, the two sectors will share 
information, develop positive links between the mainstream and complimentary schools by provide 
training around teaching, coaching, mentoring and cultural advice to mainstream schools from the 
complimentary schools.  For further information visit: WWW.holaproject.org.

The project has been nominated for the European Award for Languages. 

Page 135



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 21

E) Sheffield 100 Apprenticeship Programme 

The City Council has an important role because of its size as an employer, its position within the 
various partnerships that drive economic regeneration, and as part of our strategy to combat 
disadvantage and reduce inequality. The Sheffield 100 Apprenticeship programme represents the 
Council contribution to the overall goal of increasing the numbers of apprentices across the city, 
and identifying additional apprenticeship places.  

There is a responsibility to ensure that the wider community are aware of these opportunities and 
that they are accessible to all (e.g. people from ethnic minority communities, women and disabled 
people).  Promoting equality and diversity in our own workforce and encouraging our partners and 
suppliers to do the same, helps to ensure that both the public and private sector benefit from a 
diversity of skills and talents and improved employment rates among currently under-represented 
groups.

Rising levels of young people not in employment, education or training (NEETs), together with the 
increasing diversity of the city was a challenge to the Sheffield 100 programme; however the 
extension of the apprenticeship programme by an additional 100 positions demonstrates the 
successful take up by young people. The progress to date is as follows: 

  99 female and 142 male young people applied for the opportunities, of which:
o 58.9% were male 
o 41% were female 
o 20% were BME 
o 12% have a disability or learning difficulty 

  165 successfully started or are on the programme 

  12 are currently at the interview stage 

  136 young people have already started work, of which:
o 61% were male 
o 39% were female 
o 20% were BME 
o 15% have a disability or learning difficulty 

Sheffield Futures provide referrals for the Apprenticeship programme and as such, follow the 
eligibility criteria set out by the Council. The referral process ensures that each individual 
undertakes a Matrix accredited Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) session. This will 
determine their suitability for the position and follows best practice to ensure that each young 
person possess the qualities and ability to fulfil the position requirements regardless of their needs 
or background and are not ‘set up to fail’.

The uptake for the protected characteristics of BME, disability and learning difficulty can be seen to 
match and also exceed the percentage for the total number of applicants.

Page 136



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 22

Appendix 5 Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty 

5.1  Currently Section 149(1), Equality Act 2010 (the ‘public sector equality duty (PSED)’) places 
a statutory duty on the Council to ‘have due regard’ when exercising its functions to the 
need to:- 

  Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation 

  Advance equality of opportunity  

  Foster good relations 

5.2 This means public bodies have to understand the effect of their policies, practices and 
decisions upon equality. Having due regard to the Duty involves: 

  Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons  

  Taking steps to meet the needs of persons that are different

  Encouraging people to participate in public life  

  Tackling prejudice and promote understanding 

  Steps to take account of disabled persons’ disabilities.

5.3 This Duty has been extended to cover the Act’s relevant “Protected Characteristics”: 

- Age 
- disability 
- race 
- sex 
- pregnancy and maternity 

- gender reassignment 
- religion or belief (including none) 
- sexual orientation 
- marriage and civil partnerships*  
      (*in the Act but not the duty) 

5.4  Section 149(6) recognises that compliance with the duties may involve treating some 
persons more favourably than others.  However, this does not to permit conduct that would 
otherwise be prohibited by or under the Act. 

5.5  In addition to the General Duty there are Specific Duties which came into effect in July 2011. 
These are to: 

  Publish equality objectives every four years starting

  Publish information annually to comply with the General Duty  

  Publish information relating to their employees and others affected by their policies 
and practices

  Publish information in a way that is accessible to the public.

5.6  Section 158 provides that if the Council reasonably thinks that:- 
(a) Persons who share a protected characteristic suffer a disadvantage connected to it 
(b) Persons who share a protected characteristic have needs that are different from the 

needs of persons who do not share it, or 
(c) Participation in an activity by persons who share a protected characteristic is 

disproportionately low, 

Then the Act does not prohibit the Council from taking any action which is a proportionate 
means of achieving the aim of:- 
(i) Enabling or encouraging persons who share the protected characteristic to overcome or 

minimise that disadvantage, 
(ii) Meeting those needs, or enabling or encouraging persons who share the protected 

characteristic to participate in that activity. 

Page 137



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 23

Appendix 6: Key population issues for Sheffield

 There have been more females than males in the population, due largely to higher life 

expectancy for women.  The numbers have been converging and are projected to meet in 

2015, after which there will be more males than females in Sheffield, 5,000 more by 2035. 

 There are still more women among the very elderly: 15600 aged 80 or more, compared to 

8,900 men. 

 The increase in Sheffield’s population has been driven largely by migration, although there 

has also been an increase in births in recent years.  The number of young adults has 

increased markedly in recent years, 20-34 year olds increasing by around 41,200 since 

2002 around 8%. 

 The population is moving back into a period of ageing.  This will show particularly in the very 

elderly population, with a 21% increase in the 80+ population by 2021. The numbers of 0-

15s will increase by 16% in the same period. There may be increasing pressure on school 

places in the next few years. 

 The most recent Office of National Statistics (ONS) estimates (2009) suggest that the BME 

population in Sheffield makes up 17% of the total.  The BME population is not evenly spread 

across the city. 

 Disability in Sheffield is often difficult to map and analyse. There is no agreed definition 

which allows for a measurement of the numbers of disabled people. The 2001 Census 

indicated that the number of adults with a long term limiting illness in Sheffield was 105,815, 

equivalent to around 20% of the population.

 At the city level, Disability Living Allowance claimants in Sheffield have increased from 

27,560 in 2002 (5.3% of the total population) to 32,800 in 2009 (5.9% of the total 

population).  

Page 138



Appendix 7: Staff Survey and Workforce Profile 2011 

There are issues for all staff reflected in the survey but there are key difference related to particular 
equality characteristics. Below is an overview of issues from across portfolios.

  LGB scores have fallen significantly and Trans staff most unhappy 

  Disabled staff scores have increased but are still significantly lower

  BME staff scores fell, however the fall was lower than the scores for all staff so the 
difference decreased. Still lower overall.

  Women, carers, transgender and under 30s staff fell significantly.

  There are significant differences in Portfolios e.g. LGBT staff in CYPF and Resources 
increased and fell in Place and Communities. Some service areas have a much higher 
percentage of BME, LGB, disabled, carers and trans staff and this impacts on scores. This is 
being explored as we prioritise actions. *See full staff survey results further overview below 

Equalities Group Scores ! 2010 and 2011

55.5

61.7
64.7

60.0
57.3

47.1
49.2

34.4

0.6

57.4 58.6

53.8 55.0
52.5 53.1

45.7

29.3

39.1

!30.0

40.7

54.0
56.0

!40

!20

0

20

40

60

80

M
al
e

Fe
m
al
e

U
nd
er
30

30
!4
9

50
 a
nd

 o
ve
r

BM
E

LG
B

D
is
ab
le
d

Tr
an
sg
en
de
r

Ca
re
r

A
ll

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 S
co
re

2010

2011

Job Group Scores ! 2010 and 2011

56.6
59.1

93.5

49.6
53.5

57.8 56.1

63.1

83.1

58.6

48.3

57.5

98.7

28.5

22.6

54.1
50.1

69.9 70.3

54.0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Non!manual !

up to £20,000

Non!manual ! 

£20,000 !

£40,000

Non!manual ! 

Over £40,000

Manual &

Craft

Other Permanent,

full!time

Permanent,

part!time

Permanent,

job!share

Temp/casual/

relief

A
v
e
ra
g
e

 S
co
re

2010

2011

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 24Page 139



Workforce Profiles 
There are a number of employees who choose not tell us information about their “protected 
characteristic” on the Employee Census. For example if they are disabled or not. The way 
employee data is presented and reported is that we do not make any assumption about them and 
we record that as an unknown percentage. The workforce profiles below are therefore calculated 
as a percentage of those staff that have told us information about themselves for example they are 
disabled or not. The unknown is shown as an additional percentage amount.

The monitoring information is anonymous and is used for example to see whether certain staff 
groups are disproportionately more likely to be made vulnerable to redundancy.

The information below is segmented into the different Portfolios of the Council, so we can monitor 
where we need to take any action to address issues.

Gender Profile

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

A
x
is

 T
it
le

Female 77.72% 79.65% 72.28% 33.27% 54.55% 64.37%

Male 22.28% 20.35% 27.72% 66.73% 45.45% 35.63%

Children Young 

People and 

Families

Communities  

Portfolio

Deputy Chief 

Executive Team
Place Portfolio

Resources 

Portfolio
Council  Total

Top 5% Gender Profile

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

A
x
is

 T
it
le

Female 70.77% 62.86% 40.74% 24.37% 39.80% 54.09%

Male 29.23% 37.14% 59.26% 75.63% 60.20% 45.91%

Children Young 

People and 

Communities  

Portfolio

Deputy Chief 

Executive Team
Place Portfolio

Resources  

Portfolio
Grand Total

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 25Page 140



Ethnicity Profile

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

A
x
is

 T
it
le

BME % 14.72% 11.46% 7.44% 5.67% 8.62% 10.41%

White % 85.28% 88.54% 92.56% 94.33% 91.38% 89.59%

Not Known % 16.86% 10.19% 9.36% 19.66% 9.73% 14.10%

Children Young 

People and 

Families

Communities  

Portfolio

Deputy Chief 

Executive Team
Place Portfolio

Resources 

Portfolio
Council  Total

Top 5% Ethnicity Profile

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

A
x
is

 T
it
le

BME % 8.44% 7.58% 9.09% 5.94% 3.57% 7.01%

White % 91.56% 92.42% 90.91% 94.06% 96.43% 92.99%

Not Known % 20.77% 5.71% 18.52% 15.13% 14.29% 16.69%

Children Young 

People and 

Families

Communities  

Portfolio

Deputy Chief 

Executive Team
Place Portfolio

Resources 

Portfolio
Council  Total

More detailed Ethnicity breakdown excludes “English/Welsh/Scottish/N.Irish/British” at 76.96 %

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 26Page 141



Disability Profile

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

A
x
is

 T
it
le

Disabled % 3.69% 5.87% 5.26% 2.75% 5.46% 4.51%

Non!Disabled % 96.31% 94.13% 94.74% 97.25% 94.54% 95.49%

Unknown % 50.58% 55.10% 43.07% 55.65% 48.19% 52.94%

Children Young 

People and 

Families

Communities  

Portfolio

Deputy Chief 

Executive Team
Place Portfolio

Resources  

Portfolio
Council  Total

Top 5% Disability Profile

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

A
x
is

 T
it
le

Disabled % 1.59% 7.50% 0.00% 2.86% 0.00% 2.26%

Non!Disabled % 98.41% 92.50% 100.00% 97.14% 100.00% 97.74%

Unknown % 55.63% 42.86% 33.33% 41.18% 43.88% 48.25%

Children Young 

People and 

Communities  

Portfolio

Deputy Chief 

Executive Team
Place Portfolio

Resources  

Portfolio
Grand Total

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 27

Sexual Orientation Profile

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

A
x
is

 T
it
le

Heterosexual 95.65% 95.77% 97.24% 98.35% 97.93% 96.84%

Bi!sexual, Gay, & Lesbian 4.35% 4.23% 2.76% 1.65% 2.07% 3.16%

Unknown 59.78% 48.25% 33.94% 40.99% 43.43% 48.39%

Children 

Young People 

and Families

Communities  

Portfolio

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

Team

Place 

Portfolio

Resources 

Portfolio
Council  Total

Page 142



Age Profile % of Portfolio

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

A
x
is

 T
it
le

25 And Under 5.00% 6.87% 3.00% 6.62% 1.59% 5.59%

26 ! 35 21.81% 15.86% 29.59% 16.56% 15.92% 17.92%

36 ! 45 25.64% 26.28% 27.34% 24.03% 24.49% 25.39%

46 ! 55 32.70% 33.64% 29.96% 34.07% 36.69% 33.79%

56 ! 65 14.29% 16.67% 10.11% 16.42% 17.77% 15.92%

Over 65 0.56% 0.68% 0.00% 2.30% 3.54% 1.39%

Children Young 

People and 

Families

Communities  

Portfolio

Deputy Chief 

Executive Team
Place Portfolio

Resources  

Portfolio
Council  Totals

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 28Page 143



Appendix 8 EW Group Review Scores 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 29Page 144



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 30Page 145



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 31Page 146



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 32Page 147



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 33Page 148



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 34Page 149



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 35

Appendix 9: Reports on key areas of persistent Inequality

Reports on key areas of persistent Inequality  

a) Employment and Skills and Financial Exclusion  

b) Education – attainment, absenteeism and exclusion 

c) Health:  Health Inequalities Action plan 2010 – 2013 - key issues 

d) Community safety* 

A:  Employment and Skills and Financial Exclusion * 

Material deprivation (in particular living in poverty) has been seen to exclude people (particularly 
children and older people) from many aspects of social life, leading through isolation and psycho-
social stress, to ill health.  Disabled people are particularly at risk, as the unemployment and 
disability can become mutually reinforcing.  Recent work by Sheffield Hallam University identified 
some of the key barriers to work. Among these was poor health, lack of confidence, lack of skills, 
transport difficulties, lack of access to training, a tight job 

It is clear then to help people access work and better opportunities we need to address wider 
barriers to work, such as social skills, confidence and language barriers, as well as addressing 
social exclusion, social immobility and increasing job skills. 

The emphasis upon work and paid employment as the main route out of poverty may place women 
at a disadvantage. Women undertake large amounts of ‘unpaid’ work as carers and work in the 
community through voluntary work.  Much of this is not recognised as work.  

“Expecting women to fill the looming care gap also jeopardises women’s presence in the work 
place. Recent years have seen a dramatic increase in the number of women working, but the 
coalition government looks set to push those women back into the home through removing the 
many service and benefits that have enabled them to get out there and earn a living (1)

Women make up 65 per cent of the public sector workforce; some 40 per cent of women in work in 
the UK are employed in this sector. Women working full-time are paid on average 15.5% less an 
hour than men for doing work of equivalent value. Women pensioners also therefore tend to be 
poorer than male pensioners. 

Approximately 50,000 of Sheffield's working age residents (13.1%) were claiming out of work 
benefits in August 2011. This was higher than the national rate of 12.3%, but on a par with 
Yorkshire and Humberside. Nearly half are claiming Employment and Support Allowance, 
Incapacity Benefit or Severe Disablement Allowance. The distribution of IB/ESA claimants varies 
widely across the city with more than one in ten working age residents on these benefits in Norton, 
Nether Shire, Burngreave, Park, Firth Park, Southey Green and Manor. The Manor has the highest 
rate with 14.1% of working age residents on IB/ESA. In contrast, fewer than 3 people in 100 were 
claiming these benefits in Broomhill, Ecclesall and Hallam2.

This area is of increasing importance given the short and long term impacts of recession. Since 
June 2008 Job Seeker Allowance registrations have been rising. Any reduction in claimants has 
halted, as the number of employment opportunities reduce and competition for jobs intensifies.

  In Sheffield there are 16,400 Job seeker allowance claimants, 41.2% of whom have been 
out of work for 6 months or longer. 

1
Fawcett society 2011

2
 Sheffield Hallam University Fairness Commission evidence 2012 

Page 150



 In addition there are 32,800 individuals on ‘out of work benefits’, approximately 10,000 of 
whom are suffering from ‘mental or behavioural problems’.3

BME people have lower average rates of employment; females have lower rates of employment, 
with ethnic minority females having much lower rates of employment than all other groups. 

Sheffield

Employment Rate (age 16-64) Percent

White + 67.0

Ethnic Minority ! 55.3

White Males 68.6

Ethnic Minority Males 66.3

White Females 65.3

Ethnic Minority Females 45.2

Source: Annual Population Survey (ONS, 2010) 

+ ‘White’ includes all ‘White’ ethnic groups. ! ‘Ethnic Minority’ includes all ‘Non-White’ ethnic groups. 

In full-time employment, in Sheffield, women earn lower wages than men 

Sex
Weekly pay - 
gross

Hourly pay - excluding overtime 

Male Full Time Workers £507.90 £12.70

Female Full Time Workers £415.80 £10.81

Full Time Workers £476.00 £12.24

Source: Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ONS, 2010) 

Higher claimant count rates for non-white ethnic minorities.  Female claimant counts may be lower 
due to measurements applying to households, or fewer females actively seeking paid work (due to 
other commitments, such as childcare). 

Claimant Count by Ethnicity & Gender (JSA Claimants second quarter 2011) 

Ethnicity Date Male Female Total

White April 2011 5.2% 2.4% 3.9%

Ethnic Minority April 2011 7.5% 3.1% 5.5%

Source: Nomis (2011) 

+ ‘White’ includes all ‘White’ ethnic groups. ! ‘Ethnic Minority’ includes all ‘Non-White’ ethnic groups. 

Unemployment levels in Sheffield measured by claimant rates have doubled between 2008 and 
2010 (from 2.5% to 4.8%) in response to recession. Sheffield has performed strongly in terms of 
having a large proportion of people with high levels of educational attainment (NVQ4 and above). 

 In terms of child poverty 37% of Sheffield is in the bottom 30% of areas, with 21% of all children in 
the city living in households receiving council tax benefit or housing benefit. It is also estimated that 
25% of children in Sheffield live in low income households. Despite this, most children in Sheffield 
have a positive view of their future, although patterns of aspiration vary considerably across the 
city. Our overall performance on attainment still lags below the national average. 

                                           

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 36

3
Sheffield City Council (2010), State of Sheffield 2010, Chapter7 Healthy and Independent, pg3

Page 151



The map below shows how deprivation is distributed across the city, with the most deprived areas 
being concentrated in the east and north east of the city (although with pockets elsewhere

The reasons for this divide are largely historical and reflect the development and expansion of the 
city over the last two hundred years or so.  As noted in Poverty and Deprivation in Sheffield 4. This 
divide was subsequently reinforced by Sheffield’s administrative geography. Unlike other 
metropolitan areas around cities like Manchester and Birmingham, Sheffield did not have a large or 
distinct enough conurbation to form an inner core to a cluster of surrounding districts. 

The concentration in the North-East of the city has resulted in deprivation becoming more 
entrenched than in most other English cities.  Studies of the relationship of small areas of the city 
to their nearest neighbours show a much higher proportion in Sheffield than other cities of areas in 
the 20 percent most deprived being completely surrounded by similarly deprived areas. 

There is a correlation between income inequality and health and social problems with key 
determinants of poverty including adult unemployment, generations of worklessness and low paid 
often part-time casual work. The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 5 states that a combination of 
reduced opportunities to achieve and be economically active, poor access to services and low 
quality living conditions all contribute towards increased income inequality.

Analysis of the 2010 index of Multiple Deprivation shows that the two biggest areas of inequality by 
these measures are around education/training/skills and income. 

Proposed welfare reform changes will have a detrimental impact on some of our poorer residents 
and could lead to increased inequality and unfairness across Sheffield, although at this stage the 
impact is difficult to calculate.  There is also concern that welfare changes will disproportionately 
impact on women. 

                                           
4
 https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/your-city-council/policy--performance/fairness-commission/background-papers.html 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 37

5
 https://www.sheffieldfirst.com/the-partnership/health-and-well-being-partnership/jsna.html 

Page 152



The cumulative impact of housing benefit changes will impact on people’s incomes, possibly affect 
their ability to pay their rent, affect their choice of and access to affordable housing and could 
ultimately increase indebtedness amongst a cohort of customers who are already financially 
vulnerable.

Those facing the risk of labour market disadvantage in Sheffield include the low skilled; lone 
parents; individuals who have suffered domestic abuse or substance misuse; ethnic minorities and 
migrants; ex-offenders; the homeless; people with physical disabilities and sensory impairments; 
and, those with learning disabilities and mental health problems. Key barriers to work include poor 
health, lack of confidence, lack of skills, transport difficulties, and lack of access to training

B)  Education – attainment, absenteeism and exclusion 

Analysis over recent years has shown a clear relationship between deprivation and educational 
attainment. Evidence suggests that life chances in Sheffield are often pre-determined by the 
material circumstances in which people are born into.  In pure education terms, we know that by 
the age of 7 the life chances of children are beginning to diverge and continue to widen as children 
progress through school and college. See Scrutiny Report for further details
http://meetings.sheffield.gov.uk/council-meetings/scrutiny/childrenandyoungpeople/agendas-2012/agenda-23rd-
february-2012

  Attainment for Free School meals (FSM) pupils increased at primary level between 2010 
and 2011. The attainment gap closed at KS2 but remained stable or increased slightly at 
KS1. Attainment increased and attainment gaps closed for pupils living in the 20% most 
deprived neighbourhoods. 

  Progress made by pupils receiving FSM and pupils in the most deprived neighbourhoods 
has improved in both English and maths at KS2 and KS4. The gap in progress for KS2 
English is now close to zero although there is a gap of ~8% for maths. The gap in progress 
becomes significantly wider between KS2 and KS4 and is around 25% for English and 35% 
for maths. Figure 1 below highlights the differentials in GCSE attainment at Ward Level. 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 38

 Figure 1 

Arbourthorne

Beauchief and 

Greenhill

Beighton Broomhill

Burngreave

Central

Crookes

Darnall

Dore and Totley

Ecclesall

Firth Park

Fulwood

Gleadless Valley

Graves Park

Manor Castle

Mosborough

Richmond

Shiregreen and 

Brightside

Walkley

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

20.0 30.0 40.0 50.0 60.0 70.0 80.0 90.0

ID
 2
01

0 
Sc
or
e

% 5+  A*!!C GCSE including English and Maths

GCSE Attainment 2009/10 and ID2010 ! Wards

Page 153



Attainment for traditionally vulnerable groups of learners at the end of Key Stage 2 (those reaching 

the expected norm of Level 4+ in both English and mathematics) is variable.  Whilst city wide 

attainment has continued to rise at Key Stage 2 and 4, it has not done so consistently and for all 

groups of young people. Schools in the city are not closing the gap between the performance of all 

learners and those from specific BME backgrounds.

Pupils with special education needs are more than twice as likely to be excluded as a pupil without 

these needs, and there is also an overrepresentation of children from a BME background that are 

excluded from Sheffield schools. 

Attendance at schools has improved faster in Sheffield than nationally, but persistent absenteeism 

and children not in school continues to be a problem, with children from white working class 

backgrounds and children receiving free school meals more likely to become persistent absentees.

For those children where elements of early years development are lacking, there is a marked 

tendency towards poor language development, slower progress and behavioural problems at 

school by Year 6.  The gap in outcomes between average learners and those who have 

experienced disadvantage are apparent by key stage 1. This gap continues to widen thereafter. By 

the age of 16 only 23.9% of young people in receipt of free school meals in 2011 achieved 5 A*-C 

including English and maths compared to 53.7% of those without. Educational attainment at age 16 

is the single most important factor that determines success by the age of 19 

For extensive graphical analysis see the above scrutiny report. 

Figure 2

Comparison of 2010 and 2011 EARLY YEARS Foundation Stage Outcomes

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

W
hi
te

 B
rit

is
h

Iri
sh

Tra
ve

lle
r or

 Ir
is
h 

H
er

ita
ge

G
yp

sy
- R

om
a

Any
 o

th
er

W
hi
te

In
di
an

P
ak

is
ta

ni

B
an

gl
ad

es
hi

Any
 o

th
er

 A
si
an

Bla
ck

 C
ar

ib
be

an

S
om

al
i

O
th

er
 B

la
ck

 A
fri

ca
n

Any
 o

th
er

 B
la
ck

W
hi
te

an
d

Bla
ck

 C
ar

ib
be

an

W
hi
te

 a
nd

Bla
ck

 A
fri

ca
n

W
hi
te

 a
nd

 P
ak

is
ta

ni

W
hi
te

 a
nd

an
y 
ot

he
r A

si
an

Any
ot

he
r M

ix
ed

C
hi

ne
se

Y
em

en
i

Any
 o

th
er

 E
th

ni
c 
gr

ou
p

Ethnic Groups

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
C

o
h

o
rt

N172 - 2010
N172 - 2011
N192 - 2011 Bottom 20%

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 39Page 154



Figure 3 - Early Years Assessments by Ethnicity 2010-11
3 years comparison by Ethnicity of KS2 L4+ combined English and Maths 

Figure 4 Years comparison by Ethnicity and Gender of KS4 – 5+ GCSE A*-C incl. English & 
Maths

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 40Page 155



Figure 5 - 2010 Year 11 - Young People’s Destination by % Cohort 

WHITE 

TOTAL

MIXED

TOTAL

ASIAN

TOTAL

BLACK

TOTAL

Any Other 

Ethnic

Group

Full Time Education 77.9 78.5 89.8 92.1 88.4

Full Time Training (non 

emp) 4.9 5.7 2.4 1.6 3.2

Employment with 

Training 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Employment without 

Training 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Part Time Employment
0.3 0.9 0.2 0.0 0.0

NEET 4.3 4.8 3.1 2.8 1.1

Moved out of contact 0.3 0.4 1.4 2.4 2.1

WHITE 

TOTAL

MIXED

TOTAL

ASIAN

TOTAL

BLACK

TOTAL

Any Other 

Ethnic

Group

Full Time Education 77.9 78.5 89.8 92.1 88.4

Full Time Training (non 

emp) 4.9 5.7 2.4 1.6 3.2

Employment with 

Training 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Employment without 

Training 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Part Time Employment
0.3 0.9 0.2 0.0 0.0

NEET 4.3 4.8 3.1 2.8 1.1

Moved out of contact 0.3 0.4 1.4 2.4 2.1

Figure 6- FSM Gap 

FSM Gap - % of pupils achieving 5+ A* - C 

GCSEs including English & Maths

• Gap widened in 2011

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 41Page 156



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 42

C) Health:  Health Inequalities Action plan 2010 – 2013 key issues 

Health Inequalities are of enormous concern to Sheffield - both in the Council and NHS Sheffield. 
For far too long such inequalities have meant that lives are cut short and people are not living life to 
the full and enjoying opportunities open to them. It is totally wrong that some people in the City 
should have fewer opportunities, less life chances, worse access to services, and worse treatment 
than others, through no fault of their own. Inequalities in general give rise to health inequalities. 

Although there was some reduction in the differences in life expectancy across the City in the early 
part of the last decade, that progress now appears to have stalled. Overall, differences in health 
experience remain significant and persistent over many decades. Because a significant proportion 
of illness is linked with socio-economic disadvantage, the pattern of health inequality is remarkably 
consistent irrespective of the particular measure chosen. As previously noted, a separate response 
on Health Inequalities has been provided to the Fairness Commission 

Health Inequalities Action Plan (HIAP) has been developed in Partnership with NHS Sheffield to 
respond the challenge of growing Inequalities in Sheffield.

An individual’s health is determined by material circumstances, including the physical environment, 
social cohesion, as well as psycho-social factors, behaviour and biological factors. These 
circumstances are influenced by social position which is itself a factor of education, occupation, 
income, gender, ethnicity and race etc. The difference in life expectancy across Sheffield is 
approximately 11 years for men and just over 6 for women. 

  Sheffield – Male life expectancy at birth: 77.5 years. 

  Sheffield – Female life expectancy at birth: 81.5 years. 

In Sheffield, differences in death rates and life expectancy between different parts of the City have 
been documented in Director of Public Health reports for over a century. The pattern of distribution 
of health inequalities across the City has changed little over the decades, even though the absolute 
levels of health have improved enormously. More recently, there has been extensive 
documentation of inequalities in health across the City, with analyses undertaken both at ward 
level, and at neighbourhood level.  

Although there was some reduction in the differences in life expectancy across the City in the early 
part of the last decade, that progress now appears to have stalled. Overall, differences in health 
experience remain significant and persistent over many decades. Because a significant proportion 
of illness is linked with socio-economic disadvantage, the pattern of health inequality is remarkably 
consistent irrespective of the particular measure chosen. Key areas are highlighted in the health 
Inequalities action plan. 

There are a number of key factors which contribute to inequalities in maternal, child and young 
people’s health outcomes in Sheffield. These are: 

  Pregnant women who smoke are more likely to have a premature baby, or a baby with 
low birth weight.

  Smoking in pregnancy is strongly related to socio-economic status and the prevalence 
varies from 0% to 40% across Sheffield neighbourhoods.

  Breastfeeding leads to significant health benefits and has a major role in reducing 
inequalities for both baby and mother. There is wide variation in breastfeeding initiation 
rates across the City, from fewer than 50% in some neighbourhoods, to over 90% in 
others.

 Children who are overweight are at higher risk of developing serious health problems 
both as children and in later life. Within Sheffield there are notable variations in childhood 

Page 157



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 43

overweight and obesity, with some schools having significantly higher levels than the 
national average.

  Teenage pregnancy is strongly associated with low birth weight, poor neonatal outcomes 
and reduced life chances for the mother and child.

Teenage pregnancy has declined since 2002, although Sheffield is unlikely to meet a 50 percent 
reduction target for this year. A higher proportion of children in Sheffield use alcohol and drugs 
than is the case nationally). Further, bullying and safety are issues raised by children and young 
people. In a survey of school-based staff about support to LGBT young people 72% of respondents 
indicated that homophobia was either fairly serious or a significant issue. 

On average approx. 28% of the general population smoke this is higher in BME communities, 42% 
for Bangladeshi and African/ Caribbean's 39% Irish 

Mental health is estimated to affect one in six adults, at some point in their lives and it is estimated 
that there are around 84,500 adults in Sheffield suffering from depression and anxiety. BME 
communities are over represented in care trusts / hospitals with African men up to 6 times more 
likely to be sectioned under the Mental Health Act. 1983 

South Asian men are 50% more likely to die prematurely from coronary heart disease and a stroke 
is 70% higher in African and Caribbean and South Asian communities. Men of African descent are 
nearly 3 times more likely to be diagnosed with prostate cancer. 

There is a direct proven link between deprivation, ill health and its causes. In this respect drug use, 
smoking prevalence, alcohol overconsumption, poor diet, lack of physical activity and obesity are 
all more prevalent in areas of high deprivation.

Understanding the relationship between health and employment is an integral part of preventing 
and finding solutions to health inequalities. It is clear that getting people into employment is 
important for improving health, as employment, job security and attaining ‘better’ jobs have 
significant bearing on the way people live and feel. 

Page 158



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 44

D: Community Safety – Feeling safe and Housing*

Feeling safe - The wellbeing of the City’s residents is seriously affected by the reality and fear of 
crime and disorder, and therefore any inequality in distribution of these factors are likely to create 
associated health inequalities. In this way ‘Keeping Sheffield Safe’, (the community safety strategy) 
is key to reducing inequality. Gender, disability, age, ethnicity and where you live are significantly 
associated with feelings of safety. 

The relationship between feelings of safety and gender is most evident at night as females report 
feeling far less safe than males.40.7% of females felt unsafe walking out alone at night compared 
to 29.1% of males.

Gender also has a relationship with perceptions and use of parks and green spaces. Overall a 
higher percentage of males reported visiting parks at all frequencies except 2-3 times a year. A 
significantly higher percentage of females disagree that parks are welcoming and feel parks are 
unsafe.

Disabled people are also more likely to perceive crime to be a serious problem than non-disabled 
people. 36.1% of disabled people felt that crime was a serious problem compared to 30.1% of non-
disabled people. There is also a significant association between disability and status feelings of 
safety. A higher % of those with disabilities felt unsafe when at home alone in the day, home alone 
at night, walking out alone in the day and walking out alone at night. 

A higher % of non-BME respondents reported feeling unsafe when walking out alone at night and a 
higher % of BME respondents reported feeling unsafe when in their house alone at night. BME 
respondents were also more likely to feel unsafe when alone in the house during the day. 33% of 
BME people feel unsafe when out in their local area after dark, compared to 27% of White British 
people. 39% of BME people consider drug dealing and drug use to be a big problem in their areas, 
compared to 25% of White British. 

Feelings of safety as well as perceptions of crime severity also differed between age groups. Age 
appears to affect feelings of safety both in and out of the house and in the day, as well as at night. 
In all cases the oldest age group had the highest percentage of those who felt unsafe apart from 
when walking out alone at night 

There is also a relationship between ACORN grouping and feelings of safety. Those in the hard-
pressed group have a higher percentage of people that feel unsafe when they are at home alone in 
the day (5.1%). Feelings of safety increase as wealth increases. Only 1% of wealthy achievers feel 
unsafe when they are at home alone in the day. 6

*(

Housing - There is currently a shortage of good quality affordable housing in Sheffield. Living in 
poor and inappropriate housing conditions has a direct correlation with ill health. The provision of 
good quality affordable accommodation will reduce health inequalities. Very often it is the most 
vulnerable people in the City, whose health outcomes are worst, who have the worst housing 
conditions, or are homeless. 

The availability of affordable homes is one of the city’s major challenges.  The number of new 
completions has fallen from a peak of 2,882 completions in 2007/8, to 919 in 2010/11.  The number 
of affordable homes provided through developer contributions was only 21 in the last three years. 

6
Sheffield Household Survey 2007) 

Page 159



In terms of housing quality 92% of council housing meets the Decent Homes Standard (being 
warm, weatherproof and having reasonable facilities). This compares to 63% of private housing 
and only 55% of privately rented housing. The condition of the private housing stock is concerning.  
The increasing cost of living in relation to earnings means that property maintenance often takes a 
lower priority.

The spread of social stock in the city is not even and some areas of the city have large numbers of 
similar property types. Wards in the south west of the city have less than 10% of the social stock 
and wards in the east have over 40%. 

At least 1 in 10 of Sheffield’s population have some sort of impairment or long term health 
condition, over 50,000 people.  Customer profiling highlights that for Sheffield Homes, 3 in 10 
tenants declare themselves as having a disability or longstanding health condition. This presents a 
number of significant housing challenges in providing appropriate support services for customers 
with a range of vulnerabilities and in maintaining and adapting a housing stock suitable for a high 
proportion of disabled tenants and their changing lifestyle needs. Also 2 in every 5 tenants are now 
over 60, with more than a quarter of all tenants aged over 70 

Youth Justice Service Report 

The Youth Justice Service continues to set a key target around disproportionality within the annual 
youth justice plan. The table below shows how the youth offending cohort in the city has changed 
over the past three years alongside the changing demographic of the 10 – 17 population. The 
indicator consists of separate figures for each of the ethnic groups rather than a single figure for

% of 
Youth
Justice
pop. In 
2009/10

% of 
General
pop. In 
2009/10

% of 
Youth
Justice
pop. In 
2010/11

% of 
General
pop. In 
2010/11

% of 
Youth
Justice
pop. In 
2011/12

% of 
General
pop. In 
2011/12

%
Difference
of Youth 
Justice
pop.
Between 
2009 and 
2012

%
Difference
of General 
pop.
Between 
2009 and 
2012

White 79.00% 76.30% 78.90% 75.70% 75.50% 74.90% -3.50% -1.40%

Mixed 7.10% 3.80% 7.20% 3.90% 10.00% 4.20% 2.90% 0.40%

Asian 5.70% 7.70% 6.00% 8.00% 6.60% 8.30% 0.90% 0.60%

Black 7.10% 4.30% 6.30% 4.40% 6.20% 4.40% -0.90% 0.10%

Chinese 1.10% 2.40% 1.60% 2.50% 1.60% 2.70% 0.50% 0.30%

the overall BME group, otherwise the under-represented groups counter-balance the over-
represented groups – giving the false impression there is no over-representation of particular BME 
groups. Ethnicity categories at 5+1 level are used since figures for 16+1 categories would be too 
small to allow meaningful analysis. 

The table below shows overrepresentation, based on demographic of the city, within the white, 
black and mixed category of young people with mixed being the most significantly overrepresented. 

Fig 1 

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 45Page 160



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 46

The tables of data set out below show that over the last three years there has been some 
movement across the tiers of criminal justice disposals. Within the BME cohort of young people 
there is an increase in both the pre-court and community sentences disposals over the last year 
along with a reduction to 39.5% of custodial sentences from 41.3% the previous year. However the 
data continues to reflect an overall overrepresentation of BME young people being sentenced to 
custody. An analysis of these cases suggests that gravity of offences is the predominant factor. 

The YJS is currently refreshing its race equality action plan within the service to focus attention on 
reducing disproportionality of BME groups and develop interventions and training for front line staff 
on direct work with BME young people to maximise engagement. The service has also adopted the 
Youth Justice Boards disproportionality tool kit which is designed to show trends and 
characteristics in groups of young people to support effective targeting and interventions. Work is 
continuing within the newly established Community Youth Teams to maintain the increase in 
referrals to prevention services and to ensure that we provide an appropriate service to BME young 
people within all aspects of youth crime prevention. It is clear that there are aspects to this issue 
that continue to be much wider than the YJS and relate to broader issues of achievement, 
attainment and aspirations of BME young people across the city and joined up approach with other 
partners may assist in making some inroads into this area. The Youth Justice Service will be 
reporting performance and actions on this priority to the Safer and Sustainable Communities 
Partnership Board. 

Figs 2 

Ethnicity 2009/10 
Community 
penalties 

Custodial First-tier Pre-
Court 

Grand
Total

White 79.8% 62.5% 80.3% 80.2% 79.5% 

Mixed 11.7% 23.6% 8.7% 4.2% 7.9% 

Asian or Asian British 1.8% 2.8% 3.2% 7.5% 4.7% 

Black or Black British 6.4% 9.7% 7.4% 6.2% 6.8% 

Chinese 0.3% 1.4% 0.4% 1.7% 1.0% 

Figs 3 

Ethnicity 2010/11 
Community 
Penalties Custodial

First
Tier

Pre-
Court 

Grand
Total

White 81.3% 58.6% 78.9% 79.2% 78.5% 

Mixed 6.3% 27.6% 9.5% 5.2% 8.0% 

Asian or Asian British 7.8% 3.4% 5.1% 6.3% 5.8% 

Black or Black British 4.7% 10.3% 4.9% 7.7% 6.3% 

Chinese 0.0% 0.0% 1.6% 1.6% 1.4% 

 Figs 4 

Ethnicity 2011/12 
Community 
penalties custodial first-tier 

pre-
court

Grand
Total

White 78.3% 60.5% 80.1% 72.7% 75.5% 

Mixed 12.5% 11.6% 7.4% 10.9% 10.0% 

Asian or Asian British 4.2% 4.7% 5.6% 9.2% 6.6% 

Black or Black British 4.2% 20.9% 4.6% 5.9% 6.2% 

Chinese 0.8% 2.3% 2.3% 1.3% 1.6% 

* Youth Justice Service Manager June 2012 

Page 161



Domestic Abuse Equalities Report 2011/12 
In Sheffield 23% of the total recorded violent crime is as a result of domestic abuse; from April 
2010 to March 2011 South Yorkshire Police recorded 9,282 incidents of domestic abuse in 
Sheffield and it is believed that 2 - 4 domestic violence homicides occur in Sheffield each year on 
average.

The Home Office ‘Ready Reckoner’ tool estimates that 10,300 women and girls (aged 15-59) will 
experience domestic abuse, 6,772 will be the victims of a sexual assault, and 12,187 will 
experience stalking and harassment in Sheffield each year (2009 population figures) with the cost 
to services at over £104 million.  

Sheffield Domestic Abuse Partnership collects data from three services that are co-located and 
work closely with South Yorkshire Police’s Public Protection Unit and the Social Care Joint 
Investigation team. These services are the Domestic Abuse Helpline, the Sheffield Domestic 
Abuse Outreach Service and the Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy Service (all provided 
by VCF specialist providers).

In 2011/ 12 the service totals for these services were:  

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 47

2011-12

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTALS for year 

Helpline 653 641 645 742 2681

Outreach 128 96 57 107 388
IDVAs (Snig 
Hill) 153 159 116 141 569
IDVAs
(Jessops) 36 62 83 82 263

IDVAS A & E 45 37 82

Quarter
Service total 970 958 946 1109 3983

Diversity information about the person can sometimes be difficult to obtain, especially for the 
helpline service as people sometimes want to call confidentially and do not wish to disclose 
personal information. Or the worker may find it difficult to ask for this information when a caller is 
distressed. However, services are working to reduce the proportion of unassigned data or where 
the question was not asked.  The data that was gathered for last year is as follows: 

Gender Female Male Unassigned

3556 184 243

Proportion of total 89.3% 4.6% 6%

Disability Yes No
Unassigned / not 
asked

 245 1766 1972 

Proportion of total 6.2% 44.3% 49.4%

Page 162



Age
Under
18 18-24 25-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60+

Unassigned
/ Not known 

17 909 670 1017 703 192 86 389

Proportion
of total 0.004% 22.8% 16.8% 25.5% 17.6% 4.8% 2.1% 9.8% 

Sexual
Orientation
(Only collected 
in Q4) Bisexual

Gay
Man

Gay Woman 
/Lesbian

Heterosexual
/Straight

Not
Asked Not Disclosed 

Q4 1019 1 1 7 859 46 80

Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 48

Ethnicity Asian Black Mixed
Other
ethnic

White
British

White
other Unassigned 

343 202 35 41 2185 719 458

Proportion of 
total 8.6% 5% 0.9% 1% 54.9% 18% 11.5%

Language
needs

A
ra

b
ic

B
e

n
g

a
li

C
h

in
e

s
e

(M
a

n
d

a
rin

)

E
n

g
lis

h

F
a

rs
i

F
re

n
c
h

O
th

e
r

P
o

lis
h

P
u

n
ja

b
i

S
p

a
n

is
h

U
rd

u

U
n

a
s
s
ig

n
e

d
 

11 7 1 2703 9 5 46 17 17 4 24 1139

Proportion
of total

0.3% 0.2% 

0.03

% 

67.9

% 0.2% 0.1% 1% 0.4% 

 

 

0.4% 

 

 

0.1% 

 

 

0.6% 

 

 

28.6

% 

Religion A
th

e
is

t/n
o

n
-

re
lig

io
u

s

C
h

ris
tia

n

M
u

s
lim

N
o

t a
s
k
e

d
 

O
th

e
r

C
 o

f E
 

U
n

a
s
s
ig

n
e

d
 

C
a

th
o

lic

Q3 and 4 data only
(total clients 1808) 144 72 113 74 28 108 1233 36

Proportion of total 
for Q3 andQ4 7.9% 4% 7.4% 4% 1.5% 6% 68.2% 2%

Page 163



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 49

Challenges
The proportion of older people, people with disabilities, under 18s and people identifying as LGBT 
are areas that the services need to address in the current year.
Work is underway to promote domestic abuse pathways in a range of health settings (A and E, 
Jessops, GUM and GPs) and has just started with Adult Social Care and Mental Health services. 
Services have been promoted at Sheffield Pride for the last 2 years.

MARAC data for 2011/12 
The Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) considers the high risk cases of 
domestic abuse in the city on a fortnightly basis. Information is submitted by South Yorkshire Police 
to CAADA (Coordinated Action Against Domestic Abuse) a national agency that collates and 
benchmarks the data. The following is the data report from CAADA for 2011/12. This is useful as a 
local comparison with national diversity data.  

Indicator (all figures 
relate to the 12 month 
period 1st Apr 2011 – 31st

Mar 2012)

Sheffield CAADA’s[1]

recommendation
South
Yorkshire

Most Similar 
Forces
Group

National
Data

Number of MARACs 
sending in data 

1 - 4 40 261

1 Number of cases 
discussed

463 930 1,361 10,443 55,489 

2 Cases per 10,000 of the 
adult female population 

19.8 40 25.3 29.9 26.2

3 Number of children 620 - 1,867 14,052 73,005 

4 % referrals from partner 
agencies

47% 25-40% 43% 34% 38%

5 % referrals from Police 53% 60-75% 57% 66% 62%

6 % repeat referrals 27% 28-40% 21% 24% 23%

7 % BME referrals 18% Local BME population = 17%

8 % LGBT referrals 2% 5% 1% <1% <1%

9 % referrals where the 
victim has a disability 

<1% 5% + 0% 5% 3%

10 % referrals with a male 
victim

4% 4-10% 3% 4% 3%

                                           
[1]

 For a full explanation of CAADAs recommendations and points to consider please see our website
Page 164



H
a

te
 I

n
c

id
e
n

ts
/ 

c
ri

m
e
 b

y
 a

g
g

ra
v
a
ti

n
g

 f
a
c
to

r 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

In
c
id

e
n

ts

2
0
1
0
/2

0
1
1

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2
 

D
IS

A
B
IL

IT
Y

3
3

G
E
N

D
E
R

0
1

R
A
C
IA

L
2
1
7

1
5
8

R
E
L
IG

IO
N

3
0

S
E
X
U

A
L
 

O
R
IE

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 

2
3

1
5

T
R
A
N

S
G

E
N

D
E
R
 

2
3

T
o

ta
l

2
4

8
1

8
0

C
ri

m
e

s

2
0
1
0
/2

0
1
1

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2
 

D
IS

A
B
IL

IT
Y

1
1

R
A
C
IA

L
2
0
1

1
4
9

R
E
L
IG

IO
N

4
1

S
E
X
U

A
L
 

O
R
IE

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 

2
8

1
1

T
o

ta
l

2
3

4
1

6
2

H
a

te
 c

ri
m

e
s
/
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 b

y
 t

y
p

e
 

 

 
 

A
p
r-

1
0

M
a
y
-1

0
Ju

n
-1

0
Ju

l-
1
0

A
u
g
-1

0
S
e
p
-1

0
O

ct
-1

0
N

o
v
-1

0
D

e
c-

1
0

Ja
n
-1

1
F
e
b
-1

1
M

a
r-

1
1

A
S
S
A
U

L
T
 W

IT
H

 I
N

JU
 

R
Y

8
4

3
2

3
6

3
3

2
4

5
  

A
S
S
A
U

L
T
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 

IN
JU

R
Y

1
5

3
3

2
1

1
2

4
  

1
  

C
R
IM

IN
A
L
 D

A
M

A
G

E
 

1
2

2
1

3
3

1
2

3

H
A
R
A
S
S
M

E
N

T
 

3
1

1
1

2
2

IN
C
ID

E
N

T
 (

n
o
n
 c

ri
m

e
d
) 

1
9

2
6

3
1

4
0

1
3

1
2

1
5

2
7

2
5

1
2

1
3

1
5

O
T
H

E
R
 C

R
IM

E
 

3
1

1
1

P
U

B
L
IC

 O
R
D

E
R
 

2
5

1
5

1
5

1
1

6
1
3

5
 

6
1
3

7
7

1
1

T
o

ta
l

5
5

5
4

5
7

6
1

2
7

3
3

2
8

3
8

4
5

2
4

2
4

3
6

A
p
r-

1
1

M
a
y
-1

1
Ju

n
-1

1
Ju

l-
1
1

A
u
g
-1

1
S
e
p
-1

1
O

ct
-1

1
N

o
v
-1

1
D

e
c-

1
1

Ja
n
-1

2
F
e
b
-1

2
M

a
r-

1
2
 

A
S
S
A
U

L
T
 W

IT
H

 I
N

J
 

U
R
Y

3
4

3
1

5
2

4
1

2
1

2

A
S
S
A
U

L
T
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 I

N
J

 
U

R
Y

2
2

2
3

2
  

3
  

1
  

C
R
IM

IN
A
L
 D

A
M

 
A
G

E
2

2
3

6
1

1
  

1
  

2
  

H
A
R
A
S
S
M

 
E
N

T
1

  
1

  
4

  
1

1
1

2
1

IN
C
ID

E
N

T
 (

n
o
n
 c

ri
m

e
d
) 

1
3

2
1

2
7

1
7

1
0

1
3

1
5

9
8

1
5

2
1

1
1

O
T
H

E
R
 C

R
IM

E
 

2
1

P
U

B
L
IC

 O
R

 
D

E
R

5
7

1
1

9
6

8
7

4
8

7
8

6

T
o

ta
l

2
6

3
3

4
7

4
2

2
1

2
9

2
6

1
7

1
8

2
5

3
6

2
2

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 2
0

1
2

 
-

5
0

Page 165



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 51

Appendix 10    SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION POLICY STATEMENT 2012  

A commitment to fairness and Social Justice is at the heart of the Council’s values. We believe that 
everyone should get a fair and equal chance to succeed in Sheffield. We recognise that some 
people and communities need extra help to reach their full potential, particularly when they face 
multiple layers of disadvantage and discrimination. We will work to prevent and oppose 
discrimination and inequality.

The business case for equality, diversity & inclusion (EDI) is strong; good practice will lead to 
benefits for all. We want our workforce culture to promote and embrace EDI; realising that each 
individual adds value to a team.  We know our strength comes from building on and valuing our 
staff and customers’ differences and similarities. By being inclusive we encourage all staff from 
different backgrounds to be themselves and apply their own unique perspectives.  We therefore 
recognise that we need to draw on talent from all sections of the population to be innovative, 
creative and effective in service delivery. We are committed to supporting our workforce to develop 
and to commission or deliver high quality services that meet the needs of everyone in the city 

Promoting equality of opportunity, means creating environments where people have the chance to 
achieve their potential, free from barriers, prejudice and discrimination. Inclusion and equality is not 
about ‘treating everyone the same’ but recognising that everyone is different and that people’s needs are 
met in different ways. This can be as a citizen, customer or employee. Diversity is about understanding 
that each individual is unique, recognising, respecting and celebrating the added value that differences 
bring.

OUR COMMITMENTS 

Creating an environment for our staff and the people of Sheffield:

  That promotes fairness, equality, diversity and inclusion 

  That promotes dignity and respect for all 

  That recognises and values individual differences and the contributions of all. 

  Where people are treated fairly and according to their needs 

  Where intimidation, discrimination, harassment, bullying or victimisation is actively prevented 
and opposed. 

  Where individuals feel valued, included and able to access services 

  That develops our position as an employer of choice and ensures that staff of all 

backgrounds have a positive experience whilst working for the Council.

Meeting the Equality Act 2010 and section 149 the Public Sector Equality Duty to: 

  Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation

  Advance equality of opportunity  

  Foster good relations. 

The relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation or marriage/ civil partnership status.
Every person has one or more of the characteristics, so the Act protects everyone against 
unfair treatment. 

Page 166



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 52

OUR AIMS 

When we make decision, plans and policies, we will aim to:- 

  Design our services to meet the diverse needs of our citizens 

  Prevent, challenge and eliminate inequality

  Involve and consult with individuals and groups as appropriate 

  Conduct appropriate and proportionate equality impact assessments 

  Develop services through local and city-wide partnerships

  Create a cohesive city that fosters good relations and is welcoming to all who live, study, 
work and visit Sheffield

  Create opportunities and reduce barriers to involve people in decision-making processes 
of the city by increasing participation, e.g. in voting, school governing bodies and 
partnership bodies etc.

When we deliver or commission services we will aim to:- 

  Ensure that our services are relevant and take into account different needs 

  Provide information that is clear, accurate and accessible 

  Ensure customers receive a quality service but recognise their different needs 

  Respond to and investigate complaints of bullying, harassment, discrimination or 
victimisation

  Monitor services, analyse gaps in provision, identify any barriers and make reasonable 
adjustments to take individual needs into account

  Have high levels of satisfaction for all citizens, customers or employees 

  Provide personalised services to enable our citizens to live independent lives and make 
their own choices about the type of services they need. 

As an employer we will aim to: 

  Recruit and retain a workforce that reflects the diversity of Sheffield 

  Welcome the contribution made by the experience, knowledge and skills that a diverse 
workforce brings 

  Provide targeted training and development for all our staff and Members; 

  Train our workforce to meet the needs of our customers 

  Provide an environment free from harassment, discrimination or victimisation

  Promote dignity and respect and provide an environment of mutual trust

  Take action to tackle disproportionate differences in access, progress and outcomes 

  Listen to staff suggestions for improving our services and ways of working 

  Promote flexible working to help staff to balance their work and personal commitments, 
reduce stress, absenteeism and achieve their full potential  

  Inform people both inside and outside of the Council of our actions and achievements in 
relation to equality and diversity. 

RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

We all have a right to be treated fairly and with dignity and respect. For this to happen we also 
have a responsibility to ensure that our own actions and behaviours are fair and that we respect 
the dignity of others.

This Policy applies to all: 

Page 167



Governance and Involvement Team 2012 - 53

  Council Members; 

  Customers and those applying to access services 

  Contractors, sub contractors and consultants  

  Partners delivering commissioned services 

  Employees, whether part-time, full-time or temporary

  Student and volunteer placements 

Support to Implement the Policy 

All our policies and practices will be supported by training or briefing sessions and guidance. For 
the equality, diversity and Inclusion policy we will provide: 

  General and bespoke equality, diversity and inclusion training  

  Advice and guidance is from, HR and Corporate and Portfolio equality leads  

  Information on the Intranet and Internet and via Council communication systems. 

For further support and guidance on the Policy or EDI issues go our website link

Monitoring Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

All of our policies contribute to our overall aims around equality, diversity and Inclusion such as 
those relating to employment, service delivery, community engagement, commissioning and 
procurement. These are specifically designed to promote equality of opportunity and protect people 
against and eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation.
We collect and analyse data relating to these areas of policy, to identify trends and potential areas 
of inequality, and then take appropriate action. 

Promoting, communicating and ensuring Equality, Diversity & Inclusion 

We will use all available routes to communicate & promote this policy. This will include key 
messages and challenges, induction events for new staff, information on the intranet and internet 
and specific events. 

  Elected Members will promote our commitment to E DI 

  Executive Management Team will be responsible for the overall management and direction 
of our E DI commitments 

  The Strategic Equality Board will oversee this policy and monitor how far we are achieving 
our commitments 

  Human Resources and Corporate and Portfolio equality leads will advise and support E DI 
work throughout the Council 

  Portfolios will ensure E DI policies are implemented and monitor how far we are achieving 
our commitments 

  Managers will make sure EDI is core to service delivery and staff management 

  Staff Forums will support and promote EDI and challenge discrimination 

  All employees will ensure that they are aware of this policy and take responsibility to 
promote EDI and challenge discrimination. 

Page 168



Report of:            Executive Director, Place
___________________________________________________________

___

Date:    August 1st 2012 
______________________________________________________________ 

Subject:   Wybourn Site Disposal 
______________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Tamsin Auckland 
______________________________________________________________ 

Summary: Disposal of a site at Wybourn for residential development by Great 
Places Housing Association (the local stock transfer landlord) to allow for 
residential development consistent with the Council approved Wybourn, 
Arbourthorne and Manor Park (WAMP) Masterplan.
______________________________________________________________ 

Reasons for Recommendations:

Recommendations:

1. Subject to the Secretary of State’s consent and receipt of planning 
approval, the site identified at Appendix A be disposed of to Great Places 
Housing Association as a site for the construction of 25 properties for 
affordable housing. 

2. The Director of Housing, Enterprise and Regeneration, in consultation with 
the Director of Property and Facilities Management be authorised to agree 
terms for the disposal of the site for purposes mentioned above, and to 
instruct the Director of Legal Services to complete the transfer on the 
terms agreed. 

______________________________________________________________ 

Background Papers: 

Category of Report: OPEN/CLOSED*

13
SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT 

Agenda Item 13

Page 169



If Closed add – ‘Not for publication because it contains exempt information 
under Paragraph… of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended).’

* Delete as appropriate 

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 170



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

Financial Implications 

YES/ Cleared by: 

Legal Implications 

YES/ Cleared by: Andrea Simpson 

Equality of Opportunity Implications

/NO Cleared by: 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

NO

Human rights Implications

/NO:

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

YES

Economic impact 

NO

Community safety implications 

NO

Human resources implications 

NO

Property implications 

                                                                       YES

Area(s) affected 

Wybourn 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 

Harry Harpham 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

Safer and Stronger communities 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO

Press release 

NO

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 171



REPORT TITLE: WYBOURN SITE DISPOSAL 

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 This area has already been the subject of extensive 
masterplanning, as part of Sheffield’s Housing Market Renewal 
programme, resulting in the Wybourn Arbourthorne and Manor 
Park Masterplan approved by Cabinet in 2005. Through working 
with Great Places Housing Association, it will be possible to 
continue to deliver the objectives laid out in the Masterplan, and 
will contribute to making this community successful and 
sustainable.

1.2 The vision of successful neighbourhoods involves a variety and 
choice of housing types and tenures. The current Housing Needs 
Survey, completed in 2007, identified an annual shortfall of at least 
729 affordable homes per year in the city. The development of 25 
affordable properties will go towards meeting this need.

1.3 This report seeks permission to dispose of the site identified at 
Appendix A, to Great Places Housing Association to allow the 
building of 25 new properties for affordable rent.  Affordable rent is 
80% of the market rent that could be achieved for a particular 
property.

1.4 These new properties will help deliver the Council’s vision for the 
City and people of Sheffield by increasing the provision of high 
quality affordable housing, which supports and delivers the City 
Councils Corporate Plan ambitions.    

1.5 Central to the site development (in order to create a more 
sustainable, vibrant and safer community) is the involvement of 
local residents and stakeholders in the housing development 
process.

Great Places Housing Assosciation are the local landlord of 
choice, and through  managing the existing housing in the local 
area they are aware of the aspirations of the community and are 
working with them to deliver improvements to the area.

Permitting Great Places Housing Association to develop the site 
will allow them to further engage, involve and empower the 
community in guiding the development and help the new 
development to link to and enhance Wybourn.

1.6 The disposal of the land to Great Places Housing Association, will 
ensure that a developer is chosen that is not only the local 

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 172



community landlord of choice, but also for example: 

 has a long term interest in the area,

  a proven record of community engagement,  

  is committed to providing innovative, high quality, 
environmental housing that meets the present and future 
needs of the local community and people of Sheffield, 

  allows for the alignment of investment and maintenance 
strategies for the area. 

1.7 Please note that a further report will be presented to Cabinet 
detailing proposals for new housing on the remainder of the 
Cricket Inn declared site (highlighted in Appendix A) and an 
additional cleared site on Maltravers Way.  

2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 

2.1 In terms of Standing Up For Sheffield the Corporate Plan 2011-14, 
this disposal will help achieve the outcome of a Great Place to 
Live, by creating desirable housing and promoting a thriving 
neighbourhood.

2.2 The construction of the properties will also contribute to the City 
and City Region’s economy by creating construction and related 
industry jobs.  The Council will hold discussions with Great Places 
Housing Association with the aim of maximising the use of local 
labour and other suppliers. 

2.3 An increase in the number of properties at Wybourn will also help 
expand the local economy with the creation of greater demand for 
existing/additional local facilities, retail outlets and services.   

3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 

3.1 The disposal of this site will allow Great Places Housing 
Association, in partnership with the City Council and local 
residents to contribute to delivering one of the strategic 
interventions identified in the Council approved WAMP 
Masterplan.  This intervention will provide new housing for the 
benefit of existing and new residents. 

3.2 In addition a Planning Brief (Appendix B) has been produced to 
state the Council’s planning requirements for the sites. 

3.3 In order to create a more sustainable, vibrant and safer 
community, the housing development process will involve local 
residents and stakeholders.

3.4 Environmental sustainability is also important to the proposed 
redevelopment of this site. The Planning Brief states that the 

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 173



redevelopment of the site should minimise any negative
environmental impact and provide a positive contribution where 
possible.

3.5 Disposal to Great Places Housing Association will: 

  Help enable development of an attractive neighbourhood 
with a distinct and desirable identity by developing in 
accordance with planning requirements. 

  Ensure that the new properties will be well built, with high 
standards of energy efficiency, not only ensuring low 
running costs for their residents, but contributing to a lower 
carbon footprint for the City.

  Allow the new housing and development layout to be 
designed in a way that will take account of the topography 
of the area and meet the needs of 21st century living. 

3.6 When successfully completed the new housing development will: 

  Transform a former housing site into a new housing 
development that meets the present and future needs of 
local residents and the people of Sheffield. 

  Deliver new  properties that offer a choice of size and type, 
and adds to the housing choice and quality available in the 
area.

  Raise the profile and desirability of Wybourn as a place to 
live.

  Maximise future investment opportunities, estate 
sustainability options and redevelopment opportunity in a 
way that allows and maximises the opportunity for local 
people to stay in the area with the provision of better quality 
housing.

  Have allowed local people to actively contribute to the 
development of the new housing. 

3.7 The development of any plans for building new properties will 
involve ensuring that local residents, Members, East Community 
Assembly and other stakeholders will have the opportunity to be 
involved in and contribute towards developing the scheme.

The detailed scheme proposal will be subject to public 
consultation which will include consultation with the East 
Community Assembly, as part of the planning permission process. 

As is detailed in their Consultation Blueprint Great Places have a 
commitment to community involvement.  A copy of this Blueprint 
will be presented to the East Community Assembly by Great 
Places Housing Assosciation prior to its implementation in relation 
to this project.

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 174



4.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT

4.1 After full consideration of the options available, in terms of the best 
interests of the City Council, local residents and people of 
Sheffield, and in order to best deliver the WAMP Masterplan 
recommendations for Wybourn the disposal of this site to Great 
Places is the most appropriate option that will deliver the Councils 
ambitions for the area. 

4.2 The Cricket Inn site was declared surplus by Cabinet on 24 
January 2007, and Cabinet resolved that the Director of Housing 
[now  Director of Housing Enterprise and Regeneration], in 
consultation with the Head of Corporate Property [Director of 
Property & Facilities Management] and Assistant Chief Executive 
Legal and Governance [Director of Legal Services] be authorised 
to select the successful developer in line with the approved site 
disposal strategy subject to the approval of the development 
scheme and terms of the disposal in accordance with the 
Council’s constitution. 

Previously, Cabinet has also approved the WAMP Masterplan on 
11 May 2005 and resolved that it be approved as material 
consideration in the planning process and relevant proposals be 
incorporated in the Sheffield Development Framework (SDF). 

As is proposed now, the WAMP Masterplan recommended the 
building of new housing on this site. 

4.3 It is therefore proposed that the Director of Property & Facilities 
Management, in consultation with the Director of Housing, 
Enterprise and Regeneration be authorised to negotiate and agree 
terms for the disposal of the site for purposes mentioned above, 
and to instruct the Director of Legal Services to complete the 
necessary legal documentation.

5.0 5.1 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Disposal of the site to Great Places Housing Association at nil 
consideration to develop affordable homes would constitute 
assistance in connection with privately let housing accommodation 
and would require the consent of the Secretary of State under 
Section 25 of the Local Government Act 1988.  A general consent 
has been issued for financial assistance or gratuitous benefit 
consisting of disposal of land to registered providers of social 
housing for development as housing accommodation. No further 
consent is needed under section 32 of the Housing Act 1985 to 
the disposal of housing land. 

When deciding whether to dispose of a site at a discount to its 
market value it must be considered whether the proposed disposal 

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 175



would be in the interests of the City and its inhabitants as a whole 
and as Council tax payers and would be consistent with the  
effective, economic and efficient discharge of the Council’s 
functions.

6.0 6.1 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The site shown at Appendix A has been valued at £145,000.
During the formulation of the Local Investment Plan, the HCA 
made clear government’s expectation that local authorities would 
maximise the use of their own resources to provide affordable 
housing. The grant available under the new Affordable Homes 
Programme for 2011/15 is significantly less than for the previous 
period, and would not allow the scheme to be developed  without 
the addition of subsidy from sources other than Great Places  own 
resources

Therefore the proposal is to transfer the land at nil value to Great 
Places Housing Association in order to ensure that the Council’s 
wider ambitions for the area and the City are met in a timely 
manner. Great  Places have confirmed that they will receive a 
grant of £643,000 from the Homes and Communities Agency.

The land identified for disposal will be disposed of to Great Places 
Housing Assosciation for the development of 25 properties for 
affordable rent under a 125 year lease.  An overage agreement  is 
not applicable as these new properties will be affordable housing, 

The Section 106 contribution from the scheme will also be 
programmed to be used in the local area to enhance public space 
and facilities.   

This process will also create a saving to the Council as regards 
cleared site maintenance. It has been agreed that the 
responsibility for this will pass to Great Places Housing 
Assosciation.

7.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 Do not dispose of the site yet.

In order to maximise receipt from the potential sale of the site it 
has been considered whether it would be appropriate to wait until 
an upturn in the economy before disposal. This would however 
mean that the site would be left undeveloped for an 
indeterminable time With  no guarantee of developer interest in 
this site or potential best price offer.

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 176



It would also deny the opportunity to develop the site speedily and 
to fit with Great Places Housing Assosciation investment plans for 
the neighbourhood or resident expectation for the development of 
the site.

The timely development of the site is also intended to raise 
developer confidence in the wider area which will be reflected in 
the viability of other potential projects. 

This option would also delay the delivery of an important strategic 
intervention of the WAMP Masterplan.

7.2 Open market with conditions/no conditions 

 Although this option could potentially allow potential rapid 
development of the site and maximise receipt, this is improbable in 
the current economic downturn as we could not guarantee 
developer interest or potential best price offer. 

If the site was sold for open market development it would reduce 
the opportunity for local residents to access the new housing.  It 
would also deny opportunity for local lettings and compromise the 
investment strategy of Great Places Housing Association. 

The process would also delay appointment of a developer and a 
start on site.

In addition such a process may result in establishing a new 
Registered Provider in the area, or if the developer chooses to 
work in partnership with another Registered Provider, with 
resultant issues around this as detailed below in 7.3. 

7.3 Disposal of the site to another Registered Provider 

This option would allow development by a Registered Provider 
other than the local resident’s landlord of choice.

Although this would introduce a choice of landlord for residents, it 
may compromise the opportunity for aligning investment and 
maintenance strategies.

This option may also compromise the compatibility of local lettings 
policies to the detriment of local residents wanting to access 
properties at Wybourn.

7.4 Disposal of the site to Sheffield Housing Company (SHC).

This site is not on the current list of sites that has been offered to 
the SHC. If it were to be offered then there is no certainty as to 
when the site would be released and any agreed release date 

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 177



would be made on the SHC priorities rather than local need.

7.5 Open competition with detailed development brief.

The Council could agree a development brief and advertise the 
site to developers.  This would allow the Council to be 
prescriptive and prioritise the development requirements. 

It would however  delay the release of the site, be Council 
resource intensive and not have guaranteed developer interest or 
potential best price offer. 

It may result in the establishment of a new Registered Provider in 
the area which could result in difficulties in aligning investment 
strategies with Great Places Housing Assosciation and a 
coordinated local lettings policy.

If a condition was included in the development brief that insisted 
the winning developer work in partnership with Great Places 
Housing Assosciation then this may stop some developers 
entering the competition or force the developer to work with a 
partner it would not choose to work with.  This may result in a 
difficult working arrange that may be detrimental to any scheme. 

8.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

8.1 Disposal of this site at Wybourn for residential development by 
Great Places Housing Association will allow for residential 
development consistent with the Council approved WAMP 
Masterplan which will confer a number of timely benefits for the 
area and the city as a whole. 

8.2 Disposal to Great Places Housing Assosciation will result in the 
building of 25 new properties for affordable rent.

It will also increase the opportunity for local people to benefit from 
the developments and ensure that maximum numbers of options 
are available to the Council and Great Places Housing 
Assosciation for future interventions that seek to ensure the long 
term sustainability of the neighbourhood. 

It is intended that the development will include a variety of 
housing types, including apartments and bungalows, which are 
felt to meet the changing housing needs of local residents. 

8.3 These new properties will help deliver the Council’s vision for the 
City and people of Sheffield by increasing the provision of high 
quality affordable housing that supports and delivers the City 
Councils Corporate Plan ambitions.  

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT Page 178



CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT 

8.4 Working with Great Places Housing Assosciation will allow better 
investment planning for them, including the coordinated 
development of the sites to maximise the opportunity for local 
residents to move into the new properties.  As the local landlord 
of choice and following extensive community consultation on 
other projects,  Great Places Housing Assosciation have detailed 
knowledge of the housing needs of the area and will be able to 
build the new housing to meet those demands. 

9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Subject to planning permission being granted, the site identified 
at Appendix A be disposed of to Great Places Housing 
Association as a site for the construction of 25 properties for 
affordable rent. 

9.2 The Director of Property & Facilities Management, in consultation 
with the Director of Housing, Enterprise and Regeneration be 
authorised to negotiate and agree terms for the disposal of the 
site for the purposes set out in this report, and to instruct the 
Director of Legal Services to complete the necessary legal 
documentation.

Page 179



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A

S
it
e
 f

o
r 

d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 b

la
c
k

Page 180



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

T
H

E 
C

R
IC

K
ET

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

LT
R

A
V

ER
S

 

S
IT

E,
 W

Y
B

O
U

R
N

 
S

H
E

F
F

IE
L

D
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
ri

e
f

M
a
y
 2

0
1
2
 

Page 181



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

2

C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 B

R
IE

F
 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

C
h

a
p

te
r

P
a
g

e
 

 
C

h
a
p

te
r 

 
P

a
g

e

1
. 

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 A

N
D

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 B

R
IE

F
  

1
 

 
6
. 

 B
E

S
T

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
2
6
-2

7
 

 
2
. 

S
IT

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 
3
-6

 
 

7
. 

 T
IM

E
S

C
A

L
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

 A
R

R
A

N
G

E
M

E
N

T
S

 
2
8

 
S

it
e
 L

o
c
a
ti
o
n
  

 
S

it
e
 D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

8
  

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
S

2
8

 
S

it
e
 O

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

  

3
. 

 V
IS

IO
N

 
7

A
P

P
E

N
D

IC
E

S

4
. 

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
N

T
E

X
T

 
8

-1
6

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
- 

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

 
M

a
te

ri
a
l 
C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
- 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

 
E

x
is

ti
n
g
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
- 

D
ra

in
a
g
e
 M

a
p
 

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 4
- 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 A

d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 P

la
n

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 5
- 

S
it
e
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a
ti
o
n

5
. 

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
IS

T
IC

S
 

A
N

D
 D

E
S

IG
N

 P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
S

1
7

-2
5

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 6
-A

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
y
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 7
- 

A
3
 p

la
n
s

 
 

 
 

 

Page 182



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

1
. 

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 A

N
D

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 B

R
IE

F
 

1
.1

 T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 &

 M
a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 B

ri
e
f 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r,

 G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e
s
, 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 o
n
 t

h
is

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

s
it
e

. 
It

 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 B

ri
e
f 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 G

re
a
t 

P
la

c
e
s
 t

o
 g

u
id

e
 a

n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
it
s
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

1
.2

 T
h
e
 B

ri
e
f 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
-o

ff
 a

s
 ‘
fi
t 

fo
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
’ 
b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
is

 B
ri
e
f.
 

1
.3

 T
h
e
 B

ri
e
f 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 g

o
o
d
 f

a
it
h
 b

y
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 o
ff
ic

e
r 

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
it
e
-s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

h
e
re

; 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 c

le
a
r 

th
a
t 

a
n
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 f

u
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 

2
. 

S
IT

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 

S
it

e
 L

o
c
a
ti

o
n

 
2
.1

 T
h
e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 &

 M
a
lt
ra

v
e

rs
 S

it
e
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n
 i
n
 i
ts

 
g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 c
o
n
te

x
t 

a
t 

F
ig

u
re

 1
. 

A
n
 a

e
ri
a
l 
p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
it
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

t 
F

ig
u
re

 2
.

2
.2

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

d
g
e
 o

f 
W

y
b
o
u
rn

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 
la

rg
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re

a
 p

o
s
it
io

n
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
a

s
t 

o
f 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
.

2
.3

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

is
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
. 

S
it

e
 D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

2
.4

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
d
 F

ig
u
re

 1
0
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
.

2
.5

 T
h
e
 g

ro
s
s
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 a

n
d
 M

a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 s
it
e
 

is
 3

.8
6
 H

a
 a

n
d
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
2
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 p

lo
ts

. 
T

h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 i
s
 2

.9
9
 H

a
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
M

a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 i
s
 0

.8
7
 

H
a

.

2
.6

 T
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 c

le
a
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
  

It
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
G

re
a

t 
P

la
c
e
s
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

a
n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 n

e
e
d
s
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
in

ts
. 

2
.7

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 a

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
t 

th
e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 

s
it
e
, 

a
s
 i
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 W

y
b
o
u
rn

 H
a
ll.

  
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

t 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 6
. 

2
.8

 T
h
e
 n

e
a
re

s
t 

c
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
 s

to
re

 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

t 
M

a
n
o
r 

O
a
k
s
 R

o
a
d
, 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 M

a
n
o
r 

O
a
k
s
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
, 

s
e
e
 

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 5
 F

ig
 2

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

d
e
ta

ils
. 

Page 183



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
4

- 

2
.9

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 g
o
o
d
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 p

u
b
lic

 b
u
s
 r

o
u
te

s
 o

n
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 

R
o
a
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
o
r 

O
a
k
s
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
it
e

.

2
.1

0
 T

h
e
 S

it
e
 i
s
 o

n
 a

 n
o
rt

h
 f

a
c
in

g
 s

lo
p
e
 –

 s
h
a
llo

w
 n

e
a
r 

to
 

C
ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
, 

a
n
d
 s

te
e
p
e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 b
u
n
d
 

o
f 

g
ra

s
s
e
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 (

m
a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 w

a
s
te

) 
w

it
h
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 t

re
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 o

n
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

T
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 i
s
 w

it
h
in

 a
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 W

y
b
o
u
rn

 e
s
ta

te
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 m

o
d
e
lle

d
 o

n
 g

a
rd

e
n
 s

u
b
u
rb

 
p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
, 

b
u
ilt

 i
n
c
re

m
e
n
ta

lly
 i
n
 1

9
3
0
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
a
 

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
, 

y
e
t 

m
o
n
o
lit

h
ic

, 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 

la
te

r 
in

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

, 
‘N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
’ 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

s
it
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 5

2
.1

1
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 p

o
o
r 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 p

e
rm

e
a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 l
e
g
ib

ili
ty

. 
T

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 

re
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
o
w

 d
e
n
s
it
y
.

S
it

e
 O

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
2
.1

2
 T

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

Page 184



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
5

- 

F
ig

u
re

 1
: 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o

n
te

x
t 

Page 185



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
6

- 

F
ig

u
re

 2
: 

 A
e

ri
a

l 
P

h
o

to
g
ra

p
h

 (
2

0
0

2
) 

Page 186



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
7

- 

3
. 

V
IS

IO
N

 

3
.1

 T
h
e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 a

s
 a

 c
it
y
 t

h
a
t 
w

ill
 ‘
h

a
v
e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 h
a
p
p
y
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 

e
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.’
 a

n
d
 ‘
to

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 

th
e
 g

lo
b
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 p

ri
z
e
, 

p
ro

te
c
t 

a
n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 i
ts

  

n
a
tu

ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
’ 
w

h
ils

t 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 

‘h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
a
c
e
s
.’
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 B

u
ild

in
g
 f

o
r 

L
if
e
 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 s
e
e
k
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

T
h

e
m

e
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
, 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

le
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
.

S
o

c
ie

ty
 a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
w

h
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 f

a
ir
, 

to
le

ra
n

t 
a

n
d
 c

o
h
e
s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 l
iv

e
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

fe
a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
ju

ry
, 

w
it
h
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 s

h
a
re

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

B
u

il
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

A
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

, 
v
a

lu
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t

o
 n

e
e

d
s
, 

s
a

fe
, 

w
e
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
, 

p
o
p
u
la

r 
a
n
d
 a

b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 e

v
e
ry

b
o
d
y
. 

 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
la

c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 f

le
x
ib

le
 a

n
d
 a

b
le

 
to

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

fu
tu

re
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

o
d
a
y
’s

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
. 

E
c
o

n
o

m
y

A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
o
ff
e
r 

th
a
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
S

e
n

s
it

iv
it

y
M

a
k
e
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 e

n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 h

is
to

ri
c
 a

s
s
e
ts

, 
a
re

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 

to
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

w
h

ils
t 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 e

n
jo

y
 t

h
e
 o

u
td

o
o
rs

, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 p
o
p
u
la

r,
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 g

e
t 

to
 a

n
d
 m

e
e
t 

p
e
o
p
le

s
 e

v
e

ry
d
a
y
 n

e
e
d

s
.

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

C
o

n
n

e
c

ti
v

it
y

E
a
s
y
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 a

ro
u
n
d
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 b

y
 w

a
lk

in
g
, 

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
n
e

c
te

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rs

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o

d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

n
e

tw
o

rk
. 

F
a
ir

 f
o

r 
E

v
e
ry

o
n

e
P

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

Page 187



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
8

 -
 

4
. 

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
N

T
E

X
T

  

4
.1

 P
le

a
s
e
 N

o
te

 -
 t

h
is

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 b

ri
e
f 

w
ill

 b
e

 u
p
d
a
te

d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
w

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 e

m
e
rg

e
s
 o

r 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
o

li
c

y
 

T
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
4
.2

 T
h
is

 w
a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 2

7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 a

t 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g
a
n
d

b
u
ild

in
g
/p

la
n
n
in

g
s

y
s
te

m
/p

la
n
n
in

g
p
o
lic

y
/p

la
n
n

in
g

p
o

lic
y
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

/.

U
n
it
a
ry

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

U
D

P
)

4
.3

 S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

p
la

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 U

D
P

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
(S

D
F

).
  

T
h
e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 a
d
o
p
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 4

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 a

n
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 U

D
P

 P
o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 s

u
p
e
rs

e
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
rs

 s
a
v
e
d
.

4
.4

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 U

D
P

 a
s
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
te

ly
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

re
a
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 a

t 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

s
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 A

re
a
, 

re
fe

r 
to

 F
ig

u
re

 3
. 

 T
h
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 

th
is

 a
re

a
 c

a
n
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

t
h
tt
p
s
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n

n
in

g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t/

p
la

n
n

in
g

-d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

/u
d

p
.h

tm
l 
.

F
ig

u
re

 3
: 

 U
D

P
 E

x
tr

a
c
t-

 ©
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p
y
ri
g

h
t.

 A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
e
s
e

rv
e
d

. 
S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

1
0

0
0
1

8
8

1
6

. 
2
0

1
1

.

Page 188



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
9

- 

S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 (
S

D
F

)
4
.5

 T
h
e
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 C

o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 c

a
n
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 a

t 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/s

d
f

4
.6

 T
h
e
 C

it
y
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 C

it
y
 S

it
e
s
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

(s
u
p
p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 M
a
p
) 

is
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 

d
ra

ft
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

 c
a
n
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 a

t:
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/
p
la

n
n
in

g
-d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/s
d
f/
lo

c
a
l-

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t-

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

 I
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 d

ra
ft
 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 M
a
p
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 A

re
a
 f

ro
n
ti
n
g
 

C
ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 b

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

re
a
 a

n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 a

 C
it
y
 S

it
e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 W

y
b
o
u
rn

, 
A

rb
o
u
rt

h
o
rn

e
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
o
r 

P
a
rk

 M
a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
 (

L
D

A
 2

0
0
5
) 

s
e
e
 F

ig
 4

 f
o
r 

d
e
ta

ils
. 

 F
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

th
e
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 c

it
y
 p

o
lic

e
s
, 

c
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
p
 p

le
a
s
e
 

re
fe

r 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/ 

p
la

n
n
in

g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/
p
la

n
n
in

g
-d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/s
d
f/
c
it
y
-p

o
lic

ie
s
.

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

n
ly

 a
s
 

th
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 a
d
o
p
te

d
.

4
.7

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 o

th
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

lo
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 (

S
P

G
) 

w
h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
. 

F
ig

 4
: 

  
 E

m
e

rg
in

g
 S

D
F

 e
x
tr

a
c
t 

©
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p
y
ri
g

h
t.

 A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
e
s
e

rv
e
d

. 
S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

1
0

0
0
1

8
8

1
6

. 
2
0

1
1

.

M
a
te

ri
a
l 

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 

4
.8

 I
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l 
(H

M
R

) 
2
0
0
2
 -

 2
0
1
1
, 

W
y
b
o
u
rn

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 

m
a
s
te

rp
la

n
n
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 L

D
A

 D
e
s
ig

n
. 

 T
h
e
 

W
y
b
o
u
rn

 A
rb

o
u
rt

h
o
rn

e
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
o
r 

P
a
rk

 M
a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
 

(2
0
0
5
) 

c
a
n
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
, 

 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/
p
la

n
n
in

g
-d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
-

re
p
o
rt

s
/w

y
b
o
u
rn

-a
rb

o
u
rt

h
o
rn

e
-m

a
n
o
r-

p
a
rk

-m
a
s
te

rp
la

n

Page 189



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

0
- 

4
.9

 F
ig

u
re

 5
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 b

ro
a
d
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 

W
y
b
o
u
rn

 M
a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

p
la

n
 s

h
o
w

s
 h

o
w

 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
e
n
tr

e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 n
e
w

 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
u
ld

 c
re

a
te

 a
 n

e
w

 g
a
te

w
a
y
 

in
to

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re

a
 f

ro
m

 C
ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

F
ig

u
re

 5
: 

 B
ro

a
d

 C
o

n
c
e

p
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 W
y
b

o
u

rn
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
, 

2
0

0
5

Page 190



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

1
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 

4
.1

0
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

ra
n
te

d
 t

o
 G

re
a
t 

P
la

c
e
s
 

fo
r 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

4
.1

1
 A

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
p
p
ly

 t
o
 

th
is

 s
it
e

. 
 T

h
is

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ri
e
f 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
d
ra

w
s
 

o
u
t 

th
e
 s

it
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 (

P
o
lic

e
s
 U

D
P

 –
 H

7
, 

H
1
0
, 

H
1
4
. 

S
D

F
 C

S
2
6
 

C
S

4
0
, 

C
S

4
1
 C

S
7
4
) 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 (

P
o
lic

y
 U

D
P

 
B

E
1

0
, 

H
1

8
)

4
.1

2
.

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
c
a
p

a
c
it

y
 f

o
r 

th
is

 s
it

e
 i

s
 

4
0
-6

0
 d

w
e
ll
in

g
s
 p

e
r 

h
e
c
ta

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

P
o

li
c

y
 C

S
2

6
, 

d
u
e
 t

o
 i
ts

 c
lo

s
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 t

o
 h

ig
h
 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 b

u
s
 r

o
u
te

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
e
rt

ra
m

 s
to

p
 a

t 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 T
h
is

 s
u
p
e
rs

e
d
e
s
 t

h
e
 3

1
 u

n
it
s
/ 

H
a
 

s
ti
p
u
la

te
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 M

a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
. 

 T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 L

a
n
d
 A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
1
0
8
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 a

t 
C

ri
c
k
e

t 
In

n
 

a
n
d
 3

0
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
 a

t 
M

a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 
d
e
n
s
it
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t.
 

4
.1

3
U

D
P

 P
o

li
c

y
 H

1
0

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
s

 C
3
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

u
s
e
s
 

a
s
 t

h
e
 P

re
fe

rr
e
d

 U
s
e
 i

n
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

re
a
s
. 

It
 a

ls
o

 l
is

ts
 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

u
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 o
f 

P
o

li
c

y
 H

1
4
. 

 T
h

e
re

 
is

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s
o
m

e
 m

ix
e
d
-u

s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
lo

n
g
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 l
in

k
 i
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
 

4
.1

4
C

S
4
0
 s

e
ts

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 o
f 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 3
0

%
 a

n
d

 4
0
%

 w
h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

lly
 v

ia
b
le

 
S

e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
in

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

In
te

ri
m

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 (

IP
G

).
  

 

4
.1

5
T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

h
o

u
s

e
 t

y
p

e
s

 c
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

C
S

4
1
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 c
re

a
te

 m
ix

e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

T
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
0
7
) 

c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 g

u
id

e
 t

h
e
 

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

ix
e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
is

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
 i
s
 

in
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
m

o
re

 l
a
rg

e
r 

fa
m

ily
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 (

4
 b

e
d
+

),
 a

n
d
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
B

M
E

, 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

 T
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

o
n
e
 

v
ia

 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
lif

e
ti
m

e
 h

o
m

e
s
, 

m
o
b
ili

ty
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
s
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 f

le
x
ib

le
 s

p
a
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
 t

y
p
e
s
 a

n
d
 

te
n
u
re

s
. 

 D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
S

C
C

’s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

fo
u
n
d
 a

t 
w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/i
n
-y

o
u
r-

a
re

a
/h

o
u
s
in

g
-

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
/h

o
u
s
in

g
-s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

4
.1

6
 U

D
P

 P
o
lic

y
 H

7
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 2

5
%

 o
f 

n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s

 t
o

 
b

e
 M

o
b

il
it

y
 H

o
u

s
in

g
, 

e
x
c
e
p
t 

w
h
e
re

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l,
 S

e
e
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
in

k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

S
P

G
.

M
o

b
il

it
y
 

h
o

u
s
e
s
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 s

p
re

a
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 t

y
p

e
s
 a

n
d

 
te

n
u

re
 o

f 
d

w
e
ll
in

g
s
, 

in
 d

o
in

g
 s

o
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

ix
e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

C
S

4
1
.

Page 191



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

2
- 

D
e
s
ig

n
 P

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 (

U
D

P
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 –

 H
1
5
, 

B
E

2
-6

, 
B

E
9
-

1
2
, 

B
E

1
6
, 

B
E

1
9
, 

B
E

2
1
. 

 S
D

F
 –

 C
S

7
4
)

4
.1

7
C

S
 P

o
li
c
y
 C

S
7
4
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 B

u
il
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
L

if
e
 S

il
v
e
r 

a
s
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
. 

 A
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
T

h
e
 S

o
u

th
 Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

D
e
s
ig

n
 

G
u

id
e
, 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 v

ie
w

/d
o
w

n
lo

a
d
 a

t 
w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/r

o
a
d
s
/a

b
o
u

t/
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

-a
n
d
-

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
/d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t-

a
n
d
-a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
/d

e
s
ig

n
-g

u
id

e
a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 U

D
P

 p
o

li
c
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 B

u
il
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

h
a
p

te
r 

a
n

d
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

o
li
c
y
 

C
S

7
4
. 

 T
h

e
 s

it
e

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 p

la
n
 (

F
ig

 1
0
),

 U
rb

a
n
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 (
F

ig
 1

1
) 

a
n
d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
is

.

A
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
y
 (

U
D

P
 P

o
lic

y
 B

E
2
2
)

4
.1

8
 T

h
e
 S

o
u
th

 Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 A

rc
h
a
e

o
lo

g
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

S
Y

A
S

) 
h
a
s
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 

s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
t 

th
e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 s

it
e
, 

a
s
 i
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 W

y
b
o
u
rn

 H
a
ll.

  
S

e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 6
 

fo
r 

d
e

ta
ils

.

4
.1

9
 A

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 b

y
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 t

re
n
c
h
in

g
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 t
h
e
 n

a
tu

re
, 

e
x
te

n
t 

a
n
d
 

d
e
g
re

e
 o

f 
p
re

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

a
ll.

  
T

h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

e
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 d
e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

re
s
u

lt
s
.

S
Y

A
S

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 
p

h
a
s
e
 i

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
n

y
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 a
s
 a

 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

c
c

o
m

p
a

n
y

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

li
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
P

P
S

5
 “

P
la

n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

is
to

ri
c
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t”

 (
P

o
lic

y
 

H
E

6
.1

).

P
u
b
lic

 A
rt

 (
P

o
lic

y
 B

E
1

4
)

4
.2

0
A

 p
u

b
li
c
 a

rt
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l

o
c

a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
a

b
li

n
g

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 -

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 

b
u
ild

 n
e
w

 o
n
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

o
 

c
e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e
 a

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

W
y
b
o
u
rn

 H
a
ll 

a
t 

th
e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 s

it
e
. 

 S
C

C
 h

a
s
 a

 P
u
b
lic

 
A

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h
o
 c

a
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
  

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

P
o

lic
ie

s
 U

D
P

 –
 H

1
4
, 

C
F

1
. 

S
D

F
 –

C
S

4
3
)

4
.2

1
 I

t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
a
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

 1
0
6
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
 T

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
, 

S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
in

k
 t

o
 

th
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 (

S
P

G
).

 

O
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 (

p
o
lic

ie
s
 U

D
P

 -
 H

1
6
. 

S
D

F
 –

C
S

4
5

, 
C

S
4

6
, 

C
S

4
7
, 

C
S

5
4
)

4
.2

2
 A

n
y
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
, 

s
e
e
 

F
ig

 1
 f

o
r 

d
e
ta

ils
. 

4
.2

3
 U

n
d

e
r 

U
D

P
 P

o
li
c
y
 H

1
6
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

to
 (

a
) 

p
ro

v
id

e
 1

0
%

 o
n

-s
it

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
l 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
, 

a
n

d
 (

b
) 

to
 m

a
k
e
 a

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
o

ff
-s

it
e
 c

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 p
la

y
 f

a
c

il
it

ie
s

 a
n

d
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
s
p

o
rt

 s
p

a
c
e
, 

u
s
in

g
 T

a
b
le

 1
 f

o
r 

F
o
rm

a
l 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

S
p
a
c
e
. 

 T
h
is

 t
a
b
le

 c
a
n
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 4
 o

f 
th

e
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 S

P
G

, 
a
 l
in

k
 t

o
 t

h
is

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

t 

Page 192



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

3
- 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 t

o
 t

h
is

 b
ri
e
f.
  

P
le

a
s
e
 b

e
 a

w
a
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 l
e
v
ie

d
 o

n
 o

p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e
 1

5
th
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 a

 c
e
ili

n
g

 o
f 

£
4
0
0
0
. 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
is

 i
s
 

n
o
t 

in
 i
ts

e
lf
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

4
.2

4
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 1

0
%

 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

s
e
e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
’s

 G
re

a
t 

O
u

td
o

o
rs

, 
G

re
e

n
 

a
n
d
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
0
-2

0
3
0
 p

5
1
-5

8
w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/o

u
t-

-a
b
o
u
t/
p
a
rk

s
-w

o
o

d
la

n
d
s
--

c
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
/g

re
e
n
-a

n
d
-o

p
e
n
-s

p
a
c
e
-s

tr
a
te

g
y

4
.2

5
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
tr

ip
 o

f 
O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 A

re
a
 a

s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 U

D
P

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

a
s
 a

n
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

fe
a
tu

re
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 A

u
d
it
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
it
s
 l
o
s
s
 w

o
u
ld

 
n
o
t 

c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
 C

S
4
7
 n

o
r 

L
R

5
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h

e
 O

p
e
n

 
S

p
a
c
e
 A

u
d

it
 d

o
e
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

 a
n

 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 

a
re

a
 a

t 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n

 C
re

s
c
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
p

la
c
e
d

 
e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 o
n

-s
it

e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 1

0
%

 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 

o
p

e
n

 
s
p

a
c
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t.
 

G
re

e
n
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 E

c
o
lo

g
y
 (

P
o
lic

ie
s
 U

D
P

 -
B

E
6
, 

G
E

1
0
, 

G
E

1
1
, 

G
E

1
5
. 

S
D

F
 -

  
C

S
4
5
, 

C
S

4
6
, 

C
S

4
7
, 

C
S

5
4
 

C
S

7
3
)

4
.2

5
H

ig
h

 q
u

a
li
ty

 l
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d

 
th

a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 1

0
%

 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
 a

re
a
, 

to
 

lin
k
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 g

re
e
n
 l
in

k
s
.

4
.2

7
U

D
P

 P
o

li
c
y
 G

E
1
5
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

tr
e
e
s
 a

n
d

 
w

o
o

d
la

n
d

 w
il
l 

b
e
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 b

y
 

v
a
ri

o
u

s
 m

e
a
n

s
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 t
o

 
re

ta
in

 m
a
tu

re
 t

re
e
s
 (

c
a
te

g
o

ry
 A

 a
n

d
 B

) 
a
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c
e
 

a
n

y
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 l
o

s
t.

 T
re

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 B

S
5
8
3
7
: 

2
0
0
5
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 p

re
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

re
ta

in
e
d
 t

re
e
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

lo
n
g
e
v
it
y
. 

A
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 

b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
, 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 h

o
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 

a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
.

4
.2

8
 I

n
it
ia

l 
o
ff
ic

e
r 

o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
 

fe
w

 t
re

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
, 

s
e
e
 s

it
e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 p

la
n
 F

ig
 1

0
 a

n
d
 U

rb
a
n
 D

e
s
ig

n
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 F
ig

 1
1
 f

o
r 

d
e
ta

ils
. 

4
.2

9
A

 s
c
o

p
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 f
o

r 
E

c
o

lo
g

y
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
re

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 

S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 (

P
o
lic

ie
s
 U

D
P

- 
B

E
5
, 

B
E

6
, 

B
E

9
, 

B
E

1
0
, 

H
1

0
, 

H
1

4
, 

G
E

1
0

, 
G

E
1

1
S

D
F

 –
  

C
S

6
3
, 

C
S

6
4
, 

C
S

6
5
,

C
S

6
7
, 

C
S

7
3
, 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
 

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

–
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
 C

C
1
)

4
.3

0
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 

g
re

e
n
 r

o
o
fs

, 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 u
rb

a
n
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 (

S
U

D
S

),
 r

e
n
e
w

a
b
le

 e
n
e
rg

y
, 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 i
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
u
n
d
e
r 

C
S

6
4
/6

5
. 

(T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
rc

h
iv

e
d
 C

A
B

E
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
).

 

Page 193



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

4
- 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

e
b
a
rc

h
iv

e
.n

a
ti
o
n
a
la

rc
h
iv

e
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/2

0
1
1
0
1
1
8
0
9

5
3
5
6
/h

tt
p
:/
w

w
w

.c
a
b

e
.o

rg
.u

k
/

4
.3

1
 U

n
d
e
r 

S
D

F
 P

o
lic

y
 C

S
6
4
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 
m

a
x
im

is
e
 s

o
la

r 
g
a
in

 i
f 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 a

re
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

e
a
s
t-

w
e
s
t 

a
x
is

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
rm

a
l 
m

a
s
s
in

g
 c

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

 U
n
d
e
r 

S
D

F
 P

o
lic

y
 C

S
6
5
, 

g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 s

it
e
 t

h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

fo
r 

a
 s

h
a
re

d
 e

n
e
rg

y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
.e

. 
b
io

m
a
s
s
-f

ir
e
d
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 h

e
a
t 

a
n
d
 p

o
w

e
r.

 

4
.3

2
U

n
d

e
r 

C
S

6
4
,

L
e
v
e
l 

3
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
 f

o
r 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 H

o
m

e
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 a
s
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 

a
s
 t

h
is

 s
it
e
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 5

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
. 

4
.3

3
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
 C

C
1
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
 

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

(S
P

D
) 

re
q

u
ir

e
s
 

g
re

e
n

 r
o

o
fs

 o
n

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
1
0
 o

r 
m

o
re

 
d

w
e
ll
in

g
s

, 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
a

ti
b

le
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 g

re
e
n
 

ro
o

f 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

8
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
o
f 

a
re

a
. 

 S
e
e
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
in

k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

S
P

D
. 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
4
.3

4
 T

h
e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 E

n
e
rg

y
 a

n
d
 W

a
te

r 
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
tu

d
y
 (

2
0
1
0
) 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 e

n
e
rg

y
, 

w
a
te

r 
a
n
d
 t

e
le

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 f

u
tu

re
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 v

ie
w

/d
o
w

n
lo

a
d
 a

t:
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/
p
la

n
n
in

g
-d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
/s

d
f/

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
-

p
la

n
n
in

g
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
t 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 t

h
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

. 
  

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 (

P
o
lic

ie
s
 U

D
P

 –
 H

1
4
 

S
D

F
 –

 C
S

6
3
, 

C
S

6
4
, 

C
S

6
6
)

4
.3

5
A

n
 a

c
o

u
s
ti

c
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

is
 s

it
e
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
n
o
is

e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 (

s
e
e
 

S
it
e
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 F

ig
 1

0
) 

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 
b
u
s
y
 m

a
in

 r
o
a
d
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

w
a
y
 R

e
ta

il 
P

a
rk

 t
h
a
t 

is
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 F
ri
n
g
e
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

y
 &

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

re
a
. 

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
liv

in
g
 r

o
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

s
 f

ro
n
ti
n
g
 o

n
to

 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
 a

c
o
u
s
ti
c
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 N

o
is

e
 

E
x
p
o
s
u
re

 C
a
te

g
o
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l/
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
n
o
is

e
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 (

i.
e
. 

P
P

G
2
4
 o

r 
B

S
4
1
4
2
).

4
.3

6
 F

o
r 

la
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

 P
h

a
s
e

 I
 

P
re

li
m

in
a
ry

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 P

h
a
s
e
 I

I 
In

tr
u

s
iv

e
 S

it
e

 I
n

v
e

s
ti

g
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 l

ik
e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
e
d

 o
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 C

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 L

a
n
d
 R

e
p
o
rt

 C
L
R

1
1

 
(E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 2

0
0
4
).

 

D
ra

in
a
g
e
 (

P
o
lic

y
 U

D
P

 –
 S

D
F

 –
 C

S
6
7
)

4
.3

7
 F

o
r 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
re

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

im
 i
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
re

d
u
c
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 d

o
w

n
s
tr

e
a
m

 f
lo

o
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rl
o
a
d
 

b
y
 l

im
it

in
g

 s
u

rf
a

c
e

 w
a

te
r 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 n

o
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n

 7
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 p
e
a
k
 

fl
o

w
 (

3
0

%
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
),

 i
f 

th
e

 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 i

s
 d

ir
e
c
t 

to
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
w

e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
fl
o
w

s
 w

ill
 d

e
p
e
n
d
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 o
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

d
e
n
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

g
re

e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
.

T
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
S

U
D

s
 i

n
fi

lt
ra

ti
o

n
 

d
ra

in
a

g
e

 t
e

c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
 w

il
l 

b
e

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 w
h

e
re

 
fe

a
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
a
b

le
 u

n
d

e
r 

S
D

F
 P

o
li
c
y
 C

S
6
7
.

Page 194



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

5
- 

A
 f

u
ll 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
d
ra

in
a
g
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

o
 

s
e
rv

e
 a

ll 
h
a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

  

4
.3

8
 T

h
e
 o

ld
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 s

e
rv

e
d
 e

n
ti
re

ly
 b

y
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 W

a
te

r 
s
e
w

e
rs

, 
s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 r

e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

la
n
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
re

 m
a
y
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

m
a
n
y
 d

is
u
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
ra

in
s
 s

ti
ll 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

e
w

e
rs

 
c
ro

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 s

it
e
 s

e
rv

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
re

a
s
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

b
le

m
a
ti
c
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
tl
y
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
.

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
/T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

(U
D

P
 –

 T
8
, 

T
1
0
, 

T
2
1
, 

T
2
2
, 

T
2
5
. 

S
D

F
 –

 C
S

4
1
,C

S
5
4
) 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 (

P
o
lic

y
 U

D
P

 
B

E
1

0
, 

H
1

8
)

4
.3

9
 A

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 u
p
g
ra

d
e
 w

o
rk

s
, 

th
e
s
e
 m

a
y
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 S

1
0
6
/S

2
7
8
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
/ 

w
o
rk

s
. 

4
.4

0
T

h
e
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 
d

u
ri

n
g

 p
re

a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

. 
 S

e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 

fo
r 

th
e

 l
in

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

S
P

G
. 

4
.4

1
A

 t
ra

v
e
l 

p
la

n
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
n

d
s
h

o
u

ld
a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 p
ro

m
o

te
 w

a
lk

in
g

, 
c
y
c
li
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
s
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

a
r 

in
 l
in

e
 

w
it

h
 C

S
5
3
-5

4
. 

 R
o
u
te

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

e
a
s
t 

w
e
s
t 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 

s
it
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

lin
k
a
g
e
s
 t

o
 k

e
y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
.e

. 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
e
n
tr

e
/ 

tr
a
m

 s
to

p
 a

t 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
o
r 

O
a
k
s
 R

o
a
d
. 

4
.4

2
. 

U
n
d
e
r 

U
D

P
 P

o
lic

y
 B

E
1
0
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

a
 n

e
w

 z
e
b
ra

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
 a

t 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 r

o
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 r

o
u
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

P
a
rk

w
a
y
 R

e
ta

il 
P

a
rk

. 
 S

e
e
 U

rb
a
n
 D

e
s
ig

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
(F

ig
 1

1
).

 

4
.4

3
 A

 m
a
p
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

o
a
d
 l
a
y
o
u
t 

a
n
d
 f

o
rm

a
l 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

t 
a
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 4
. 

 T
h
e
 U

rb
a
n
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 (
F

ig
 1

1
) 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

o
tp

a
th

 
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
n
e
w

 p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 r

o
u
te

. 

4
.4

4
 M

o
b
ili

ty
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 w

ill
 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

le
a
rl
y
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
y
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 d

im
e
n
s
io

n
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

 S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

lin
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

S
P

G
. 

 F
o
r 

n
o
n
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 u

s
e
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

W
a
s
te

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 (

S
D

F
 –

 C
S

6
4
) 

4
.4

5
 C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

H
o

u
s
e
s
 

C
o
n
ta

in
e
rs

• 
P

e
r 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
, 

s
p
a
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 f

o
r 

3
 

w
h
e
e
le

d
 b

in
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
rs

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t 

s
iz

e
 o

f 
0
.7

5
m

 x
 1

.5
m

, 
a
ro

u
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 
re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 w

a
lk

w
a
y
.

• 
S

to
ra

g
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

 
m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

1
.0

m
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
b
in

 s
to

re
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

v
o
id

e
d
.

A
c
c
e
s
s

• 
A

n
y
 u

n
d
e
rc

o
v
e
r/

 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
s
to

ra
g
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

b
in

s
 

m
u
s
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
r 

a
n
y
 

s
lo

p
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

q
u
a
l 
to

 t
h
a
t 

fo
r 

w
h
e
e
l 

c
h

a
ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
.

Page 195



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

6
- 

• 
T

h
e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 b
in

s
 t

o
 

th
e
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

o
in

t 
is

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

r.
• 

T
h
e
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 b

in
s
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

e
d
 (

p
u
lle

d
 o

r 
p
u
s
h
e
d
) 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 s
m

o
o
th

 
s
u
rf

a
c
e
 (

ta
rm

a
c
, 

b
lo

c
k
 p

a
v
in

g
 o

r 
p
a
v
in

g
 f

la
g
s
to

n
e
s
) 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

s
in

k
 o

r 
b
e
 u

n
e
v
e
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

m
a
y
 c

a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
r 

to
 t

ip
 o

v
e
r.

S
e
rv

ic
in

g
 (

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 t
o
 H

o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 F

la
ts

) 
• 

N
e
w

 r
o
a
d
w

a
y
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

a
 3

2
 

to
n
n
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
, 

a
n
d
 d

u
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

a
rk

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

id
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

ro
a

d
.

• 
T

h
e
 d

im
e
n
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

re
:

L
e

n
g

th
: 

1
2

.5
 m

e
tr

e
s
 

W
id

th
: 

 3
.2

 m
e
tr

e
s

H
e

ig
h

t:
 4

.2
 m

e
tr

e
s
 

• 
A

 t
u
rn

in
g
 a

re
a
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
f 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

g
re

s
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
. 

 
• 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 V

e
h
ic

le
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

re
v
e

rs
e

 o
v
e

r 
1

2
 m

e
tr

e
s
.

4
.4

6
 C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

F
la

ts
 

W
h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

llo
c
a
te

 a
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

re
c
e
p
ta

c
le

 t
o
 a

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 i
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 1

1
0
0
 L

it
re

 E
u
ro

 B
in

s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

, 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 o

n
c
e
 w

e
e
k
ly

, 
6
6
0
 L

it
re

 E
u
ro

 B
in

s
 f

o
r 

p
a
p
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

a
rd

 a
n
d
 5

0
0
 l
it
re

 E
u
ro

 B
in

s
 f

o
r 

g
la

s
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
s
, 

b
o
th

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 e

v
e
ry

 t
w

o
 w

e
e
k
s
. 

 1
2
0
 l
it
re

s
 p

e
r 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
p
lu

s
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 
3
0
%

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
g
re

g
a
te

d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 f

o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
. 

S
to

ra
g
e

• 
A

 m
in

im
u
m

 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

w
a
s
te

 s
to

ra
g
e
 o

f 
0
.2

5
m

3
 (

a
s
 p

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 H
6
) 

p
e
r 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
 

m
u
s
t 

b
e
 a

d
h
e
re

d
. 

• 
A

n
y
 m

ix
e
d
-u

s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

m
u
s
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

to
ta

lly
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 s

to
ra

g
e

 o
f 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 w

a
s
te

 f
ro

m
 a

n
y
 

o
th

e
r 

w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
.

• 
A

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

re
a
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 m

a
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

a
s
te

 s
to

ra
g
e
 a

re
a
.

• 
S

p
a
c
e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

b
in

 s
to

ra
g
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 

b
in

s
 s

to
re

d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t

w
o
 d

e
e
p
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
m

p
le

 r
o
o
m

 f
o
r 

ro
ta

ti
n
g

 t
h

e
 b

in
s
 (

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

in
 s

p
a
c
e
 t

o
 a

 5
0
c
m

 w
id

e
 b

a
n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 e

a
c
h
 

b
in

 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
).

• 
A

d
e
q
u
a
te

 h
e
ig

h
t,
 w

it
h
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

2
.3

 m
e
tr

e
s
 

fr
o
m

 f
lo

o
r 

to
 c

e
ili

n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
 a

re
a
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 l
id

s
 o

n
 a

ll 
c
o
n
ta

in
e
rs

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 

a
b

le
 t

o
 o

p
e

n
 f

u
lly

.
• 

T
h
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

m
u
s
t 

g
iv

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
w

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

y
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
• 

A
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

re
a
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

o
c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l 
s
to

ra
g
e
 o

f 
b
u
lk

y
 i
te

m
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 b
y
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 (
th

is
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

in
im

u
m

 
0
.2

5
m

3
 o

f 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 w

a
s
te

 s
to

ra
g
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 p

e
r 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
).

• 
T

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 p

le
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

h
u
te

s
 f

o
r 

w
a
s
te

.
• 

S
u
it
a
b
le

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 

m
in

im
is

e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 v
e
n
ti
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

ir
e
 p

re
c
a
u
ti
o
n
s
.

• 
A

n
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

e
th

o
d
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 

Page 196



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

7
- 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 b
e
 l
ia

b
le

 f
o
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
s
ts

. 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
in

g
 (

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 t
o
 f

la
ts

) 
• 

B
in

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
lle

d
 a

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

1
2
 m

e
tr

e
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
 a

re
a
 t

o
 r

e
fu

s
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 v

e
h
ic

le
. 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
h
e
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 

d
ir
e
c
t 

fr
o
m

 s
to

ra
g
e
 a

re
a
, 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
ly

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

w
it
h

 t
h
e
 w

a
s
te

 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

 a
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 
re

tu
rn

 p
o

in
t.

 

Page 197



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
1

8
- 

5
. 

N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
IS

T
IC

S
 A

N
D

 
D

E
S

IG
N

 P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
S

 
5
.1

 T
h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
a
ls

 w
it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
. 
 P

le
a
s
e
 s

e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 
5
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 s

it
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 s

tu
d
y
. 

5
.2

 T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t

o
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

lis
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
d
 i
n
 F

ig
u
re

s
 6

, 
7
 a

n
d
 8

 b
y
 o

p
ti
m

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 

v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
s
 a

n
d
 m

it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
.

L
a

n
d

s
c

a
p

e

+
 

S
in

g
le

 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
la

n
d

fo
rm

 –
 g

e
n
tl
y
 s

lo
p
in

g
, 

w
it
h
 

v
ie

w
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

a
lle

y
+

 
G

o
o
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
tr

a
m

 a
n
d
 

h
ig

h
 f

re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 b

u
s
 r

o
u
te

s
 

+
 

O
p
e
n
 v

ie
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 f

ra
m

e
d
  

+
  

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 t

re
e
s
 o

n
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 

m
u
c
h
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 g

re
e
n
e
ry

 
- 

P
o
o
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 w

it
h
 

b
a
c
k
s
 o

f 
re

ta
il 

u
n
it
s
, 

fe
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 y

a
rd

s
 

- 
N

o
rt

h
 f

a
c
in

g
 s

it
e
 o

ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
a
p

e
 

+
 

W
id

e
 o

p
e
n
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 v

e
rg

e
s
 

+
 

C
le

a
r 

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
fr

o
n
t 

a
n
d
 b

a
c
k
s
  

+
 

G
e
n
e
ro

u
s
 f

ro
n
t 

a
n
d
 b

a
c
k
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

it
h
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
e

t 
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e
e

t 
+

 
V

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

 –
 h

e
d
g
e
ro

w
s
, 

o
p
e
n
 f

e
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
lls

- 
In

 s
o

m
e

 c
a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
s
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

u
p
 o

r 
d
o
w

n
, 

c
re

a
ti
n
g
 a

 p
o
o
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

to
 

d
e
a
l 
w

it
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

- 
P

o
o
r 

s
tr

e
e
t 

e
n
c
lo

s
u
re

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
tb

a
c
k
 

h
o
u
s
e
s

- 
F

e
w

 s
tr

e
e
t 
tr

e
e
s
 

A
rc

h
it

e
c
tu

re

+
 

R
ic

h
 r

o
o
fs

c
a
p
e
 –

 p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 t

ile
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
, 

h
ip

p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 w
it
h
 c

h
im

n
e

y
s
, 

o
v
e

rh
a

n
g

in
g

 e
a

v
e

s
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 r

a
ft

e
r 

fe
e

t 
+

 
F

e
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 –

 c
le

a
r 

w
in

d
o
w

 h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
 

+
 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 –
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
, 
re

n
d
e
r,

 c
a
s
t 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 

d
e
ta

ils
+

 
D

e
ta

ils
 –

 b
ri
c
k
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
, 

b
ri
c
k
 d

e
ta

ils
, 

b
ri
c
k
 

a
rc

h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
t 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 p

o
rc

h
 c

a
n
o
p
ie

s
 

- 
M

o
n
o
lit

h
ic

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
s
 –

 m
o
n
o
to

n
o
u
s
 f

e
e
l 

C
o

lo
u

r

+
 

R
e
d
 a

n
d
 g

re
e
n
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
o
lo

u
rs

 
+

  
N

e
w

 a
n
d
 b

o
ld

 r
e
n
d
e
r 

c
o
lo

u
rs

 a
d

d
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

w
id

e
r 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 

a
id

 l
e
g

ib
ili

ty
  

Page 198



- 
1

9
 -

 

F
ig

u
re

 6
: 

S
it
e

 P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

s
 p

la
te

 1
 

Page 199



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
2

0
- 

F
ig

u
re

 7
: 

S
it
e

 P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

s
 p

la
te

 2
 

Page 200



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
2

1
- 

F
ig

u
re

 8
: 

S
it
e

 P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

s
 p

la
te

 3
 

Page 201



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
2

2
- 

F
ig

u
re

 9
: 

S
it
e

 P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

s
 k

e
y
 m

a
p

 

Page 202



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
2

3
- 

F
ig

u
re

 1
0

: 
 S

it
e

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

Page 203



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
2

4
- 

F
ig

u
re

 1
1

: 
 U

rb
a

n
 D

e
s
ig

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

Page 204



- 
2

5
 -

 

D
e
s
ig

n
 P

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 

5
.3

 S
it
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 d
e
s
ig

n
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 F

ig
 1

1
 a

re
: 

 
 

A
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
5
 W

y
b
o
u
rn

 M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
, 

th
e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
re

a
te

 a
 ‘
n
e
w

 f
a
c
e
’ 

fo
r 

W
y
b
o
u
rn

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 v

e
ry

 v
is

ib
le

 a
n
d
 

g
a
te

w
a
y
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
 i
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l.
  

T
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
w

a
y
fi
n
d
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
is

. 

 
 

K
e
y
 v

ie
w

s
 a

n
d
 v

is
ta

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 

la
y
o
u
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

b
o
th

 C
ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 

R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 M

a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 W
a
y
. 

 
 

C
re

a
te

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 o

n
to

 C
ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

M
a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 W
a
y
 t
o
 a

id
 l
e
g
ib

ili
ty

. 

 
 

A
t 

th
e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 s

it
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
y
o
u
t 

to
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
ly

 r
e
s
p
o
n

d
 t

o
: 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
m

e
n
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

R
e
ta

il 
P

a
rk

, 
o
n
-s

it
e
 t

re
e
s
, 

th
e
 a

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
t 

M
a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 P
la

c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

h
o
u
s
in

g

 
 

A
t 

th
e
 M

a
tr

a
v
e
rs

 W
a
y
 s

it
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
y
o
u
t 

to
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
ly

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t

o
: 

th
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

a
c
k
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 m

a
is

o
n
e
tt
e
 b

lo
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

o
f 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 o
n

 M
a

lt
ra

v
e

rs
 W

a
y
. 

 
 

P
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ra
d
ie

n
t 

o
f 

s
tr

e
e
ts

, 
a
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 f

o
o
tw

a
y
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 s
te

e
p
 

ra
m

p
s
 a

n
d
 d

ri
v
e
w

a
y
s
 o

r 
fo

r 
s
te

p
s
. 

 
 

T
h
e
 f

o
o
tw

a
y
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

ri
c
k
e

t 
In

n
 r

o
a

d
 s

it
e

 t
o

 b
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

r 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 c
lo

s
e
d
 a

n
d

 r
e
-r

o
u
te

d
. 

 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 u

p
 t

o
 2

 s
to

re
y
s
 

p
re

fe
ra

b
ly

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 p
it
c
h
e
d
/ 

h
ip

p
e

d
 r

o
o

f 
fo

rm
, 

in
 s

h
o

rt
 

te
rr

a
c
e
s
 o

r 
a
s
 s

e
m

i 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 h

ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

d
e
ta

ili
n

g
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

. 

 
 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 i
n
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
s
 o

r 
a
n
 a

p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

b
lo

c
k
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 a

t 
C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 

h
e
lp

 w
a
y
fi
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 l
e

g
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

re
a

. 

 
 

In
te

g
ra

te
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

u
b

s
ta

ti
o

n
 a

t 
M

a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 W
a
y
 i
n
 n

e
w

 
b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

ts
/ 

la
n

d
s
c
a

p
in

g
 i
f 

it
 h

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
. 

 
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 o
f 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 
re

a
lm

. 
A

d
o
p
t 

c
re

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

to
p
o
g
ra

p
h
y
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
 M

a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 W
a
y
 s

it
e
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

M
o
b
ili

ty
 H

o
u
s
in

g
. 

Page 205



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
2

6
 -

 

6
 B

E
S

T
 P

R
A

C
T

IC
E

 

6
.1

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
t 

a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
, 

u
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 w

o
u
ld

 s
h
o
w

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 t

h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t.
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

M
a

n
u

a
l 
th

a
t 

m
a

y
 h

e
lp

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

s
e
fu

l 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n

n
in

g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
/s

h
e

ff
ie

ld
-s

it
e

-r
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t-

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

6
.2

 G
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d
e
d
 A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
m

e
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 H

C
A

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 (

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
).

 A
n
n
e
x
e
 3

 o
f 

th
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 

a
ls

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
a
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

e
e
ts

 
th

e
s
e
 H

C
A

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

m
u
s
t 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

h
o
m

e
s
 a

re
 t

e
n
u
re

 b
lin

d
: 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
te

d
 b

y
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
, 

ty
p
e
, 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

o
r 

p
h
a
s
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
. 

H
o

u
s
in

g

6
.3

 P
re

p
a
re

 a
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 

H
M

A
. 

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/i
n
-y

o
u
r-

a
re

a
/h

o
u
s
in

g
-

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
/h

o
u
s
in

g
-s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
/h

o
u
s
in

g
-m

a
rk

e
t-

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t-

2
0
0
7
.h

tm
l 
(f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
S

h
o
w

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

fu
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
. 

6
.4

 U
s
e
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

p
 t

o
 4

0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

il
it

y
 

6
.5

 P
re

p
a
re

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 a

 L
o
w

 a
n
d
 Z

e
ro

 C
a
rb

o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 g

u
id

in
g

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

c
o

s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
.

6
.6

 P
re

p
a
re

 a
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ta
g
e
 C

o
d
e
 f

o
r 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 H
o
m

e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 g

u
id

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  

6
.7

 P
re

p
a
re

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 S

it
e
 I

n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
T

h
e
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 t

o
p
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 s
u

rv
e
y
, 

e
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
, 

a
n
d
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 

6
.8

 P
re

p
a
re

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 a

 W
a
te

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 D

e
m

a
n
d
 

S
tu

d
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

S
U

D
’s

. 
T

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
 r

o
o
fs

 o
n
 a

s
 m

a
n
y
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

6
.9

 P
re

p
a
re

 a
n
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 B

ri
e

f 
fo

r 
th

e
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 T

e
a
m

 b
a
la

n
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 o

p
ti
m

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
n
 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 

6
.1

0
 P

re
p
a
re

 a
 G

re
e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 e

x
p
la

in
in

g
 h

o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 t

o
 l
e
a
d
 m

o
re

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

lly
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
 

lif
e
s
ty

le
s
.

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 

6
.1

1
 S

h
o
w

 i
n
 t

h
e
 D

A
S

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 d

e
s
ig

n
in

g
 a

t 
h
ig

h
e
r 

d
e
n
s
it
ie

s
.

Page 206



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
2

7
 -

 

6
.1

2
 P

re
p
a
re

 a
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a

p
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 s
it
 w

it
h
in

 a
 G

re
e
n
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

In
c
lu

d
e
 a

 c
o
s
te

d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

P
la

n
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
.

6
.1

3
 A

p
p
o
in

t 
a
n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 B

u
ild

in
g
 f

o
r 

L
if
e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
o
r 

to
 

a
d
v
is

e
 o

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 h

ig
h
e
r 

s
c
o
re

s
.

6
.1

4
 S

h
o
w

 a
ll 

7
 a

tt
ri
b
u
te

s
 o

f 
‘S

a
fe

r 
P

la
c
e
s
’ 
a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

c
h
a
p
te

r 
2
 o

f 
'S

a
fe

r 
P

la
c
e
s
: 
th

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 C

ri
m

e
 

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
.’
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
/p

la
n
n

in
g
a
n

d
b
u
ild

i
n
g
/s

a
fe

rp
la

c
e
s
 W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 A

L
O

 e
a
rl
y
 o

n
, 

a
n
d
 s

e
e
k
 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 S

e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
s
ig

n
 a

w
a
rd

. 

6
.1

5
 C

o
m

m
it
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 H

o
m

e
 Z

o
n
e
s
 a

n
d
/ 

o
r 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

c
a
p
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 S

o
u
th

 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
D

e
s
ig

n
 G

u
id

e
. 

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/r

o
a
d
s
/a

b
o
u
t/
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

-a
n
d
-

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
/d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t-

a
n
d
-a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
/d

e
s
ig

n
-g

u
id

e

6
.1

6
 D

e
s
ig

n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
a
rk

in
g
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
g
lis

h
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 ‘
W

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

s
 

w
h
e
re

’.
h
tt
p
:/
/c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
.e

u
ro

p
a
rc

h
iv

e
.o

rg
/t
n
a
/2

0
1
0
0
9
1
1
0
3
5
0
4

2
/h

tt
p
:/
/e

n
g
lis

h
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
.c

o
.u

k
/q

u
a
lit

y
a
n
d
in

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
p
u
b
lic

a
t

io
n

s
.h

tm

In
c
lu

s
iv

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

6
.1

7
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

p
re

p
a
re

 a
n
 

In
c
lu

s
iv

e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 L

e
g

ib
ili

ty
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 s

e
n
s
o
ry

 i
m

p
a
ir
m

e
n
t,
 a

p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

n
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
. 

6
.1

8
 D

e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

if
e
ti
m

e
 H

o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 
e
n
a
b
lin

g
 e

a
s
y
 f

u
tu

re
 a

d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 

6
.1

9
 D

e
s
ig

n
 t

h
e
 M

o
b
ili

ty
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 H
o
m

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r 

o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 G

u
id

e
 t

o
 W

h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

w
it
h
 j
u
s
t 

1
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 a

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
. 

h
tt
p
:/
/l
e
g
a
c
y
.l
o
n
d
o
n
.g

o
v
.u

k
/m

a
y
o
r/

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
/s

d
s
/b

p
g
-

w
h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
-a

c
c
-h

o
u
s
in

g
.j
s
p
  

6
.2

0
 D

e
s
ig

n
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

o
r 

e
x
c
e

e
d
 t

h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 ‘
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 i
n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

- 
a
 g

o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

e
’ 
in

te
rn

a
l 
s
p
a
c
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y

6
.2

1
 P

re
p
a
re

 a
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
w

in
g
 h

o
w

 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 

fo
r 

M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
, 

is
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

In
c
lu

d
e
 a

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 a

n
d
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 r

e
-u

s
in

g
 

a
s
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

6
.2

2
 F

u
tu

re
-p

ro
o
f 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 e
n
a
b
le

 f
u
tu

re
 l
o
ft
 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
s
 i
n
to

 h
a
b
it
a
b
le

 r
o
o
m

s
, 

o
v
e
r-

s
p
e
c
if
y
 r

o
o
f 

tr
u
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 f
u
tu

re
 P

V
 p

a
n
e
ls

 t
o
 b

e
 f

it
te

d
, 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

6
.2

3
 S

h
o
w

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
re

 c
la

s
s
e
d
 A

+
/B

 i
n
 

th
e
 B

R
E

 G
re

e
n
 G

u
id

e
 t

o
 S

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
. 

U
s
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 
a
n
d
 l
a
b
o
u
r.

 

Page 207



C
R

IC
K

E
T

 I
N

N
 &

 M
A

L
T

R
A

V
E

R
S

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
R

IE
F

 

- 
2

8
 -

 

7
. 

 T
IM

E
S

C
A

L
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

 A
R

R
A

N
G

E
M

E
N

T
S

 

7
.1

 G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 s

h
o
w

n
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 f

o
llo

w
 a

 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 A
t 

th
e
 

in
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 t

h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
a
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

ro
to

c
o
l 
a
n
d

 w
ill

 s
c
o
p

e
 i
ts

 
c
o
n
te

n
ts

 w
it
h
 G

re
a
t 

P
la

c
e
s
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 G

re
a
t 

P
la

c
e
s
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

c
le

a
r 

g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

, 
a
 w

o
rk

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 P

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

7
.2

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
h
a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

p
re

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
; 

d
e
ta

ils
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

s
e
e
n
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
: 

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n

n
in

g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/
o
u
r-

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

/p
la

n
n
in

g
-f

o
r-

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
/p

re
p
m

a
k
in

g
a
n
a
p
p
.h

tm
l

8
  

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
S

 
T

h
e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

: 

M
a
tt
 R

id
g
e
 (

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
ff
ic

e
r)

 
 

0
1
1
4
 2

0
 3

7
6
5
0
 

M
a

tt
h

e
w

.r
id

g
e

@
s
h

e
ff

ie
ld

.c
o

.u
k

S
h
a
n
z
a
 S

h
a
h
z
a
d
 (

A
re

a
 P

la
n
n
e
r)

 
 

0
1
1
4
 2

0
 5

3
0
7
4

s
h
a
n
z
a
.s

h
a
h
z
a
d
@

s
h
e
ff

ie
ld

.g
o
v
.u

k

Page 208



- 
1

 -
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IC
E

S
(t

o
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n

 a
n

d
 M

a
lt

ra
v
e
rs

 P
ro

je
c
t 

B
ri

e
f)

1
. 

 S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 G
U

ID
A

N
C

E
 

p
g

 2
 

2
. 

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IS

S
IO

N
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
  

p
g

 3
-4

 

3
. 

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 M

A
P

 
 

 
 

 
p

g
 5

  

4
. 

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 A
D

O
P

T
IO

N
S

 P
L

A
N

 
 

 
p

g
 6

 

5
. 

 S
IT

E
 C

H
A

R
A

C
T

E
R

IS
A

T
IO

N
  

 
 

 
p

g
 7

-2
2
 

6
. 

 A
R

C
H

A
E

O
L

O
G

Y
 

 
 

 
 

p
g

 2
3
 2

4
 

7
. 

 A
3
 P

la
n

s
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 209



- 
2

 -
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

: 
 S

U
P

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 G

U
ID

A
N

C
E

 

In
te

ri
m

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.s

h
e

ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/s

y
s
_
u
p
l/
te

m
p
la

te
s
/a

s
s
e
tb

ro
w

s
e
r/

a
s

s
e
tb

ro
w

s
e
r_

d
is

p
.a

s
p
?
p
a
g
e
=

1
&

b
a
s
k
e
tP

a
g
e
=

&
b
a
s
k
e
tI
te

m
=

&
p
g
i

d
=

1
6
8
1
5
3
&

ti
d
=

1
8
6
&

re
s
u
lt
s
O

rd
e
ri
n
g
=

ti
tl
e
A

s
c
#

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

: 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h
e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t/
p
la

n
n
in

g
-d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/s
d
f/
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
-p

la
n
n
in

g
-

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

K
e

y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
e
fe

r 
to

 a
re

: 

 
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 

 
 

A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 

 
 

M
o
b
ili

ty
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

 
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 

 
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
s
 

 
 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h

a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

S
P

D
) 

Page 210



- 
3

 -
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 :
  

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IS

S
IO

N
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 

a
.

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
s
it

e
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

it
e
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r’
s
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

k
e
y
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

rc
h
a

e
o

lo
g
y
).

 

b
.

C
o

n
c
e
p

t 
p

la
n

s
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 
th

e
 S

it
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a

, 
e
x
p
la

in
in

g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d

p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 b

ri
e
f.
  

E
x
p
la

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
tu

a
l 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t

h
e
 K

e
y
 T

o
p
ic

 A
re

a
s
. 

 C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
c
e
p
tu

a
l 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
;

S
it
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

, 
U

rb
a
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
n
d
 l
e
g
ib

ili
ty

, 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
s
, 

M
o
v
e
m

e
n
t,
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
la

y
o
u
t 

c
. 

S
it

e
 l

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 p

re
fe

ra
b
ly

 1
:1

2
5
0
, 

a
n
d
 n

o
 s

m
a
lle

r 
th

a
n
 1

:2
5

0
0
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 s

u
rr

o
u
n

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 
- 

M
e
tr

ic
 s

c
a
le

s
 o

n
ly

. 
- 

N
o
rt

h
 p

o
in

t,
 d

a
te

 a
n
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r.

 
- 

O
u
tl
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 

a
n

d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 a
n
y
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

w
n
e
d
 o

r 
c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
t.
 

- 
S

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

ll 
a
d
jo

in
in

g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

o
a
d
s
. 

- 
S

h
o
w

 v
e

h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 i
f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

a
d
jo

in
 a

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
. 

d
.

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

la
y
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
s

s
in

g
 p

re
fe

ra
b
ly

 1
:2

0
0
 a

n
d
 n

o
 l
a
rg

e
r 

th
a
n
 1

:5
0
0

s
h
o
w

in
g
 a

s
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

; 
b
u
ild

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t

y
p
e
s
/h

e
ig

h
ts

 w
it
h
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
, 

le
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
, 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 (
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p

e
),

 k
e
y
 v

ie
w

s
 a

n
d

 v
is

ta
s
, 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 f

e
a

tu
re

s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
, 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
in

s
 a

n
d
 

c
y
c
le

 s
to

re
s
, 
e

tc
. 

e
. 

P
u

b
li
c
 r

e
a
lm

, 
la

n
d

s
c
a
p

e
, 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e

ts
c
e
n

e
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 a

s
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

;
p
u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

a
rd

 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

, 
b
o
u
n
d

a
ry

 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
ts

, 
o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 s
o

ft
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a
p

e
, 

s
tr

e
e

t 
fu

rn
it
u

re
, 

p
la

y
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t,
 p

u
b

lic
 a

rt
, 

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
, 

e
tc

f.
 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a
y
 d

e
s

ig
n

 s
h
o
w

in
g
 a

s
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

; 
 a

n
y
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

n
d
 v

e
h
ic

u
la

r 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s
, 

s
h

a
re

d
 s

u
rf

a
c
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
, 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 g

a
ra

g
e
 e

n
tr

y
 p

o
in

ts
, 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 t

ra
ff
ic

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 
p
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 c

y
c
le

 r
o
u

te
s
, 

lig
h

ti
n

g
, 

s
e

rv
ic

in
g

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
, 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

, 
d
ra

in
a

g
e
, 

k
e
y
 l
in

k
a
g
e
s
, 

e
tc

g
.

T
h

re
e
-d

im
e
n

s
io

n
a
l 

v
is

u
a
li
s
a
ti

o
n

s
, 

p
h

o
to

m
o

n
ta

g
e

 o
r 

m
o

d
e

ls
 p

re
fe

ra
b
ly

 i
n

 c
o
n
te

x
t 

w
it
h
 s

o
m

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 (

N
o
te

: 
T

h
re

e
-d

im
e
n
s
io

n
a
l 
d
ra

w
in

g
s
 

d
o
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

o
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 s
it
e
, 

b
u
t 

c
a
n
 c

o
n

s
is

t 
o

f 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 g

iv
e
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 a
p

p
e
a
r)

. 

h
.

A
s

tu
d

y
 b

o
a

rd
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 t

y
p

ic
a
l 

a
n

d
 m

a
rk

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 t

y
p
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

a
n
d
 w

it
h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
, 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

, 
a
n
d
 h

a
rd

/s
o
ft
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 

p
u

b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 f
in

is
h

e
s
. 

i.
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 a
n

d
 d

e
ta

il
e
d

 d
ra

w
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
ll
 h

o
u

s
e
 t

y
p

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n

s
 a

t 
a
 s

c
a
le

 t
y
p
ic

a
lly

 n
o
 l
e

s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1

:5
0
 a

n
d
 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 a

ll 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 w

it
h
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
ri
te

ri
a
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 s

h
o

w
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
s
. 

j.
 

C
ro

s
s
-s

e
c

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
ll
 k

e
y
 s

tr
e
e
t 

e
le

v
a
ti

o
n

s
 –

 (
T

y
p
ic

a
lly

 a
t 

a
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

1
:5

0
0
) 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 s
it
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
’s

 
to

p
o
g
ra

p
h

y
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 s
tr

e
e

ts
c
a
p
e
 i
s
 c

re
a
te

d
. 

 

k
. 

D
e
ta

il
e
d

 a
n

n
o

ta
te

d
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
 o

f 
a
 t

y
p

ic
a
l 

th
re

e
 b

e
d

ro
o

m
fo

u
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 d

w
e
ll

in
g

 t
y
p

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
a
 s

c
a
le

 t
y
p
ic

a
lly

 n
o
 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 1

:5
0
. 

S
h
o
w

 a
 t

y
p
ic

a
l 
fu

rn
it
u
re

 l
a
y
o
u
t.
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 o

u
tl
in

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
, 

a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 e

x
p
la

in
in

g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

l.
D

e
ta

il
e
d

 d
ra

w
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
ll
 t

y
p

ic
a
l 

s
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n

e
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
li
c
 r

e
a
lm

 a
t 

a
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

n
o
t 

le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1

:5
0
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 s

u
rf

a
c
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
n
d
 

d
e

ta
ils

,
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

, 
s
tr

e
e
t 

tr
e
e
s
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

, 
a
n
d
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
d
e
ta

ils
. 

Page 211



- 
4

 -
 

O
th

e
r 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

C
ri

c
k

e
t 

In
n

 
a

n
d

M
a

lt
ra

v
e

rs
S

it
e

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

Y

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

Y

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

Y

D
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

Y

F
lo

o
d

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Y

A
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
Y

N
o

is
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Y

A
ir

 q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Y

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t/
 P

la
y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t
Y

P
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
s
 (

d
ra

ft
) 

Y

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

Y

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Y

T
ra

v
e

l 
P

la
n

 
Y

C
o

n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 l
a

n
d

 r
is

k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Y

T
re

e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

Y

E
c
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Y

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 d

e
ta

ils
 

Y

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
Y

Page 212



- 
5

 -
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

- 
D

ra
in

a
g

e
 m

a
p

 

Page 213



- 
6

 -
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 :
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

s
 P

la
n

 (
a

ll
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

n
d

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 f
o

o
tp

a
th

s
 i

n
 y

e
ll

o
w

) 

Page 214



- 
7

 -
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

: 
S

IT
E

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
IS

A
T

IO
N

B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 n

o
te

 f
o
r 

C
ri
c
k
e
t 

In
n
 a

n
d
 W

y
b
o
u
rn

 S
it
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 B

ri
e
f

 F
ig

 1
: 
a

e
ri
a

l 
p

la
n

 o
f 
th

e
 s

it
e

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
s
 

M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
:

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 s

tu
d

y
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 
a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 S
o

u
th

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
D

e
s
ig

n
 g

u
id

e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
w

o
rk

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

y
b

o
u

rn
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
, 

2
0

0
5

. 
 

T
h

e
 s

tu
d

y
 i
s
 i
n

 t
w

o
 p

a
rt

s
:

P
a

rt
 1

 i
s
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
th

a
t 

d
e

s
c
ri

b
e
s
 t

h
e

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e

 f
e

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

 w
h

ile
 t

a
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 t

a
n

g
ib

le
 a

n
d

 
in

ta
n

g
ib

le
 f

a
c
to

rs
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 o

v
e

r 
a

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
. 

 

P
a

rt
 2

 i
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 c

o
n

te
x
tu

a
l 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
h

a
t 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

in
to

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
a

n
y
 n

e
w

 f
u

tu
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
. 

 

B
ib

lio
g

ra
p

h
y
/ 

re
fe

re
n

c
e

s
: 
 

W
y
b

o
u

rn
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
, 

2
0

0
5

: 
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h

e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n

in
g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t/

p
la

n
n
in

g
-

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
-r

e
p
o
rt

s
/w

y
b

o
u
rn

-a
rb

o
u
rt

h
o
rn

e
-m

a
n

o
r-

p
a
rk

-
m

a
s
te

rp
la

n

S
o

u
th

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
D

e
s
ig

n
 G

u
id

e
 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.s

h
e

ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/r

o
a
d
s
/a

b
o
u
t/
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

-a
n
d
-

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
/d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t-

a
n

d
-a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
/d

e
s
ig

n
-g

u
id

e

S
o

u
th

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
  

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.s

y
ti
m

e
s
c
a

p
e

s
.o

rg
.u

k
/

T
re

v
o

r 
Y

o
rk

e
, 

T
h

e
 1

9
3

0
’s

 H
o

u
s
e

 E
x
p

la
in

e
d

Page 215



- 
8

 -
 

A
P

P
R

A
IS

A
L

:

1
. 

A
c

ti
v

it
y
  

T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 p

la
n

 i
s
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 5
 

m
in

 (
4

0
0

 m
 )

 a
n

d
 1

0
 m

in
 (

8
0

0
 m

) 
w

a
lk

in
g

 d
is

ta
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
s
it
e

s
. 

T
h
is

 a
u

d
it
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
 w

a
lk

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
. 

 

 
 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
 m

ix
e

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
o

n
 C

ri
c
k
e

t 
In

n
 r

o
a

d
 w

it
h

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

h
a

ll 
s
h

o
p

s
, 

p
u

b
s
, 

th
e

 r
e

ta
il 

p
a

rk
 a

n
d

 s
o
m

e
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

th
e
 g

re
e

n
 f

ro
n

ta
g

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

tr
e

e
s
 a

d
d

in
g
 r

e
lie

f 
to

 t
h

e
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e

 d
o

m
in

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
‘b

a
c
k
’ 
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
ta

il 
p

a
rk

. 
 

 
 

G
o

o
d

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 c
o
n

n
e

c
ti
v
it
y
- 

s
u

p
e

rt
ra

m
 s

to
p

 
o

ff
 C

ri
c
k
e

t 
In

n
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 f

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 b

u
s
e

s
 o

n
 

C
ri

c
k
e

t 
In

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

M
a

n
o

r 
O

a
k
s
 R

o
a

d
 

 
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 n
o

t 
a

n
y
 s

u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
, 

th
e

re
 a

re
 

s
m

a
ll 

c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 s
h

o
p
s
 i
n

 5
 a

n
d

 1
0

 m
in

u
te

 w
a

lk
in

g
 

d
is

ta
n

c
e

.

 
 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l,
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e

n
tr

e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 1
0

 
m

in
u

te
 w

a
lk

in
g

 d
is

ta
n

c
e

. 

 
 

A
m

e
n

it
y
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 i
n

 g
o

o
d

 p
ro

x
im

it
y
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 d
is

ta
n

c
e

s
, 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

o
g

ra
p

h
y
 a

n
d

 p
o

o
r 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 r
o

u
te

s
. 

 

Page 216



- 
9

 -
 

fi
g
 2

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 p

la
n
 

Page 217



- 
1

0
 -

 

2
. 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

T
h

e
 W

y
b

o
u

rn
 e

s
ta

te
 l
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 m
e

d
ie

v
a

l 
d

e
e

r 
p

a
rk

. 
 I

n
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
t-

m
e

d
ia

e
v
a

l 
p

e
ri

o
d

, 
th

e
 

p
a

rk
 w

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 t
o

 a
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
u
s
e
, 

la
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

 o
f 

fi
e

ld
s
 

e
n

c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n

 a
 p

ie
c
e

m
e

a
l 
fa

s
h

io
n

 i
n

 o
f 

fi
e

ld
s
 i
n

 p
ie

c
e

m
e

a
l 

fa
s
h

io
n

, 
b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 a

n
 a

g
ri

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
la

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

. 
T

e
rr

a
c
e

d
 h

o
u

s
e
s
 

fr
o

n
te

d
 o

n
to

 C
ri

c
k
e

t 
In

n
 R

o
a

d
 w

it
h

 a
 l
a

n
e

 l
e

a
d

in
g
 t

o
 W

y
b

o
u

rn
 

H
a

ll.

L
it
tl
e

 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 o

f 
W

y
b

o
u

rn
 H

a
ll.

  
A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 n
o

rt
h

 b
y
 

a
 d

ri
v
e

 f
ro

m
 C

ri
c
k
e

t 
In

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

th
e

 H
a

ll 
w

a
s
 d

e
p

ic
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
F

a
ir

b
a

n
k
s
 p

la
n

 o
f 

1
7

9
5

. 
 I
n

 h
is

 n
o

te
s
 o

n
 S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
, 
H

e
n

ry
 T

a
tt

o
n

 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 h

is
 o

w
n

 e
a

rl
y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n

tu
ry

 d
ra

w
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ro
n

t 
e

le
v
a

ti
o

n
, 

s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll-

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
e
d

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 

b
u

ild
in

g
, 

w
it
h

 d
e

ta
ils

 s
u
g

g
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
t 

to
 b

e
 G

e
o

rg
ia

n
 i
n

 d
a

te
. 

 I
t 

w
a

s
 

d
e

m
o

lis
h

e
d

 a
ro

u
n

d
 1

9
2

7
, 

p
ro

b
a

b
ly

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 w
a

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
W

y
b

o
u

rn
 e

s
ta

te
. 

T
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

 H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
: 
 

T
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

 H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 

s
tu

d
y
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 w
it
h

 z
o

n
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
rl

y
 t

o
 m

id
 2

0
th

c
e

n
tu

ry
 m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
s
u

b
u

rb
s
. 

It
 i
s
 f

e
a

tu
re

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 e

s
ta

te
 w

it
h

 f
ra

g
m

e
n

ta
ry

 h
is

to
ri

c
 l
e

g
ib

ili
ty

. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
a

rk
la

n
d

/ 
fa

rm
 l
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

g
ri

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

o
r 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 (

1
1

0
0

-1
7

0
0

c
) 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.s

y
ti
m

e
s
c
a

p
e

s
.o

rg
.u

k
/

F
ig

u
re

 3
. 
 1

9
3

5
 O

S
 m

a
p

 e
x
tr

a
c
t 
(g

re
y
),

 o
v
e
rl

a
in

 w
it
h

 1
9

2
3

 m
a

p
 (

b
la

c
k
) 

©
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
a

n
d

 L
a

n
d

m
a

rk
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
  

Page 218



- 
1

1
 -

 

3
. 

L
a

n
d

s
c

a
p

e
  

fi
g
 4

: 
e
x
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
5
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h

e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n

in
g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t/

p
la

n
n
in

g
-

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
-r

e
p
o
rt

s
/w

y
b

o
u
rn

-a
rb

o
u
rt

h
o
rn

e
-m

a
n

o
r-

p
a
rk

-m
a
s
te

rp
la

n

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 i
s
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 g

e
n

tl
y
 s

lo
p

in
g

 n
o

rt
h

 
fa

c
in

g
 h

ill
 r

is
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 M

a
n

o
r.

 A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 p
la

n
 

th
e

 l
ig

h
te

r 
a

re
a

s
 a

re
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
tl
e

r 
s
lo

p
e

s
 w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 d

a
rk

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 

a
re

 h
ig

h
e

r 
g
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 g

re
e

n
 a

re
a

s
 a

re
 t

h
e

 v
a

lle
y
s
. 

D
u

e
 t

o
 

th
e

 n
a

tu
ra

l 
to

p
o

g
ra

p
h

y
 o

f 
S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
, 
m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 
h

ill
s
 a

n
d

 
v
a

lle
y
s
, 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s
 o

n
 h

ig
h
e

r 
g

ro
u

n
d

 d
o

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

fr
o
m

 
b

ig
 v

ie
w

s
. 

T
h

e
 s

it
e

, 
e

s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 t

h
e

 u
p

p
e

r 
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

n
 M

a
lt
ra

v
e

rs
 

W
a

y
 d

o
e

s
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

s
e

 l
o

n
g

 v
ie

w
s
. 

 T
h

e
 n

o
rt

h
 f

a
c
in

g
 

o
ri

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
s
o

u
th

 f
a

c
in

g
 g

a
rd

e
n

s
. 

 

fi
g
 5

 V
ie

w
s
 f
ro

m
 t
o
p
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
lt
ra

v
e
rs

 S
it
e
 

fi
g
 6

 V
ie

w
s
 f
ro

m
 t
o
p
 o

f 
th

e
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 
In

n
 s

it
e

 

Page 219



- 
1

2
 -

 

4
. 

 
G

re
e

n
 r

o
u

te
s

: 
 

T
h

e
 2

0
0

5
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

s
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 
th

e
 a

re
a

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 p

o
o

r 
s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
, 

p
a

tc
h

y
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
h

ru
b

s
, 

tr
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
n

o
 m

a
n

s
 l
a

n
d

. 
 

fi
g

 7
 a

n
d

 8
 V

ie
w

s
 o

f 
p

o
o

rl
y
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 p
a

th
s
 a

n
d

 s
p
a
c
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

s
it
e
  

In
 s

o
m

e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a

s
 f

ro
n

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

c
a

d
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t,

 e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 t

o
 k

e
y
 

c
o

rn
e

rs
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 b

y
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r.

fi
g

 9
: 
V

ie
w

 o
f 
re

c
e

n
t 
fa

ç
a
d

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 n
e
w

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 r

a
ili

n
g

 f
o

r 
te

rr
a
c
e
d

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 o

n
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
C

ri
c
k
e

t 
In

n
 C

re
s
 a

n
d

 W
y
b

o
u

rn
 H

o
u

s
e

 R
d

  

M
a

in
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

re
 c

h
o

s
e

n
 a

s
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 u
p

g
ra

d
e

d
 t

o
 g

re
e

n
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

a
lm

e
d
 s

tr
e

e
t.

 T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 s

e
c
u
ri

n
g

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 C
ri

c
k
e

t 
In

n
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 M
a

lt
ra

v
e

rs
 R

o
a

d
. 

 

Page 220



- 
1

3
 -

 

fi
g

 1
0

 a
 a

n
d

 b
: 
C

it
y
 3

D
 m

o
d
e

l 
s
it
e

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 A

 A
 (

n
o

rt
h

 –
s
o

u
th

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
)f

ig
 1

1
: 
C

it
y
 3

D
 m

o
d
e
l 
s
it
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 B

 B
 

(n
o
rt

h
-s

o
u

th
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 e

a
s
t 
o

f 
c
e
n

tr
e

 o
f 
th

e
 s

it
e

) 
 

Page 221



- 
1

4
 -

 

5
. 

  
  

  
 C

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

a
re

a
s

A
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

5
 m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
a

re
a

s
 p

la
n

 (
s
e
e

 
b

e
lo

w
) 

th
e

 s
it
e

 i
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 L

o
w

e
r 

W
y
b

o
u

rn
 (

in
 r

e
d

 )
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
a

re
a

. 
T

h
is

 a
re

a
 i
s
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 t

e
rr

a
c
e

d
 

a
n

d
 d

e
ta

c
h

e
d

 h
o

u
s
e

s
, 

b
u

ilt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 1

9
3

0
’s

. 
 

fi
g

 1
2

: 
e

x
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 2
0

0
5

 m
a

s
te

rp
la

n
 –

 p
g

 1
9

 (
fi
g

 4
.4

- 
W

y
b

o
u
rn

 a
n
d
 

M
a

n
o
r 

P
a

rk
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
a

re
a
s
) 

 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.s
h

e
ff
ie

ld
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n

in
g
-a

n
d
-c

it
y
-d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t/

p
la

n
n
in

g
-

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
-r

e
p
o
rt

s
/w

y
b

o
u
rn

-a
rb

o
u
rt

h
o
rn

e
-m

a
n

o
r-

p
a
rk

-m
a
s
te

rp
la

n

K
e

y
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 T
re

v
o

r 
Y

o
rk

e
: 

‘1
9

3
0

’s
 H

o
u

s
e

 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

’ 

 
 

T
h

e
s
e

 e
s
ta

te
s
 w

e
re

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

t 
a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
in

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
re

 w
a

r 
G

a
rd

e
n

 S
u

b
u

rb
s
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

liv
in

g
 w

it
h

 w
e

ll 
s
p

a
c
e

d
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

e
d

 
b

y
 a

m
p

le
 g

re
e

n
e

ry
 t

o
 r

e
c
re

a
te

 a
 v

ill
a

g
e

 a
tm

o
s
p

h
e

re
. 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
, 

th
is

 r
e

s
u

lt
e
d

 i
n

 f
if
te

e
n

-f
o

ld
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 p

a
y
in

g
 r

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il.

  

 
 

C
u

rv
in

g
 o

r 
c
ir

c
u

la
r 

ro
a

d
s
 a

re
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

n
o

ta
b

le
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 

o
f 

e
s
ta

te
 l
a

y
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
is

 p
e

ri
o

d
 w

it
h

 o
n

ly
 a

 f
e

w
 s

tr
a

ig
h

t 
o

r 
g

ri
d

 s
tr

e
tc

h
e
d

 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

. 
 

 
 

R
o

a
d

s
 h

a
d

 v
a

ry
in

g
 l
e

n
g

th
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
v
a

ri
e

ty
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
e

s
ta

te
s
. 

O
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
p

 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 a
p

p
e

a
r 

lik
e

 g
e

o
m

e
tr

ic
a

lly
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 m
a

z
e

s
 a

s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 t

ig
h

tl
y
 p

a
c
k
e

d
 g

ir
d

 l
a

y
o

u
ts

 
o

f 
e

a
rl

ie
r 

h
o
u

s
in

g
. 

 

 
 

R
o

a
d

 n
a

m
e

s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 d
is

ti
n

c
ti
v
e

 a
s
 t
h

e
 w

o
rd

 ‘
s
tr

e
e

t’
 w

a
s
 

ra
re

ly
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 i
t 

w
a

s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 p
re

 w
a

r 
in

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

e
x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
re

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 r

o
a
d

s
 w

e
re

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 e
s
ta

te
.

 
 

C
ro

s
s
 r

o
a

d
s
 o

r 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
d

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

rn
e

rs
 

s
te

p
p

e
d

 b
a

c
k
 o

r 
b

u
ilt

 a
t 
a

n
 a

n
g

le
 w

it
h

 g
ra

s
s
e

d
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 f

ro
n

t,
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
e

e
lin

g
 o

f 
s
p
a

c
e

 a
n

d
 l
ig

h
t 

w
h

ic
h

 
w

a
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
a

in
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
s
.

Page 222



- 
1

5
 -

 

fi
g
 1

3
: 
E

x
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 d
ra

ft
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t
y
p

o
lo

g
y
 s

h
e

e
ts

: 
P

u
b
lic

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 e

a
rl

y
 

to
 m

id
 2

0
th
 C

e
n
tu

ry
  
 

Page 223



- 
1

6
 -

 

6
. 

S
tr

e
e

t 
P

a
tt

e
rn

 a
n

d
 p

lo
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 

T
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 a
re

 o
rg

a
n

is
e
d

 i
n

 l
o

s
e

 g
ri
d

 p
a

tt
e

rn
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 c

o
n

n
e

c
te

d
, 

w
it
h

 s
o

m
e

 c
re

s
c
e

n
ts

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 

v
a

ri
e

ty
 i
n

 w
h

a
t 

is
 a

 f
a

ir
ly

 u
n

if
o

rm
 t

o
w

n
s
c
a

p
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
is

 n
o

t 
d

ir
e

c
t,

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 d
ir

e
c
t 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
e

e
t,

 a
n

d
 i
s
 

w
e

a
k
e

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
 g

ra
s
s
 v

e
rg

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s
 p

e
rh

a
p

s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e

d
 

to
 o

v
e

rc
o

m
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
c
h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 c
a

s
e

s
, 

b
u

t 
h

a
s
 f

a
ile

d
 t
o

 
c
re

a
te

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

c
a

p
e

.

fi
g
 1

4
: 
p
la

n
  
o
f 
a
re

a
 n

e
a
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
  

O
b

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
:

 
 

T
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 d
o

 n
o

t 
v
a

ry
 g

re
a

tl
y
 i
n

 w
id

th
s
, 

ra
n

g
in

g
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 a
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

1
6

 m
 f

o
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 l
ik

e
 

M
a

n
o

r 
O

a
k
s
 R

o
a

d
 t

o
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

2
.0

0
 m

 a
n

d
 9

.0
0

m
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 (
e

s
ta

te
 r

o
a

d
s
) 

s
tr

e
e

ts
 l
ik

e
 W

y
b

o
u

rn
 H

o
u

s
e

 
R

o
a

d
, 

M
a

lt
ra

v
e

rs
 P

la
c
e

 e
tc

.

 
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 c
le

a
r 

p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 r
o

u
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

fi
n
e

d
 

th
o

u
g

h
t 

th
e

 e
s
ta

te
, 

s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
o

u
te

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 
a

re
 n

e
it
h

e
r 

o
v
e

rl
o

o
k
e

d
 n

o
r 

le
a

d
in

g
 t
o

 a
 d

e
s
ir

e
d

 
d

e
s
ti
n

a
ti
o

n
, 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 d

is
u

s
e

, 
a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti
n

g
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 i
s
s
u
e

s
. 

 

 
 

T
h

e
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

w
it
h

in
 g

e
n

e
ro

u
s
 p

lo
ts

 m
e

a
s
u
ri

n
g

 o
n

 
a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 9

 m
 w

id
e

 a
n

d
 3

3
.0

 m
 d

e
e

p
, 

w
it
h

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 

6
.0

m
 w

id
e

 a
n

d
 6

.0
m

 d
e

e
p

, 
s
e

t 
b

a
c
k
 b

y
 6

.0
m

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 
a

 u
s
a

b
le

 g
a

rd
e

n
 s

iz
e

 o
f 
6

.0
 m

 x
 2

0
.0

 m
. 

T
h

e
 h

o
u

s
e

 t
o

 
p

lo
t 

ra
ti
o

 i
n

 t
h

is
 c

a
s
e
 i
s
 0

.2
5

 (
to

ta
l 
fl
o
o

r 
s
p

a
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
h

o
u

s
e

 d
iv

id
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
lo

t 
a

re
a

).
 T

h
e

 c
o

rn
e

r 
p

lo
ts

 w
it
h

 
b

ig
g

e
r 

h
o

u
s
e

s
 v

a
ry

 g
re

a
tl
y
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

h
o

u
s
e

 t
o

 p
lo

t 
ra

ti
o

 i
s
 m

u
c
h

 
s
m

a
lle

r,
 r

a
n

g
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 0

.4
0

 t
o

 0
.5

0
, 

a
s
 t

h
e

 p
lo

ts
 

e
n

d
e

d
 u

p
 b

e
in

g
 s

m
a

lle
r 

w
it
h

 l
e

s
s
 u

s
a

b
le

 g
a

rd
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

. 
 

 
 

T
h

e
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 a

re
 u

s
u

a
lly

 s
e

t 
b

a
c
k
 o

n
 a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 b

y
 6

.0
m

, 
w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

 s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rr
a

c
e
s
 s

e
t 

b
a

c
k
 t
o

 u
p

to
 9

.0
m

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
b

a
c
k
 e

d
g

e
 o

f 
p

a
v
e

m
e

n
t,

 c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

 v
e

ry
 p

o
o

r 
s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

e
n

c
lo

s
u

re
. 

  

 
 

w
h

e
re

 p
a

ir
s
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

s
 f

a
c
e

 o
n

to
 t

h
e

 c
o

rn
e

rs
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n

 
u

n
u

s
a

b
le

 g
a
rd

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

id
e

 o
f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
e

s
, 
a

n
d

 
c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

 w
e

a
k
 c

o
rn

e
r 

(e
.g

. 
in

 b
lu

e
) 

 
 

w
h

e
re

 a
 s

h
o

rt
 t

e
rr

a
c
e

 o
f 
3

 o
r 

4
 h

o
u

s
e
s
 f

a
c
e

s
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e

e
t,

 
w

it
h

 e
n

tr
a

n
c
e

s
 o

ff
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
e

t,
 t

h
e

 c
o

rn
e

r 
a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e
ts

c
e

n
e

 
re

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 b
u

ild
in

g
 f

ro
n

ta
g

e
 (

e
.g

. 
in

 g
re

e
n

) 

 
 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i
s
 m

o
s
tl
y
 o

n
 p

lo
t 
to

 t
h

e
 s

id
e

/ 
in

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
h

o
u

s
e

s

Page 224



- 
1

7
 -

 

 
m

a
rk

e
d

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
tr

e
e

s
 a

d
d

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

o
o

r 
s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

e
n

c
lo

s
u

re
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 v
e

ry
 ‘
o

p
e

n
’ 
a

n
d

 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 c
a
s
e

s
 

w
in

d
s
w

e
p

t 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r.

7
. 

S
tr

e
e

t 
c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
n

 p
la

n
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 a

re
 f

a
ir

ly
 u

n
if
o

rm
 i
n

 w
id

th
, 

w
it
h

 
s
im

ila
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 (

s
e

tb
a

c
k
s
 e

tc
),

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 
s
u

b
tl
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 u

n
iq

u
e

 s
e

t 
o

f 
c
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 a
s
 b

e
lo

w
 -

  

 
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

re
 

o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
 a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
fr

o
n

ta
g

e
s
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 
u

n
if
o

rm
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
n

ti
re

 a
re

a
 e

.g
. 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

 
re

in
fo

rc
e

 ‘
p

ri
m

a
ry

’ 
s
tr

e
e

ts
 o

r 
 ‘
s
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

’ 
s
tr

e
e

ts
 

 
 

h
o

u
s
e

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 c

le
a
r 

d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
fr

o
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
b

a
c
k
s
 w

it
h

 f
ro

n
ts

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e

d
 o

ff
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 a
n

d
 b

a
c
k
 t
o

 
b

a
c
k
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 

 
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 d

o
 a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 s

lo
p

e
s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

ts
 i
n

 u
n

if
o

rm
 s

te
p

p
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 
 

u
n

if
o

rm
 h

e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
s
s
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 o

f 
2

 s
to

re
y
 

a
n

d
 p

it
c
h

e
d

 r
o

o
f,

 a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
t 

fr
o
n

ta
g

e
s
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 l
ik

e
 c

o
rn

e
rs

, 
e

le
v
a

te
d

 
p

o
s
it
io

n
s
, 

o
r 

k
e

y
 s

it
e

s
 t

e
rm

in
a

ti
n

g
 k

e
y
 n

a
rr

o
w

 v
ie

w
s
 

e
tc

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 r
e

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

 n
o

t 
v
e

ry
 l
e

g
ib

le
 s

tr
e

e
ts

c
a

p
e
 

 
 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
ll 

b
u

ilt
 i
n

 u
n

if
o
rm

 
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

b
tl
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
y
p

e
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 
b

e
lo

w
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 o

n
 s

u
c
h

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
s
c
a

le
, 

th
e

y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 d
is

ti
n

c
t 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
th

a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri

b
u

te
d

 t
o

 e
a

c
h

 s
tr

e
e

t.
 

8
. 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 f
e

a
tu

re
s

  

T
h

e
 i
n

te
r 

w
a

r 
h

o
u

s
e

s
 w

e
re

 r
e

m
a

rk
a

b
ly

 s
im

ila
r 

in
 a

p
p

e
a

ra
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 l
a

y
o

u
t 

w
h

e
re

v
e

r 
th

e
y
 w

e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 t

o
 

re
s
u

lt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
s
ty

le
s
 a

n
d

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

lit
y
; 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 

la
rg

e
r 

a
n

d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

q
u

a
lit

y
 h

o
u

s
e

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 n
o

w
 b

e
 a

ff
o

rd
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 m
a

s
s
e

s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
. 
 

 
 

L
o

c
a

lly
 s

o
u

rc
e

d
 b

ri
c
k
 f
ro

m
 s

m
a

ll 
b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

s
 w

a
s
 t
h

e
 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

o
u

rc
e

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a

l.
 T

h
e

 b
ri

c
k
s
 h

a
d

 a
 f

la
t 

s
m

o
o

th
 s

u
rf

a
c
e

, 
w

it
h

 s
o
m

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

ls
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 
p

a
tt

e
rn

s
, 

m
o

re
 p

o
p

u
la

r 
in

 s
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s
. 

 
 

S
o

lid
 f

lo
o

rs
 b

e
g

a
n

 t
o

 a
p
p

e
a

r 
a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
b

lu
e

 
b

ri
c
k
 f

o
r 

d
a
m

p
 p

ro
o

f 
c
o

u
rs

e
. 

  

 
 

T
ile

d
, 

h
ip

p
e
d

 r
o

o
f 

o
n

e
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

fo
u

r 
s
id

e
s
 s

lo
p

in
g

 w
a

s
 t

h
e

 
d

o
m

in
a

n
t 

ty
p

e
 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 

 
 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

te
r 

w
a

r 
h

o
u

s
e

 b
e

c
a
m

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d

 
w

it
h

 v
e

ry
 l
it
tl
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
v
a

ri
a
ti
o

n
. 

 

Page 225



- 
1

8
 -

 

fi
g
 1

5
: 
S

it
e
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 P

la
n
 (

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 B

ri
e
f)

  

Page 226



- 
1

9
 -

 

 
 

A
 n

o
ta

b
le

 c
h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 l
a

y
o

u
t,

 h
e

lp
in

g
 t
o

 d
is

ti
n

g
u

is
h
 a

n
 

in
te

rw
a

r 
h

o
u

s
e

 i
s
 t

h
e

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
it
s
 f
ro

n
t 

d
o

o
rs

; 
e

a
rl

ie
r 

ty
p

e
s
 h

a
d

 t
h

e
m

 p
o

s
it
io

n
e

d
 s

id
e

 b
y
 s

it
e

, 
b

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 1

9
3

0
’s

 
it
 w

a
s
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
to

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
m

 a
t 

th
e

 f
a

r 
e

n
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ro
n

t.
  

 
 

P
re

c
a

s
t 

c
o

n
c
re

te
 w

a
s
 e

x
p

e
ri

m
e

n
te

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

d
 

w
id

e
ly

 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

s
 i
t 

e
n

a
b

le
d

 a
rc

h
it
e

c
ts

 
to

 c
re

a
te

 f
o

rm
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

 i
m

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 

c
re

a
te

 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

tr
a

d
it
io

n
a

l 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
. 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d

 
p

ri
n

c
ip

a
lly

 f
o

r 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 l
ik

e
 p

o
rc

h
e

s
, 

c
o

rb
e

lle
d

 e
a

v
e

s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 e

tc
.

 
T

h
e

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
fl
o

o
r 

p
la

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

im
ila

r;
 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
ir

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

v
a

ri
e

s
 a

d
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 
s
u

b
tl
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
a

d
e

s
 a

s
 s

e
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
ta

ili
n

g
 

th
a

t 
s
e

ts
 t

h
e
m

 a
p

a
rt

. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
b

e
lo

w
 

a
s
 t

y
p

e
s
.  

  
 

 

T
y
p

e
 1

: 
s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rr
a
c
e

 o
f 
2

/ 
3

h
o

u
s
e
s
- 

 

K
e
y
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
f,
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
a
r 

e
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 f
la

t 
a
rc

h
e
s
, 
o
v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 

e
x
p
o
s
e
d
 r

a
ft
e
rs

, 
h
ip

p
e
d
 t
ile

d
 r

o
o
fs

, 
c
h

im
n

e
y
s
 h

a
lf
 w

a
y
 a

lo
n

g
 t
h

e
 s

lo
p

e
, 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

, 
p
a
ir
e
d
 (

U
P

V
C

) 
w

in
d
o
w

s
, 
w

it
h

 h
e

d
g

e
s
 o

r 
ti
m

b
e

r 
fe

n
c
e

 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t.
  
 

T
y
p
e
 2

- 
s
e
m

i 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
: 

K
e
y
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d

 r
o

o
f,
 s

te
p

p
in

g
 u

p
 t
h

e
 s

lo
p
e

 i
n

 a
 

p
a

ir
s
, 
h

ip
p

e
d

 t
ile

d
 r

o
o

fs
, 
c
h
im

n
e

y
s
 o

n
 t
o
p
 o

f 
th

e
 r

id
g
e
, 
e
x
p
o
s
e
d

 r
a
ft
e
rs

, 
p

ro
m

in
e

n
t 
e

n
tr

a
n
c
e

 f
e

a
tu

re
 w

it
h

 c
a
s
t 
c
o

n
c
re

te
 c

a
n
o

p
y
, 
a

n
d

 b
o

u
n

d
a
ry

 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
w

it
h

 h
e
d
g
e
s
, 
ti
m

b
e
r 

fe
n
c
e
 o

r 
ra

ili
n
g
s
. 
  

T
y
p

e
 2

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
- 

s
e

m
i 
d

e
ta

c
h

e
d

 h
o

u
s
e
s
: 
 

K
e
y
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d
 r

o
o

f,
 s

te
p

p
in

g
 u

p
 t
h

e
 s

lo
p
e

 i
n

 p
a

ir
s
, 

h
ip

p
e
d
 t
ile

d
 r

o
o
f 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
, 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 o

ff
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

to
 t
h

e
 f
a

r 
e

n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 s

e
tb

a
c
k
 f
ro

n
t 
g

a
rd

e
n
s
, 
g

ra
s
s
 v

e
rg

e
s
 t
o

 

Page 227



- 
2

0
 -

 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
, 
p
o
o
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 f
ro

n
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e

s
- 

c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ti
m

b
e
r 

fe
n
c
e
, 
h
e
d
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 

T
y
p

e
 3

: 
s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rr
a
c
e

 o
f 
2

 o
r 

3
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

K
e
y
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d
 r

o
o

f,
 s

te
p

p
in

g
 u

p
 t
h

e
 s

lo
p
e

, 
d

o
u

b
le

 
p
it
c
h
e
d
 t
ile

d
 r

o
o
fs

 w
it
h
 g

a
b
le

s
, 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 
p

re
c
a
s
t 
c
o

n
c
re

te
 c

a
n
o

p
y
 d

e
ta

il,
 c

h
im

n
e

y
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 r

id
g

e
. 
 

T
y
p
e
 4

: 
s
e
m

i 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 

K
e
y
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
f,
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

id
e

 o
f 
th

e
 

h
o

u
s
e
s
, 
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 s
o

m
e

 r
e

n
d

e
r 

to
 t
h

e
 f
e

a
tu

re
 g

a
b

le
, 

o
v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 e

x
p
o
s
e
d
 r

a
ft

e
rs

, 
s
te

e
p

 d
o
u

b
le

 p
it
c
h

e
d

 r
o

o
f,

 
s
e

tb
a
c
k
 f
ro

n
t 
g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

it
h

 h
e

d
g
e

s
, 
ti
m

b
e

r 
fe

n
c
e

 b
o

u
n
d

a
ry

, 
p

a
rk

in
g

 o
n

 
p
lo

t 
to

 t
h
e
 s

id
e

/f
ro

n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 

T
y
p
ic

a
l 
d
e
ta

il 
o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
, 
b
ro

w
n
/g

re
y
 r

o
o
f 
ti
le

s
, 
fl
a
t 
b
ri
c
k
 

a
rc

h
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
ia

ls
 a

s
 h

e
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 c
ill

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

in
d
o

w
s
, 
c
o
rb

e
lle

d
 

p
re

c
a
s
t 
c
o

n
c
re

te
 a

n
d

 b
ri
c
k
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

a
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

s
te

re
d

 g
a

b
le

 
to

p

T
y
p
e
 5

: 
s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
4
 h

o
u
s
e
s
- 

 

K
e
y
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d

 p
it
c
h

e
d

 r
o
o

f,
 r

e
d

 b
ri
c
k
 m

a
s
o
n

ry
, 

ti
le

d
 h

ip
p

e
d

 r
o

o
f 
w

it
h

 e
n

d
 g

a
b

le
s
 f
a

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
t,

 c
h
im

n
e

y
s
 h

a
lf
w

a
y
 

u
p

 t
h

e
 r

o
o

f 
a
n

d
 c

e
n

tr
e

d
, 
e
n

tr
a

n
c
e
s
 w

e
ll 

d
e

fi
n

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

id
e
s
 a

n
d

 f
ro

n
t,

 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
, 
a
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
b

o
u

n
d
a

ry
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

ts
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
  

ti
m

b
e

r 
fe

n
c
e
s
, 
h

e
d

g
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
a

ili
n

g
s
. 
 

Page 228



- 
2

1
 -

 

9
. 

  
  

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 –
 C

O
N

C
E

P
T

U
A

L
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
 

K
e

y
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
s

- 
T

h
e

 a
re

a
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

c
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 m

e
a

n
s
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
i.
e

. 
tr

a
m

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 b

u
s
 r

o
u

te
s
, 

a
n

d
 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

2
5

 
to

 3
0

 m
in

u
te

 w
a

lk
 f

ro
m

 c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

- 
th

e
 g

re
e

n
 f

ro
n

ta
g

e
, 

e
le

v
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 s

lo
p

in
g

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
it
e

 o
ff

e
rs

 g
o

o
d

 v
ie

w
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
o

n
 V

a
lle

y
 

- 
th

e
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 u

n
d

e
rg

o
n

e
 a

 
ro

u
n

d
 o

f 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
w

 
b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

ts
, 

in
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 f

a
ç
a

d
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

- 
th

e
 a

re
a

 e
x
h

ib
it
s
 t

y
p

ic
a

l 
1

9
3

0
s
 p

re
 w

a
r 

G
a

rd
e

n
 S

u
b

u
rb

s
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
s
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
in

 i
ts

 u
n
if
o

rm
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ri

ty
 

o
f 

ro
a

d
 l
a

y
o

u
ts

 a
n

d
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

to
p

o
g

ra
p

h
y
.

- 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

 l
a

rg
e

 p
lo

ts
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 g
e

n
e

ro
u

s
 f

ro
n

t 
a

n
d

 b
a

c
k
 g

a
rd

e
n

s
 

W
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
  

- 
la

c
k
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
t 

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

  
s
tr

e
e

ts
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n

 u
n

if
o

rm
 t

o
w

n
s
c
a

p
e

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
a

n
y
 

d
is

ti
n

c
ti
v
e

 f
e

a
tu

re
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
w

a
y
fi
n

d
in

g
 

- 
s
e

tb
a

c
k
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
d

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
tr

e
e

s
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 p

o
o

r 
s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

s
tr

e
e

t 
e

n
c
lo

s
u

re
  

- 
ra

re
ly

 u
s
e

s
/ 
d

is
u

s
e

d
 p

e
d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 r
o

u
te

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s

- 
u

n
if
o

rm
 h

e
ig

h
t,

 m
a

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
d

o
e

s
 

n
o

t 
a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 l
ik

e
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 o
r 

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

in
 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

c
a

p
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 m

o
n

o
to

n
o

u
s
 

to
w

n
s
c
a

p
e

. 
  

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s

- 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 s
a

fe
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
r 

p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 r
o

u
te

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 

th
o

u
g

h
t 

th
e

 s
it
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 

- 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
w

it
h

 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
im

ila
r 

a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 b

u
ilt

fo
rm

, 
a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 l
in

e
s
, 

p
lo

t 
ra

ti
o
s
  

e
tc

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
m

a
k
in

g
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

c
e

n
e

 w
it
h

 d
is

ti
n

c
ti
v
e

 
m

a
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
  

- 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 b
u

ild
in

g
 t

y
p

e
 e

.g
. 

b
u

n
g

a
lo

w
s
 a

n
d

 
a

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
, 

to
 a

d
d

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
o

w
n

s
c
a

p
e

 a
n

d
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 

w
a

y
fi
n

d
in

g

- 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

ix
e

d
 u

s
e

 e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n

 p
ro

m
in

e
n

t 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

o
o

s
t 

lo
c
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
  

- 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 e

.g
. 

o
n
 s

tr
e

e
t,

 
o

n
-p

lo
t 

in
 g

a
ra

g
e

s
/ 

c
a

r 
p
o

rt
s
 o

r 
in

 s
m

a
lle

r 
p

a
rk

in
g
 c

o
u

rt
s
 

th
a

t 
is

 w
e

ll 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

c
e

n
e

  

C
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts

- 
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

tr
e
e

t 
la

y
o

u
t 

a
s
 t

h
e

re
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

n
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 u

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

 i
f 

it
 w

e
re

 t
o

 b
e

 d
is

c
a

rd
e

d
. 

- 
A

rc
h

a
e

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 M

a
lt
ra

v
e

rs
 

P
la

c
e

Page 229



- 
2

2
 -

 

- 
G

re
e

n
 f

ro
n

ta
g

e
 o

n
 C

ri
c
k
e

t 
In

n
 R

o
a

d
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 r
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 t
re

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
b

u
ild

in
g

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 R

o
a

d
. 

 

1
0

. 
  

  
  

  
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s

s
ib

le
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

:

P
o

s
it
iv

e
- 

w
ill

 c
re

a
te

 s
a

fe
 w

a
lk

in
g

 r
o

u
te

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 

- 
w

ill
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
g

iv
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 

fa
c
e

 t
o

 C
ri

c
k
e

t 
In

n
 R

o
a

d
 t

h
u

s
 a

lle
v
ia

ti
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

is
s
u

e
s
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 ‘
b

a
c
k
 o

f 
re

ta
il 

p
a

rk
’ 
fr

o
n

ta
g
e

. 
 

- 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

s
tr

e
e

ts
c
e

n
e
 

- 
w

ill
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

e
n

u
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
 e

.g
. 

fl
a

ts
 

a
n

d
 b

u
n

g
a

lo
w

s
  

N
e

g
a

ti
v
e

- 
is

s
u

e
 o

f 
in

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
 m

a
y
 

a
ri

s
e

 i
f 

p
o

o
rl

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d

- 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
v
e

 e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 w

h
e

re
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

ro
u

te
s
 a

re
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
d

 l
in

e
 b

o
u

n
d
a

ry
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

, 
h

a
v
in

g
 a

 d
e

tr
im

e
n

ta
l 
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

n
e

tw
o

rk

Page 230



- 
2

3
 -

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

: 
A

rc
h

a
e

o
lo

g
y
  

A
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
b

a
c

k
g

ro
u

n
d

 

T
h

e
 W

y
b

o
u

rn
 e

s
ta

te
 l
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 m
e

d
ie

v
a

l 
d

e
e

r 
p

a
rk

. 
 I

n
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
t-

m
e

d
ia

e
v
a

l 
p

e
ri

o
d

, 
th

e
 

p
a

rk
 w

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 t
o

 a
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
u
s
e
, 

la
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

 o
f 

fi
e

ld
s
 e

n
c
lo

s
e

d
 

in
 a

 p
ie

c
e

m
e

a
l 
fa

s
h

io
n

 i
n

 o
f 

fi
e

ld
s
 i
n
 p

ie
c
e

m
e

a
l 
fa

s
h

io
n

, 
b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 

a
n

 a
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
la

n
d

s
c
a
p
e

. 
 A

t 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 o
f 

th
is

 l
a

y
 W

y
b

o
u

rn
 H

a
ll.

 

L
it
tl
e

 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 o

f 
W

y
b

o
u

rn
 H

a
ll.

  
A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 n
o

rt
h

 b
y
 a

 
d

ri
v
e

 f
ro

m
 C

ri
c
k
e

t 
In

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

th
e

 H
a

ll 
w

a
s
 d

e
p

ic
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
F

a
ir

b
a

n
k
s
 p

la
n

 o
f 

1
7

9
5

. 
 I
n

 h
is

 n
o

te
s
 o

n
 S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
, 
H

e
n

ry
 T

a
tt

o
n

 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 h

is
 o

w
n

 e
a

rl
y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n

tu
ry

 d
ra

w
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ro
n

t 
e

le
v
a

ti
o

n
, 

s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
 l
a
rg

e
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll-
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

e
d

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 b

u
ild

in
g

, 
w

it
h

 
d

e
ta

ils
 s

u
g

g
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
t 

to
 b

e
 G

e
o

rg
ia

n
 i
n

 d
a

te
. 

 W
h

it
e

’s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ry
 

re
c
o

rd
s
 “

W
m

. 
M

a
b

s
o

n
, 

fa
rm

e
r,

 W
y
b

o
u

rn
 H

a
ll”

 i
n
 1

8
5

6
. 

 T
a

tt
o

n
 

n
o

te
s
 “

c
o

tt
a
g

e
, 

b
a

rn
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tb
u

ild
in

g
s
” 

to
 t

h
e

 w
e

s
t,

 c
o

n
fi
rm

in
g

 
th

e
 H

a
ll 

a
s
 a

g
ri

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
in

 n
a

tu
re

 a
t 

th
is

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

  
It

 w
a

s
 

d
e

m
o

lis
h

e
d

 a
ro

u
n

d
 1

9
2

7
, 

p
ro

b
a

b
ly

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 w
a

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 W
y
b

o
u

rn
 

e
s
ta

te
.

A
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

W
it
h

in
 t

h
is

 r
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
it
e

, 
o

n
ly

 W
y
b

o
u

rn
 H

a
ll 

h
a

s
 

a
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l.
  

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
p
a

rt
 o

f 
M

a
lt
ra

v
e

rs
 

P
la

c
e

 o
v
e

rl
ie

s
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

 o
f 

W
y
b

o
u

rn
 H

a
ll,

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 h

a
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
m

o
s
t 

p
a

rt
 a

v
o

id
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 H

a
ll 

(s
e

e
 F

ig
u

re
 1

).
  

F
o

r 
th

is
 

re
a

s
o

n
, 

th
e

 p
re

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 h

a
ll 

m
a

y
 b

e
 g

o
o

d
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
in

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
In

it
ia

lly
, 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
y
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 t

re
n

c
h

in
g

, 
to

 
a

s
c
e

rt
a

in
 t

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

, 
e

x
te

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
p

re
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

H
a

ll.
  

T
h

e
 n

a
tu

re
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 d
e

p
e

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
. 

 A
lt
h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
is

 w
o

rk
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 b
y
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
, 

S
Y

A
S

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 p

h
a

s
e

 
is

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 a
c
c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
P

P
S

5
 “

P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 H

is
to

ri
c
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t”

 (
P

o
lic

y
 H

E
6

.1
).

 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
s

 
T

a
tt

o
n

, 
H

e
n

ry
. 

n
.d

. 
“S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
”,

 V
o

l.
 2

. 
(u

n
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 m
s
.,

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 
A

rc
h

iv
e

s
).

W
h

it
e

, 
W

ill
ia

m
. 

1
8

5
6

. 
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

ry
 …

 o
f 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 …
”,

 1
7

2
. 

Page 231



- 
2

4
 -

 

1
9

3
5

 O
S

 m
a

p
 e

x
tr

a
c
t 

(g
re

y
),

 o
v
e

rl
a

in
 w

it
h

 1
9

2
3

 m
a

p
 (

b
la

c
k
)¸

 ©
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
a

n
d

 L
a

n
d

m
a

rk
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p

Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Report of:   Executive Director, Place 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:                                  1 August, 2012 
 ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Redevelopment of Fox Hill site  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Christine Rose 2734373 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations: 
 
SCC wants to ensure that a new developer is secured who can deliver 
the high quality housing set out in the lease for Fox Hill. 
 
We are working with KPMG (the administrators), who have been testing 
the market to identify developer interest.  
This report requests that officers are authorised to continue with the 
negotiations  and agree  a variation of the lease to allow a new scheme 
of development which will still maintain the high quality standards as 
originally envisaged. 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
1 That the Director of Property Facilities and Management and the 
Director of Housing, Enterprise and Regeneration be authorised  to 
negotiate any new terms of the lease as are considered necessary for 
the provision good quality housing at Fox Hill. 
   
2 That the Cabinet members for Homes and Neighbourhoods and 
Business, Skills and Development are  delegated the authority to 
consider the developers final proposals and whether they meet SCC’s 
requirements and make a decision as to whether or not  to proceed with 
those proposals. 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet Report 

Agenda Item 14

Page 237



3 That, subject to the decision being  made to proceed with the proposals 
the Director of Property and Facilities Management be authorised to 
instruct the Director of Legal Services to complete the necessary legal 
documentation. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN  part 1 CLOSED part 2* 
 
If Closed add – ‘Not for publication because it contains exempt information 
under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended).’ 
 
 

 
* Delete as appropriate 
   

Page 238



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

YES/Cleared by 
Paul Schofield: 

 

Legal Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: David Sellars 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO: 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

YES 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

YES 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

 
Fox Hill 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 
 

Harry Harpham 
 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 
 

 
Safer homes and communities 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 
 

Press release 
 

YES 

Page 239



Redevelopment of Fox Hill site 
 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 
  
1.1 
 

On 21.09.2005 Cabinet noted that Artisan H Ltd was selected as  the 
successful developer following a competition process for the Fox Hill 
redevelopment site. The Council entered into a lease with Artisan H Ltd 
dated 28 April 2008 However, in December 2011 Artisan H Ltd went into 
administration and KPMG were appointed as administrators by the Bank 
of Ireland who hold a charge over the lease. SCC is still the freeholder of 
the land which is the subject of the lease and as such has a major role in 
how the redevelopment of the site is taken forwards. This report 
recommends that officers are given the authority to negotiate a way 
forwards and vary the lease as required in order to ensure the delivery of 
high quality housing at Fox Hill. 
 

  
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 
  
2.1 
 

The delivery of new housing at Fox Hill effectively stopped in late 2011 
as the developer, Artisan H Ltd  had been placed into administration. 6 
apartments have been completed and sold and 23 units were under 
construction. 

 
2.2 

 
SCC is   the freeholder for this site. This report authorises officers to 
negotiate a way forwards with KPMG, the administrators, to ensure that 
approximately 160 units of good quality  housing is developed on the site. 

  
3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
  
3.1 
 

The anticipated outcome of the negotiations would be that a new 
developer who has been identified by KPMG will be able to deliver the 
quality of housing specified in the original lease.  
As matters stand any developer who acquires the lease  takes on the 
obligations to provide good quality housing.  They are  obliged to use the 
existing planning application, but any subsequent application must first 
be agreed by SCC as landlord and will be expected to deliver the 
following: 
 

3.2  Design Standards - the contract with Artisan H Ltd  provided that the 
grant of the lease would be conditional on the grant of planning 
permission which was based on a planning application approved by SCC 
as landowner.  
i)Eco Homes Standards (rating of "Very Good" and a SAP rating of at 
least 95 and where possible no materials /specifications rated as C within 
the Green Guide to Housing Specification)  
ii)CABE - Gold Standard 
 
 

Page 240



iii)Secured by Design accreditation 
 
iv)Mobility Homes and Lifetime Homes  - 25% of dwellings to meet 
"Mobility Homes" standards. Maximum number of dwellings to meet 
Lifetime Homes standard. 
 
In addition there will be a planning requirement for affordable housing. 
There is currently an agreement with great places housing association  
that they will acquire 21 units, comprising of 10 x 1bed dwellings and 11 
x 2 bed dwellings. 
 

  
4.0 BACKGROUND 

 
  
4.1 
 

The Fox Hill site formed part of the North Area Development Framework 
and was a key opportunity for SCC’s Housing Market Renewal 
programme to significantly regenerate and support the housing market 
through improved housing quality and choice. 
 

4.2 Fox Hill is a visible site along a ridge line  overlooking the city  and is 
located in the north west corner of Southey Owlerton area of North 
Sheffield, adjacent to surrounding farm land, countryside and the popular 
areas of Old Fox Hill and Birley Carr. The site consists of 3 separate 
plots of land as referred to on the plans to the lease 
 

 In 2005 an open market competition was held to identify a developer who 
could deliver to the requirements set out in a market brief. 
 
On  21.09.05 Cabinet noted that Artisan H Ltd was selected as the 
successful developer following the  competition process for the Fox Hill 
redevelopment site. 

4.3  
Mark Firmin and Howard Smith were appointed Joint Administrators of 
Artisan H Ltd in the High Court of Justice on 12 December 2011. At the 
date of the Administrator’s appointment 6 units at the Fox Hill 
development had been completed and sold and 23 units were under 
construction. 
 
 
The bank Artisan H Ltd had obtained funding from to develop the site 
engaged KPMG LLP to help consider its options in November 2011. 
During this time creditor pressure from those creditors with a vested 
financial interest in the development was mounting on Artisan H Ltd. 
 
A Notice of Intention to appoint an administrator was lodged by Artisan H 
Ltd on 22 November 2011 to allow it to assess its position. However, 
upon its expiration on 6 December 2011, a winding up petition was 
lodged which prevented Artisan H Ltd from appointing an administrator. 
Instead, the bank sought to appoint Mark Firmin and Howard Smith of 

Page 241



KPMG LLP as Joint Administrators on 12 December 2011. 
 
Upon their appointment, representatives of the Joint Administrators 
attended the Fox Hill development site to ensure it was compliant with 
insurance and health and safety regulations. The entire perimeter of the 
site has now been secured and 24 hour on site security is in place.  
 
 

4.4 Legal Implications 
 KPMG initially made contact with parties who have expressed an interest 

in acquiring the site, with the view to continuing and completing the 
development. The Joint Administrators continue to liaise with the key 
stakeholders – namely the Bank, the Homes and Communities Agency 
(both of whom have previously helped with funding), and SCC  in seeking 
a resolution for the development. 
 
In the meantime since the date of the appointment of KPMG Artisan H 
Ltd has breached at least one of its obligations under the lease in that it 
failed to complete 50 homes by 31 December 2011. Under the terms of 
the lease this breach triggers a process by which SCC can serve a notice 
on Artisan H Ltd requiring it to remedy the breach within a reasonable 
period of time. In order to protect the Council’s position a notice was 
served on 5 January 2012 requiring the 50 homes to be built within 6 
months. That obligation has not been complied with. If Artisan H Ltd 
remains in breach of the obligation ultimately SCC will be in a position to 
re purchase the lease for £1.00 (One pound). It is envisaged that the 
process would take approximately 24 months from service of the notice 
i.e. till January 2014. 
 
Although a developer has been identified it is clear that they do not 
consider the scheme as it stands to be practicable both logistically or 
economically.  The developer wishes to explore in more detail the 
possibilities for an alternative scheme that whilst viable would maintain 
the high building standards required by SCC. In order to do so KPMG 
has agreed to give the developer a period of exclusivity in order to make 
site investigations and have discussions with SCC’s planners. SCC has 
agreed to take no further action under its notice for 6 months whilst the 
options are explored., and the administrator will provide regular updates 
on the progress of the developers enquiries. Should the enquiries not 
progress the administrator and developer  should bring the exclusivity 
agreement to an end allowing the Council to  then continue its action 
 
If SCC are to agree to an amendment to the scheme this will require 
consequential amendments to the terms of the lease. It is also possible 
that if the scheme proposed by the developer and accepted by SCC is 
materially different from that first proposed and accepted then an 
application for Secretary of States consent may be required.  
 

 Finance 
This is covered in the closed part 2 

Page 242



  
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 
 

SCC has been cooperating with KPMG to allow them to secure a new 
developer. They  have  carried out some extensive market testing but 
interest in the site with the present obligations under the lease  has been 
weak, resulting in only one positive expression of interest. 

5.2  
If Artisan H Ltd remains in breach of the terms of the lease SCC could 
require that the lease is assigned to SCC for £1 and could seek to 
identify  another developer. However, following the market testing 
already carried out, this is unlikely to result in any further interest.  
 In the mean time SCC would be responsible for all security and health 
and safety costs and no funding is available for this. 
 

6.0 Risk 
 There is a reputational risk to SCC if this project is not taken forwards in 

a timely manner. Currently, SCC is cooperating with KPMG in order to 
get best value and high quality design for the site. The potential 
developer is willing to work at risk, but requires reassurance from SCC 
that we will not start negotiations with any other developer in the short 
term (6 months from June). This report allows officers to negotiate the 
best deal for SCC to allow the development to progress. 
 

7.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
7.1 
 

SCC wants to ensure that a new developer is secured who can deliver  
high quality housing  for Fox Hill. 

7.2  
We are working with KPMG, who have been testing the market to identify 
developer interest.  

7.3 This report requests that officers are authorised to continue with the 
negotiations  and agree  a variation of the lease to allow a new scheme 
of development which will still maintain the high quality standards 
required. 

  
8:0 REASONS FOR EXEMPTION (if a Closed report) 

 
7.1 
 

This report is presented as an exempt item because it contains exempt 
information under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended).  The reasons for its exemption are that it refers 
to items covered in the cabinet report of 28/4/2008 which were closed 
then and still remain confidential. 

  
9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
9.1 
 

That the Director of Property Facilities and Management and the Director 
of Housing, Enterprise and Regeneration be authorised  to negotiate any 

Page 243



new terms of the lease as are considered necessary for the provision 
good quality housing at Fox Hill. 

  
9.2 That the Cabinet Members for Homes and Neighbourhoods and 

Business, Skills and Development are  delegated the authority to 
consider the developers final proposals and whether they meet SCC’s 
requirements and make a decision as to whether or not  to proceed with 
those proposals. 

  
9.3 That, subject to the decision being  made to proceed with the proposals 

the Director of Property and Facilities Management be authorised to 
instruct the Director of Legal Services to complete the necessary legal 
documentation. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 244



Page 245

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 246

This page is intentionally left blank



SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Cabinet Report 15

Report of:   Eugene Walker
______________________________________________________________ 

Date:    1 August 2012 
______________________________________________________________ 

Subject: Revenue Budget & Capital Programme Monitoring 
2012/13 – As at 31 May 2012 

______________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Allan Rainford; 35108 
______________________________________________________________ 

Summary: This report provides the month 2 monitoring statement on the City 
Council’s Revenue and Capital Budget for 2012/13.

_____________________________________________________________ 

Reasons for Recommendations   To formally record changes to the Revenue 
Budget and the Capital Programme and gain Member approval for changes in 
line with Financial Regulations and to reset the capital programme in line with 
latest information. 

Recommendations:

Please refer to paragraph 103 of the main report for the recommendations.

______________________________________________________________ 

Category of Report: OPEN/CLOSED

Agenda Item 15

Page 247



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

Financial implications 

YES/NO Cleared by: Eugene Walker

Legal implications 

YES/NO Cleared by: 

Equality of Opportunity implications

YES/NO Cleared by: 

Tackling Health Inequalities implications 

YES/NO

Human rights implications

YES/NO : 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

YES/NO

Economic impact 

YES/NO

Community safety implications 

YES/NO

Human resources implications 

YES/NO

Property implications 

YES/NO

Area(s) affected 

Relevant Scrutiny Board if decision called in 

Strategic Resources and Performance 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?   YES/NO 

Press release 

YES/NO

Page 248



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

REVENUE BUDGET & CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 
2012/13 – AS AT 31ST MAY 2012 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1. This report provides the Month 2 monitoring statement on the City.

Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital Programme for 2012/13. 

SUMMARY 

2. The latest monitoring position at month 2 – which is summarised in the 

table below – shows a forecast increase in spending of £4.6m to the 

year end. 

Portfolio FY Outturn FY Budget FY Variance

£000s £000s £000s

CYPF                          69,066 69,154 (88)

PLACE 141,956 140,824 1,132

COMMUNITIES                   159,771 157,653 2,118

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE        9,835 9,665 170

RESOURCES                     90,546 89,374 1,172

CORPORATE                     (466,572) (466,670) 98

GRAND TOTAL 4,602 - 4,602

3. Resources totalling £6.8m were approved for carry forward into 2012/13 

as part of the 2012/13 budget approval.  These are reflected in the 

budget figures shown above.  The recent Cabinet decision to carry 

forward an additional £6.2m of resources into 2012/13 is not reflected in 

the above budget figures: those carry forwards that relate to expenditure 

in 2012/13 will be included in future budget monitoring reports.

4. Some of the carry forwards from 2011/12 relate to funding, particularly 

grant funding, that is required to offset expenditure in future financial 

years.  Where there are further examples of this in 2012/13, these will 

be highlighted in budget monitoring reports with a view to taking an early 

decision regarding carry forward of resources into 2013/14 and beyond.

5. In the following months the budget monitoring reports will include an 

analysis of actual spending in the year to date and how that compares to 

the profiled budget. This may help to identify variances that are 

attributable to movements in actual spending compared to planned, and 

to separate these from income that is received in advance.           

6. In terms of the analysis of the position at month 2, this is the first budget 

monitoring report of the year and because it is at an early stage it 

Page 1 of 24 Page 249



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 2 of 24 

involves Managers producing straight line projections of expenditure to 

the year end.  It is therefore difficult to identify trends or issues that are 

emerging at this stage but is useful in providing a benchmark for 

following months.  It is worth noting that at this stage last year 

expenditure was forecast to exceed budget by £5.8m

7. The key variations from budget in the current financial year are 

summarised as follows:

  Children Young People and Families are showing a forecast 

reduction in spend of £88k.

  Place are showing a forecast overspend of £1.1m:  £282k overspend 

on waste management; £630k overspend predominantly relating to 

additional grant payments being made as part of a wider stabilisation 

programme for Museums Sheffield; and £190k overspend within the 

Capital Delivery Service.   

  Communities are showing a forecast overspend of £2.1m. This is 

mainly within the Care and Support Service and relates to: additional 

forecast expenditure in Learning Disabilities Purchasing of £655k (net 

of contingency); slippage on budget savings in assessment and care 

management and provider services of £858k; and additional forecast 

expenditure in mental health commissioning of £417k due to 

pressures on the purchasing budget and slippage in budget savings.

  A forecast overspend of £300k on ex-Burngreave New Deal assets 

which are currently accounted for in Communities.

  Resources are showing a forecast overspend of £1.2m: however 

corrective action has been identified which will bring the forecast 

overspend to below £1m.  The portfolio is forecasting a number of 

overspends across services, including £700k in Legal Services,

£600k in Commercial Services, £400k in Property and Facilities 

Management and £200k in Business Information Services (BIS).

These overspends are partially offset by a forecast reduction in 

spending in central costs of £800k.

  Deputy Chief Executive’s are showing a forecast overspend of 

£170k, mostly relating to increased costs of local elections and 

electoral registration within Modern Governance.

8. Capital Programme monitoring is reported in paragraph 84. 

Page 250



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

INDIVIDUAL PORTFOLIO POSITIONS 

CHILDREN YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES (CYPF) 

Summary 

9. As at Month 2, the CYPF Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of 

£88k reduction in spending. This position is likely to change in month 3 

when the additional resources carried forward from 2011/12 are 

included in service budgets.

Financials (Non – DSG activity) 

Service FY Outturn FY Budget FY Variance

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS STRATEGY             1,080 1,082 (2)

CHILDREN & FAMILIES           54,411 54,313 99

CHILDREN'S COMMISSIONER       1 - 1

INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES 5,501 5,497 3

LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN 8,073 8,262 (189)
GRAND TOTAL 69,066 69,154 (88)

Business Strategy 

10. This service is forecasting an overall reduction in spend of £34k of which 

£32k relates to Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funding and £2k (in the 

table above) relates to the cash limit (i.e. general fund).  There are no 

significant variances in this service that require an explanation. 

Children & Families 

11. This service is forecasting an overall overspend of £174k of which £75k 

relates to DSG funding and £99k (in the table above) relates to the cash 

limit. There are a range of minor under and over spends forecasted 

within the service: however the main area of overspend, £100k, relates 

to the service commitment to the Electronic Document and Records 

Management System (EDRMS) project.

Children’s Commissioner 

12. The budget areas relating to this service have now been included within 

the Inclusion and Learning Service. 

Lifelong Learning Skills & Communities (LLSC) 

13. This service is forecasting an overall reduction in spending of £165k of 

which there is an overspend of £24k that relates to DSG funding and 

£189k reduced spend (in the table above) relates to the cash limit. 

Page 3 of 24 Page 251



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 4 of 24 

14. LLSC is heavily reliant on external funding and there are grants 

expected to be received during the year that are for a time period that 

bears no relationship to the Council’s financial year.  There is also 

budgetary provision for projects within CYPF, not just LLSC, which will 

exceed one financial year. It is intended that these be identified in future 

monitoring reports and a mechanism put in place to allow these to be 

removed from the monthly monitoring.

15. The forecast underspend for LLSC does not yet take into account the 

amount of funding required to be carried forward for the next two 

financial years for the two phases of the Apprenticeship scheme.

Detailed estimates are being prepared, however it is estimated that in 

the region of £750k is required to be carried forward to 2013/14 and 

beyond.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 

16. The DSG central expenditure budget for 2012/13 is £34.2m. This has 

reduced by £3.5m from the 2011/12 budget of £37.4m.  The reduction is 

due to the additional delegation of funds to schools. 

PLACE

Summary 

17. Place portfolio are forecasting a full year outturn of £1.132m over 

budget.  The key forecast outturn variances are: 

  Business Strategy & Regulation - £282k over budget on waste 

management arising from delays in agreement with the Contractor on 

planned budget savings (£1.15m), largely offset by one-off savings 

from the resolution of other contractual ‘disputes’ (£374k) and 

additional projected income from the sale of recyclable waste 

(£500k).

  Culture & Environment - £630k over budget predominantly relating to 

additional grant payments being made as part of a wider stabilisation 

programme for Museums Sheffield. 

  HERS - £190k over budget arising from a projected shortfall in 

income (£455k) within the Capital Delivery Service, being partly offset 

by staff and other savings secured to date. 

Page 252



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Financials

Service FY Outturn FY Budget FY Variance

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION 30,178 29,896 282

CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT                      21,233 20,603 630

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES          85,221 85,208 13

CREATIVE SHEFFIELD 3,857 3,860 (3)

HERS                          872 682 190

MARKETING SHEFFIELD 998 993 5

STREET FORCE                  (754) (755) 1

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 351 337 14
GRAND TOTAL 141,956 140,824 1,132

Commentary 

Business Strategy & Regulation 

18. The current forecast for this activity is £282k over budget.  The key 

issue is within waste management where there are risks associated with 

the delivery of planned budget savings.  Delays in agreement with the 

Contractor impact on the full delivery this year on fortnightly waste 

collections (£676k) and changes in waste collection hours (£486k). 

These will be met from savings elsewhere: the resolution of other 

contractual ‘disputes’ (£374k) and income from the sale of recyclable 

waste (£500k).  Whilst there is a delay in 2012/13 the full year savings 

will be secured in 2013/14.  

Culture & Environment 

19. The current forecast for this activity is £630k over budget.  The key 

issue relates to additional grant payments of approximately £600k being 

made as part of a wider stabilisation programme for Museums Sheffield. 

20. Other key forecast variances at this point are within parks and 

countryside (£90k over budget) largely attributable to the viability of 

Norton nurseries, offset by additional income in bereavement services 

(£84k).

Development Services 

21. The current forecast for this activity is broadly balanced.  The key issue 

to date relates to a potential shortfall in planned savings relating to an 

increase in planning fees (£176k).  Whilst it was widely anticipated that a 

government decision would have been announced to allow local fee 

setting for planning applications this year, latest intelligence indicates 

this is likely to be introduced next year.  A plan to mitigate this shortfall 

includes a potential 10% national increase in fees from September 

Page 5 of 24 Page 253



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

(announcement is considered imminent) and re-prioritising of staff to 

work on local growth funded projects rather than core planning activities. 

22. However, as in previous years the key risk will be securing £10m 

planned external fee income from car parks, building regulations and 

planning.  Fees are £245k below target after 2 months, however initial 

management forecasts project this may reduce to £133k by year-end, 

assuming a price increase (referred to above) and a number of large 

planning applications materialise. 

23. Should fee performance to date not improve considerably during the 

remainder of the year, there is potentially a significant risk.  This risk 

seems particularly high within planning, as highlighted in the table 

below.  This shows that achieving the forecast £1.8m of fees requires a 

£500k (40%) increase on the previous year and a £400k improvement 

on the average fees received to date. 

Planning Fees 

£m   

1.8 Anticipated 

1.7 Improvement 

1.6 (£0.3m) 

1.5 Actual  Fee Inc (£0.1m) 

1.4 Actual £1.5m  Emerging Trend 

1.3 £1.4m Actual (weekly average) 

1.2 £1.3m £1.4m 

1.1

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Actual Actual Actual Forecast 

Housing, Enterprise & Regeneration (HERS) 

24. The current forecast for this activity is £190k over budget.  The key 

issue is a projected shortfall in income (£455k) within the capital delivery 

service, being partly offset by staff and other savings secured to date. 

COMMUNITIES

Summary 

25. As at Month 2, the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of £2.1m 

over budget.  The key reasons (described in greater detail under 

commentary) for this position are:

Page 6 of 24 Page 254



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

  Care and Support Services are forecasting an overspend of £2.7m.  

This is predominately related to Learning Disabilities Purchasing 

(£1.8m) and slippage on budget savings (see detail below). 

  Mental Health Commissioning are forecasting an overspend of £417k 

due to pressures in the purchasing budget and slippage on budget 

savings.

  This is partly offset by reductions of £1.1m in Business Strategy 

which holds the contingency to offset pressures in care costs, which 

are currently manifesting in Joint Learning Disability Services. 

Financials

Service FY Outturn FY Budget FY Variance

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS STRATEGY             2,724 3,884 (1,159)

CARE AND SUPPORT              

  ASSESSMENT & CARE MANAGEMENT 71,861 71,196 665

  HOUSING RELATED SERVICES      3,406 3,419 (13)

  JOINT LEARNING DISABILITY SERV 33,244 31,364 1,881

  PROVIDER SERVICES             (6,073) (6,266) 193

COMMISSIONING    43,391 42,944 447

COMMUNITY SERVICES            

  COMMUNITY  SAFETY             1,551 1,511 41

  LIBRARIES                     6,526 6,429 97

  LOCALITY MANAGEMENT           3,141 3,174 (33)

GRAND TOTAL 159,771 157,653 2,118

Commentary 

Business Strategy 

26. A variance of £1.14m reduction in spending is predicted for the 

contingency held to offset unforeseen pressures in care costs, which are 

currently manifesting in Joint Learning Disability Services. 

Care and Support 

27. Overall this area is forecasting an overspend of £2.7m.  This is 

predominately related to Learning Disabilities Purchasing (£1.8m) and 

slippage on budget savings. 

28. Assessment and Care Management (Older People/Physical 

Disabilities and Sensory Impairment) is forecasting an overspend of 

£665k.

  Of this, £375k relates to purchasing and reflects the delay in 

implementing savings particularly the implementation of homecare 

reablement.  The citywide rollout of Community Access and 

Page 7 of 24 Page 255



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 8 of 24 

Reablement services (CARs) in August will, based on the pilot, 

deliver reduced weekly costs.   

  The remainder of the overspend relates to employee costs, and 

reflects that the assessment and care management review will not 

make a full year’s saving but these will be effective from September.

In addition, extra staff have been required to deliver performance 

targets and address backlogs.  Employee costs are being closely 

monitored following the recent reorganisation and MER 

implementation, and will ensure budgets and actuals are correctly 

aligned and recharges to other bodies are agreed and timely. 

29. Housing Related Services are forecasting a small reduction in 

spending of £13k.  There has been some slippage in the MER and other 

savings but this is being offset by vacancies pending the reorganisation. 

30. Joint Learning Disabilities Service are forecasting an overspend of 

£1.9m.

  Of this, £1.7m relates to Purchasing.  This is consistent with the 

2011/12 overspend of £1.2m with an ongoing upward trend reflecting 

increased demand in number of care packages.  Further analysis to 

understand the reasons behind the increased demand is required. 

  The transport contract and travel solutions team are forecasting an 

overspend of £235k because of delays in implementing travel plans 

and reducing use of white buses.  The current approach has been 

reviewed to ensure specific areas and routes are targeted. 

31. Provider Services are forecasting an overspend of £192k.  This is 

made up of; 

  24 Hour Response £555k due to delays in delivering 2012/13 budget 

savings.  These are in respect of introducing city wide care alarm 

(CWCA) charges where existing Supporting People funding does not 

cover costs, and clarity about whether this can be done under former 

Supporting People guidance is being sought.  There have also been 

delays in making savings with regard to night care visiting due to 

service demands from the PCT and clarity about TUPE regulations. 

  There is a shortfall in residential and nursing contributions of £295k 

which relates predominantly to Sheffield Health and Social Care 

Trust (SHSCT) mental health residential homes and this reflects the 

occupancy levels. 

Page 256



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 9 of 24 

  There has been a month’s delay in the closure of two resource 

centres pending Cabinet approval and this has meant an estimated 

overspend of £232k. 

  The overspends have been offset by reduced expenditure on 

transport (£140k) and staffing (£704k) due to lower activity levels, 

and in preparation for further planned savings. 

Community Services 

32. Community Safety has a variance of £41k mainly explained by 

slippage in the Safer Neighbourhood Officer reductions of £68k offset by 

various small predicted underspends. 

33. Libraries have several pressures unforeseen at the beginning of the 

year, chiefly contract cleaning £97k.

34. Locality Management reduction in spending relates to rents and is 

offsetting the Safer Neighbourhood Officer slippage in Community 

Safety.

Commissioning 

35. Overall this Service is forecast an overspend of £447k. 

36. Social Care Commissioning is forecasting on line at (£26k) however

there are two issues which are currently offsetting each other: 

  Burngreave New Deal Project has forecast overspend of £292k – 

funding is no longer available for this project in 2012/13, pay costs 

have been transferred to Place but premises costs and income 

remains on Communities awaiting agreement to transfer. 

  Learning Disabilities Supporting People is forecasting a reduction in 

spending of £300k on contracts.  This reduction in spending is likely 

to increase but the appointment of a new Budget Manager has lead 

to cautious forecasting until further, detailed, analysis of contracts 

has been undertaken. 

37. Mental Health Commissioning (Sheffield Health and Social Care Trust 

(SHSCT) Partnership Budgets) are forecasting a £417k overspend.  

This is made up of: 

Page 257



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 10 of 24 

  MH and Substance Misuse Purchasing Budgets forecast a £303k 

overspend as a result of increased Self Directed Support/Direct 

Payments activity and shortfall in income. 

  Older People Resource Centre Savings of £251k are at risk of non-

achievement in 2012/13.  A forecast overspend of £125k is included 

to represent SCC potential exposure to 50% of the full figure (on 

basis of partnership share). SHSCT are focussing on mitigating 

savings now that the risk has been formalised. 

38. Housing Commissioning are forecasting a small reduction in spending 

of £55k. 

Public Health 

39. 2012/13 is the shadow running year for the public health services 

transferring from the PCT to SCC responsibility.  It is proposed that 

monthly updates for information only will be contained as part of this 

report once the format has been agreed. 

40. In overall terms the PCT is currently forecasting a year end reduction in 

spending of £90k on a £28.1m budget. 

RESOURCES

Summary 

41. As at Month 2, the Resources Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn 

of £1.172m over budget.  However since the month 2 deadline a 

solution has been found to an issue in Property and Facilities 

Management which brings the forecast additional spend to below £1m.

42. The key reasons (described in greater detail under commentary) for this 

position are: 

  £700k in Legal Services due to reduction in non core income and 

additional work being commissioned. 

  £600k in Commercial Services due to additional salaries expenditure 

and non achievement of savings target. 

  £400k in Property and Facilities Management due to delays in 

changes to corporate mail recharging (£100k) and difficulties in 

implementing a £200k budget saving relating to insurance.  This 

latter issue has since been resolved.      

Page 258



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

  £200k in Business Information Services (BIS) due to a delay in the 

Managing Employee Reduction (MER) process required to make 

staff savings. 

43. These have been offset by an £800k overall forecast reduction in 

spending in central costs. 

Financials

Service FY Outturn FY Budget FY Variance

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS INFORMATION SOLUTIONS 966 697 269

COMMERCIAL SERVICES           1,578 1,299 279

COMMERCIAL SERVICES (SAVINGS) (532) (820) 288

CUSTOMER FIRST                5,853 5,853 0

CUSTOMER SERVICES             2,322 2,317 5

FINANCE                       6,754 6,795 (41)

HUMAN RESOURCES               2,607 2,488 119

LEGAL SERVICES                1,753 1,039 714

PROPERTY AND FACILITIES MGT   40,117 39,756 361

TRANSPORT                     (61) 9 (70)

TOTAL 61,358 59,433 1,925

CENTRAL COSTS                 27,712 28,522 (810)

PROGRAMMES AND PROJECTS       1,476 1,419 57

GRAND TOTAL 90,546 89,374 1,172

Property & Facilities Management 

44. This service is forecasting £361k overspend.  The key reasons for this 

position as are: 

  Corporate Mail £100k overspend – changes to increase the 

chargeable business and to transform the service to include 

alternative methods of delivery have not yet been implemented. 

  Insurance £200k overspend – a reduction in the insurance fund had 

been included in the budget on an ongoing basis rather than a one 

off basis.  However alternative action has been identified to address 

this issue and the removal of this £200k overspend will be reflected in 

next months report.

Human Resources 

45. This service is forecasting £119k overspend.  This is mainly due to £55k 

of legal fees arising from the equal pay review which is not budgeted for 

plus a number of other smaller over spends. 

Page 11 of 24 Page 259



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Central Costs 

46. This area is showing an overall reduction in spending of £810k.  The 

main reason for this is additional benefits subsidy of £1.19m.  Beneath 

the headline figure, however, are some significant projected overspends 

that require further work to determine how these can be mitigated. 

Central Costs Forecast Variance
 £ 000
Capita - ICT 69
Capita - Finance 313
Capita - HR 471
Benefits subsidy (1,191)

Sub total Capita (338)
Other Costs (472)

Total (810)

Business Information Solutions 

47. This service is forecasting a £269k overspend.  The key reason for this 

position is due to the Managing Employee Reduction (MER) process for 

the re-alignment of organisational structures between BIS and CAPITA 

that has not yet been put place. The position will be reviewed as and 

when further information is available. 

Commercial Services 

48. There are two aspects to this, the operation of the service unit and the 

requirement to achieve specific savings from the establishment and 

operation of the unit.  The budgetary allocation between the two is 

shown below: 

Service FY Outturn FY Budget FY Variance

£000s £000s £000s

COMMERCIAL SERVICES           1,578 1,299 279

COMMERCIAL SERVICES (Invest to Save savings) (532) (820) 288

TOTAL 1,046 479 567

49. The forecast overspend in Commercial Services of £279k, relates 

mainly to an overspend of £182k on employee costs, but expected to be 

recovered through additional recharges.  In addition to this, £80k of 

funding that was initially thought would be available through savings in 

2011/12 and carried forward, related to the construction category 

management not being available. 

Page 12 of 24 Page 260



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 13 of 24 

Commercial Services (Invest to Save savings) 

50. This is showing an under achievement of savings, but has some 

estimates which appear to be relatively conservative and the forecast 

savings are anticipated to be higher.  However, further review by the 

service manager is required when more information is known.  These 

include:

  savings in the agency contract estimated at £35k per month although 

the first month saving was £53k; 

  savings forecast from the acquisition of multi function (print/scan etc.) 

devices are expected to be higher than the £40k currently forecast.

Legal Services 

51. This service is forecasting a £714k overspend.  The key reasons for this 

position are:

  Non-core income is £690k down against budget and no opportunity 

to charge it to other areas. 

  There is £112k forecast spend relating to work on South Yorkshire 

Trading Standards (SYTS) for which there is no budget available. 

52. A review of internal recharging is taking place for legal services; 

however the fact remains that income, from sources external to the cash 

limit, or general fund, is not achievable. 

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 

Background

Summary 

53. As at Month 2, the DCX Portfolio is forecasting an increase in spending 

of £170k over budget. The key reasons (described in greater detail 

under commentary) for this position are: 

  Increased costs relating to local elections and electoral registration 

within Modern Governance (£174k). 

  The overspends have been offset by a range of smaller savings in 

other areas. 

Page 261



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Financials

Service FY Outturn FY Budget FY Variance

£000s £000s £000s

ACCOUNTABLE BODY ORGANISATIONS 0 0 0

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT          1,508 1,579 (71)

ECONOMY AND SKILLS            0 - 0

HEALTH IMPROVEMENT            136 136 (0)

MODERN GOVERNANCE             3,719 3,588 131

PERFORMANCE AND CORP PLANNING 1,078 1,009 69

POLICY,PARTNERSHIP, AND RESEARCH 3,394 3,353 41

GRAND TOTAL 9,835 9,665 170

Modern Governance 

54. This service is forecasting an overspend of £131k. This is due to 

increasing costs relating to electoral registration (£94k) and local 

election (£80k) although this has been offset by a number of smaller 

underspends in other areas within the service. In month 3, the position 

should improve due to the transfer of £80k from a specific election 

reserve.

Policy, Partnership and Research  

55. This service is forecasting an overspend of £41k.  The position will 

change due to a budget adjustment approved by Cabinet: funding of 

£105k for Voluntary Grants was approved in June.

CORPORATE ITEMS 

Summary 

56. The month 2 forecast position for Corporate budgets is a £98k 

overspend.  The table below shows the items which are classified as 

Corporate and which include: 

  Corporate Budget Items: corporate wide budgets that are not 

allocated to individual Services/portfolios, including capital financing 

costs and the provision for redundancy/severance costs. 

  Corporate Savings: the budgeted saving on review of management 

costs and budgeted saving from improved sundry debt collection.

  Corporate income such as Formula Grant and Council tax income, 

some specific grant income and contributions from reserves. 

Page 14 of 24 Page 262



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Financials

FY Outturn FY Budget

FY 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Corporate Budget Items 73,176 73,176 0

Savings Proposals -1,652 -1,750 98

Income from Council Tax, RSG, NNDR, other grants and reserves -538,096 -538,096 0

Total Corporate Budgets -466,572 -466,670 98

57. The overspend consists of a £98k reduction on the savings proposals in 

relation to improved sundry debt collection. 

CORPORATE FINANCIAL RISK REGISTER 

58. The Council maintains a Corporate Financial Risk Register which details 

the key financial risks facing the Council at a given point in time.  The 

most significant risks resulting from that exercise are summarised in this 

report for information together with a summary of the actions being 

undertaken to manage each of the risks.  The top risks are summarised 

below:

Digital Region 

59. The Council is providing £4m in loans to the Company and as a 

shareholder carries further rights and responsibilities.  The Company’s 

sales are proving slow to take off, leading to changes in the Business 

Plan and to Contract changes with its private sector partner.  The 

Council faces risks on its direct investment, as well as on guarantee 

clauses to key contractors. 

Capital Receipts & Capital Programme 

60. Failure to meet significant year on year capital receipts targets due to 

depressed market and reduced Right-to-Buys, resulting in potential 

over-programming / delay / cancellation of capital schemes.

61. Building Schools for the Future Programme Affordability – The £18m 

affordability gap in the capital programme for the secondary schools 

estate which must be underwritten by the Council.  This requirement has 

been identified in the Council’s Capital Programme. 

Page 15 of 24 Page 263



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 16 of 24 

Pension Fund 

62. Bodies whose Pension liability is backed by the Council are likely to find 

the cost of the scheme a significant burden in the current economic 

context.  If they become insolvent the resulting liability may involve 

significant cost to the Council. 

Electric Works

63. The running costs of the business centre are not covered by rental and 

other income streams.  The approved business plan set-aside 

contingency monies to cover potential deficits in its early years of 

operation.  However, there remains a risk that the occupancy of units 

within Electric Works might be slower (lower) than that assumed within 

the business case, such that the call on the contingency is greater 

(earlier) than planned.  The business case assumed occupancy levels 

would increase from 44% (2009/10) to 79% (2010/11), The actual 

occupancy levels were 24% (2009/10) and 57% (2010/11), much of the 

shortfall in income being made up from conference lettings and virtual 

services.  Following a refresh of the financial model, the assumed level 

for 2011/12 is 68% rising to 78% for 2012/13 - a position which is being 

closely monitored.

Contract Spend 

64. The high and increasing proportion of Council budgets that are 

committed to major contracts impairs the Council’s flexibility to reduce 

costs or reshape services.  This is exacerbated by the fact that in 

general these contracts carry year-on-year inflation clauses based on 

RPIx which quite probably will not be available to the Council’s funding 

streams e.g.  Council Tax and RSG.

Economic Climate 

65. There is potential for current adverse economic conditions to result in 

increased costs (e.g.  increased homelessness cases) or reduced 

revenues.

66. The Council seeks to maintain adequate financial reserves to mitigate 

the impact of unforeseen circumstances. 

Page 264



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 17 of 24 

NHS Funding Issues 

67. There are significant interfaces between NHS and Council services in 

both adults’ and children’s social care.  The Council has prioritised these 

services in the budget process, but savings have nevertheless had to be 

found.  Working in partnership with colleagues in the Health Service 

efforts have been made to mitigate the impact of these savings on both 

sides.  However, ongoing work is required now to deliver these savings 

in a way that both minimises impacts on patients and customers and 

minimises financial risks to the NHS and the Council. 

Housing Regeneration 

68. There is a risk to delivering the full scope of major schemes such as 

Parkhill and SWaN because of the severe downturn in the housing 

market.  This could result in schemes ‘stalling’, leading to increased 

costs of holding the sites involved, and in the case of SWaN, potential 

exposure to termination payments.  In addition, the ending of the 

Housing Market Renewal programme is causing funding pressure e.g.

on site clearance work and in enabling further phases of commenced 

demolition schemes, such as Arbourthorne.

Trading Standards 

69. There is a risk that it is not possible to recover outstanding contributions 

from the other South Yorkshire Authorities. 

External Funding 

70. The Council makes use of a number of grant regimes, central 

government and European.  Delivering the projects that these grants 

fund involves an element of risk of grant claw back where agreed 

outputs are not delivered.  Strong project management and financial 

controls are required. 

Academies & Independent Schools 

71. Local Authority community schools that choose to become independent 

academies are entitled, under current DfE finance regulations, to receive 

a proportion of the local authority’s school related central spending 

budgets.  If all of Sheffield’s Secondary Schools were to become 

academies it is estimated that around £2.7 million would be deducted 

from the authority’s central spending budgets and given to the 

Academies.  The risk is that this would leave an inadequate level of 

Page 265



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 18 of 24 

funding to maintain the centrally retained school services that support 

local authority community schools and thus cuts would have to be made 

to balance the budget.

72. There are also further potential risks if a school becoming an academy 

is a PFI school, it is unclear how the assets and liabilities will be 

transferred to the new academies and whether the authority could be left 

with residual PFI liabilities. 

73. Where new independent schools (free schools) or Academies are set up 

and attract pupils from current PFI schools, the funding base available to 

pay for a fixed long term PFI contract would reduce, leaving SCC with a 

bigger affordability gap to fund. 

74. It is not yet known which schools will become academies this year.  

Current indications suggest that all the secondary schools will transfer 

with potentially some of the larger primary schools. 

Agreed Budget Savings for 2012/13 

75. Following a period in which a risk assessment was carried out of the 

implementation of budget savings and resulted in the preparation of 

RAG reports, the position from now on will be assessed as part of the 

budget monitoring process.

Treasury Management 

76. The ongoing sovereign-debt crisis is subjecting the Council to significant 

counterparty and interest-rate risk. Counterparty risk arises where we 

have cash exposure to banks and financial institutions who may default 

on their obligations to repay to us sums invested.  There is also a real 

risk that the Eurozone crisis could impact upon the UK's recovery, which 

in turn could lead to higher borrowing costs for the nation. 

77. The Council is mitigating counterparty risk through a prudent investment 

strategy, placing the majority of surplus cash in AAA highly liquid and 

diversified funds.  Ongoing monitoring of borrowing rates and forecasts 

will be used to manage our interest-rate exposure. 

Welfare Reforms  

78. The government is proposing changes to the Welfare system, phased in 

over the next few years.  The full detail and impact of the changes are 

not known at this stage.  Changes proposed include:

Page 266



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 19 of 24 

  Housing Benefit changes – there are a number of proposals where 

the anticipated impacts are that a number of claimants will receive 

less benefits then they do now, thereby impacting on their ability to 

pay rent.

  Abolition of council tax benefit – due from April 2013 to be replaced 

by a local scheme.  It will be cash limited and subject to a 10% 

reduction from current levels.

  Introduction of universal credit – from October 2013 administered by 

DWP.  Along with the impact of reducing amounts to individuals and 

the financial issues that might cause, the biggest potential impact of 

this change is the impact on the HRA and the collection of rent.  This 

benefit is currently paid direct to the HRA in future this will be paid 

direct to individuals.  This will potentially increase the cost of 

collection and rent arrears.  There will also be an impact on the 

current contract with Capita and internal client teams. 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) 

79. The 2012/13 financial year is the first of the new self financing regime 

for the HRA.  During 2011/12 there was a write off of a significant 

amount of the Council’s housing debt which has meant that for future 

years the Council is able to meet its social housing costs from the rent 

generated by tenants. 

80. The agreed 2012/13 budget for the HRA involved a contribution from 

reserves of £1.1m (excluding District Heating).  As at month 2 the 

position is that a contribution of £3.6m is made reserves, an 

improvement of £4.7m on the budgeted position. 

81. This is due to a variation in the assumption about interest rates: the 

budget assumed that the impact of the debt write off would result in an 

interest rate of 5.33% in respect of the remaining debt.  However the 

actual impact of the write off and the timing of this have meant that the 

interest rate is expected to be lower due to access to more attractive 

interest rates which have the potential to reduce capital financing costs 

by £1.4m.

82. In addition an improved rental income position is also forecast as a 

result of reductions in the overall level of vacant properties (£154k) and 

revised projections of (£180k) rent income.

Page 267



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

83. Consideration needs to be given to the impact of the changing interest 

rates and this may result in reducing the amount of prudential borrowing 

planned, which will ensure longer terms savings and give flexibility later 

in the business plan.

THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME FOR 2012/13 

Summary 

84. At the end of May 2012, capital expenditure so far to date is £5.335m 

(32%) below budget. The outturn forecast is £12.151m (6%) below the 

Approved Capital Programme. 

85. The variation in the year to date position arises from accelerated spend 

on Building Schools for the Future projects in the CYPF portfolio offset 

by slippage in the Place portfolio, especially on Housing projects 

(£4.4m).

86. The forecast for the year shows all portfolios except Communities 

underspending by £2- 3m against the approved programme. 

Financials 2012/13 

All figures reported in £000 

Portfolio Spend 
to date 

Budget 
to Date 

Variance Full 
Year 
forecast

Full
Year 
Budget 

Full 
Year 
Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

CYPF 5,357 3,700 1,658 82,466 85,510  (3,045)

Place 812  2,865 (2,053) 19,435 23,063  (3,628)

Housing 4,927  9,344 (4,417) 66,487 70,015  (3,528)

Communities 65  465 (400) 3,100 3,010  90

Resources 356  478 (123) 23,694 25,735  (2,041)

        

Grand Total 11,517 16,852 (5,335) 195,182 207,333  (12,151)

Commentary 

87. At this early stage of the financial year not all of the forecasts are 

complete and it is therefore difficult to discern any noticeable trends or 

provide an accurate analysis.  Further attention will be given to 

completing the forecasts in the months that follow.

Page 20 of 24 Page 268



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 21 of 24 

Children, Young People and Families Programme

88. CYPF capital expenditure is £1.658m (45%) above the profiled budget 

for the year to date but forecast to be £3.045m below the programme by 

the year end for the reasons set out in the table below: 

Cause of change on Budget 
Year to 

date
Full Year 
forecast

£000 £000

Revised profile for Building Schools for the 
Future programme 1,931 0

Incorrect budget profiles -387 0

Delayed forecasts 0 -2,942 

Other variances 114 -102

1,658 -3,044

89. In general, the impact of incorrect budget profiles is much reduced on 

last year but there has already been a significant change in the BSF 

programme.

Place Programme 

90. The Place portfolio programme (excluding Housing) is £2.053m (72%) 

below the profiled budget for the year to date and forecast to be 

£3.628m below the programme by the year end for the reasons set out 

in the table below: 

Cause of change on Budget 
Year to 

date
Full Year 
forecast

£000 £000

Operational delays in projects due to 
planning, design or changes in 
specification -20 0 

Incorrect budget profiles 40 0

Delayed forecasts 0 -3,035 

Other variances -2,073 -593

-2,053 -3,628

91. The majority of the underspend to date is on Highways scheme where 

the Local Transport Programme and other Highways schemes have only 

just been submitted for approval. 

Page 269



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 22 of 24 

Housing Programme (Place Portfolio)

92. The Housing capital programme is £4.417m (47%) below the profiled 

budget for the year to date and forecast to be £3.528m  (5%) below the 

programme by the year end for the reasons set out in the table below: 

Cause of change on Budget 
Year to 

date
Full Year 
forecast

£000 £000

Slippage to be carried forward 0 -2,366 
Operational delays in projects due to 
planning, design or changes in 
specification -203 0

Incorrect budget profiles -3,543 0

Projects submitted for Approval 0 2,247

Additional Home Improvement grants -13 0 

Underspending on project estimates -294 -2,642

Other variances -364 -767

-4,417 -3,528

93. Schemes forecast to underspend in the year are Photo Voltaic cells for 

council housing (£1m) and several Sheffield Homes managed projects.

£1.6m of the £2.4m slippage is accounted for by the District Heat 

metering scheme which is forecast to slip into 2013/14: 

Communities 

94. The year to date spend on the Communities portfolio capital programme 

is only £400k (86%) below the profiled budget on three key projects: 

  £212k on Parson’s Cross Library scheme; 

  £104k on the Climate Change Impact fund which is dependant on 

proposals from Community Assemblies; and 

  £212k on the implementation of the ICT infrastructure. 

Resources 

95. The year to date spend is £123k below the programme due to slippage 

on the Accommodation strategy projects (£205k) offset by earlier than 

anticipated purchases of transport equipment.  The forecast outturn is 

£2.041m below the approved programme but most of this is due to 

forecasts being incomplete at this stage.  

Page 270



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 23 of 24 

Approvals

96. A number of schemes have been submitted for approval in line with the 

Council’s agreed capital approval process. 

97. Below is a summary of the number and total value of schemes in each 

approval category: 

  10 additions to the capital programme with a total value of £1.226m; 

  29 variations to the capital programme giving a net reduction of 

£912k;

  6 procurement strategy approvals with a total value of £2.218m. 

98. The following have been approved since the previous report to Cabinet: 

  3 emergency approvals with a total value of £1.373m;

  There have been no director variations.

99. Further details of the schemes listed above can be found in Appendix 1. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

100. The primary purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the City Council’s Budget Monitoring position for 2012/13 

and, as such it does not make any recommendations which have 

additional financial implications for the City Council. 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS  

101. There are no specific equal opportunity implications arising from the 

recommendations in this report.

PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

102. Although this report deals, in part, with the Capital Programme, it does 

not, in itself, contain any property implications, nor are there any arising 

from the recommendations in this report. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

103. Members are asked to: 

a. Note the updated information and management actions provided by 

this report on the 2012/13 budget position. 

Page 271



2012/13 Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Page 24 of 24 

b. In relation to the Capital Programme: 

(i) Note the proposed additions to the capital programme listed in 

Appendix 1, including the procurement strategies and 

delegations of authority to the Director of Commercial Services 

or Delegated Officer, as appropriate, to award the necessary 

contracts following stage approval by Capital Programme 

Group.

(ii) Note the proposed variations in Appendix 1 & 2. 

(iii) Note that there were no variations approved by Directors under 

their delegated authority. 

(iv) Note the Emergency Approvals in Appendix 1. 

(v) Note the financial position on the Capital Programme. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

104. To formally record changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme and gain Member approval for changes in line with 

Financial Regulations and to reset the capital programme in line with 

latest information. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

105. A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the 

process undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to 

Members.  The recommendations made to Members represent what 

Officers believe to be the best options available to the Council, in line 

with Council priorities, given the constraints on funding and the use to 

which funding is put within the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme.

Eugene Walker 

Director of Finance 

Page 272



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

S
c
h

e
m

e
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a
l

T
y
p

e
 

V
a
lu

e
£
0
0
0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

S
:-

P
P

G
2
 O

u
g

h
ti

b
ri

d
g

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 G

ro
w

th
 W

a
v
e
 2

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 
is

 a
 m

in
o
r 

re
m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
u
p
il 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 3

0
 t

o
 6

0
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
2
 i
n
ta

k
e
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

 s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 w
h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
v
in

g
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

s
ta

g
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f

e
e
s
 o

f 
£
2
8
.5

k
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 G

ro
w

th
 

P
h
a
s
e
 2

 -
 F

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 &
 D

e
s
ig

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

 

A
d
d
it
io

n
1
5
8

C
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

(e
.g

. 
Y

o
rB

u
ild

, 
E

N
 

P
ro

c
u
re

, 
H

C
A

, 
B

u
y
in

g
 

S
o
lu

ti
o

n
s
, 

Y
P

O
).

 

A
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

lis
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 

s
o

u
rc

e
d

 f
ro

m
 Y

o
rB

u
ild

. 
  

L
o

c
a
l 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 (

L
T

P
) 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 

 
 

O
p
ti
o
 O

ra
n
g
e
 –

 C
it
y
 t

o
 H

a
lf
w

a
y
 

 
 

B
u
s
 G

a
te

s
 

!
 

S
o
u
th

 L
a
n
e
 

!
 

B
o
s
to

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

 
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

!
 

C
h
a
u
c
e
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
W

o
rd

s
w

o
rt

h
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 

!
 

K
in

g
 E

g
b
e
rt

s
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
F

u
rn

is
s
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 

!
 

G
re

e
n
h
ill

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
G

re
e
n
h
ill

 P
a
rk

w
a
y
 

 
 

P
F

I 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

 
 

N
IR

R
 A

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
y
 

 
 

K
e
y
 B

u
s
 R

o
u
te

: 
S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 t

o
 W

o
o
d
h
o
u
s
e
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
s

1
,0

6
9

F
o
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

b
e
fo

re
 A

u
g
u
s
t,
 w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 

b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 

S
tr

e
e

tf
o

rc
e
. 

 F
o

r 
w

o
rk

s
 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
S

tr
e

e
tf

o
rc

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
F

I 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
.

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 273



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

:-
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
s
ts

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

A
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
  

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
s
t 

in
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 i
s
 £

8
0
1
k
, 

th
e
 

to
ta

l 
c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 i
s
 £

4
6
7
k
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 t
o
ta

lli
n
g
 £

1
.4

5
5
m

 u
p
 t

o
 2

0
1
7
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 f

u
n

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

lo
c
k
 s

u
m

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

1
,4

5
5

N
/A

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
s
ts

 H
R

A
 

A
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
  

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 .

 C
o

s
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 a

re
 

£
9
0
5
k
 w

it
h
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

a
ll 

y
e
a
rs

 u
p
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 b

e
in

g
 £

2
.7

m

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 f

u
n

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 H
R

A
 S

e
lf
 f

in
a
n
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

s
 a

 b
lo

c
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
.

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

2
,7

1
0

N
/A

Q
0
0
0
6
7
 N

B
H

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n

-4
,1

6
5

N
/A

P
a
rk

 H
il
l 

–
 D

e
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

P
h
a
s
e
 5

 o
f 

th
e
 P

a
rk

 H
ill

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a
s
 d

e
c
la

re
d
 f

o
r 

d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

n
 1

4
th

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
2
. 

T
h
is

 
P

h
a
s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

o
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

ts
 o

f 
re

-h
o
u
s
in

g
 9

7
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 t

h
e
n
 b

e
 d

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s

c
re

e
n

e
d
 a

n
d
 S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 p
h
a
s
e
 w

ill
 

b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 H

o
m

e
s
 s

o
 n

o
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

is
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

1
,1

2
9

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 274



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 f

u
n

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 H
R

A
 s

e
lf
 f

in
a

n
c
in

g
 i
n
c
o

m
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

s
 a

 b
lo

c
k
 s

u
m

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

Q
0
0
0
6
9
 H

R
A

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 
A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

lo
c
k
 s

u
m

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 t

o
 f

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

.

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

-1
,1

2
9

N
/A

 
 

C
a
s
tl

e
 B

e
c
k
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

e
c
u

re
 

T
h
is

 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 f

o
r 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£
1
0
0
k
. 

It
 w

a
s
 a

lw
a
y
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

m
o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 T

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

 
g
ra

n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 (

£
2
0
k
) 

a
n
d
 a

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 f

ro
m

 
P

re
m

is
e
s
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
e
ts

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(£
8
0
k
).

 

O
ri
g
in

a
lly

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 a
n
 a

tt
e
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 b

a
s
in

 w
it
h
 a

n
 e

a
rt

h
 d

a
m

 a
n
d
 c

h
o
k
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
th

e
 f

lo
w

 o
f 

w
a
te

r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 a

 f
lo

o
d
in

g
 e

v
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t,
 b

u
t 

d
u
e
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
d
e
v
ic

e
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 b

lo
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 p
o
n
d
 w

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
. 

T
h
is

 p
o
n
d
 w

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 f
o
r 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fi
s
h
in

g
 u

s
e
. 

 L
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 p

o
n
d
, 

c
u
tt
in

g
 b

a
c
k
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
it
te

r 
p
ic

k
in

g
. 

W
o
rk

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 w
e
ir
 w

it
h
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 o

u
tf
a
ll,

 n
e
w

 f
o
o
tp

a
th

s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
n
d
. 

A
 n

e
w

 t
im

b
e
r 

fo
o
tb

ri
d
g
e
 w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
n
d
. 

P
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 f
is

h
in

g
 

p
la

tf
o
rm

s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
a
fe

r 
fi
s
h
in

g
 a

re
a
. 

T
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

la
tf
o
rm

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 c
re

a
te

d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

w
h
e
e

lc
h
a
ir
 a

c
c
e
s
s
. 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

1
0
0

C
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 W

o
rk

s
 i

n
 D

e
fa

u
lt

 
T

h
is

 V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

o
 r

e
-p

ro
fi
le

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 
re

fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t.
 T

h
e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 r

e
a
c
ti
v
e
 s

o
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t.
 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

1
0
0

N
\A

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 275



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

T
h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 P

ri
v
a
te

ly
 o

w
n
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 o
w

n
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o
rk

s
 b

u
t 

h
a
v
e
 f

a
ile

d
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 a

n
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
 

q
u
a
n
ti
ty

 f
ro

m
 y

e
a
r 

to
 y

e
a
r.

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

is
 f

o
r 

£
6
0
k
 o

v
e
r 

3
 y

e
a
rs

. 

L
o

c
a
l 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 (

L
T

P
) 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 

 
 

E
c
c
le

s
a
ll 

R
o
a
d
 T

ra
ff
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

 
 

A
5
7
 M

a
n
c
h

e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 /

 N
ile

 S
tr

e
e
t 

P
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

 
 

L
T

P
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
e
e
s
 

 
 

S
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 I

n
te

lli
g
e
n
t 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 S
y
s
te

m
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 
 

B
u

s
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 I

m
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

 
 

C
it
y
w

id
e
 2

0
m

p
h
 Z

o
n
e
 

 
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 P

e
rm

it
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

!
 

U
p
p
e
rt

h
o
rp

e
 &

 N
e
th

e
rt

h
o
rp

e
  

!
 

H
ill

s
b
o
ro

u
g
h
  

 
 

R
o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

u
d
it
s
 &

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

 
 

P
u

b
lic

 R
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

W
a

y
 

 
 

P
ri
n
c
e
 o

f 
W

a
le

s
 R

d
/G

re
e
n
la

n
d
 R

d
 

 
 

A
ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

 
 

P
a
c
k
a
g
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

 
 

T
a
x
i 
R

a
n
k
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

 
 

L
T

P
 C

y
c
le

 P
a
rk

in
g
 

 
 

R
o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 (

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

T
ra

in
in

g
 &

 P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
) 

 
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 M
o
d
e
s
 o

f 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

 
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
U

p
g
ra

d
e
 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s

1
,6

6
9

T
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 276



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

S
T

A
G

E
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
S

:-
 

1
. 

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

: 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 G
ro

w
th

 2
 O

u
g

h
ti

b
ri

d
g

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

  

P
ro

je
c

t 
B

a
c

k
g

ro
u

n
d

:-
 T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 G

ro
w

th
 W

a
v
e

 2
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 

w
o
rk

 
is

 
a
 

m
in

o
r 

re
m

o
d
e
l 

o
f 

th
e

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 

in
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

u
p
il 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 3

0
 t

o
 6

0
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
2
 i
n
ta

k
e
 f

o
r 

o
n
e
 

y
e
a
r 

o
n
ly

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

 s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 w
h
o
 w

ill
 

b
e
 m

o
v
in

g
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

o
s

it
io

n
: 

-
T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:-

 

D
F

E
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
B

a
s
ic

 N
e
e
d
 G

ra
n
t:
  
 £

1
8
6
,0

0
0
 (

*i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 £

2
8

.5
k
 f

e
e

s
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

 f
o

r 
w

it
h
in

 B
U

 9
0
6
7
8
 -

 P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 G

ro
w

th
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 –
 F

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 &
 D

e
s
ig

n
).

 

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

£
1
8
6
k
 a

re
 b

ro
k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
£
 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
  

 
 

  
  

  
 

  
 1

5
0
,0

0
0
 

 
C

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 &

 C
lie

n
t 

D
ir
e
c
t 

C
o
s
ts

 
  

  
 7

,5
0

0
  

  
  

  
T

o
ta

l 
 

  
 1

5
7
,5

0
0
 

  
  

  
  

  
 *

F
e
e
s
 

  
 2

8
,5

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

P
e
r 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 1
8
6
,0

0
0
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
:-

  
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 v

ia
 a

 c
o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

ro
u
te

 -
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
a
s
e
 a

 
c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 Y

o
rB

u
ild

 l
is

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
 

S
ta

g
e

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l

1
5
7
.5

Y
O

R
B

u
ild

 C
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 277



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

A
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

lis
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 s

o
u
rc

e
d
 f

ro
m

 Y
o
rB

u
ild

. 
  

T
h
is

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
a

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

A
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

w
ill

 
th

e
n
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 s

e
le

c
t 

a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 l
is

t.
  

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

S
C

C
 w

ill
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

in
im

is
e
 

th
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
e
x
p
o
s
u
re

. 

C
a
s
tl

e
 B

e
c
k
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

e
c
u

re

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

: 
- 

P
u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 l

in
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

a
s
te

r 
p
la

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
a
re

a
. 

T
h
is

 
In

c
lu

d
e
s
 
a
 
n
a
tu

ra
l 

p
la

y
 
s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

fo
rm

a
lis

in
g
 
a
 
fi
s
h
in

g
 

p
o
n
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
 t

o
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
. 

O
ri
g
in

a
lly

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 a
n
 a

tt
e
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 b

a
s
in

 w
it
h
 a

n
 e

a
rt

h
 d

a
m

 a
n
d
 c

h
o
k
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
th

e
 f

lo
w

 o
f 

w
a
te

r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 a

 f
lo

o
d
in

g
 e

v
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t,
 b

u
t 

d
u
e
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
d
e
v
ic

e
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 b

lo
c
k
e
d

 a
n
d
 a

 p
o
n
d
 w

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
. 

T
h
is

 p
o
n
d
 w

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 f
o
r 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fi
s
h
in

g
 u

s
e
. 

 L
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 p

o
n
d
, 

c
u
tt
in

g
 b

a
c
k
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
it
te

r 
p
ic

k
in

g
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

s
 t

h
e
 p

o
n
d
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 d

ra
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
-

p
ro

fi
le

d
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 w

a
te

r 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
n
d
s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 h

o
ld

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

a
te

r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
h
e
a
v
y
 r

a
in

fa
ll,

 t
h
u
s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
fl
o
o
d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

D
a
rn

a
ll 

a
re

a
.

W
o
rk

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 w
e
ir
 w

it
h
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 o

u
tf
a
ll,

 n
e
w

 f
o
o
tp

a
th

s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
n
d
. 

S
ta

g
e

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l

1
0
8

C
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 278



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

o
s
it

io
n

: 
- 

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 £

1
3

3
k
 w

it
h

 £
1

8
8

k
 

b
e

in
g

 s
p

e
n

t 
in

 p
ri
o

r 
y
e

a
rs

.

T
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

 g
ra

n
t 

o
f 

£
2
0
k
 a

n
d
 P

re
m

is
e
s
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
e
ts

 a
re

 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

£
8
0
k
 

fr
o
m

 
re

v
e
n
u
e
 

to
 

c
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 

s
a
fe

ty
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

, 
£
3
3
k
 

is
 

s
lip

p
a
g
e
 o

f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

fr
o
m

 1
1
/1

2
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 i

s
 £

1
0
7
,8

6
8
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 £

1
6
k
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h
 2

5
k
 f

o
r 

fe
e

s
.

D
e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

: 
- 

T
h
is

 P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 d

e
s
ir
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
b
lo

c
k
s
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

.
T

h
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 s

p
lit

 i
n
to

 e
ig

h
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it
s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

re
a
 b

a
s
is

. 
T

h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
re

a
 a

re
 f

o
r 

lig
h
ti
n
g
, 
fl
o
o
ri
n
g
, 

C
C

T
V

 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

o
o
r 

E
n
tr

y
 t

o
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
a

re
a

s
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

o
s

it
io

n
: 

- 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

to
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 

a
re

a
s
 

in
 

fl
a
ts

 
a
n
d
 

m
a
is

o
n
e
tt
e
s
 

a
t 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s

it
e
s
 -

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 £

1
3
5
k
 

F
lo

o
ri
n
g
 
to

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 

a
re

a
s
 
in

 
fl
a
ts

 
a
n
d
 
m

a
is

o
n
e
tt
e
s
 
a
t 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 
s
it
e
s
 
–
 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 £

3
5
k
 

D
o
o
r 

E
n
tr

y
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 

a
re

a
s
 i

n
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d
 m

a
is

o
n
e
tt
e
s
 a

t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s

it
e
s
 –

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 £

1
.4

m
 

C
C

T
V

 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 

a
re

a
s
 i

n
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d
 m

a
is

o
n
e
tt
e
s
 a

t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s

it
e
s
 –

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 £

1
5
2
k
 

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

ig
h
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it
s
 i
s
 £

4
,4

5
8
k
..
 

S
ta

g
e

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l

1
7
0

1
,5

5
2

E
N

 p
ro

c
u
re

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

C
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 T

e
n
d
e
r 

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 279



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

B
u

s
 R

a
p

id
 T

ra
n

s
it

 N
o

rt
h

 &
 T

in
s
le

y
 L

in
k
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

:-
  

T
h
is

 
is

 
a
 

£
3
4
m

 
p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

to
 

re
d

u
c
e

 
c
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

jo
u

rn
e

y
 

ti
m

e
s
 

a
n

d
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
lo

n
g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

o
rr

id
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 B

u
s
 R

a
p
id

 T
ra

n
s
it
 N

o
rt

h
e
rn

 r
o
u
te

 w
ill

 r
u
n
 f

ro
m

 S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

W
ic

k
e
r,

 A
tt
e
rc

lif
fe

, 
C

a
rb

ro
o
k
 a

n
d
 M

e
a
d
o
w

h
a
ll 

W
a
y
 b

e
fo

re
 j

o
in

in
g
 a

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 n

e
w

 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y
 t

o
 T

in
s
le

y
 (

to
 b

e
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 T

in
s
le

y
 L

in
k
).

 T
h
e
 n

e
w

 l
in

k
 

ro
a
d
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 l
a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 M

e
a
d
o
w

h
a
ll 

W
a
y
 a

n
d
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 R

d
. 

  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

o
s

it
io

n
: 

-
T

h
e
 B

R
T

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

o
u
th

 Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 (

L
T

P
) 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
. 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
:-

  
T

h
e
 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 
fo

r 
B

R
T

 
E

n
a
b
lin

g
 
W

o
rk

s
 
c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 
s
it
e

 
in

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 

w
o

rk
s
 

a
n

d
 

th
ir
d

 
p

a
rt

y
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

v
e

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
. 

S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l,
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 a

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 Y
O

R
c
o

n
s
u

lt
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i

s
 q

u
ic

k
e
r 

th
a
n
 o

p
e
n
 t

e
n
d
e
r.

  
A

p
p
ro

v
a
l 

is
 

n
o
w

 
s
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 

a
m

e
n
d
 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 
T

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

is
 

to
 

u
s
e
 

th
e
 

Y
O

R
c
o
n
s
u
lt
 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
fo

r 
th

e
 
C

a
te

g
o
ry

 
II
I 

c
h
e
c
k
s
, 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 
th

e
 
o
p
e
n
 
te

n
d
e
r 

ro
u
te

 o
ri
g
in

a
lly

S
ta

g
e

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

Y
O

R
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 280



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
S

:-
 

C
C

T
V

 P
a
rk

in
g

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 B

u
s
 L

a
n

e
 C

a
m

e
ra

s
 (

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
) 

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i

s
 t

o
 e

q
u
ip

 o
n
e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 v

e
h
ic

le
 w

it
h
 C

C
T

V
 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

to
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

th
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

p
a
rk

in
g
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

b
u
s
 

s
to

p
 

c
le

a
rw

a
y
s
, 

n
o
-w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 a

lo
n
g
 a

rt
e
ri
a
l 

ro
u
te

s
, 

a
ro

u
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
n
e
a
r 

s
h
o
p
s
 

a
n
d
 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 

ta
x
i 

ra
n
k
s
. 

 
T

h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

s
c
o
p
e
 

a
ls

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 

th
e
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 

o
f 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

re
-l
o
c
a
ta

b
le

 b
u
s
 l

a
n
e
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

b
u
s
 l

a
n
e
s
 t

o
 

b
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
d

.

T
h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
t 

is
 £

1
8
0
k
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 P
ru

d
e
n
ti
a

l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 £

1
0
5
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
£
7
5
k
. 

 I
t 

is
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

2
3
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
P

e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 p

e
r 

d
a
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

re
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 £

1
8
4
k
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
a
id

 o
v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

, 
w

it
h
 r

e
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
ro

u
n
d
 £

5
6
.5

k
 p

a
, 

w
it
h
 

lic
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

a
ro

u
n
d
 £

7
.6

k
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 a

 n
e
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 o

f 
a
ro

u
n
d
 £

1
1
5
k
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

(p
ro

 r
a
ta

 f
o
r 

8
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
) 

a
n
d
 £

1
2
0
k
 

in
 y

e
a
rs

 t
w

o
 a

n
d
 t

h
re

e
. 

(P
ru

d
e
n
ti
a
l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 r

e
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
ft
e
r 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
).

  
F

ro
m

 y
e
a
rs

 4
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 n

e
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

1
7
7
k
 p

a
.

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

1
8
0
 

In
-H

o
u
s
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

fo
r 

ro
a
d
 

s
ig

n
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
rk

in
g

s
. 

C
a
p
it
a
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
o
r 

IC
T

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t.

 

S
h

a
rr

o
w

 J
u

n
io

r 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
(C

Y
P

F
) 

T
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
v
e
rs

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 a

t 
th

e
 o

ld
 S

h
a
rr

o
w

 J
u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
, 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 (

T
h
e
 S

h
a
rr

o
w

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 –

 s
e
e
k
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
),

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 S

h
a
rr

o
w

 O
ld

 J
u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l.
  

T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 a

s
 

a
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
s
e
t,
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 H

ig
h
fi
e

ld
 L

ib
ra

ry
. 

  
H

ig
h
fi
e
ld

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

th
e
 M

o
u
n
t 

P
le

a
s
a
n
t 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
rs

e
ry

-i
n
fa

n
t 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
w

e
re

 d
e
c
la

re
d
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 t

o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 o

ld
 j
u
n
io

r 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

1
3
3
 

A
 f

o
rm

a
l 
te

n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 S

C
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

a
n

d
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 
(C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 
1
1
 

Page 281



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

s
c
h
o
o
l 
to

 m
a
k
e
 i
t 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 u

n
d
e
r-

u
s
e
d
, 

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 

w
a
s
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 u

ti
lis

e
 t

h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 e

x
p
a

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

fl
o
o
rs

, 
s
ta

ir
w

e
lls

, 
h
e
a
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s
. 

B
y
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
b
le

 m
a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 b

y
 a

v
o
id

in
g
 s

o
m

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
o
v
e
rh

e
a
d
 c

o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
 i
n
 t

w
o
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 t

ra
n
c
h
e
s
. 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 

fo
r 

th
e

 v
a
ri
a

ti
o

n
).

 

U
T

C
 (

U
n

iv
e
rs

it
y
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

C
o

ll
e
g

e
) 

S
it

e
 –

 P
o

rt
e
r 

B
ro

o
k
 (

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 H

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

H
C

A
) 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
it
e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 U

T
C

 T
ru

s
t 

o
v
e
r 

1
2
5
y
rs

 a
t 

a
 p

e
p
p
e
rc

o
rn

 g
ro

u
n
d
 r

e
n
t,
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

. 
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 m
a

tt
e

r 
s
o
le

ly
 f

o
r 

th
e
 U

T
C

 T
ru

s
t.
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 U

T
C

 i
n

 S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 w

ill
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 o

ff
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
’s

 1
4
-1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ro
u
te

s
 i

n
to

 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 d

ig
it
a

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
. 

 F
u
tu

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 U

T
C

 m
a
y
 a

ls
o
 b

ri
n
g
 i

n
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

to
 

th
e

 c
it
y
. 

A
n
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 A

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
w

a
s
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 l
e
g
a
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t

im
e
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

la
n
d
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

a
s
 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 U

T
C

 T
ru

s
t,
 w

e
re

 m
e
t 

in
 t
im

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

p
e
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d
y
 

fo
r 

fi
rs

t 
u
s
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

1
,0

6
0
 

L
a
n
d
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

D
L
A

 v
ia

 L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(f
in

a
l 
s
a
le

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
2
).

P
a
y
m

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
 t

o
 H

C
A

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
3
.

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
1
1

 

Page 282



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

C
a
p

it
a
l

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
1
1

 

If
 a

n
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 A

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
h
a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 g

ra
n
te

d
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 

d
a
te

 (
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
),

 t
h
e
n
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 l
e
g
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
c
o
u
n
te

re
d
, 

le
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

S
:-

 

N
o
n
e

Page 283



Page 284



Appendix 2 

2012-13 Local Transport Plan (LTP) Integrated Transport Programme

The Local Transport Plan programme is designed to make it easier for people 
to move around safely, reducing congestion, making public transport easier to 
use, making the City’s road safer, improving the condition of the roads and 
providing better transport links within and beyond the City. These are priorities 
as set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan - ‘City of Opportunity’. 

The LTP Integrated Transport programme is funded by an approved allocation 
from the South Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority £3,193,000 and in 
2012-13 this is complemented by investments from Better Buses funding, 
Local Sustainable Transport Fund, Local Transport Plan Countywide funding, 
Growing Places Fund and Other contributions of around £3,922,000. 

A breakdown of this funding is shown below: 

Funding £k

South Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority (SYITA) - 2012/13 3,193

Better Buses Funding 758

Local Sustainable Transport Fund  321

Local Transport Plan Countywide Funding 210

Growing Places Funding for BRT North & Tinsley Link 2,398

Other Contributions 235

Total Funding 7,115

These resources will be deployed as follows: 

Allocations £k

Additions submitted for approval in this report 
Optio Orange :City to Halfway 
Bus Gates
School Entrance Improvements
PFI Opportunities 
Northern Inner Relief Road – Archaeology 
Key Bus Routes: Sheffield to Woodhouse 

411
278
175
125
50
30

Additions Subtotal 1,069

Variations submitted for approval in this report 
Ecclesall Rd Traffic Management Scheme 
A57 Manchester Rd/Nile St - Pedestrian Improvements 
LTP Management Costs 
S Yorkshire Intelligent Transport System Development 
Bus Infrastructure Improvements 
Citywide 20mph Zone 
Parking Permit Schemes
Road Safety Audits and Scheme Completion 
Public Rights of Way 
Prince of Wales Rd/Greenland Rd 
Other smaller value schemes 

263
200
188
160
142
120
114
100
80
80

219

Variations Subtotal 1,666

Page 1 of 3 Page 285



Appendix 2 

Emergency Approvals (to be reported at July CPG) 
Halfway to Killamarsh Multi User Route
Upper Don Valley Cycle Routes 
Driving Me Crazy Programme 2 
Better Buses schemes 
South Community Assembly 

250
206
50
47
40

Emergency Approval Subtotal 593

Schemes awaiting approval at July Cabinet meeting 
BRT North and Tinsley Link 
Waverley-Handsworth Cycle Link 
Peak Park Pedestrian Crossings 

2,398
50
30

May Recommendations to Cabinet Subtotal 2,478

Total Allocations 5,806

Further scheme allocations to be presented to July CPG 1,198

Unallocated LTP funding 111

Total 7,115

There are a number of schemes to be presented to CPG in July, to the value 
of approximately £1.2m.  They include the remaining Community Assembly 
allocations and the Lower Don Valley Cycle Route scheme.  To date, there is 
approximately £111k of unallocated Local Transport Plan funding.

Further detail on the larger schemes is described below: 

Optio Orange: City to Halfway (£411k) 
This scheme provides new infrastructure and network management solutions 
on the leading voluntary partnership (Optio) route from Sheffield City Centre 
to Halfway. This will include highway improvements to reduce bus delays; 
improving the wireless communications network for intelligent traffic signal 
control by changes to smart management technology and management of 
these locations to minimise delays; bus stop clearways, raised kerbs and 
tactiles; new bus shelters, some with Real-Time information; and minor works 
to ensure bus lanes and clearways are enforceable. 

Bus Gates (£278k) 
This scheme is to progress the installation of bus gates at South Lane (£148k) 
and Boston Street (£130k). 

School Entrance Improvements (£175k) 
The three projects being progressed are at Chaucer Secondary (£150k), King 
Egbert Secondary (£12.5k) and Greenhill Primary (£12.5k).  They will improve 
visibility of school children, manage speeds and parking appropriately. This 
will consider extending waiting restrictions outside some school gates.    

PFI Complementary Schemes (£125k) 
This a series of small scale changes that can be designed in advance and 
built at the same time as the main PFI contractor is repairing roads, thereby 
getting best value for money. 

Page 2 of 3 Page 286



Appendix 2 

Page 3 of 3 

A57 Manchester Rd/Nile St - Pedestrian Improvements (£200k) 
This scheme is to progress the installation of new signal pedestrian crossing 
facilities at this busy junction in the middle of Broomhill. The approval for 
2012/13 (£200k) would fund the necessary preparatory works in advance of 
the main scheme works in 2013/14. 

Ecclesall Road Traffic Management Schemes (£263k) 
Following on from last year’s successful public consultation process, the 
proposal is to build a number of agreed traffic management measures along 
this busy road. 

LTP Management Costs (£188k) 
Funding used to pay for staff time to deliver projects within the Local 
Transport Plan capital programme. 

South Yorkshire Intelligent Transport System (SYITS) Development 
(£160k)
Sheffield is leading on this project on behalf of all four districts in the County. 
The SYITS system provides journey time data on both radial and orbital 
routes across the city and county.

Bus Infrastructure Improvements (£142k) 
This scheme deals with bus hotspots and reassessing bus priority measures 
where they failing to deliver.  This can involve re-locating bus stops, altering 
bus lanes and other necessary work. 

Citywide 20mph Zone (£120k) 
This is a citywide strategy to provide safer roads – including development of 
the first two 20mph speed limits in Community Assembly areas. 

Parking Permit Schemes (£114k) 
This project will develop and install Permit Parking schemes - building on 
consultation work already done with local communities, through implementing 
a scheme in Upperthorpe and Netherthorpe, and developing a scheme in the 
St.Vincents area.  It will also review the Hillsborough scheme which went live 
in February 2012. 

Road Safety Audits and Scheme Completion (£100k) 
The purpose of this scheme is to carry out road safety audit work on existing 
completed projects and undertaking minor improvements where necessary.

Page 287



Page 288

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	8 Retirement of Staff
	9 Adult and Community Learning - Fees Policy 2012 -13
	10 The Sheffield Investment Fund
	11 Establishment of Healthwatch Sheffield - Contract Matters
	12 Annual Equalities and Inclusion Report 2011 - 12
	13 Wybourn Sites Disposal
	14 Fox Hill Redevelopment
	14A - Fox Hill April 2012 - Part 2 Appendix Closed

	15 Revenue Budget and Capital Programme Monitoring (Month 2)

